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B FINSERV
BAJAJ

BAJAJ HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER: U65910PN2008PLC132228
REGISTERED CORPORATE CONTACT PERSON EMAIL AND WEBSITE
OFFICE OFFICE TELEPHONE
Bajaj Auto Limited|5™" Floor, B2, Atul Patni Email: www.bajajhousingfina
Complex, = Mumbai-|Cerebrum IT Park,|Company Secretary and|bhflinvestor.service |nce.in
Pune Road, Akurdi,|Kumar City, Compliance Officer @bajajfinserv.in
Pune 411 035,|Kalyani Nagar, Pune
Maharashtra, India 411 014 Telephone: +91 20
Maharashtra, India 71878060
THE PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPANY: BAJAJ FINANCE LIMITED AND BAJAJ FINSERV LIMITED
DETAILS OF THE OFFER TO THE PUBLIC
ELIGIBILITY AND SHARE

RESERVATION AMONG QUALIFIED
INSTITUTIONAL BIDDERS, RETAIL

INDIVIDUAL BIDDERS, NON-
INSTITUTIONAL BIDDERS, ELIGIBLE

EMPLOYEES AND ELIGIBLE

SHAREHOLDERS

Fresh Issue and|508,571,428* 428,571,428* 937,142,856* |The Offer was made pursuant to Regulation
Offer for Sale Equity Shares of|Equity Shares of|Equity Shares|6(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board
face value of %10|face value of %10|of face value|of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
each aggregatingleach aggregatinglof %10 each|Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as
to ¥35,600.0 million|to ¥30,000.0 million|aggregating to|amended (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”). For
%65,600.0 further details, see “Other Regulatory and
million Statutory Disclosures — Eligibility for the
Offer” on page 470.
For details in relation to the share
reservation among Qualified Institutional
Buyers (“QIBs”), Retail Individual Bidders
(“RIBs”), Non-Institutional Bidders (“NIBs”),
Eligible Employees and Eligible
Shareholders (each as defined hereinafter),
see “Offer Structure” on page 497.

FRESH ISSUE OFFER FOR TOTAL
SIZE SALE SIZE OFFER SIZE

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment
DETAILS OF THE SELLING SHAREHOLDER, OFFER FOR SALE AND WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST OF
ACQUISITION PER EQUITY SHARE

NAME OF THE NUMBER OF EQUITY SHARES WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST OF
SELLING TYPE OFFERED® / AMOUNT (ZIN ACQUISITION PER EQUITY SHARE

SHAREHOLDER MILLION) (IN ¥)*
Bajaj Finance Limited  |Promoter 428,571,428 Equity Shares of face
Selling value of 10 each aggregating to
Shareholder %30,000.0 million
*As certified by the Statutory Auditors of our Company, by way of their certificate dated September 11, 2024.

@Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment
RISKS IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER

This being the first public issue of Equity Shares of our Company, there has been no formal market for the Equity Shares.
The face value of the Equity Shares is %10 each. The Floor Price, Cap Price and Offer Price as determined by our
Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers (“BRLMs”), and on the basis of assessment of market
demand for the Equity Shares by way of the Book Building Process, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations and
as stated in “Basis for Offer Price” on page 116 should not be considered to be indicative of the market price of the Equity
Shares after the Equity Shares are listed. No assurance can be given regarding active or sustained trading in the Equity

Shares nor regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.
GENERAL RISK

Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and Bidders should not invest any funds in
the Offer unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their entire investment. Bidders were advised to read the risk
factors carefully before taking an investment decision in the Offer. For taking an investment decision, Bidders must rely
on their own examination of our Company and the Offer, including the risks involved. The Equity Shares in the Offer have
neither been recommended, nor approved by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), nor does SEBI
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guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the contents of this Prospectus. Specific attention of the investors is invited to
“Risk Factors” on page 36.
Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Prospectus contains
all information with regard to our Company and the Offer, which is material in the context of the Offer, that the information
contained in this Prospectus is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that
the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which
makes this Prospectus as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions
misleading in any material respect.
The Promoter Selling Shareholder accepts responsibility for and confirms only the statements expressly and specifically
made by it in this Prospectus to the extent of information specifically pertaining to it and the Offered Shares and assumes
responsibility that such statements are true and correct in all material respects and not misleading in any material respect.
The Promoter Selling Shareholder assumes no responsibility for any other statement in this Prospectus, including, inter
alia, any of the statements made by or relating to our Company or our business.

LISTING
The Equity Shares that have been offered through the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus are proposed
to be listed on the Stock Exchanges, being BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”, and together with BSE, the “Stock Exchanges”). For the purposes of the Offer, NSE shall be the
Designated Stock Exchange. A signed copy of the Red Herring Prospectus has been filed and this Prospectus
shall be filed with the RoC (as defined hereinafter) in accordance with Sections 32(2) and 26(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013 respectively. For details of the material contracts and documents available for inspection from the date
of the Red Herring Prospectus until the Bid/ Offer Closing Date, see “Material Contracts and Documents for
Inspection” on page 532.

BOOK RUNNING LEAD MANAGERS

NAME AND LOGO OF THE BRLMS CONTACT TELEPHONE AND E-MAIL
PERSON
. Kotak Mahindra Capital|{Ganesh Rane |[Tel: +91 22 4336 0000
kotak Company Limited E-mail: bhfl.ipo@kotak.com
Investment Banking
BofA Securities India Limited |Lohit Sharma |[Tel: +91 22 66328000
= E-mail:
7,
BofA SECURITIES '? dg.bajaj_housing_finance_ipo@bofa.co
m
Axis Capital Limited Pavan Naik Tel: +91 22 43252183
/‘AX|SCAP'TAL E-mail: bhfl.ipo@axiscap.in
folamas Goldman Sachs (India)|Mukarram Tel: +91 22 6616 9000
Securities Private Limited Rajkotwala E-mail: bhflipo@gs.com
SBI Capital Markets Limited Karan Tel: +91 22 4006 9807
O SBICAPS Savardekar /|E-mail: bhfl.ipo@sbicaps.com
S Sambit Rath
JM Financial Limited Prachee Dhuri |Tel: +91 22 66303030
IJM FINANCIAL E-mail: bhfl.ipo@jmfl.com
e IIFL Securities Limited Mansi Sampat|Tel: +91 22 46464728
E2NFL secuRITIES / Pawan Jain _|E-mail: bhfl.ipo@iiflcap.com
REGISTRAR TO THE OFFER
NAME OF THE REGISTRAR \ CONTACT PERSON E-MAIL AND TELEPHONE
KFin Technologies Limited M. Murali Krishna Tel: +91 40 67162222/ 18003094001
E-mail: bhfl.ipo@kfintech.com

BID/ OFFER PERIOD
ANCHOR INVESTOR BID/ OFFER PERIOD OPENED/CLOSED ON Friday, September 6, 2024
BID/OFFER OPENED ON Monday, September 9, 2024

BID/OFFER CLOSED ON Wednesday, September 11, 2024

M The Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period was one Working Day prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Date.
" The UPI mandate end time and date was 5:00 p.m. on Bid/Offer Closing Date.
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BAJAJ HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED
Our Company was originally incorporated as ‘Bajaj Financial Solutions Limited’ at Pune, Maharashtra as a public limited company under the Companies Act, 1956, pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated June 13, 2008,
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Pune (‘RoC”) and was granted its certificate for commencement of business on September 24, 2008 by the RoC. Thereafter, the name of our Company was changed to ‘Bajaj
Housing Finance Limited” with a fresh certificate of incorporation dated November 14, 2014 issued by the Assistant Registrar of Companies, Pune. Our Company has also been granted a certificate of registration dated September
24, 2015 by the NHB bearing registration number 09.0127.15 to commence/carry on the business of a housing finance institution without accepting public deposits. For details, please see “History and Certain Corporate Matters”
on page 255.
Registered Office: Bajaj Auto Limited Complex, Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035, Maharashtra, India; Corporate Office: 5" Floor, B2, Cerebrum IT Park, Kumar City, Kalyani Nagar, Pune 411014, Maharashtra, India
Tel: 020 71878060 Website: www.bajajhousingfinance.in; Contact person: Atul Patni, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer; E-mail: bhflinvestor.service@bajajfinserv.in
Corporate Identity Number: U65910PN2008PLC132228
THE PROMOTERS OF OUR COMPAN AJAJ FINANCE LIMITED AND BAJAJ FINSERV LIMITED
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER OF 937,142,856* EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ¥10 EACH (“EQUITY SHARES”) OF BAJAJ HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED (“COMPANY”) FOR CASH AT A PRICE OF 70 PER EQUITY
SHARE (INCLUDING A SHARE PREMIUM OF 260 PER EQUITY SHARE) (“OFFER PRICE”) AGGREGATING TO %65,600.0 MILLION (THE “OFFER”) COMPRISING A FRESH ISSUE OF 508,571,428* EQUITY SHARES OF
FACE VALUE OF %10 EACH AGGREGATING TO %35,600.0 MILLION (“FRESH ISSUE”) AND AN OFFER FOR SALE (THE “OFFER FOR SALE”) OF 428,571,428* EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF 10 EACH
AGGREGATING TO ¥30,000.0 MILLION BY BAJAJ FINANCE LIMITED (“PROMOTER SELLING SHAREHOLDER”) (“OFFERED SHARES”). THE OFFER CONSTITUTED 11.3% OF THE POST-OFFER PAID-UP EQUITY
SHARE CAPITAL OF OUR COMPANY. THE OFFER INCLUDED A RESERVATION OF 28,571,428* EQUITY SHARES OF FACE VALUE OF ¥10 EACH, AGGREGATING TO ¥2,000.0 MILLION (CONSTITUTING 0.3% OF
THE POST-OFFER PAID-UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL) FOR SUBSCRIPTION BY ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES (“EMPLOYEE RESERVATION PORTION”) AND A RESERVATION OF 71,428,571* EQUITY SHARES OF FACE
VALUE OF 10 EACH, AGGREGATING TO %5,000.0 MILLION (CONSTITUTING 0.9% OF THE POST-OFFER PAID-UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL) FOR SUBSCRIPTION BY ELIGIBLE SHAREHOLDERS (“SHAREHOLDERS
RESERVATION PORTION”). THE OFFER LESS THE EMPLOYEE RESERVATION PORTION AND THE SHAREHOLDERS RESERVATION PORTION IS HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS THE “NET OFFER”. THE OFFER
AND THE NET OFFER CONSTITUTED 11.3% AND 10.1% OF THE POST-OFFER PAID-UP EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF OUR COMPANY, RESPECTIVELY.

THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES IS ¥10 EACH. THE OFFER PRICE IS 7 TIMES THE FACE VALUE OF THE EQUITY SHARES.

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

This Offer was made in terms of Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR read with Regulation 31 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Offer was made through the Book Building Process in accordance with Regulation 6(1) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations wherein in terms of Regulation 32(1) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, not more than 50% of the Net Offer was available for allocation on a proportionate basis to Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”, and such portion,
the “QIB Portion”) provided that our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs, allocated up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations (“Anchor Investor
Portion”), of which at least one-third was made available for allocation to domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of
under-subscription or non-allocation in the Anchor Investor Portion, the balance Equity Shares would have been added to the Net QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion was made available for allocation on a proportionate
basis only to Mutual Funds and the remainder of the Net QIB Portion was made available for allocation on a proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids having
been received at or above the Offer Price. Further, not less than 15% of the Net Offer was made available for allocation to Non-Institutional Bidders out of which (a) one-third of such portion was reserved for applicants with
application size of more than ¥200,000 and up to ¥1,000,000; and (b) two-third of such portion was reserved for applicants with application size of more than 1,000,000, and not less than 35% of the Net Offer was available for
allocation to Retail Individual Bidders (“RIBs”) in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids having been received from them at or above the Offer Price. All potential Bidders (except Anchor Investors) were
required to mandatorily utilise the Application Supported by Blocked Amount (“ASBA”) process by providing details of their respective bank accounts (including UPI ID for UPI Bidders using UPI Mechanism) (as defined hereinafter)
in which the Bid amount was blocked by the SCSBs or the Sponsor Banks, as applicable, to participate in the Offer. Anchor Investors were not permitted to participate in the Anchor Investor Portion of the Offer through the ASBA
process. Further, Equity Shares were allocated on a proportionate basis to Eligible Employees applying under the Employee Reservation Portion, subject to valid Bids received from them at or above the Offer Price. Furthermore,
up to 71,428,571* Equity Shares, aggregating to ¥5,000.0 million was made available for allocation on a proportionate basis only to Eligible Shareholders bidding in the Shareholders Reservation Portion, subject to valid Bids being
received at or above the Offer Price. For details, see “Offer Procedure” on page 502.

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

RISKS IN RELATION TO THE FIRST OFFER
This being the first public issue of Equity Shares of our Company, there has been no formal market for the Equity Shares. The face value of the Equity Shares is 10 each. The Floor Price, Cap Price and Offer Price as determined
by our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and on the basis of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares by way of the Book Building Process, as stated in “Basis
for Offer Price” on page 116 should not be considered to be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after the Equity Shares are listed. No assurance can be given regarding active or sustained trading in the Equity
Shares nor regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.

GENERAL RISK
Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and Bidders should not invest any funds in the Offer unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their entire mvestme
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COMPANY’S AND PROMOTER SELLING SHAREHOLDER’S ABSOLUTE RESPONSIBILITY
Our Company, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts responsibility for and confirms that this Prospectus contains all information with regard to our Company and the Offer, which is material in the context of the Offer, that
the information contained in this Prospectus is true and correct in all material aspects and is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly held and that there are no other
facts, the omission of which makes this Prospectus as a whole or any of such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect. The Promoter Selling Shareholder accepts
responsibility for and confirms only the statements expressly and specifically made by them in this Prospectus to the extent of information specifically pertaining to them and the Offered Shares and assumes responsibility that such
statements are true and correct in all material respects and not misleading in any material respect. The Promoter Selling Shareholder assumes no responsibility for any other statement in this Prospectus, including without limitation,
any of the statements made by or relating to our Company or our Company's business or any other person(s) in this Prospectus.

The Equity Shares that that have been offered through the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus are proposed to be listed on the Stock Exchanges, being BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”", and together with BSE, the “Stock Exchanges”). Our Company has received ‘in-principle’ approvals from BSE and NSE for the listing of the Equity Shares pursuant to their letters each dated July 30, 2024. For the purposes
of the Offer, the Designated Stock Exchange is NSE. A signed copy of the Red Herring Prospectus has been filed and the Prospectus shall be filed with the RoC in accordance with Sections 32 and 26(4) of the Companies Act,
2013, respectively. For details of the material contracts and documents that were made available for inspection from the date of the Red Herring Prospectus until the Bid/ Offer Closing Date, see “Material Contracts and Documents
for Inspection” on page 532.
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Axis Capital Limited

1st Floor, Axis House,
P.B. Marg, Worli, Mumbai
400 025,

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 43252183
E-mail:
bhfl.ipo@axiscap.in
Website:
www.axiscapital.co.in
Investor Grievance E-
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investor.grievance@axisc
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Contact Person: Pavan
Naik

SEBI Registration No.:
INM000012029

Goldman Sachs (India)
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Tel: +91 22 66303030
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Contact Person:
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Monday, September 9, 2024
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Wednesday, September 11, 2024
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*The UPI mandate end time and date was 5:00 p.m. on Bid/Offer Closing Date.

The Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period was one Working Day prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Date.
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SECTION |: GENERAL
DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Prospectus uses certain definitions and abbreviations which, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies,
or unless otherwise specified, shall have the meaning as provided below. References to any legislations, acts,
regulations, rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications, clarifications, directions, or policies shall be to such
legislations, acts, regulations, rules, guidelines, circulars, notifications, clarifications, directions, or policies as
amended, updated, supplemented, re-enacted or modified, from time to time, and any reference to a statutory
provision shall include any subordinate legislation made, from time to time, under such provision.

The words and expressions used in this Prospectus, but not defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such
terms under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Act, the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Companies Act, the SCRA,
the SCRR, the Depositories Act and the rules and regulations notified thereunder, as applicable. Further, the Offer-
related terms used but not defined in this Prospectus shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms under the
General Information Document (as defined hereinafter). In case of any inconsistency between the definitions used
in this Prospectus and the definitions included in the General Information Document, the definitions used in this
Prospectus shall prevail.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the terms not defined herein but used in “Basis for Offer Price”, “Statement of Special
Tax Benefits”, “Industry Overview”, “Key Regulations and Policies”, “History and Certain Corporate Matters”,
“‘Restated Financial Information”, “Financial Indebtedness”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”,
“Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures”, “Offer Procedure” and “Main Provisions of Articles of Association” on
pages 116, 144, 151, 243, 255, 309, 441, 444, 469, 502, and 524, respectively, shall have the meanings ascribed to
such terms in the relevant sections.

General Terms

Term Description
“our Company” or “the|Bajaj Housing Finance Limited, a public limited company incorporated under the Companies
Company” Act, 1956, having its Registered Office at Bajaj Auto Limited Complex, Mumbai-Pune Road,

Akurdi, Pune 411 035, Maharashtra, India, and its corporate office at 5" Floor, B2, Cerebrum
IT Park, Kumar City, Kalyani Nagar, Pune 411 014, Maharashtra, India
“‘we”, “us” or “our” Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, refers to our Company

Company Related Terms

Term Description

“Articles of Association” or|The articles of association of our Company, as amended from time to time
“AoA” or “Articles”

Audit Committee The audit committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, guidelines issued by RBI from time
to time and as described in “Our Management — Committees of our Board — Audit Committee”
on page 267

“Board” or “Board of Directors” | The board of directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee thereof, where
applicable or implied by context

Chairman The chairman and non-executive non-independent director of our Board, namely, Sanjivhayan
Bajaj

“Chief Financial Officer” or|The chief financial officer of our Company, namely, Gaurav Kalani
“CFO”

Committee(s) Duly constituted committee(s) of our Board

Company  Secretary  and | The company secretary and compliance officer of our Company, namely, Atul Patni
Compliance Officer

Corporate Social Responsibility | The corporate social responsibility committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with the
Committee applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as described in “Our Management —
Committees of the Board — Corporate Social Responsibility Committee” on page 270

Corporate Office The corporate office of our Company, situated at 5" Floor, B2, Cerebrum IT Park, Kumar City,
Kalyani Nagar, Pune 411 014, Maharashtra, India

Director(s) The directors on our Board, as appointed from time to time

Equity Shares Unless otherwise stated, equity shares of face value of 10 each of our Company

‘ESOP 2024 or “ESOP |Bajaj Housing Finance Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2024
Scheme”

Group Companies The group companies of our Company in accordance with Regulation 2(1)(t) of SEBI ICDR
Regulations, as described in “Our Group Companies” on page 462
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Description

Independent Director(s)

The independent director(s) of our Company, appointed as per the Companies Act, 2013 and
the SEBI Listing Regulations, as described in “Our Management” on page 260

IPO Committee

The IPO committee of our Board

“Key Managerial Personnel” or
“KMP”

Key managerial personnel of our Company in accordance with Regulation 2(1)(bb) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and Section 2(51) of the Companies Act, as described in “Our Management
— Key Managerial Personnel” on page 273

“Managing Director” or “MD”

Managing Director on our Board, namely Atul Jain, as described in “Our Management” on
page 260

“Memorandum of Association”
or “MoA”

The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The nomination and remuneration committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, guidelines
issued by RBI from time to time and as described in “Our Management — Committees of the
Board — Nomination and Remuneration Committee” on page 269

Non-Executive Director(s)

Non-executive directors on our Board, as described in “Our Management” on page 260

Promoters

Promoters of our Company, namely, Bajaj Finance Limited and Bajaj Finserv Limited

Promoter Group

Individuals and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company in terms of Regulation
2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as disclosed in “Our Promoters and Promoter Group”
on page 277

Promoter Selling Shareholder

Bajaj Finance Limited

Registered Office

The registered office of our Company, situated at Bajaj Auto Limited Complex, Mumbai-Pune
Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035, Maharashtra, India

“Registrar of Companies” or
“RoC”

The Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Pune

Restated Financial Information

The Restated Financial Information of our Company comprising the Restated Statement of
Assets and Liabilities as at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2023, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022 and Restated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), and Restated Statement of Cash Flows and Restated Statement of
Changes in Equity for each of the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March
31, 2022, and the three month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information for each of the years ended
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, and three month periods ended June
30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, derived from the audited financial statements as at and for each
of the financial years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022, and three
month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, prepared in accordance with Ind AS
and restated in accordance with the requirements of Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Il of the
Companies Act, 2013, relevant provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Guidance
Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, as amended from time to time

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee of our Board constituted in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, guidelines issued by
RBI from time to time and as described in “Our Management — Committees of the Board —
Risk Management Committee” on page 271

“Senior Management
Personnel” or “SMP”

Senior Management Personnel of our Company in accordance with Regulation 2(1)(bbbb) of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations, as described in “Our Management — Senior Management
Personnel” on page 273

Shareholder(s) The shareholder(s) of our Company from time to time
Stakeholders’ Relationship | The stakeholders’ relationship committee of our Board, constituted in accordance with the
Committee applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the SEBI Listing Regulations, guidelines

issued by RBI from time to time and as described in “Our Management — Committees of the
Board — Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee” on page 270

“Statutory Auditors”, “Auditors”
or “Joint Statutory Auditors”

The current joint statutory auditors of our Company, namely, Mukund M. Chitale & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, and Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants

Offer Related Terms

Term

Description

Abridged Prospectus

The memorandum containing such salient features of a prospectus as may be specified by
SEBI in this regard

Acknowledgement Slip

The slip or document issued by the relevant Designated Intermediary(ies) to a Bidder as proof
of registration of the Bid cum Application Form




Term

Description

Addendum Addendum to the Red Herring Prospectus dated September 2, 2024, and published on
September 3, 2024

“‘Allot” or  “Allotment”  or|Unless the context otherwise requires, allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Fresh

“Allotted” Issue and transfer of the Offered Shares pursuant to the Offer for Sale to the successful
Bidders

Allotment Advice A note or advice or intimation of Allotment sent to the successful Bidders who had been or are
to be Allotted the Equity Shares after the Basis of Allotment has been approved by the
Designated Stock Exchange

Allottee A successful Bidder to whom the Equity Shares are Allotted

Anchor Investor(s) A Qualified Institutional Buyer, who applied under the Anchor Investor Portion in accordance
with the requirements specified in the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Red Herring Prospectus
who had Bid for an amount of at least ¥100 million

Anchor Investor Allocation |70 per Equity Share, being the price at which Equity Shares will be allocated to the Anchor

Price Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus.

Anchor Investor Application | Application form used by an Anchor Investor to make a Bid in the Anchor Investor Portion and

Form which was considered as an application for Allotment in terms of the requirements specified
under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus

Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer|Friday, September 6, 2024, being one Working Day prior to the Bid/ Offer Opening Date, on

Period which Bids by Anchor Investors were submitted, prior to and after which the Book Running

Lead Managers did not accept any Bids from Anchor Investors, and allocation to Anchor
Investors was completed

Anchor Investor Offer Price

%70 per Equity Share, being the final price at which the Equity Shares will be Allotted to Anchor
Investors in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus.

The Anchor Investor Offer Price was decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs

Anchor Investor Pay-in Date

With respect to Anchor Investor(s), the Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period.

Anchor Investor Portion

60% of the QIB Portion, consisting of 251,142,856* Equity Shares which was allocated by our
Company, in consultation with the BRLMs, to Anchor Investors and the basis of such allocation
will be on a discretionary basis by our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs, in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

One-third of the Anchor Investor Portion was reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to
valid Bids having been received from domestic Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor
Allocation Price, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

“Application  Supported
Blocked Amount” or “ASBA”

by

Application, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders to make a Bid and to
authorise an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the relevant ASBA Account and which included
applications made by UPI Bidders where the Bid Amount was blocked by the SCSB upon
acceptance of the UPI Mandate Request by UPI Bidders

ASBA Account Bank account maintained with an SCSB by an ASBA Bidder, as specified in the ASBA Form
submitted by ASBA Bidders for blocking the Bid Amount mentioned in the relevant ASBA Form
and included the account of a UPI Bidder which were blocked upon acceptance of a UPI
Mandate Request in relation to a Bid made by the UPI Bidders

ASBA Bid A Bid made by an ASBA Bidder

ASBA Bidder(s) All Bidders except Anchor Investors

ASBA Form Application form, whether physical or electronic, used by ASBA Bidders to submit Bids, which
was considered as the application for Allotment in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and
this Prospectus

Axis Axis Capital Limited

Bankers to the Offer

Collectively, Escrow Collection Bank(s), Public Offer Account Bank(s), Sponsor Bank(s) and
Refund Bank(s), as the case may be

Basis of Allotment

Basis on which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful Bidders under the Offer and which
is described in “Offer Procedure” on page 502

Bid(s)

Indication to make an offer during the Bid/ Offer Period by an ASBA Bidder pursuant to
submission of the ASBA Form, or during the Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period by an Anchor
Investor, pursuant to submission of the Anchor Investor Application Form, to subscribe to or
purchase the Equity Shares at a price within the Price Band, in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and the relevant Bid cum Application Form. The term “Bidding” shall be construed
accordingly

Bid Amount

In relation to each Bid, the highest value of Bids indicated in the Bid cum Application Form
and, in the case of RIBs Bidding at the Cut off Price, the Cap Price multiplied by the number
of Equity Shares Bid for by such Retail Individual Bidder and mentioned in the Bid cum
Application Form and paid by the Bidder or blocked in the ASBA Account of the Bidder, as the
case may be, upon submission of the Bid.

3
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Eligible Employees applying in the Employee Reservation Portion could apply at the Cut Off
Price and the Bid amount was the Cap Price, multiplied by the number of Equity Shares Bid
for such Eligible Employee and mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form.

The maximum Bid Amount under the Employee Reservation Portion by an Eligible Employee
did not exceed %¥500,000. However, the initial Allotment to an Eligible Employee in the
Employee Reservation Portion did not exceed %200,000. Only in the event of under-
subscription in the Employee Reservation Portion, the unsubscribed portion was available for
allocation and Allotment, proportionately to all Eligible Employees who have Bid in excess of
%200,000, subject to the maximum value of Allotment made to such Eligible Employee not
exceeding ¥500,000.

Eligible Shareholders applying in the Shareholders Reservation Portion (subject to the Bid
Amount being up to ¥200,000) could apply at the Cut-off Price and the Bid Amount was the
Cap Price, multiplied by the number of Equity Shares Bid for by such Eligible Shareholder and
mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form

Bid cum Application Form

The Anchor Investor Application Form or the ASBA Form, as the context requires

Bid Lot

214 Equity Shares and in multiples of 214 Equity Shares thereafter

Bid/ Offer Closing Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, Wednesday, September 11,
2024

Bid/ Offer Opening Date

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, Monday, September 9, 2024

Bid/ Offer Period

Except in relation to any Bids received from the Anchor Investors, the period between Monday,
September 9, 2024 and Wednesday, September 11, 2024 (inclusive of both days)

“Bidder” or “Applicant”

Any investor who made a Bid pursuant to the terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and the
Bid cum Application Form and unless otherwise stated or implied, which includes an ASBA
Bidder and an Anchor Investor

Bidding Centres

Centres at which the Designated Intermediaries accepted the Bid cum Application Forms, i.e.,
Designated Branches for SCSBs, Specified Locations for the Syndicate, Broker Centres for
Registered Brokers, Designated RTA Locations for RTAs and Designated CDP Locations for
CDPs

BofA Securities

BofA Securities India Limited

Book Building Process

Book building process, as provided in Part A of Schedule XIllI of the SEBI ICDR Regulations,
in terms of which the Offer was made

“Book Running Lead

Managers” or “BRLMs”

Book running lead managers to the Offer, namely, Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited,
BofA Securities India Limited, Axis Capital Limited, Goldman Sachs (India) Securities Private
Limited, SBI Capital Markets Limited, JM Financial Limited and IIFL Securities Limited

Broker Centres

Broker centres notified by the Stock Exchanges where ASBA Bidders could submit the ASBA
Forms to a Registered Broker.

The details of such Broker Centres, along with the names and contact details of the Registered
Brokers are available on the respective websites of the Stock Exchanges (www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com)

“CAN” or “Confirmation of
Allocation Note”

Notice or intimation of allocation of the Equity Shares sent to Anchor Investors, who were
allocated the Equity Shares, on or after the Anchor Investor Bid/ Offer Period

Cap Price

%70 per Equity Share

Cash Escrow and Sponsor
Bank Agreement

The cash escrow and sponsor bank agreement dated August 30, 2024 entered into amongst
our Company, the Promoter Selling Shareholder, the BRLMs, the Bankers to the Offer, the
Syndicate Member(s) and Registrar to the Offer for, inter alia, collection of the Bid Amounts
from Anchor Investors, transfer of funds to the Public Offer Account and where applicable,
refund of the amounts collected from the Anchor Investors, on the terms and conditions
thereof, in accordance with the UPI Circulars

Client ID Client identification number maintained with one of the Depositories in relation to
dematerialised account
“Collecting Depository | A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996 registered with SEBI and

Participant” or “CDP”

who is eligible to procure Bids from relevant Bidders at the Designated CDP Locations in terms
of circular no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 and other
applicable circulars issued by SEBI as per the list available on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchanges, as updated from time to time

Corrigendum

Corrigendum to the Draft Red Herring Prospectus dated July 4, 2024 issued by our Company

CRISIL MI&A

CRISIL Market Intelligence and Analytics (MI&A), a division of CRISIL Limited, provides
independent research, consulting, risk solutions, and data & analytics. The CRISIL MI&A
Report is based on and/ or derived from, research carried out by the CRISIL MI&A division.

CRISIL MI&A Report

The report titled “Analysis of Housing Finance Market in India” dated August 2024 prepared
by CRISIL MI&A, appointed by our Company pursuant to an engagement letter dated May 6,
2024 commissioned for by our Company. The CRISIL MI&A Report is available on the website
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of our Company at www.bajajhousingfinance.in/offer-documents,and has also been included
in “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection —Material Documents” on page 532.

Cut-off Price

Offer Price, finalised by our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs, being X 70.

Only RIBs Bidding in the Retail Portion, Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee
Reservation Portion, and Eligible Shareholders Bidding in the Shareholders Reservation
Portion (subject to the Bid Amount being up to ¥200,000) were entitled to Bid at the Cut-off
Price. QIBs (including Anchor Investors), Non-Institutional Bidders were not entitled to Bid at
the Cut-off Price

Demographic Details

The demographic details of the Bidders including the Bidders’ address, name of the Bidders’
father/husband, investor status, occupation, bank account details, PAN and UPI ID, wherever
applicable

Designated Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms from relevant Bidders, a list
of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes or at such other
website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time

Designated CDP Locations

Such locations of the CDPs where relevant ASBA Bidders could submit the ASBA Forms.

The details of such Designated CDP Locations, along with names and contact details of the
CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchanges (www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com), as updated from time to time

Designated Date

The date on which the Escrow Collection Bank(s) transfer funds from the Escrow Account to
the Public Offer Account or the Refund Account, as the case may be, and/or the instructions
are issued to the SCSBs (in case of UPI Bidders, instruction issued through the Sponsor
Banks) for the transfer of amounts blocked by the SCSBs in the ASBA Accounts to the Public
Offer Account or the Refund Account, as the case may be, in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and this Prospectus, following which Equity Shares will be Allotted in the Offer

Designated Intermediary(ies)

Collectively, the members of the Syndicate, sub-syndicate or agents, SCSBs (other than in
relation to RIBs using the UPI Mechanism), Registered Brokers, CDPs and RTAs, who are
authorised to collect Bid cum Application Forms from the relevant Bidders, in relation to the
Offer.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by RIBs Bidding in the Retail Portion, Eligible Employees
Bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion by authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount
in the ASBA Account and HNIs bidding with an application size of up to ¥500,000 (not using
the UPI Mechanism) by authorising an SCSB to block the Bid Amount in the ASBA Account,
Designated Intermediaries shall mean SCSBs.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by UPI Bidders where the Bid Amount was blocked upon
acceptance of UPI Mandate Request by such UPI Bidders, Designated Intermediaries,
meaning, the Syndicate, sub-syndicate/agents, Registered Brokers, CDPs, SCSBs and RTAs.

In relation to ASBA Forms submitted by QIBs (excluding Anchor Investors) and Non-
Institutional Bidders (not using the UPI mechanism), Designated Intermediaries mean
Syndicate, sub-Syndicate/ agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers, the CDPs and RTAs

Designated RTA Locations

Such locations of the RTAs where Bidders submitted the ASBA Forms to RTAs.

The details of such Designated RTA Locations, along with names and contact details of the
RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms are available on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchanges (www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com)

Designated SCSB Branches

Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the ASBA Forms, a list of which is available
on the website of SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes
or at such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time

Designated Stock Exchange

NSE

“Draft Red Herring Prospectus”
or “DRHP”

The draft red herring prospectus dated June 7, 2024 issued in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, which does not contain complete particulars of the price at which the Equity
Shares will be Allotted and the size of the Offer, read with the Corrigendum

Eligible Shareholders

Individuals and HUFs who were public equity shareholders of our Promoters, (excluding such
other persons not eligible to invest in the Offer under applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines and any depository receipt holder of our Promoters), as on the date of the Red
Herring Prospectus. The maximum Bid Amount under the Shareholders Reservation Portion
by an Eligible Shareholder could not have exceeded ¥200,000.

Eligible Employees

Permanent employees, working in India or outside India (excluding such employees who were
not eligible to invest in the Offer under applicable laws), of our Company or our Promoters; or
a Director of our Company, whether whole-time or not; as on the date of the filing of the Red
Herring Prospectus with the RoC and on date of submission of the Bid cum Application Form,
but not including (i) our Promoters; (ii) persons belonging to the Promoter Group; and (iii)
Directors, who either themselves or through their relatives or through any body corporate,
directly or indirectly, held more than 10% of the outstanding Equity Shares of our Company.
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The maximum Bid Amount under the Employee Reservation Portion by an Eligible Employee
could not have exceeded %¥500,000. However, the initial Allotment to an Eligible Employee in
the Employee Reservation Portion did not exceed %200,000. Only in the event of under-
subscription in the Employee Reservation Portion, the unsubscribed portion was made
available for allocation and Allotment, proportionately to all Eligible Employees who have Bid
in excess of ¥200,000, subject to the maximum value of Allotment made to such Eligible
Employee not exceeding ¥500,000

Eligible FPI(s) FPI(s) that were eligible to participate in the Offer in terms of applicable law and from such
jurisdictions outside India where it was not unlawful to make an offer/invitation under the Offer
and in relation to whom the Bid cum Application Form and the Red Herring Prospectus
constituted an invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares offered thereby

Eligible NRI(s) NRI(s) eligible to invest under Schedule 3 and Schedule 4 of the FEMA Rules, from

jurisdictions outside India where it was not unlawful to make an offer or invitation under the
Offer and in relation to whom the Bid cum Application Form and the Red Herring Prospectus
constituted an invitation to subscribe to or to purchase the Equity Shares

Employee Reservation Portion

The portion of the Offer being up to 28,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each
(comprising 0.3% of our post Offer Equity Share capital), aggregating to ¥2,000.0 million
available for allocation to Eligible Employees, on a proportionate basis. Such portion did not
exceed 5% of the post-Offer Equity Share capital of our Company

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Escrow Account(s)

The ‘no-lien’ and ‘non-interest bearing’ account(s) to be opened with the Escrow Collection
Bank(s) and in whose favour the Bidders (excluding ASBA Bidders) transferred money through
NACH/direct credit/NEFT/RTGS in respect of the Bid Amount when submitting a Bid

Escrow Collection Bank(s)

The bank(s) which are clearing members and registered with SEBI as a banker to an issue
under the SEBI BTI Regulations and with whom the Escrow Account(s) were opened, in this
case being Axis Bank Limited

“First Bidder” or “Sole Bidder”

Bidder whose name was mentioned in the Bid cum Application Form or the Revision Form and
in case of joint Bids, whose name shall also appeared as the first holder of the beneficiary
account held in joint names

Floor Price

%66 per Equity Share

Fraudulent Borrower

A company or person, as the case may be, categorised as a fraudulent borrower by any bank
or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on fraudulent borrowers issued by the RBI and as defined
under Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Fresh Issue

Fresh issue of 508,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating to
¥35,600.0* million by our Company.

*Subiject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Fugitive Economic Offender

An individual who is declared a fugitive economic offender under Section 12 of the Fugitive
Economic Offenders Act, 2018

General Information Document
or GID

The general information document for investing in public issues, prepared and issued in
accordance with the SEBI circular (SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/37) dated March 17,
2020, the UPI Circulars, as amended from time to time. The General Information Document
was available on the websites of the Stock Exchanges, and the Book Running Lead Managers

Goldman Sachs

Goldman Sachs (India) Securities Private Limited

Gross Proceeds

The gross proceeds of the Fresh Issue that will be available to our Company

IIFL IIFL Securities Limited
JM Financial JM Financial Limited
Kotak Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited

Materiality Policy

The policy adopted by our Board in its meeting dated June 7, 2024 for identification of Group
Companies, determination of material outstanding civil litigation and outstanding dues to
material creditors, in accordance with the disclosure requirements under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations

Monitoring Agency

CARE Ratings Limited, being a credit rating agency registered with SEBI

Monitoring Agency Agreement

The agreement dated August 30, 2024 entered into between and amongst our Company and
the Monitoring Agency prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus

Mutual Fund Portion

Up to 5% of the Net QIB Portion or 8,371,429* Equity Shares which was made available for
allocation only to Mutual Funds on a proportionate basis, subject to valid Bids having been
received at or above the Offer Price

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment.

Net Offer

The Offer, less the Employee Reservation Portion and the Shareholders Reservation Portion
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Net Proceeds

The proceeds of the Fresh Issue less our Company’s share of the Offer related expenses. For
further details regarding the use of the Net Proceeds and the Offer expenses, see “Objects of
the Offer” on page 110

Net QIB Portion

The portion of the QIB Portion less the number of Equity Shares Allotted to the Anchor
Investors

“Non-Institutional Bidders” or

“NIBs”

All Bidders that were not QIBs, RIBs, Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee Reservation
Portion or Eligible Shareholders Bidding in the Shareholders Reservation Portion and who had
Bid for Equity Shares for an amount of more than 200,000 (but not including NRIs other than
Eligible NRIS)

Non-Institutional Portion

The portion of the Offer being not less than 15% of the Net Offer comprising 125,571,429*
Equity Shares which were made available for allocation to Non-Institutional Bidders in
accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, subject to valid Bids being received at or above
the Offer Price, in the following manner:

@) One-third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Bidders was reserved for
applicants with application size of more than ¥200,000 and up to ¥1,000,000; and

Two-third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Bidders was reserved for
applicants with an application size of more than %1,000,000.

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the sub-categories specified in clauses (a)
or (b)could have been allocated to applicants in the other sub-category of Non-Institutional
Bidders

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

(b)

”

“Non-Resident Indians” or | A non-resident Indian as defined under the FEMA Non-debt Instruments Rules
“NRI(s)”
Offer The initial public offer of 937,142,856* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each for cash

consideration at a price of 70 each, aggregating to ¥65,600.0 million comprising the Fresh
Issue and the Offer for Sale, comprising the Net Offer, Employee Reservation Portion, and
Shareholders Reservation Portion.

For further information, see “The Offer” on page 81
*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Offer Agreement

The offer agreement dated June 7, 2024 entered into amongst our Company, the Promoter
Selling Shareholder and the BRLMs, pursuant to which certain arrangements have been
agreed upon in relation to the Offer

Offer for Sale

Offer for Sale of 428,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating to
%30,000.0 million* by the Promoter Selling Shareholder

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Offer Price

The final price at which Equity Shares will be Allotted to successful ASBA Bidders (except for
the Anchor Investors) in terms of the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus. Equity
Shares will be Allotted to Anchor Investors at the Anchor Investor Offer Price which will be
decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and this Prospectus.

The Offer Price was decided by our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs on the Pricing
Date in accordance with the Book Building Process and in terms of the Red Herring
Prospectus and this Prospectus.

Offer Proceeds

The proceeds of the Fresh Issue which shall be available to our Company and the proceeds
of the Offer for Sale which shall be available to the Promoter Selling Shareholder. For further
information about use of the Offer Proceeds, see “Objects of the Offer” on page 110

Offered Shares

428,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each aggregating to ¥30,000.00 million
offered by the Promoter Selling Shareholder in the Offer for Sale

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Price Band Price band of a minimum price of 66 per Equity Share (i.e., the Floor Price) and maximum
price of 70 per Equity Share (i.e., the Cap Price).

Pricing Date The date on which our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs finalised the Offer Price,
being September 11, 2024

Prospectus This prospectus dated September 11, 2024 filed with the RoC on the Pricing Date in

accordance with Section 26 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations
containing, inter alia, the Offer Price that was determined at the end of the Book Building
Process, the size of the Offer and certain other information, including any addenda or
corrigenda thereto

Public Offer Account

The ‘no-lien’ and ‘non-interest bearing’ account opened with the Public Offer Account Bank,
under Section 40(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 to receive monies from the Escrow Account
and ASBA Accounts maintained with the SCSBs on the Designated Date




Term

Description

Public Offer Account Bank(s)

A bank which is a clearing member and which is registered with SEBI as a banker to an issue
and with which the Public Offer Account for collection of Bid Amounts from Escrow Accounts
and ASBA Accounts were opened, in this case being HDFC Bank Limited

QIB Portion

The portion of the Offer (including the Anchor Investor Portion) being not more than 50% of
the Net Offer consisting of 418,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each which was
available for allocation on a proportionate basis to QIBs (including the Anchor Investor Portion
in which allocation was on a discretionary basis, as determined by our Company, in
consultation with the BRLMSs), subject to valid Bids having been received at or above the Offer
Price or Anchor Investor Offer Price

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment.

“Qualified Institutional Buyers”
or “QIBs” or “QIB Bidders”

Qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations

“Red Herring Prospectus” or
“RHP”

The red herring prospectus dated August 30, 2024, read with the Addendum, issued in
accordance with Section 32 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, which did not have complete particulars of the Offer Price and the size of the
Offer. The Red Herring Prospectus was filed with the RoC at least three Working Days before
the Bid/Offer Opening Date and became this Prospectus upon filing with the RoC on or after
the Pricing Date

Refund Account(s)

The ‘no-lien’ and ‘non-interest bearing’ account opened with the Refund Bank(s), from which
refunds, if any, of the whole or part of the Bid Amount to the Bidders was made

Refund Bank(s)

Banker(s) to the Offer and with whom the Refund Account was opened, in this case being Axis
Bank Limited

Registered Brokers

The stock brokers registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock
Brokers) Regulations, 1992, as amended with the Stock Exchanges having nationwide
terminals, other than the BRLMs and the Syndicate Members and eligible to procure Bids in
terms of Circular No. CIR/ CFD/ 14/ 2012 dated October 4, 2012 issued by SEBI

Registrar Agreement

The registrar agreement dated June 7, 2024 entered into amongst our Company, the Promoter
Selling Shareholder and the Registrar to the Offer in relation to the responsibilities and
obligations of the Registrar to the Offer pertaining to the Offer

“Registrar and Share Transfer
Agents” or “RTAs”

The registrar and share transfer agents registered with SEBI and eligible to procure Bids from
relevant Bidders at the Designated RTA Locations in terms of SEBI circular number
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/11/2015 dated November 10, 2015 issued by SEBI and available on
the websites of NSE at www.nseindia.com and BSE at www.bseindia.com

“Registrar to the Offer”
“Registrar”

or

KFin Technologies Limited

“Retail Individual Bidder(s)” or
“RIB(s)”

Individual Bidders, who have Bid for the Equity Shares for an amount not more than ¥200,000
in any of the bidding options in the Offer (including HUFs applying through their Karta and
Eligible NRIs)

Resident Indian

A person resident in India, as defined under FEMA

Retail Portion

Portion of the Offer being not less than 35% of the Net Offer consisting of 293,000,000* Equity
Shares of face value of 210 each which was available for allocation to Retail Individual Bidders
(subject to valid Bids having been received at or above the Offer Price)

* Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

Revision Form

Form used by the Bidders to modify the quantity of the Equity Shares or the Bid Amount in
any of their Bid cum Application Form(s) or any previous Revision Form(s), as applicable.

QIB Bidders and Non-Institutional Bidders and Eligible Shareholders Bidding under the
Shareholders Reservation Portion for a Bid Amount of more than 200,000 were not allowed
to withdraw or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any
stage. Retail Individual Bidders, Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee Reservation
Portion, could revise their Bids during the Bid/ Offer Period and withdraw their Bids until
Bid/Offer Closing Date

SBICAPS

SBI Capital Markets Limited

“Self-Certified Syndicate
Bank(s)” or “SCSB(s)”

The banks registered with SEBI, which offer the facility (i) in relation to ASBA (other than
through UPI Mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34 or
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35, as
applicable, or such other website as updated from time to time, and (ii) in relation to ASBA
(through UPI Mechanism), a list of which is available on the website of SEBI at
https://sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=40 or such
other website as may be prescribed by SEBI and updated from time to time.

Applications through UPI in the Offer could be made only through the SCSBs mobile
applications (apps) whose name appears on the SEBI website. A list of SCSBs and mobile
application, which, are live for applying in public issues using UPI Mechanism is provided as
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Term

Description

Annexure ‘A’ to the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019
and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, UPI Bidders
may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website
of the SEBI
(https://lwww.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=4  0)
and
(https://lwww.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=43)
respectively, as updated from time to time. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which are
live for applying in public issues using UPI mechanism is provided as ‘Annexure A’ for the
SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019

Share Escrow Agent

Share escrow agent appointed pursuant to the Share Escrow Agreement, namely, KFin
Technologies Limited

Share Escrow Agreement

The share escrow agreement dated August 30, 2024 entered into amongst our Company, the
Promoter Selling Shareholder, and the Share Escrow Agent in connection with the transfer of
the Offered Shares by the Promoter Selling Shareholder and credit of such Equity Shares to
the demat account of the Allottees in accordance with the Basis of Allotment

Shareholders Reservation

Portion

Reservation of 71,428,571 Equity Shares of face value of 10 each, available for allocation to
Eligible Shareholders, on a proportionate basis. Such portion did not exceed 10% of the size
of the Offer

Specified Locations

Bidding Centres where the Syndicate could accept ASBA Forms from Bidders a list of which
is available on the website of SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in), and updated from time to time

Sponsor Banks

HDFC Bank Limited and Axis Bank Limited, being the Bankers to the Offer, appointed by our
Company to act as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and NPCI in order to push the
mandate collect requests and/or payment instructions of the UPI Bidders and carry out other
responsibilities, in terms of the UPI Circulars

Sub Syndicate

The sub syndicate members, appointed by the BRLMs and the Syndicate Members, to collect
ASBA Forms and Revision Forms

“Syndicate” or “Members of the
Syndicate”

Collectively, the BRLMs and the Syndicate Members

Syndicate Agreement

The syndicate agreement dated August 30, 2024 entered into amongst our Company, the
Promoter Selling Shareholder, the BRLMs, the Syndicate Members and the Registrar, in
relation to collection of Bids by the Syndicate

Syndicate Member(s)

Intermediaries (other than BRLMS) registered with SEBI who are permitted to carry out
activities in relation to collection of Bids and as underwriters, namely, Kotak Securities Limited,
JM Financial Services Limited, SBICAP Securities Limited and Investec Capital Services
(India) Private Limited

Underwriters

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited, BofA Securities India Limited, Axis Capital Limited,
Goldman Sachs (India) Securities Private Limited, SBI Capital Markets Limited, JM Financial
Limited, IIFL Securities Limited, Kotak Securities Limited, JM Financial Services Limited,
SBICAP Securities Limited and Investec Capital Services (India) Private Limited

Underwriting Agreement

The underwriting agreement dated September 11, 2024 entered into amongst our Company,
the Promoter Selling Shareholder, the Underwriters and the Registrar on or after the Pricing
Date, but prior to filing of the Prospectus with the RoC

UPI

Unified payments interface, which is an instant payment mechanism, developed by NPCI

UPI Bidders

Collectively, individual investors who applied as (i) Retail Individual Bidders Bidding in the
Retail Portion, (ii) Eligible Employees Bidding in Employee Reservation Portion; (iii) Eligible
Shareholders Bidding in the Shareholders Reservation Portion; and (iv) Non-Institutional
Bidders with an application size of up to 500,000, Bidding in the Non-Institutional Portion,
and Bidding under the UPI Mechanism through ASBA Form(s) submitted with Syndicate
Members, Registered Brokers, Collecting Depository Participants and Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents.

Pursuant to circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022 issued by
SEBI, all individual investors applying in public issues where the application amount is up to
500,000 shall use UPI Mechanism and shall provide their UPI ID in the bid-cum-application
form submitted with: (i) a syndicate member, (ii) a stock broker registered with a recognized
stock exchange (whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible
for such activity), (iii) a depository participant (whose name is mentioned on the website of the
stock exchange as eligible for such activity), and (iv) a registrar to an issue and share transfer
agent (whose name is mentioned on the website of the stock exchange as eligible for such
activity)

UPI Circulars

SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018, SEBI circular

no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 2019, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 2020, SEBI circular no.
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Term

Description

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2021/2480/1/M dated March 16, 2021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31, 2021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/2021/570 dated June 2, 2021, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, SEBI circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022, SEBI circular no. SEBI/
HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/2022/75 dated May 30, 2022, SEBI master circular no.

SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/00094 dated June 21, 2023, SEBI master circular no.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/POD-1/P/CIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024 (to the extent that such circular
pertains to the UPI Mechanism), along with the circulars issued by the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited having reference no. 23/2022 dated July 22, 2022 and having
reference no. 25/2022 dated August 3, 2022, and the circular issued by BSE Limited having
reference no. 20220722-30 dated July 22, 2022 and having reference no. 20220803-40 dated
August 3, 2022, and any subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI or the Stock
Exchanges in this regard

UPI'ID

ID created on the UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the NPCI

UPI Mandate Request

A request (intimating the UPI Bidders by way of a notification on the UPI linked mobile
application as disclosed by SCSBs on the website of SEBI and by way of an SMS on directing
the UPI Bidders to such UPI linked mobile application) to the UPI Bidders initiated by the
Sponsor Banks to authorise blocking of funds on the UPI application equivalent to Bid Amount
and subsequent debit of funds in case of Allotment

UPI Mechanism

The bidding mechanism that may be used by a UPI Bidder in accordance with the UPI
Circulars to make an ASBA Bid in the Offer

Wilful Defaulter

A company or person, as the case may be, categorised as a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the RBI and as defined under
Regulation 2(1)(lll) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations

Working Day

All days on which commercial banks in Mumbai are open for business. In respect of
announcement of Price Band and Bid/Offer Period, Working Day shall mean all days,
excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and public holidays, on which commercial banks in Mumbai
are open for business. In respect of the time period between the Bid/ Offer Closing Date and
the listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges, Working Day shall mean all trading
days of the Stock Exchanges, excluding Sundays and bank holidays in India, as per circulars
issued by SEBI

Technical, Industry Related Terms or Abbreviations

Term

Description

% SORP

Self-occupied residential property mix which is composition of active loans of loan against
property, where the collateral is used for self-occupation purposes as a proportion to total active
LAP loans as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Active Intermediaries

Partners with whom we have conducted at least one transaction in the last 12 months

Active developer
relationships (funded by DF)

Active developer relationships represent the unique count of developers whose construction
finance loans are active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Active Projects (funded by
DF)

Represents number of active project against which loan is active as at the last day of the relevant
fiscal year / period

Amount of Loans Acquired

Amount of loans acquired from other banks or other regulated entities basis the direction of
'Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021' notified
by the RBI

Amount of Loans

Transferred

Amount of loans transferred to other banks/ other regulated entities basis the direction of 'Master
Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Transfer of Loan Exposures) Directions, 2021' notified by the
RBI

Approved project financiers
(APF)

Represents number of projects, which are assessed and approved for future disbursement for
new customers

APF

Approved Project Finance

Assigned Assets

Aggregate amount of future principal outstanding and overdue principal outstanding for off book
loan assets (which have been transferred by our Company by way of assignment) as at the last
day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Assigned Assets to AUM

Ratio of Assigned asset to AUM as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

ATS

Average ticket size

Average AUM

Simple average of AUM as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year and AUM of the last day of
the preceding fiscal year / period

Average Borrowings

Simple average of borrowings as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year and borrowings as at
the last day of the preceding fiscal year / period
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Term

Description

Average Cost of Borrowing /
Cost of Funds

Ratio of the finance cost to average borrowings for the relevant fiscal year

Average Loan Assets

Simple average of loan assets as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year and loan assets of
the last day of the preceding fiscal year / period

AUM

Asset under management is the aggregate of (i) Loan Assets (Loans), which is aggregate
amount of loan receivable from customer and includes future principal outstanding and overdue
principal outstanding after considering the impairment allowances, and (ii) Assigned Assets (Off
Book), which represents aggregate amount of future principal outstanding and overdue principal
outstanding for off book loan assets (which have been transferred by our Company by way of
assignment) as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

AUM Growth

Percentage growth in AUM as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period over the AUM of
the last day of the preceding fiscal year / period

AUM per Branch

AUM per branch represents AUM as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period divided by
the aggregate number of our branches as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

AUM per Employee

AUM per employee represents AUM as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period divided
by the number of our employees as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

Bank Borrowings

Sum of borrowings taken from private sector banks, public sector banks and other parties in form
of term loans, cash credit and overdraft facility as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

Basic Earnings Per Equity
Share

Calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders by Weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the relevant fiscal year / period

Book Value per Share

Calculated by dividing outstanding equity share capital of the company to total number of
outstanding shares as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period.

Borrowings Sum of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities) and deposits as at the last day of
the relevant fiscal year / period

Borrowing mix (Bank | Represents the composition of borrowings raised through term loans (including working capital

Borrowing) loans) as a proportion to our total borrowings

Borrowing mix (CP)

Represents the composition of borrowings raised through commercial papers as a proportion to
our total borrowings

Borrowing mix (ICD)

Represents the composition of borrowings raised through inter corporate deposits as a
proportion to our total borrowings

Borrowing mix (NCD)

Represents the composition of borrowings raised through non convertible debentures as a
proportion to our total borrowings

Borrowing mix (NHB)

Represents the composition of borrowings raised through National Housing Bank under its
refinance scheme as a proportion to our total borrowings

CAD

Current Account Deficit

Cost of Borrowings (%)

Represents the ratio of the finance cost to average borrowings for the relevant fiscal year / period

CRAR (%)

CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | and Tier Il capital by total risk weighted assets, each
as computed in accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant
fiscal year / period

CRAR (%) - Tier 1

CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | capital by risk weighted assets, each as computed in
accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant fiscal year/
period

Credit Cost (%)

Represents the ratio of impairment on financial instrument to Average loan asset for the relevant
fiscal year / period

Credit Costs to Average
Loans

Ratio of impairment on financial instrument to average loan asset for the relevant fiscal year /
period

Credit Rating

Credit rating issued by a/multiple registered rating agency/ies with the SEBI for long term and
short term borrowing facilities of our Company as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

D2C

Direct-to-Consumer

Debt to Equity Ratio

Represents ratio of total borrowings to total equity as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year /
period

Deposits

Inter corporate deposits as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

DF

Developer Finance

DF ATS (at Origination)

Represents the ratio of total amount of developer financing loans sanctioned against a project
funded, whose loan are active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period to numbers
of projects funded which has active developer financing loans at the last day of the relevant fiscal
year / period

DF (AUM)

Represents ratio of the AUM for our developer financing product to the total AUM as at the last
date of the relevant fiscal year / period
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Term

Description

DF GNPA % Represents gross NPA pertaining to our developer financing product divided by total gross
carrying value loan asset pertaining to developer financing as at the last day of the relevant fiscal
year / period

DF NNPA % Represents net NPA pertaining to our developer financing product divided by total gross carrying

value loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets pertaining to
developer financing product as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

DF Product-wise Stage 1

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our developer financing in stage
1 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

DF Product-wise Stage 2

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our developer financing in stage
2 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

DF Provision coverage ratio
(%)

Represents the ratio of impairment loss allowance provided on gross NPA pertaining to
developer financing product to gross stage 3 loan assets pertaining to developer financing
product

Diluted Earnings per Equity
Share

Calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the relevant fiscal year / period plus the
weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares of the Company.

Disbursements

Represents the total sanction amount of the new loans disbursed during the relevant fiscal year
/ period

Disbursements Growth

Represents percentage growth in disbursement for the relevant fiscal year / period over
disbursement of the preceding fiscal year / period.

DSA Direct Selling Agents

ECL Expected Credit Loss or Impairment loss allowance

EMI Equated monthly instalments

Finance Costs Total finance costs for the relevant fiscal year / period

Finance cost as a | Ratio of finance costs to average borrowings for the relevant fiscal year / period
percentage of Average

Borrowings

Finance Costs to Average
Loans

Ratio of finance costs to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

Gross NPA

Gross carrying value of stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

Gross NPA (%)

Ratio of Gross NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset as at the last day of the relevant fiscal
year / period

HFC

Housing Finance Companies

HL % of AUM with CIBIL
Score >750 (at Origination)

Represents the ratio of AUM of home loans sanctioned to the customers with cibil > 750 as at
the date of sanction, whose loan was active as at the last date of relevant fiscal year / period to
AUM of active home loans at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL ATS (at origination)

Represents the ratio of total amount of home loans sanctioned to the customer, whose home
loan is active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period to numbers of active home
loans at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL (AUM)

Represents ratio of the AUM for our home loan product to total AUM as at the last date of the
relevant fiscal year / period

HL AUM Mix (by Customer
Type)

Represents mix of Housing Loan AUM by type of Customers i.e. Salaried, Professionals or Self-
employed as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL AUM Mix (by Sourcing
Channel)

Represents mix of Housing Loan AUM basis the channel from which AUM has been originated
i.e. Direct or Indirect. In case of Indirect channels Loans are originated via Intermediaries as at
the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL NNPA % Represents net NPA pertaining to our home loan product divided by total gross carrying value
loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets pertaining to home
loan product as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL GNPA % Represents gross NPA pertaining to our home loan product divided by total gross carrying value

of loan asset pertaining to home loan as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL LTV (at origination)

Represents the average of HL LTV for active Home loans customer whose home loan is active
as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period, weighted basis Home Loan AUM. LTV
represents the ratio of total secured loans sanctioned to the customer against value of
collateral(s) mortgaged

HL Product-wise Stage 1

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our home loan product in stage
1 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

HL Product-wise Stage 2

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our home loan product in stage
2 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period
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Term

Description

HL Provision coverage ratio
(%)

Represents the ratio of impairment loss allowance provided on gross NPA pertaining to home
loan product to gross stage 3 loan assets pertaining to home loan product

HNI High Net Worth Individual

Impairment on Financial | Impairment allowance on gross carrying value of loan assets and other financial assets and bad-
Instruments debts written off for the relevant fiscal year / period

Impairment on financial | Ratio of impairment on financial instrument to Average loan asset for the relevant fiscal year /

instruments as a percentage
of Average Loans

period

LAP

Loans Against Property

LAP (AUM)

Represents ratio of the AUM for our loan against property product to the total AUM as at the last
date of the relevant fiscal year / period

LAP ATS (at origination)

Represents the ratio of amount of total loan against property loans sanctioned to the customer,
whose loan against property loan is active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period
to numbers of active loan against property loans at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LAP GNPA %

Represents gross NPA pertaining to our loan against property product divided by total gross
carrying value loan asset pertaining to loan against property as at the last day of the relevant
fiscal year / period

LAP LTV (at origination)

Represents the average of LAP LTV for active Loan Against property customers whose LAP loan
is active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period, weighted basis LAP AUM. LTV
represents the ratio of total secured loans sanctioned to the customer against value of
collateral(s) mortgaged

LAP NNPA %

Represents net NPA pertaining to our loan against property product divided by total gross
carrying value loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets
pertaining to loan against property product as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LAP Product-wise Stage 1

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our loan against property
product in stage 1 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LAP Product-wise Stage 2

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our loan against property
product in stage 2 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LAP Provision coverage ratio
(%)

Represents the ratio of impairment loss allowance provided on gross NPA pertaining to loan
against property product to gross stage 3 loan assets pertaining to loan against property product

LAP SORP (%)

Represents the self occupied residential mix which is composition of active loans of loan against
property, where the collateral is used for self-occupation purposes as a proportion to total active
LAP loans as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LCR

Liquidity Coverage Ratio

Leverage (TA/TE)

Represents the ratio of total assets to total equity as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period

Loan Assets

Loans, which is aggregate amount of loan receivable from customer which includes future
principal outstanding and overdue principal outstanding after considering the impairment
allowances

LRD

Lease Rental Discounting

LRD # of Active Customers

Represents number of customers / customer group whose lease rental discounting loan is active
as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LRD ATS (at Origination)

Represents the ratio of total amount of lease rental discounting loans sanctioned to the
customers / customer group, whose loan are active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year
/ period to numbers of active lease rental discounting loans customers /customer group at the
last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LRD (AUM)

Represents ratio of the AUM for our lease rental discounting product to the total AUM as at the
last date of the relevant fiscal year / period

LRD GNPA %

Represents gross NPA pertaining to our lease rental discounting product divided by total gross
carrying value loan asset pertaining to lease rental discounting as at the last day of the relevant
fiscal year / period

LRD NNPA %

Represents net NPA pertaining to our lease rental discounting product divided by total gross
carrying value loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets
pertaining to lease rental discounting product as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LRD Product-wise Stage 1

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our lease rental discounting
product in stage 1 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LRD Product-wise Stage 2

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our lease rental discounting
product in stage 2 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

LRD Provision
ratio (%)

coverage

Represents the ratio of impairment loss allowance provided on gross NPA pertaining to lease
rental discounting product to gross stage 3 loan assets pertaining to lease rental discounting
product
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Term Description
LTV Loan to Value is the ratio of total secured loans sanctioned to the customer against value of
collateral(s) mortgaged
NBFC Non-Bank Financial Companies
NCD Non-Convertible Debentures
NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer
Net Total Income (NTI) Represents total income reduced by finance cost for the relevant fiscal year / period
Net Total Income as a|Ratio of nettotal income to average loan assets for relevant fiscal year / period
percentage of Average

Loans (Net Interest Margin)

Net NPA

Net carrying value of stage 3 loan assets which is gross stage 3 loan assets reduced by
impairment allowances provided on stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant fiscal year
/ period

Net NPA (%)

Ratio of Net NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances
on stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Net Worth

Represents the total equity which comprises of equity share capital and other equity

NHB

National Housing Bank

NIM (Net Interest Margin)
(%)

Represents the ratio of net total income to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

NPA

Non-Performing Assets

Number of Branches

Represents the total number of branches including corporate offices as at the last day of relevant
fiscal year / period

Number of Employees

Represents the number of employees of our Company as at the last day of relevant fiscal year /
period

Off-book AUM (%)

Represents the ratio of assigned assets to total AUM

On-book AUM (%)

Represents the ratio of loan assets to total AUM

Operating Expenses

Sum of Fees and commission expense, employee benefit expense, depreciation and
amortization and other expenses for the relevant fiscal year / period

Operating Expenses as a
percentage of Average
Loans

Ratio of Operating Expenses to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

Operating Expenses as a

Ratio of Operating Expenses to Net total income for the relevant fiscal year / period

percentage of Net Total
Income
Operating Expenses to|Ratio of Operating Expenses to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

Average Loans

Opex to Avg. AR (%)

Represents the ratio of Operating Expenses to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year /
period

Opex to Net Total Income
(%)

Represents the ratio of Operating Expenses to Net total income for the relevant fiscal year /
period

Other Loans

Non Collateralised Loans

Others (AUM)

Represents ratio of the AUM for our non-collateralised loans to the total AUM as at the last date
of the relevant fiscal year / period

Others GNPA %

Represents gross NPA pertaining to our non-collateralised loans divided by total gross carrying
value loan asset pertaining to non-collateralised loans as at the last day of the relevant fiscal
year / period

Others NNPA %

Represents net NPA pertaining to our non-collateralised loans divided by total gross carrying
value loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets pertaining to
non-collateralised loans as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Others Product-wise Stage 1

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our non-collateralised loans in
stage 1 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Others Product-wise Stage 2

Represents the gross carrying value of loan assets pertaining to our non-collateralised loans in
stage 2 as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period

Others Provision coverage
ratio (%)

Represents the ratio of impairment loss allowance provided on gross NPA pertaining to non-
collateralised loans to gross stage 3 loan assets pertaining to non-collateralised loans

PCR Provision Coverage Ratio, which is the impairment loss allowance on stage 3 loan assets as a
percentage of gross carrying value of stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant fiscal
year / period

Profit After Tax Represents profit before tax as reduced by total tax expenses for the relevant fiscal year / period
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Term

Description

Profit After Tax to Average
Loans (ROA/ ROAA)

Ratio of profit after tax to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

Profit After Tax to Average
Net Worth (ROE/ ROAE)

Ratio of profit after tax to average total equity for the relevant fiscal year / period. Average total
equity represents the simple average of total equity, which is aggregate of equity share capital
and other equity as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period and total equity of the last
day of the preceding fiscal year / period

Profit Before Tax

Net total income reduced by operating expenses and impairment on financial instruments for the
relevant fiscal year / period

Profit Before Tax to Average
Loans

Ratio of profit before tax to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

Profit y-o-y Growth (%)

Represents growth in our PAT for the relevant fiscal year as a percentage of PAT of its preceding
fiscal year / period

RoAA (%) Represents the ratio of return on average assets which is profit after tax (PAT) to average loan
assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

ROAE (%) Represents the ratio of profit after tax to average total equity for the relevant fiscal year. Average
total equity represents the simple average of total equity, which is aggregate of equity share
capital and other equity as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year and total equity of the last
day of the preceding fiscal year / period

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

Spreads Difference between yield on loan assets and cost of borrowings for the relevant fiscal year /

period

Spreads (%)

Represents difference between yield on loan assets and cost of borrowings for the relevant fiscal
year / period

Stage 1 Loans

Financial assets that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
For such assets, expected credit losses resulting from default events that are possible in next 12
months are recognised and interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the
asset (that is, without deduction for credit impairment allowance)

Stage 2 Loans

Financial assets that have a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but do not
have objective evidence of impairment. However, unless identified at an earlier stage, any
overdue of more than 1 day past due and up to 90 days past due was considered as an indication
of significant increase in credit risk. For these assets, lifetime ECL towards all possible default
events over the expected life of financial assets are recognised and interest revenue is calculated
on the gross carrying amount of the asset

Stage 3 Loans

Financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment. Unless recognised eatrlier, stage 3
assets include dues from customers whose principal and /or interest are past due for more than
90 days or whose loans have been restructured where repayment terms are renegotiated as
compared to original contracted terms. For these financial assets, lifetime ECL are recognised
and interest revenue is calculated on the net carrying amount (i.e., net of credit impairment
allowance)

Tier | Capital Tier | capital computed basis the method provided by the regulator as at the last day of relevant
fiscal year / period
Tier Il Capital Tier Il capital computed basis the method provided by the regulator as at the last day of relevant

fiscal year / period

Total Assets

Sum of total financial assets and total non-financial assets as at the last day of the relevant fiscal
year / period

Total Income

Represents the sum of total revenue from operation and other income for the relevant fiscal year
/ period

Total Income as a | Ratio of total income to average loans assets for the relevant fiscal year / period
percentage of Average

Loans

Total Income to Average |Ratio of total income to average loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period
Loans

Total Tax Expense

Sum of current tax and deferred tax charge / (credit) for the relevant fiscal year / period

Total tax expense as a
percentage of profit before
tax (Effective tax rate or
ETR)

Ratio of total tax expense to profit before tax for the relevant fiscal year / period

UPI

Unified Payments Interface

Yield on Loans

Ratio of interest income to the average Loan assets for the relevant fiscal year / period

Yield on loan assets (%)

Represents the ratio of interest income to the average Loan assets for the relevant fiscal year /
period
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Conventional and General Terms or Abbreviations

Term

Description

T’ or “Rs.” or “Rupees” or
“INR”

Indian Rupees

AlFs Alternative Investment Funds, as defined in, and registered under the SEBI AIF Regulations
AGM Annual general meeting
BSE BSE Limited

Category | AlFs

AlFs who are registered as “Category | Alternative Investment Funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Category | FPIs

FPIs who are registered as “Category | Foreign Portfolio Investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations

Category Il AlFs

AlFs who are registered as “Category Il Alternative Investment Funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

Category Il FPIs

FPIs who are registered as “Category Il Foreign Portfolio Investors” under the SEBI FPI
Regulations

Category Ill AlFs

AlFs who are registered as “Category Ill Alternative Investment Funds” under the SEBI AIF
Regulations

CDSL

Central Depository Services (India) Limited

CIN

Corporate identification number

Companies Act, 1956

The erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, along with the relevant rules, regulations, clarifications and
modifications made thereunder

“Companies Act”
“Companies Act, 2013”

or

Companies Act, 2013, along with the relevant rules made thereunder, as amended

CPC

Code of Civil Procedure, 1908, as amended

CrPC

Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973, as amended

Depositories

NSDL and CDSL

Depositories Act

Depositories Act, 1996, as amended

DIN Director Identification Number

DPIT Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India (earlier known as the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion)

DP ID Depository Participant Identification

DP/ Depository Participant

Depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act

ECBs

External commercial borrowings

EGM Extraordinary general meeting

ESOP Employee Stock Option Plan

FCNR Foreign Currency Non-Resident

FDI Foreign direct investment

FDI Policy Consolidated Foreign Direct Investment Policy notified by the DPIIT through notification dated
October 15, 2020 effective from October 15, 2020, as amended

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, read with rules and regulations thereunder, as

amended

FEMA Non-debt Instruments
Rules

Foreign Exchange Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019, as amended

FEMA Regulations

FEMA Non-debt Instruments Rules, the Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and
Reporting of Non debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019 and the Foreign Exchange Management
(Debt Instruments) Regulations, 2019, as applicable, as amended

“Financial Year” or “Fiscal” or
“FY” or “Fiscal Year”

Unless stated otherwise, the period of 12 months ending March 31 of that particular year

FIR First information report

FPI(s) Foreign portfolio investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations

FVCI(s) Foreign venture capital investors as defined and registered under the SEBI FVCI Regulations
“Gol” or “Government” or|Government of India

“Central Government”

GST Goods and services tax

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

ICAI The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

16




Term Description
ICSI The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Ind AS/ Indian Accounting
Standards

Indian Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended

India

Republic of India

Indian GAAP/ IGAAP

Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016

IPC Indian Penal Code, 1860, as amended

IPO Initial public offering

IST Indian Standard Time

IT Information Technology

IT Act The Information Technology Act, 2000, as amended
Income Tax Act The Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Mutual Fund(s)

Mutual funds registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds)
Regulations, 1996, as amended

“N/A” or “NA” Not applicable

“NAV” or “Net Asset Value” |Net asset value

NBFC Non-Banking Financial Company

“NBFC-ND-SI” or | A non deposit taking non-banking financial company registered with the Reserve Bank of India

“Systemically Important | and recognised as systemically important non-banking financial company by the Reserve Bank

NBFCs” of India

NCD Non-convertible debentures

NEFT National Electronic Funds Transfer

Net Income Net Income represents the difference between total income and finance costs for the relevant
year

Net Interest Income Net interest income represents the difference between interest income and finance costs for the
year
Interest income represents the sum of interest income on financial assets measured at amortized
cost, interest on deposits with Bank and income on investment, for the relevant year.

NPCI National Payments Corporation of India

NRE Non Resident External

NRI Individual resident outside India, who is a citizen of India

NRO Non Resident Ordinary

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited

“0oCcB” or “Overseas | A company, partnership, society or other corporate body owned directly or indirectly to the extent

Corporate Body”

of at least 60% by NRIs including overseas trusts, in which not less than 60% of beneficial
interest is irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was in existence on October
3, 2003 and immediately before such date had taken benefits under the general permission
granted to OCBs under FEMA. OCBs were not allowed to invest in the Offer

PAN Permanent account number
RBI Reserve Bank of India
RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended

RBI Master Directions - HFC

Master Directions — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021

Regulation S Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act, as amended
RoNW Return on Net Worth

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

Rule 144A Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act

SARFAESI Act

Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities Interest
Act, 2002

SCRA

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended

SCRR

Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended
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Term

Description

SEBI

Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act

SEBI Act

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended

SEBI AlF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investments Funds) Regulations, 2012, as
amended

SEBI BTI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Bankers to an Issue) Regulations, 1994, as amended

SEBI FPI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019, as
amended

SEBI FVCI Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors) Regulations, 2000,
as amended

SEBI ICDR Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended

SEBI Listing Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended

SEBI SBEB &
Regulations

SE

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021, as amended

SEBI VCF Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 as repealed
pursuant to the SEBI AIF Regulations, as amended

State Government

The government of a state in India

Stock Exchanges

BSE and NSE

STT

Securities Transaction Tax

Takeover Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011, as amended

TAN

Tax deduction account number

TDS

Tax Deducted at Source

U.S./USA/United States

United States of America, its territories and possessions, any State of the United States, and the
District of Columbia

USD/US$ United States Dollars

U.S. Investment Company |U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

Act

U.S. Investment Company |U.S. Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended

Act

U.S. Securities Act U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

UTs Union Territories

VCFs Venture Capital Funds as defined in and registered with SEBI under the SEBI VCF Regulations
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CERTAIN CONVENTIONS, PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA AND
CURRENCY OF PRESENTATION

Certain Conventions

All references to “India” contained in this Prospectus are to the Republic of India and its territories and possessions
and all references herein to the “Government”, “Indian Government”, “Gol”, “Central Government” or the “State
Government” are to the Government of India, central or state, as applicable. All references to the “U.S.”, “US”, “USA”
or the “United States” are to the United States of America and its territories and possessions.

Unless otherwise specified, any time mentioned in this Prospectus is in Indian Standard Time. Unless indicated
otherwise, all references to a year in this Prospectus are to a calendar year.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Prospectus are to the page numbers of this
Prospectus.

Financial Data

Our Company’s financial year commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on March
31 of that particular calendar year. Unless stated otherwise, all references in this Prospectus to the terms Fiscal or
Fiscal Year or Financial Year, are to the 12 months period commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding
calendar year and ending on March 31 of that particular calendar year.

Unless stated otherwise or where the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this
Prospectus are derived from the Restated Financial Information.

The Restated Financial Information of the Company comprise the Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as
at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2023, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and Restated Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), and Restated Statement of Cash Flows and Restated
Statement of Changes in Equity for each of the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
and for the three month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 Summary of material accounting policies
and other explanatory information for each of the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022, and for the three month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 derived from the audited financial
statements as at and for each of the financial years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
and for the three month periods ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 prepared in accordance with Ind AS and
restated in accordance with the requirements of Section 26 of Part | of Chapter Ill of the Companies Act, 2013,
relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as amended from time to time.

For further information, see “Restated Financial Information”, “Other Financial Information” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 309, 403 and 404, respectively.

There are significant differences between the Ind AS, the IFRS and the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
in the United States of America (the “U.S. GAAP”). Accordingly, the degree to which the financial information
included in this Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader’s level of
familiarity with Indian accounting practices. Any reliance by persons not familiar with accounting standards in India,
the Ind AS, the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, on the financial disclosures presented in this
Prospectus should accordingly be limited. We have not attempted to quantify or identify the impact of the differences
between the financial data (prepared under Ind AS and IFRS/ U.S. GAAP), nor have we provided a reconciliation
thereof. We urge you to consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data
included in this Prospectus.

In this Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to
rounding off. All figures in decimals have been rounded off to the first decimal and all percentage figures have been
rounded off to two decimal places.

Unless the context otherwise indicates, any percentage, amounts, or ratios (excluding certain operational metrics),
relating to the financial information of our Company as set forth in “Risk Factors”, “Our Business”, “Select Statistical
Information” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on
pages 36, 219, 285 and 404, respectively, and in this Prospectus have been calculated on the basis of amounts

derived from our Restated Financial Information.
Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Certain Non-GAAP measures relating to our financial performance, such as operating expenses, average loans,

average interest bearing investment, average borrowings, average equity, total income as a percentage of average
loans, finance cost as a percentage of average borrowings, net total income, net total income as a percentage of
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average loans, operating expenses as a percentage of average loans, operating expenses as a percentage of net
total income, impairment on financial instruments as a percentage of average loans, total tax expenses as a
percentage of profit before tax, leverage ratio, bank borrowings, and yield on loans assets (together, “Non-GAAP
Measures”), and other industry metrics relating to our operations and financial performance presented in this
Prospectus are a supplemental measure of our performance that are not required by, or presented in accordance
with, Ind AS, Indian GAAP, or IFRS. Further, these Non-GAAP Measures and other industry metrics are not a
measurement of our financial performance or liquidity under Ind AS, Indian GAAP, or IFRS and should not be
considered in isolation or construed as an alternative to cash flows, profit/ (loss) for the years/ period or any other
measure of financial performance or as an indicator of our operating performance, liquidity, profitability or cash flows
generated by operating, investing or financing activities derived in accordance with Ind AS, Indian GAAP, or IFRS.
In addition, these Non-GAAP Measures and other industry metrics are not standardised terms, hence a direct
comparison of similarly titted Non-GAAP Measures and other industry metrics between companies may not be
possible. Other companies may calculate the Non-GAAP Measures and other industry metrics differently from us,
limiting its utility as a comparative measure. Although the Non-GAAP Measures and other industry metrics are not
a measure of performance calculated in accordance with applicable accounting standards, our Company’s
management believes that it is useful to an investor in evaluating us because it is a widely used measure to evaluate
a company’s operating performance. For further details see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” on page 404 and “Other Financial Information” on page 403. For further details
see “Risk Factors — We have in this document included certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other
selected statistical information related to our operations and financial condition. These non-GAAP measures and
statistical information may vary from any standard methodology that is applicable across the financial services
industry and therefore may not be comparable with financial or statistical information of similar nomenclature
computed and presented by other financial services companies” on page 69.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All references to:

) “Rupees” or “¥” or “INR” or “Rs.” are to Indian Rupee, the official currency of the Republic of India; and
) “USD” or “US$” or “$” are to United States Dollar, the official currency of the United States of America.

Our Company has presented certain numerical information in this Prospectus in “million” units or in whole numbers
where the numbers have been too small to represent in such units. One million represents 1,000,000, one billion
represents 1,000,000,000 and one trillion represents 1,000,000,000,000.

Figures sourced from third-party industry sources may be expressed in denominations other than millions or may
be rounded off to one decimal point in the respective sources, and such figures have been expressed in this
Prospectus in such denominations or rounded-off to such number of decimal points as provided in such respective
sources.

All figures (other than per share and percentage figures) derived from our Restated Financial Information in decimals
have been rounded off to one decimal place.

Exchange Rates

This Prospectus contains conversion of certain other currency amounts into Indian Rupees that have been
presented solely to comply with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. These conversions should not be construed as a
representation that these currency amounts could have been, or can be converted into Indian Rupees, at any
particular rate or at all.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, information with respect to the exchange rate between the
Rupee and USD:

Currency As at
June 30, 2024* | June 30, 2023 | March 31, 2024" March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 USD 83.45 82.04 83.37 82.22 75.81

Source: www.fbil.org.in
"The previous working day, not being a public holiday, has been considered.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, information pertaining to the industry in which our Company operates and market data
used in this Prospectus has been obtained or derived from the CRISIL MI&A Report and publicly available
information as well as other industry publications and sources.

CRISIL is an independent agency which has no relationship with our Company, our Promoters, any of our Directors,
KMPs, SMPs or the Book Running Lead Managers. The CRISIL MI&A Report has been commissioned by and paid
for by our Company pursuant to an engagement letter with CRISIL dated May 6, 2024, exclusively for the purposes
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of confirming our understanding of the industry in which the Company operates, in connection with the Offer. The
CRISIL MI&A Report is available on the website of our Company at www.bajajhousingfinance.in/offer-documents
and has also been included in “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection — Material Documents” on page
532.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Prospectus is meaningful depends on the reader’s
familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data
gathering methodologies in the industry in which business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources. There can be no assurance that such third-party
statistical, financial and other industry information is either complete or accurate. Such data involves risks,
uncertainties and numerous assumptions and is subject to change based on various factors, including those
discussed in “Risk Factors — Industry information included in this Prospectus has been derived from an industry
report commissioned by us and paid for by us for such purpose.”, on page 68. Accordingly, any investment decision
should not be based solely on such information.

In accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations, “Basis for Offer Price” on page 116 includes information relating to
our listed peer group companies. Such information has been obtained from publicly available sources believed to
be reliable and verified by S K Patodia & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, but their accuracy, completeness
and underlying assumptions are not guaranteed, and their reliability cannot be assured. Accordingly, no investment
decisions should be based solely on such information.

References to segments in “Industry Overview” beginning on page 151 and information derived from the CRISIL
MI&A Report are in accordance with the presentation, analysis and categorisation in the CRISIL MI&A Report. The
segment reporting in the Restated Financial Information is based on the criteria set out in Ind AS 108 (Operating
Segments).

Disclaimer of CRISIL
The CRISIL MI&A Report is subject to the following disclaimer:

“CRISIL Market Intelligence & Analytics (“CRISIL MI&A”), a division of CRISIL Limited (“CRISIL”) has taken due
care and caution in preparing this report (“CRISIL MI&A Report”) based on the information obtained by CRISIL
from sources which it considers reliable (“Data”). This CRISIL MI&A Report is not a recommendation to invest /
disinvest in any entity covered in the CRISIL MI&A Report and no part of this CRISIL MI&A Report should be
construed as an expert advice or investment advice or any form of investment banking within the meaning of any
law or regulation. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, nothing in the CRISIL MI&A Report is to be
construed as CRISIL providing or intending to provide any services in jurisdictions where CRISIL does not have the
necessary permission and/or registration to carry out its business activities in this regard. Bajaj Housing Finance
Limited will be responsible for ensuring compliances and consequences of non-compliances for use of the CRISIL
MI&A Report or part thereof outside India. CRISIL MI&A operates independently of, and does not have access to
information obtained by CRISIL Ratings Limited, which may, in their regular operations, obtain information of a
confidential nature. The views expressed in this CRISIL MI&A Report are that of CRISIL MI&A and not of CRISIL
Ratings Limited. No part of this CRISIL MI&A Report may be published/reproduced in any form without CRISIL’s
prior written approval.”

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United States

The Equity Shares have not been recommended by any U.S. federal or state securities commission or regulatory
authority. Furthermore, the foregoing authorities have not confirmed the accuracy or determined the adequacy of
this Prospectus or approved or disapproved the Equity Shares. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal
offence in the United States. In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of our
Company and the terms of this Offer, including the merits and risks involved.

The Equity Shares offered in the Offer have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act and
may not be offered or sold within the United States, except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not
subject to, the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. Accordingly,
the Equity Shares are being offered and sold within the United States to “qualified institutional buyers” (as defined
in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act) in transactions exempt from the registration requirements of the U.S.
Securities Act (referred to in this Prospectus as “U.S. QIBS”). The Equity Shares are being offered and sold outside
the United States in “offshore transactions” as defined in and in reliance on Regulation S under the U.S. Securities
Act and the applicable laws of the jurisdictions where those offers and sales occur.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Prospectus contains certain “forward-looking statements”. All statements contained in this Prospectus that are
not statements of historical fact constitute “forward-looking statements”. All statements regarding our expected
financial condition and results of operations, business, plans and prospects are “forward-looking statements”.

These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words or phrases such as “aim”, “anticipate”,
“believe”, “expect”, “estimate”, “intend”, “likely to”, “seek to”, “shall”, “objective”, “plan”, “project”, “propose”, “will”,
“will continue”, “will pursue” or other words or phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our
expected financial condition, results of operations, business, prospects, strategies, objectives, plans or goals are
also forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements whether made by us or any third parties in this
Prospectus are based on our current plans, estimates, presumptions and expectations and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated
by the relevant forward-looking statement, including but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the industry
in which our Company has businesses and our ability to respond to them, our ability to successfully implement our
strategy, our growth and expansion, technological changes, our exposure to market risks, general economic and
political conditions, in India and globally, which have an impact on our business activities or investments, the
monetary and fiscal policies of India, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of the financial markets in India and globally, changes
in domestic laws, regulations and taxes and changes in competition in our industry, incidence of natural calamities

and/or acts of violence.

Certain important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include, but are
not limited to, the following:

o Our inability to fully recover the collateral value or the sums due from defaulted loans promptly or entirely,
could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

) If we are unable to control the level of Gross Non-Performing Assets/Stage 3 Assets in our portfolio
effectively or if we are unable to maintain adequate provisioning coverage or if there is any change in
regulatorily-mandated provisioning requirements, our financial condition and results of operations could be
adversely affected.

o If we are unable to comply with the requirements stipulated by Reserve Bank of India, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

) Our assets under management are concentrated in four states and the union territory of New Delhi and any
adverse developments in these regions could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.

o We have allotted Equity Shares to Bajaj Finance Limited, one of our Promoters, in Fiscal 2023 at a price
that will be lower than the Offer Price.

o Our inability to comply with the financial and other covenants under our debt financing arrangements could
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

) Our portfolio is significantly exposed to real estate and any significant downturn or any adverse
developments in the real estate sector may lead to an increase in impairment losses and adversely affect
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. Further, we may not be able to
identify or correct defects or irregularities in title to the properties which are made collateral to the loans
offered by us to our customers or realize the loan amount from such properties which may adversely affect
our business.

o We may be impacted by macroeconomic factors, including volatility in interest rates, which could cause our
Net Interest Income, Net Interest Margins and the value of our fixed income portfolio to decline and
adversely affect our profitability, business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition, including
in the near-term.

o Our Company has availed borrowings from a number of related parties and there can be no assurance that
we could not have achieved more favourable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with such
related parties.

o We are party to certain legal proceedings and any adverse outcome in these or other proceedings may
adversely affect our business.

For further discussion on factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see “Risk

Factors”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” on pages 36, 151, 219 and 404, respectively. By their nature, certain market risk
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disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different from what actually occurs in the future. As a result,
actual future gains or losses could materially differ from those that have been estimated and are not a guarantee of
future performance.

Forward-looking statements reflect current views of our Company as of the date of this Prospectus and are not a
guarantee of future performance. There can be no assurance to Bidders that the expectations reflected in these
forward-looking statements will prove to be correct. Given these uncertainties, Bidders are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to regard such statements to be a guarantee of our
future performance.

These statements are based on our management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on currently
available information. Although we believe that the assumptions upon which these forward-looking statements are
based on are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate and the forward-looking
statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. Given these uncertainties, Bidders are cautioned not
to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not to regard such statements as a guarantee of
future performance. None of our Company, our Promoters (including the Promoter Selling Shareholder), our
Directors, the BRLMs or any of their respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any
statements reflecting circumstances arising after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events,
even if the underlying assumptions do not come to fruition.

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall ensure that Bidders in India are
informed of material developments from the date of this Prospectus in relation to the statements and undertakings
made by it in this Prospectus until the time of the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchanges for
the Offer. Further, the Promoter Selling Shareholder shall (solely to the extent of statements specifically made or
confirmed by the Promoter Selling Shareholder in relation to the Offered Shares in this Prospectus), ensure that
Bidders in India are informed of material developments from the date of this Prospectus in relation to the statements
and undertakings specifically made or confirmed by the Promoter Selling Shareholder in the Red Herring Prospectus
and this Prospectus until the time of the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchanges for this Offer.
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OFFER DOCUMENT SUMMARY

The following is a general summary of certain disclosures included in this Prospectus and is neither exhaustive, nor
purports to contain a summary of all the disclosures in this Prospectus or the Prospectus when filed, or all details
relevant to prospective investors. This summary should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety
by, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus, including “Risk Factors”, “The Offer”,
“Capital Structure”, “Objects of the Offer”, “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Our Promoters and Promoter
Group”, “Restated Financial Information”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations”, “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments”, “Offer Procedure” and “Main Provisions
of Articles of Association” on pages 36, 81, 98, 110, 151, 219, 277, 309, 404, 444, 502 and 524, respectively.

Summary of the primary business of our Company

We are a non-deposit taking Housing Finance Company registered with the National Housing Bank since September
24, 2015, offering tailored financial solutions for purchasing and renovating residential and commercial properties.
We have also been identified and categorized as an “Upper Layer” NBFC by the RBI in India and our comprehensive
mortgage products include home loans, loans against property, lease rental discounting and developer financing.
We primarily focus on individual retail housing loans, supported by a diverse range of commercial and developer
loans, serving customers from homebuyers to large developers. For further details, see “Our Business” on page
219.

Summary of the industry in which our Company operates

According to the CRISIL MI&A Report (pages 117 and 185 of this Prospectus), India has very low penetration in
terms of housing finance as compared to other economies which shows a high potential for expansion of Indian
housing finance companies. The Indian housing finance market clocked a healthy CAGR of approximately 13.1%
(growth in credit outstanding) during Fiscals 2019 to 2023, on account of rise in disposable incomes, healthy
demand, and greater number of players entering the segment. Going forward, CRISIL MI&A expects overall housing
segment to grow at a CAGR of 13-15% from Fiscal 2024 to Fiscal 2027.

Our Promoters

Bajaj Finance Limited and Bajaj Finserv Limited are the Promoters of our Company. For further details, see “Our
Promoters and Promoter Group” on page 277.

Offer size

The details of the Offer are set out below:

Offer of Equity Shares®®®) 937,142,856* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each aggregating to ¥65,600.0
million

of which:

(i) Fresh Issue® 508,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 310 each aggregating to ¥35,600.0
million

(ii) Offer for Sale@® 428,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating to ¥30,000.0
million

The Offer comprises:

a) Employee Reservation Portion® 28,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating to ¥2,000.0 million

b) Shareholders Reservation Portion® |71,428,571* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating to ¥5,000.0
million

Net Offer 837,142,857* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each aggregating to ¥58,600
million

* Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

(1) The Offer has been authorised by our Board pursuant to the resolution passed at its meeting held on June 6, 2024 and our Shareholders
have authorised the Fresh Issue pursuant to a special resolution passed at their meeting held on June 6, 2024.

(2) Our Board has taken on record the approval for the Offer for Sale by the Promoter Selling Shareholder pursuant to its resolution dated June
7, 2024. For further details, see “The Offer” and “Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures” on pages 81 and 469, respectively.

(3) The Equity Shares offered by the Promoter Selling Shareholder were eligible for being offered for sale in the terms of SEBI ICDR
Regulations. The Promoter Selling Shareholder confirmed and authorised its participation in the Offer for Sale in relation to its portion of
the Offered Shares. The details of such authorisations are provided below:

Name of the Selling Aggregate proceeds from Maximum number of Date of board Date of consent

Shareholder Offer for Sale Offered Shares resolution/ letter
authorisation

Promoter Selling Shareholder
Bajaj Finance Limited Z30,000.0 million 428,571,428* Equity Shares | June 7, 2024 June 7, 2024
of face value of ¥10 each

* Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

(4) Eligible Employees bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion were required to ensure that the maximum Bid Amount did not exceed
Z500,000. However, the initial Allotment to an Eligible Employee in the Employee Reservation Portion did not exceed ¥200,000. Only in the
event of an under-subscription in the Employee Reservation Portion post the initial Allotment, such unsubscribed portion could have been
Allotted on a proportionate basis to Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion, for a value in excess of ¥200,000,
subject to the total Allotment to an Eligible Employee not exceeding ¥500,000. For further details, see “Offer Procedure” and “Offer Structure”
beginning on page 502 and 497, respectively.
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(5) The Shareholders Reservation Portion constituted 0.9% of our post-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital, and in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations did not exceed 10% of the size of the Offer.

The Offer and Net Offer shall constitute 11.3% and 10.1%, respectively, of the post-Offer paid-up Equity Share
capital of our Company. For further details, see “The Offer” and “Offer Structure” beginning on pages 81 and 497,
respectively.

Objects of the Offer

The objects for which the Net Proceeds from the Offer shall be utilized are as follows:

Particulars Amount (% in million)
Augmenting our capital base to meet future business requirements of our Company 34,995.5
towards onward lending
Total 34,995.5

For further details, see “Objects of the Offer” on page 110.

Aggregate pre-Offer shareholding of our Promoters (including the Promoter Selling Shareholder) and
members of our Promoter Group as a percentage of our paid-up Equity Share capital

The aggregate pre-Offer shareholding of our Promoters (including the Promoter Selling Shareholder) and members
of our Promoter Group as a percentage of the pre-Offer paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company is set out
below:

Sr. Name Number of Equity Percentage of the pre- Percentage of the post-Offer
No. Shares as on the date | Offer paid-up Equity | paid-up Equity Share capital (%)
of this Prospectus Share capital (%)

Promoters

1. Bajaj Finance Limited 7,819,575,273» 100 88.75
2. Bajaj Finserv Limited Nil Nil Nil
Promoter Group

3. | Sanjivnayan Bajaj 100" Negligible Negligible
Total 7,819,575,273" 100 88.75

A Out of the 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with Rajivhayan Bajaj, Madhur
Bajaj, Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly
held Equity Shares.

Summary of Selected Financial Information

The details of our Equity Share capital, other equity, Net Worth, Total Income, profit for the year, earnings per share
(basic and diluted), Net Asset Value per Equity Share and total borrowings for the financial years ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and for the three month periods ending June 30, 2024 and June 30,
2023, derived from the Restated Financial Information are as follows:

(Z in million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Asatand | Asatand | Asatand | Asatand | As at and
for the for the for the for the for the
three three year year year
months months ended ended ended
period period March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
ending ending 2024 2023 2022
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023
Equity Share capital 78,195.8 67,121.6 67,121.6 67,121.6 48,833.3
Other equity 69,003.3 42,528.3 55,213.4 37,910.3 18,580.3
Net Worth® 147,199.1 109,649.9| 122,335.0| 105,031.9 67,413.6
Total Income 22,087.3 17,633.8 76,177.1 56,654.4 37,671.3
Profit for the year 4,826.1 4,618.0 17,312.2 12,578.0 7,096.2
- Earnings per share (basic) (%)@ 0.6 0.7 2.6 1.9 1.5
- Earnings per share (diluted) (3)® 0.6 0.7 2.6 1.9 1.5
Net Asset Value per Equity Share (3)© 18.8 16.3 18.2 15.6 13.8
Total borrowings®) 733,470.6| 585,601.5| 691,293.2| 537,453.9| 414,923.2

Notes:

(1) Net worth has been computed as a sum of Equity Share Capital (paid up share capital) and other equity.

(2) Basic earnings per share (%) = Net profit after tax, as restated/ Weighted average number of Equity Shares.

(3) Diluted earnings per share (%) = Net profit after tax, as restated/ Weighted average number of potential Equity Shares outstanding during

the relevant fiscal year.

(4) Net asset value per Equity Share = Net worth as at the end of the year/ Number of Equity Shares outstanding as at the last day of the

relevant fiscal year.
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(5) Total borrowings represents the aggregate of debt securities, borrowings (other than debt securities), and deposits as at the last day of
the relevant fiscal year.

Key Regulatory Financial and Operational Ratios

The table below sets out some key financial and operational ratios of our Company which are considered for
regulatory limits, as stipulated by the RBI:

Particulars As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
CRAR | CRAR | LCR PBC | CRAR | CRAR | LCR PBC | CRAR | CRAR | LCR PBC
Tier-l Tier- Tier-l
capital capital capital
Company 21.28%|20.67% | 192.31|61.43%|22.97% | 22.19% | 149.72 | 58.30% | 19.71% | 18.95% | 131.20| 55.90%
% % %
Minimum 15% 10% 85% 60% 15% 10% 70% 55% 15% 10% 60% 50%
regulatory
requirement
Notes

(1) Capital Adequacy Ratio — CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | and Tier Il capital by total risk weighted assets, each as computed in
accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant fiscal year

(2) Liquidity Coverage Ratio — ratio of stock of high quality liquid assets over total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days

(3) Principal Business Criteria Ratio — ratio of financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing over total assets (netted off by
intangible assets)

Auditor’s qualifications which have not been given effect to in the Restated Financial Information

There are no qualifications of our Joint Statutory Auditors which have not been given effect to in the Restated
Financial Information.

Summary table of outstanding litigations
A summary of outstanding litigation proceedings involving our Company, Promoters and Directors, as applicable,

as disclosed in the section titled “Outstanding Litigation and Other Material Developments” in terms of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and the Materiality Policy as of the date of this Prospectus is provided below:

Category of Criminal Tax Statutory or Disciplinary Material Aggregate
individuals / proceedings proceedings regulatory actions by SEBI civil amount
entities proceedings or Stock litigation | involved (% in
Exchanges million)®
against our

Promoters in the

last five financial

years, including
outstanding

action
Company
Against the 23 10 Nil N.A. Nil 211.2
Company
By the Company 1,647 N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil 6,432.22
Directors
Against the 180 Nil Nil N.A. Nil -
Directors
By the Directors Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil -
Promoters
Against Promoters 49 69 Nil 1 2 41,705.5
By Promoters 172,919 N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil 3,116.1®

(1) To the extent ascertainable and quantifiable.

(2) This includes the aggregate amount of ¥ 6,432.2 million involving 2,115 proceedings initiated by our Company under the SARFAESI Act.

(3) This includes matters where the Directors have been impleaded along with our Company.

(4) This includes the aggregate amount of ¥ 1,424 .6 million involving 627 proceedings initiated by Bajaj Finance Limited under the SARFAESI
Act.

Our Group Companies are not party to any pending litigation which will have a material impact on our Company.
For further details, see “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on page 444.

Risk Factors

The following is a summary of the top ten risk factors in relation to our Company.

1. Our inability to fully recover the collateral value or the sums due from defaulted loans promptly or entirely,
could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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10.

If we are unable to control the level of Gross Non-Performing Assets/Stage 3 Assets in our portfolio
effectively or if we are unable to maintain adequate provisioning coverage or if there is any change in
regulatorily-mandated provisioning requirements, our financial condition and results of operations could be
adversely affected.

If we are unable to comply with the requirements stipulated by Reserve Bank of India, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our assets under management are concentrated in four states and the union territory of New Delhi and any
adverse developments in these regions could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.

We have allotted Equity Shares to Bajaj Finance Limited, one of our Promoters, in Fiscal 2023 at a price
that will be lower than the Offer Price.

Our inability to comply with the financial and other covenants under our debt financing arrangements could
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our portfolio is significantly exposed to real estate and any significant downturn or any adverse
developments in the real estate sector may lead to an increase in impairment losses and adversely affect
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. Further, we may not be able to
identify or correct defects or irregularities in title to the properties which are made collateral to the loans
offered by us to our customers or realize the loan amount from such properties which may adversely affect
our business.

We may be impacted by macroeconomic factors, including volatility in interest rates, which could cause our
Net Interest Income, Net Interest Margins and the value of our fixed income portfolio to decline and
adversely affect our profitability, business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition, including
in the near-term.

Our Company has availed borrowings from a number of related parties and there can be no assurance that
we could not have achieved more favourable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with such
related parties.

We are party to certain legal proceedings and any adverse outcome in these or other proceedings may
adversely affect our business.

For further details of the risks applicable to us, see “Risk Factors” on page 36.

Summary table of contingent liabilities

The following is a summary table of our contingent liabilities as at June 30, 2024 as per Ind AS 37:

(Z in million)

Particulars As at June 30, 2024

Disputed claims against our Company not acknowledged as debts 35.3

For details, see “Restated Financial Information — Notes to Restated Financial Information — Note 41: Contingent
Liabilities and Commitments” on page 360.

Summary of related party transactions

Set out below is a summary of related party transactions with related parties for Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022 and
for the three months period ending June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, as per Ind AS 24 read with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, as derived from the Restated Financial Information:

27



Name of the related
party and nature of
relationship

Nature of Transactions

Period ended
June 30, 2024

Period ended
June 30, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Transaction
Value

Outstanding
amounts
carried in
Balance

Sheet

Transaction
Value

Outstanding
amounts
carried in

Balance
Sheet

Transaction
Value

Outstanding
amounts
carried in

Balance
Sheet

Transaction
Value

Outstanding
amounts
carried in

Balance
Sheet

Transaction
Value

Outstanding
amounts
carried in

Balance
Sheet

A. Ultimate Holding Company

Bajaj Finserv

Limited

Secured  non-convertible
debentures issued

(2,000.0)

(5,500.0)

(4,000.0)

T (5500.0)

(3,500.0)

Secured  non-convertible
debentures repaid

2,000.0 -

1,500.0 -

Interest paid on
convertible debentures

non-

114.0 -

114.0 -

361.2 -

208.1 -

90.0 -

Business Support Charges
Paid

o

(1.6)

13.2 -

36.3 -

Amount paid under ESOP
recharge arrangements

6.0 7.1)

B. Holding Company

Bajaj Finance
Limited

Contribution to  Equity
Shares (7,819,575,273)
shares at face value of 10
each)

(78,195.8)

(67,121.6)

(67,121.6)

1 (67.121.6)

(48,833.3)

Contribution
(including

Equity
received
Premium)

20,000.0 -

25,000.0 -

Amount paid under ESOP
recharge
arrangements

299.3 -

261.7 -

192.3 -

Loan portfolio assigned out

1511.1 -

10,779.0

67,581.5

17,899.0 -

15,036.9 -

Purchase of property, plant
and equipment

5.5 -

7.9

2.7 -

Sale of property, plant and
equipment

5.3 -

4.8

3.8 -

Security deposit received
for leased premises

- (0.8)

- (0.8)

Business support charges
and servicing fee paid

21.2 -

335 (7.5)

148.5

168.3

78.6 -

Business support charges
received

1.8 -

3.3 1.6

10.1 -

8.1 -

11.4 -

Rent income

0.6 -

2.0 -

1.9 -

Fees, commission and

servicing fee received®

112.9 -

125.0

507.7 -

663.0

446.4 -

Loan portfolio assigned in

7,387.9 -
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Name of the related
party and nature of

Nature of Transactions

Period ended
June 30, 2024

Period ended
June 30, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

debentures repaid

relationship
Transaction |Outstanding| Transaction |Outstanding | Transaction|Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding
Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts
carried in carried in carried in carried in carried in
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet
Investment in inter- - - - - - - - - 49,000.0 -
corporate deposits
Investment repayment - - - - - - - - 49,000.0 -
received
Interest income on - - - - - - - - 38.2 -
investments in inter-
corporate deposits
Short term loan taken - - - - - - - - 7,500.0 -
Short term loan repaid - - - - - - - - 7,500.0 -
C. Fellow Subsidiaries
Bajaj Financial |Company's contribution 3.0 0.0 2.1 (0.0 9.0 - 4.5 - - -
Securities towards NPS ( O/s for the
Limited Period ended June 24,
(Fellow 15,768)
Subsidiary)
Bajaj Finserv Purchase of property, plant - - - - - - 0.9 - - -
Direct Limited and equipment
(Subsidiary of  |Sale of property, plant and 0.0 - - 0.1 - - 0.0 -
Ultimate Holding |equipment 0.0
Company) (TV for the Period ended
June 24, % 33,406, FY
2022-23 % 33,647, FY
2021-22 % 12,971)
Business support fees and 1.9 - 1.6 - 21.2 - 6.6 - 10.5 (9.1)
commission paid
Bajaj Finserv[Fees and commission 157.8 6.0 - - 96.0 18.7 - - - -
Health Limited |received
(Subsidiary  of
Ultimate Holding
Company)
Bajaj Finserv|Sale of property, plant and - - - - - - - - -
Venture Limited |equipment (TV for FY 2023- 0.0
(Subsidiary  of|24 % 33,406 )
Ultimate Holding
Company)
Bajaj Allianz{Secured  non-convertible - (5,000.0) - (1,500.0) - (2,500.0) - (1,500.0) - (1,000.0)
General debentures issued
Insurance Secured  non-convertible - - - - - - 1,000.0 - 500.0 -
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Name of the related

party and nature of

Nature of Transactions

Period ended
June 30, 2024

Period ended
June 30, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

relationship
Transaction |Outstanding| Transaction |Outstanding | Transaction|Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding
Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts
carried in carried in carried in carried in carried in
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet
Company Interest paid on non- 115.5 - 1155 - 115.5 - 71.0 - 105.7 -
Limited convertible debentures
(Subsidiary of| Advance towards insurance - 10.2 - 13.8 - 48.7 - - - -
Ultimate Holding|Insurance expenses 37.1 - 29.9 - 45.7 - 44.2 6.3 37.9 45.4
Company) Purchase of property, plant - - - - - - - - 0.1 -
and equipment
Fees and commission 2.9 3.4 - - 4.7 1.2 - - - -
received
6 Bajaj Allianz Life|Unsecured non-convertible -|  (10,850.0) - (8,680.0) 2,170.0 (10,850.0) 2,170.0 (8,680.0) 2,170.0 (6,510.0)
Insurance debentures issued
Company Secured  non-convertible - (1,500.00) - -
Limited debentures issued
(Subsidiary  offinterest paid on non- - - - - 678.4 - 509.4 - 339.9 -
Ultimate Holding|convertible debentures
Company) Advance towards insurance - 4.8 - 6.5 - 4.3 - - - -
Insurance expense - - - - 11.2 - 91.0 6.5 116.1 3.0
Fees and commission 27.7 6.8 - - 35.6 21.0 - - - -
received
D. Associates of Holding Company
1 Snapwork Information technology - - - - 15.9 - 6.3 - - -
Technologies design and development
Private Limited |charges
(w.e.f. 25|Support charges - - - - 4.8 - - - - -
November 2022)
2 Pennant Information technology 4.8 - - - 12.4 - - - - -
Technologies design and development
Private Limited |charges
(w.e.f. 19|Support charges 8.4 - - - 4.2 - - - - -
January 2024)
E. Key Management Personnel (KMP) and close members of KMP
1 Sanjivhayan Short term benefits - Sitting 0.5 - 0.3 - 1.3 - 1.4 - 1.7 -
Bajaj Fees
(Chairman) Short term benefits - - (2.3) - (0.6) 2.6 (2.3) 0.7 (0.6) - -
Commission
2 Rajeev Jain|Short term benefits - Sitting 0.9 - 0.5 - 2.1 - 15 - - -
(Vice Chairman|Fees
w.ef. 1 May|Short term benefits - - (3.8) - (0.9 4.2 (3.8) 11 (0.9) - -
2022, Commission
Managing
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Name of the related
party and nature of

Nature of Transactions

Period ended
June 30, 2024

Period ended
June 30, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

relationship
Transaction |Outstanding| Transaction |Outstanding | Transaction|Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding
Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts
carried in carried in carried in carried in carried in
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet
Director till 30
April 2022)
3 Atul Jain|Short term  employee 25.3 (29.3) 39.3 - 140.8 (19.8) 102.9 (0.4) 81.4 (11.4)
(Managing benefits
Director w.e.f. 1|Share based payment 38.4 - 19.1 - 95.6 - 80.6 - 44.6 -
May 2022,
Chief Executive
Officer till 30
April 2022)
4 Lila Poonawala|Short term benefits - Sitting - - - - - - 1.6 - 1.7 -
(Director till 21|Fees
Jan 2023) Short term benefits - - - - - - - 0.8 (0.7) - -
Commission
5 Anami N Roy|Short term benefits - Sitting 0.8 - 0.4 - 1.8 - 1.6 - 11 -
(Director) Fees
Short term benefits - - 3.2) - (0.8) 3.6 (3.2) 0.9 (0.8) - -
Commission
6 Dr. Arindam K|Short term benefits - Sitting 0.9 - 0.5 - 2.0 - 0.7 - - -
Bhattacharya Fees
(Director w.e.f. 1{Short term benefits - - (3.6) - (0.5) 4.0 (3.6) 0.5 (0.5) - -
May 2022) Commission
7 Jasmine  Arish|{Short term benefits - Sitting 0.7 - 0.4 - 1.7 - - - - -
Chaney Fees
(Director w.e.f 1{Short term benefits - - (3.1) - - 3.4 (3.1) - - - -
April 2023) Commission
8 Dr. Omkar|Short  term  employee - - - - - - - - 0.1 -
Goswami benefits
(Non executive
Director till 9 July
2021)
9 Gaurav  Kalani|Short term  employee 4.6 (2.3) 12.1 - 25.2 (7.7) 22.3 (7.7) 16.4 (6.3)
(Chief Financial|benefits
Officer)* Share based payment 3.3 - 1.8 - 8.2 - 8.0 - 6.4 -
10 |Atul Patni|Short term  employee 1.2 (0.8) 1.3 - 4.7 (0.7) 4.8 - - -
(Company benefits
Secretary w.e.f.|Share based payment 0.4 - - - 0.8 - - - - -
1 May 2022)*

F. Entities/Others in which KMP and their close members have significant influence
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Name of the related

party and nature of

Nature of Transactions

Period ended
June 30, 2024

Period ended
June 30, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

relationship
Transaction |Outstanding| Transaction |Outstanding | Transaction|Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding | Transaction | Outstanding
Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts Value amounts
carried in carried in carried in carried in carried in
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet Sheet
1 Bajaj Auto Ltd. |Security deposit paid for - 0.3 - 0.3 - 0.3 - 0.3 - 0.3
leased premises
Business Support Charges 59 - 4.2 - 19.7 - 12.7 - - -
Paid
Rent expense 0.2 - 0.2 - 0.6 - 0.6 - 0.6 -

2 Bajaj Holdings|Business Support Charges 4.8 - 5.1 5.5 18.3 - 15.1 - - -
and Investment|Paid
Ltd. Secured  non-convertible - - - - - - - - 1,500.0 -

debentures repaid
Interest paid on non- - - - - - - - - 104.1 -
convertible debentures

3 Maharashtra Secured  non-convertible - (500.0) - (500.0) - (250.0) - (500.0) - (500.0)
Scooters Ltd. debentures issued

Secured  non-convertible 250.0 - - - 250.0 - - - - -
debentures repaid

Interest paid on non- 14.0 - 14.0 - 28.8 - 29.0 - 15.0 -
convertible debentures

4 Hind Musafir|Services received 9.3 - 12.8 0.0 38.9 - 40.6 - 125 (1.8)
Agency Ltd.

5 Poddar Housing|Interest Income - - - - - - - - 10.7 -
and Loan repayment received - - - - - - - - 130.0 -
Development
Limited

6 Ashwin Loan repayment received - - - - - - - - 15 -
Vijaykumar Jain

7 Bajaj Allianz|Outsourcing manpower 204.4 - 155.4 - 764.5 - 127.9 - - -
Staffing supply services
Solutions Ltd.

G. Post employment benefit entity

1 Bajaj Auto|Gratuity contribution - - 0.7 - 10.9 - 30.2 - 20.0 -
Employees
Group  Gratuity
Fund

Key managerial personnel as per section 2(51) of the Companies Act, 2013. Disclosure of transactions made in compliance with RBI Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 and RBI Circular for Disclosures in financial information- Notes to Accounts of NBFC dated 19 April 2022.
The revenue stream categorized under "Fees, commission and servicing fee received" encompasses the following inflows from Bajaj Finance Limited:
(&) Operational Expense Fee: This fee is charged for servicing loans that have been assigned under the direct assignment route.
(b) Servicing Fee: This fee pertains to the management and servicing of the mortgage portfolio.

©

Commission: This is earned for sourcing and facilitating the origination of loans for Bajaj Finance Limited.
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For further details, please see “Our Business” on page 219.

Notes: -

Transactions value (TV) are excluding taxes and duties.

- Amount in bracket denotes credit balance.

-Transactions where Company act as intermediary and passed through Company’s books of accounts are not in the nature of related party transaction and hence are not disclosed.

- Insurance claims received by the Company on insurance cover taken by it on its assets are not in the nature of related party transaction, hence not disclosed.

The above disclosures have been made for related parties identified as such only to be in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24.

- Name of the related parties and nature of their relationships where control exists have been disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions with the Company. In other cases, disclosure has
been made only when there have been transactions with those patrties.

Related parties as defined under clause 9 of the Indian Accounting Standard - 24 'Related Party Disclosures' have been identified based on representations made by key managerial personnel and information
available with the Company. All above transactions are in the ordinary course of business and on arms' length basis. All outstanding balances are to be settled in cash and are unsecured except secured non-
convertible debentures issued to related parties which are disclosed appropriately.

Provisions for gratuity, compensated absences and other long term service benefits are made for the Company as a whole and the amounts pertaining to the key management personnel are not specifically identified
and hence are not included above.

Non-convertible debentures (NCDs) transaction includes only issuance from primary market, and outstanding balance is balances of NCDs held by related parties as on reporting dates.

The Company has allotted 1,10,74,19,709 equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 each under right issue to its Holding Company (Bajaj Finance Limited) on 3 April 2024 at a premium of ¥ 8.06 per share involving
aggregated amount of ¥ 19,999,999,994.54.

The Company has allotted 1,82,88,22,235 equity shares having face value of ¥ 10 each under right issue to its Holding Company (Bajaj Finance Limited) on 7 April 2022 at a premium of ¥ 3.67 per share involving
aggregated amount of ¥ 24,999,999,952.45.

The Company has a committed line of credit of ¥ 25,000 million from Bajaj Finance Limited.
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Financing Arrangements

Our Promoters, directors of our Promoters, members of our Promoter Group, our Directors and their relatives have
not financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company other than in the normal course of the
business of the financing entity during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of the Draft Red
Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus.

Weighted average price at which the specified securities were acquired by our Promoters (including the
Promoter Selling Shareholder) in the one year preceding the date of this Prospectus

The weighted average price at which the Equity Shares were acquired by our Promoters (including the Promoter
Selling Shareholder), in the one year preceding the date of this Prospectus is as follows:

Name Number of Equity Shares acquired

in the last one year

Weighted average price of
acquisition per Equity Share*(in %)

Bajaj Finance Limited (also the Promoter 1,107,419,709 18.1
Selling Shareholder)
Bajaj Finserv Limited Nil NA

*  As certified by Statutory Auditors of our Company, by way of certificate dated September 11, 2024.
Average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares of our Promoters (including the Promoter Selling Shareholder)

The average cost of acquisition of our Promoters (including the Promoter Selling Shareholder) as on the date of this
Prospectus is as follows:

Name Number of Equity Shares
as on the date of

Prospectus

% of Pre issue Equity
Share Capital on a fully
diluted basis

Average cost of
acquisition per Equity
Share* (in %)

Bajaj Finance Limited (also the 7,819,575,273 100.0 12.2
Promoter Selling Shareholder)
Bajaj Finserv Limited Nil NA NA

*  As certified by Statutory Auditors of our Company, by way of certificate dated September 11, 2024.

Details of price at which specified securities were acquired by each of the Promoters (including the
Promoter Selling Shareholder), members of our Promoter Group and Shareholders entitled with the right to
nominate directors or other rights in the last three years

Except as stated below, there have been no specified securities that were acquired in the last three years preceding
the date of this Prospectus, by our Promoters (including the Promoter Selling Shareholder), members of our
Promoter Group and Shareholders entitled with the right to nominate directors or other rights in the Company.

Sr. Name Date of acquisition | Number of Equity Face value (in %) Acquisition price
No. of the Equity Shares acquired per equity share*
Shares (in®
Promoters
1. Bajaj Finance Limited April 7, 2022 1,828,822,235 10 13.7
(also  the  Promoter April 3, 2024 1,107,419,709 10 18.1
Selling Shareholder)

*  As certified by Statutory Auditors of our Company, by way of certificate dated September 11, 2024.

For further details, see “History and Certain Corporate Matters” and “Main Provisions of Articles of Association” on
pages 255 and 524, respectively.

Weighted average cost of acquisition of all Equity Shares transacted in one year, eighteen months and three
years preceding the date of this Prospectus:

Period

Weighted average cost of
acquisition per Equity

Cap Price is ‘x’ times the
weighted average cost of

Range of acquisition price
per Equity Share: lowest

Share (in %) acquisition price — highest price (in )
Last one year preceding the date 18.1 3.9 18.1
of this Prospectus
Last 18 months preceding the 18.1 3.9 18.1
date of this Prospectus
Last three years preceding the 15.3 4.6 13.7-18.1

date of this Prospectus

Note: As certified by the Statutory Auditors of our Company, by way of their certificate dated September 11, 2024.
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Issuance of Equity Shares in the last one year for consideration other than cash

Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash (excluding bonus issuance) in
the last one year preceding the date of this Prospectus. For further details, see “Capital Structure — Offer of shares
for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation reserves (excluding bonus issuance)” on page 101.

Any split/consolidation of Equity Shares in the last one year

Our Company has not undertaken any split or consolidation of the Equity Shares in the last one year preceding the
date of this Prospectus.

Exemption from complying with any provisions of securities laws, if any, granted by SEBI

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company has not sought any exemption from the SEBI from compliance with
any provisions of securities laws including the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
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SECTION II: RISK FACTORS

An investment in Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. Potential investors should carefully consider all of the
information in this Prospectus, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in
the Equity Shares. This Prospectus contains certain forward-looking statements that involve risks, assumptions,
estimates and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking
statements as a result of various factors, including the considerations described in this section and elsewhere in this
Prospectus. See “Forward-Looking Statements” on page 22 of this Prospectus. For further information, see “Restated
Financial Information” on page 309.

We have described the risks and uncertainties that we consider are material, but these risks and uncertainties may
not be the only risks relevant to us, our Equity Shares, or the industry in which we currently operate or propose to
operate. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently believe to be immaterial may
also have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. If any or a
combination of the following risks, or other risks that are not currently known or are currently deemed immaterial,
actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected, the
price of the Equity Shares could decline, and investors may lose all or part of their investment.

In making an investment decision, prospective investors were required to rely on their own examination of us and
our business and the terms of the Offer including the merits and risks involved.

Investors were required to consult their tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences of investing
in the Offer. Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are unable to quantify the financial or
other impact of any of the risks described in this section. Prospective investors should pay particular attention to the
fact that our Company is incorporated under the laws of India and is subject to a legal and regulatory environment,
which may differ in certain respects from that of other countries. To obtain a complete understanding of our business,
you should read this section in conjunction with the sections titled “Industry Overview”, “Our Business”, “Restated
Financial Information”, “Selected Statistical Information”, “Key Regulations and Policies”, “Government and Other
Approvals” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning
on pages 151, 219, 309, 285, 243, 459 and 404, respectively, of this Prospectus, as well as the other financial
information contained in this Prospectus.

Unless otherwise indicated, industry and market data used in this section has been derived from industry publications,
in particular, the report titled “Analysis of Housing Finance Market” dated August 2024 (the “CRISIL MI&A Report”’)
prepared and issued by CRISIL Market Intelligence and Analytics, appointed by us pursuant to an engagement letter
dated May 6, 2024 and exclusively commissioned and paid for by us in connection with the Offer. A copy of the CRISIL
MI&A Report is available on the website of our Company at www.bajajhousingfinance.in/offer-documents and has also
been included in “Material Contracts and Documents for Inspection” on page 532. The data included herein includes
excerpts from the CRISIL MI&A Report and may have been re-ordered by us for the purposes of presentation. There
are no parts, data or information (which may be relevant for the proposed Offer), that has been left out or changed in
any manner. Unless otherwise indicated, financial, operational, industry and other related information derived from the
CRISIL MI&A Report and included herein with respect to any particular year refers to such information for the relevant
calendar year. References to segments in “Industry Overview” beginning on page 151 and information derived from
the CRISIL MI&A Report are in accordance with the presentation, analysis and categorization in the CRISIL MI&A
Report. The segment reporting in the Restated Financial information is based on the criteria set out in Ind AS 108
(Operating Segments). Also see, “Certain Conventions, Use of Financial Information and Market Data and Currency
of Presentation — Industry and Market Data” on page 19. CRISIL MI&A is an independent agency and is not related to
the Company, its Directors, Promoters or Promoter Selling Shareholder.

Our fiscal year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the subsequent year, and references to a particular
fiscal year are to the 12 months ended March 31 of that year. Unless otherwise stated, or the context otherwise
requires, the financial information used in this section is derived from our Restated Financial Information included
in the section titled “Restated Financial Information” on page 309.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

Risks Relating to the Company’s Business

1 Our inability to fully recover the collateral value or the sums due from defaulted loans promptly or
entirely, could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

Our mortgage product portfolio primarily consists of home loans, loans against property, lease rental
discounting and developer financing. The underlying security of our loans is primarily mortgages. As a result,
a substantial portion of our loan portfolio is exposed to events affecting the real estate sector. The demand
for our home loans, in particular, is affected by movement in real estate prices, level of disposable income
of customers and monetary policy rates by RBI.
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In the case of our mortgages, we are exposed to the risk of decreases in real estate prices and liquidity risk.
As the underlying security for us is mortgages over the customers’ residential or commercial property, any
significant decline in property prices can adversely affect our ability to realize the full value of loan collateral.
The following table sets forth our loan to value ratio for our home loans and loans against property at
origination, as at the dates indicated:

Average loan to As at |
value (at origination) | June 30, 2024 | June 30, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Home Loans® 69.3% 71.0% 70.5% 71.3% 71.1%
Loans against 53.0% 53.1% 55.1% 52.8% 56.6%
Property®

Notes

(1) Represents the average of Home Loan LTV for customer whose home loan is active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year,
weighted basis Home Loan value. LTV represents the ratio of total secured loans sanctioned to the customer against value of
collateral(s) mortgaged.

Represents the average of LAP LTV for customers whose LAP is active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year, weighted
basis LAP value. LTV represents the ratio of total secured loans sanctioned to the customer against value of collateral(s)
mortgaged.

@

For our developer financing, loans are given based on the amount of inventory in a project which is provided
as security by the developer. The following table sets forth our developer financing loans and percentage of
total AUM as at the dates indicated:

Z in millions, except percentages

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
AUM % of AUM % of AUM % of AUM % of AUM % of
total total total total total
AUM AUM AUM AUM AUM
Developer 108,459.6 11.2%| 61,918.0 8.4%| 95,993.3 10.5%| 56,693.2 8.2%| 28,987.0 5.4%
Finance
Loans

If any of the projects, which form part of our collateral for developer financing, are delayed for any reason,
it may affect our ability to enforce our security, thereby effectively diminishing the value of such security.
The following table sets forth our developer financing AUM for projects that have been delayed beyond the
date of completion as approved by RERA, along with the number of such projects, for the three months

ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 and last three fiscal years:

g in millions, except percentages
Particulars
Three months ended June 30, 2024 | Three months ended June 30, 2023
AUM Number of AUM Number of
Projects Projects
Delay in projects associated with 97.1 4 57.6 2
Developer Finance Loans
g in millions, except percentages
Particulars
Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
AUM Number of AUM Number of AUM Number of
Projects Projects Projects
Delay in projects associated with 351.1 7 114.2 6 56.9 3
Developer Finance Loans*

* Of these, during the disclosed financial period, Date of Commencement of Commercial Operations (DCCO) extension has been
granted in one instance in Fiscal 2023.

There can be no assurance that we will in the future be able to foreclose on collateral on a timely basis, or
atall, and if we are able to foreclose on the collateral, that the value will be sufficient to cover the outstanding
amounts owed to us. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition. Furthermore, if we are required to revalue a property which
serves as collateral for a loan during a period of reduced real estate prices or if we are required to increase
our provisions for loan losses, it could result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We may also not be able to realize the full value of loan collateral, due to, among others, delays in
foreclosure proceedings, which may be exacerbated by political instability in the states where we operate,
collateral claim issues, fraudulent transfers by customers and decreases in the value of collateral.
Foreclosure on collateral may also be subject to delays and administrative requirements that could result
in, or be accompanied by, a decrease in the value of the collateral. We may also encounter difficulties in
repossessing and liquidating collateral. For instance, when a customer defaults under a financing facility
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availed from us, after the initial measures to recover, we resort to repossession followed by sale of the
collateral through an auction process. While there have been instances in the past where there has been a
delay on foreclosure of loan collateral or where we have not been able to realize the full value of loan
collateral, these instances did not have any material adverse impact on the operations and financials of our
Company. The tables below outlines the number of such instances for the periods indicated:

Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 | Three months ended June 30, 2023
Number of instances of delay in 50 63
foreclosure of loan collateral

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Number of instances of delay in 195 235 692
foreclosure of loan collateral

However, we cannot assure you that similar instances in the future will not have a negative impact on us or
that we will be able to successfully repossess the collateral in the event of default under a loan agreement
and such inability may result in adverse effects on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
conditions.

If we are unable to control the level of Gross Non-Performing Assets/Stage 3 Assets in our portfolio
effectively or if we are unable to maintain adequate provisioning coverage or if there is any change
in regulatorily-mandated provisioning requirements, our financial condition and results of
operations could be adversely affected.

Various factors that are beyond our control, such as macro-economic factors and adverse regulatory
changes as well as customer-specific factors, such as willful default and mismanagement of a customer’s
operations, may cause a further increase in the level of GNPAs/Stage 3 Assets and have a material adverse
impact on the quality of our loan portfolio. Any increase in our GNPAs/Stage 3 Assets could adversely impact
our credit ratings and translate into an increase in our cost of funds. Furthermore, if the level of
GNPAs/Stage 3 ratio increases, we will have to increase our respective provisions accordingly. This could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
The following table sets forth our GNPA and NNPA ratios as at the dates indicated:

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
GNPA® NNPA® GNPA® NNPA® GNPA® NNPA® GNPA® NNPA® GNPA® NNPA®
Ratios 0.28% 0.11% 0.23% 0.08% 0.27% 0.10% 0.22% 0.08% 0.31% 0.14%
Notes

(1) Gross non-performing assets (GNPA) carrying value of stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant period/ fiscal year. GNPA
% is the ratio of Gross NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset as at the last day of the relevant period/ fiscal year.

(2) Net non-performing assets (NNPA) carrying value of stage 3 loan assets which is gross stage 3 loan assets reduced by
impairment allowances provided on stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant period/ fiscal year. NNPA % is the ratio of
Net NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets as at the last
day of the relevant period/ fiscal year.

For further details on product wise asset quality, see “Selected Statistical Information — Product wise Loan
Asset Quality” on page 298.

We are required to make provisions for Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) on all our loans outstanding on the
reporting date. The computation of ECL provisioning, is based on historical trends and macroeconomic
factors and we may make an error in computing historical loss and recovery trends. The estimates used in
computing variables for ECL may also undergo material change, which may have a significant impact on
the carrying values of our loans, impairment on financial instruments and a consequential impact on our
profitability, equity and capital to risk (weighted) assets ratio (“CRAR”).

The following table sets forth our Expected Credit Loss Provision (Stage 3), Provision Coverage Ratio and
CRAR as at the dates indicated:

Z in millions, except percentages

Particulars As at
June 30, June 30, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2022

Expected Credit Loss 1,402.3 999.0 1,374.4 873.4 794.7

Provision Ration (Stage

3)®

Provision Coverage 59.4% 65.9% 63.7% 63.6% 54.3%

Ratio®

CRAR®) 23.82% 22.52% 21.28% 22.97% 19.71%
Notes
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(1) Expected credit loss provision for the relevant year / period ended.

(2) Represents the ratio of impairment loss allowance provided on gross NPA to gross stage 3 loan assets.

(3) Capital Adequacy Ratio — CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | and Tier Il capital by total risk weighted assets, each as
computed in accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period.

For further details, see “Selected Statistical Information — Financial Metrics”, “Selected Statistical
Information — Capital To Risk (Weighted) Assets the ration (“CRAR”)” and “Selected Statistical Information
— ECL Provision” on pages 289, 293 and 298, respectively.

Higher Provision Coverage Ratio and ECL provisions signify a conservative approach to risk management,
indicating that we are setting aside more funds to cover potential future loan defaults. Conversely, a lower
provision can enhance immediate earnings; however, it exposes us to increased risk of insufficient coverage
in the event of higher than anticipated defaults, potentially affecting our financial condition. A higher CRAR
reflects a strong capital base relative to our risk-weighted asset exposures, underpinning our capacity to
absorb financial distress and maintain operational stability. However, CRAR below regulatory requirements
may entail regulatory concerns and potentially diminish investor confidence in our business, impacting our
ability to borrow funds, financial condition and prospects.

The RBI regulates some aspects of the recovery of dues from delinquent customers, such as the use of
recovery agents and the framework of compromise/settlement of dues with customers. Any limitation on our
ability to recover, control and/or reduce GNPA/Stage 3 Assets as a result of these guidelines or otherwise
could affect our collections and ability to foreclose existing GNPA/Stage 3 Assets. We may fail to accurately
categorize all loans that should be GNPA/Stage 3 Assets pursuant to RBI regulations, which may cause us
to under record our GNPA/Stage 3 Assets. We cannot assure you that our systems and processes will
always function appropriately or accurately categorize NPAs in a timely manner or at all, or that NPA
identification deficiencies will not arise in the future.

Additionally, since we have been identified and categorized as ‘Upper Layer’ NBFCs by the RBI under the
“Scale Based Regulations (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs” dated October 22, 2021,
since September 30, 2022, we are subject to certain additional provisioning requirements. For details, see
“Key Regulations and Policies” on page 243. If regulators, including RBI and NHB, continue to impose
increasingly stringent requirements regarding GNPAs/Stage 3 Assets and provisioning for such assets, the
level of GNPAs/Stage 3 Assets could increase, and the overall quality of our loan portfolio could deteriorate
which may have an adverse effect on our business, result of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

If we are unable to comply with the requirements stipulated by Reserve Bank of India, it could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are subject to regulations relating to the capital adequacy of HFCs, liquidity coverage and principal
business criteria ratios, as stipulated by the RBI from time to time.

Pursuant to the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2021 (“HFC Master Directions”), HFCs are required to comply with a capital to risk
(weighted) assets ratio, or CRAR, consisting of Tier | capital and Tier Il capital, which has been revised over
time, that collectively shall not be less than 15% of the HFC’s aggregate risk-weighted assets and the risk
adjusted value of off-balance sheet items on or before March 31, 2022, and thereafter, with a minimum
requirement of Tier | capital of not less than 10% on risk weighted assets. This ratio is used to measure an
HFC'’s capital strength and to promote stability and efficiency of the housing finance system. At a minimum, Tier
| capital of an HFC, at any point in time, cannot be less than 10%. Further, in relation to Principal Business
Criteria (“PBC”) ratio, the minimum regulatory percentage to be complied for housing loans and housing loans
to individuals as at March 31, 2024 was 60% and 50% respectively, as at March 31, 2023 was 55% and 45%,
respectively and as at March 31, 2022 was 50% and 40% respectively. Similarly, for LCR, HFCs are required
to maintain minimum LCR of 50% as on December 1, 2021 and it is gradually required to be increased to 100%
by December 1, 2025. HFCs are also required to maintain LCR of 70% as on March 31, 2023 and 85% as on
March 31, 2024 as per the Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale
Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

Further, the HFC Master Directions require all non-deposit taking HFCs with an asset size of ¥ 100,000 million
and above to maintain a minimum LCR of 85% by December 1, 2024, and 100% by December 1, 2025. In
addition, the HFC Master Directions require that a company, in order to be classified as an HFC, must inter alia
have at least 60% of its total assets (netted off by intangible assets) being comprised of financial assets in the
business of providing financing for housing. For further details, see “Offer Document Summary - Key Regulatory
Financial and Operational Ratios” and “Key Regulations and Policies” on pages 26 and 243, respectively.

A higher CRAR reflects a strong capital base relative to our risk-weighted asset exposures, underpinning our
capacity to absorb financial distress and maintain operational stability. However, a decline in CRAR may indicate
weakening capital adequacy, which may result in raising regulatory concerns and potentially diminishing
investor confidence in our business, financial condition and prospects.
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Tier | capital is a measure of financial health of the Company, and is the primary funding source of the Company
comprising of shareholders' equity and retained earnings which the Company utilizes to function on a daily
basis. The increase in Tier | Capital is primarily due to new equity infusions from our holding company, Baja;j
Finance Limited, and free reserves, which includes our profits. However, this capital is also adjusted downwards
by subtracting the value of intangible assets, unrealized gains and deferred revenue expenditures. Regulatory
requirements mandate us to maintain a minimum capital ratio consisting of Tier | and Tier Il capital of our
aggregate risk weighted assets and risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet items. Consequently, the Tier 1
Capital ratio may decrease with the accumulation of additional assets, such as increase in loan assets, and
increased off-balance sheet exposures, thereby impacting our ability to meet regulatory capital requirements.

LCR is one of the key parameters closely monitored by RBI to enable a more resilient financial sector. The
objective of the LCR is to promote an environment wherein balance sheet carry a strong liquidity for short term
cash flow requirements. The LCR is expected to improve the ability of financial sector to absorb the shocks
arising from financial and/or economic stress, thus reducing the risk of spill over from financial sector to real
economy.

Further, in order to classify as an HFC under the HFC Master Directions, our Company needs to satisfy the
requisite PBC criteria under the HFC Master Directions.

The following tables sets forth information relating to our CRAR, LCR and PBC ratios, as well as the minimum
regulatory requirements for the respective ratios, as at the dates indicated:

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
CRAR® Tier | LCR® PBC® CRAR® Tier | LCR® PBC®
Capital® Capital®

Company 23.82% 23.26% 101.91% 61.31% 22.52% 21.79% 183.42% 57.07%
Minimum 15% 10% 85% 60% 15% 10% 70% 55%
Regulatory
Requirement
Notes

(1) Capital Adequacy Ratio — CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | and Tier Il capital by total risk weighted assets, each as
computed in accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant fiscal year / period.

(2) Tier | Capital computed basis the method provided by the regulator as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period.

(3) Liquidity Coverage Ratio — ratio of stock of high quality liquid assets over total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days.

(4) Principal Business Criteria Ratio - ratio of financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing over total assets
(netted off by intangible assets).

Particulars As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
CRAR®W| Tier| LCR® [PBCY®|CRAR®| Tierl LCR® | PBC® |CRAR®| Tier | LCR® | PBC®
Capital® Capital® Capital®
Company 21.28% | 20.67% [192.31%(61.43%| 22.97% | 22.19% [149.72%[58.30%[19.71% | 18.95% [131.20%| 55.90%
Minimum 15% 10% 85% 60% 15% 10% 70% 55% 15% 10% 60% 50%
Regulatory
Requirement
Notes

(1) Capital Adequacy Ratio — CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | and Tier Il capital by total risk weighted assets, each as
computed in accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant fiscal year.

(2) Tier | Capital computed basis the method provided by the regulator as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year.

(3) Liquidity Coverage Ratio — ratio of stock of high quality liquid assets over total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days.

(4) Principal Business Criteria Ratio - ratio of financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing over total assets
(netted off by intangible assets).

For further details, see “Selected Statistical Information” on page 285.

Additionally, since we have been identified and categorized as ‘Upper Layer’ NBFCs by RBI under the “Scale
Based Regulations (SBR): A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs”, we are required to maintain, on an
on-going basis, a common equity tier | (CET-1) capital of 9.0% of our risk weighted assets. Furthermore,
pursuant to the RBI circular dated April 19, 2022 on “Large Exposures Framework for Non-Banking Financial
Company — Upper Layer (NBFC-UL)", certain limits have been exposed in relation to exposure values of
Upper Layer NBFCs (including HFCs) a single counter party and group of interconnected counter parties. In
terms of the RBI Master Directions — HFC, the sum of all exposure values of an NBFC to a single
counterparty and to connected counterparties must not be higher than 20% and 25%, respectively of the
NBFC’s available eligible capital base at all times, or up to 25% or 35%, respectively subject to certain
conditions. The RBI circular on “Provisioning for Standard assets by Non-Banking Financial Company —
Upper Layer” dated June 6, 2022 prescribes different rate of provisioning for different categories of standard
assets.
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While we have been in compliance with applicable regulatory ratio requirements including CRAR, LCR and
PBC in the past, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain our CRAR or other regulatory
ratios within the regulatory requirements and a failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. In particular, the regulator’s/supervisor’s
assessment of our capital adequacy and liquidity coverage requirements may differ from our own. Any
changes in the regulatory framework affecting HFCs or other financial services companies including the
provisioning for NPAs, or capital adequacy or liquidity requirements, or differences in interpretation of the
same, could adversely affect our profitability or our future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring
of our activities or an increase in our costs to comply with regulations applicable to us.

Furthermore, if we continue to grow, we will be required to raise additional Tier | capital and Tier Il capital
and fund our liquidity needs in order to continue to meet applicable regulatory requirements with respect to
our business. There can be no assurance that our Promoter or shareholders will approve additional
investments into our Company, or that we will be able to raise adequate additional capital in the future on
terms favourable to us, or at all. This could result in non-compliance with applicable regulatory requirements,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

Our assets under management are concentrated in four states and the union territory of New Delhi
and any adverse developments in these regions could have an adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our AUM are concentrated in Maharashtra, Karnataka, Telangana, Gujarat and the union territory of New
Delhi. The following table sets forth the AUM, disbursements and branches from/in these regions as at June
30, 2024:

(% in million, except percentages and branches)

State/ Union As at or for the year ended June 30, 2024
Territory AUM % of total AUM | Disbursements % of total Branches
Disbursements

Maharashtra 311,059.1 32.0% 42,960.5 35.8% 55
Karnataka 220,597.0 22.7% 25,377.7 21.1% 20
Telangana 143,253.9 14.8% 16,463.3 13.7% 12
Guijarat 78,472.6 8.1% 12,692.8 10.6% 29
New Delhi 73,619.3 7.6% 8,360.9 7.0% 6

Total 827,001.9 85.2% 105,855.2 88.2% 122
Gross Total 970,713.3 100.0% 120,035.1 100.0% 215

For details in relation to our state-wise mix of AUM, disbursements and branches, see “Selected Statistical
Information — State-wise Mix of AUM, Disbursements and Branches” on page 295. As at June 30, 2024, our
overall GNPA ratio was 0.28% and NNPA ratio was 0.11%. Further, the GNPA ratio and NNPA ratio
attributable to the top five regions, as at June 30, 2024 was 0.24% and 0.10%, respectively.

The real estate and housing finance markets in these states may perform differently from, and may be subject
to market conditions that are different from, the housing finance markets in other regions of India. Consequently,
any significant social, political or economic disruption, or natural calamities or civil disruptions in this region, or
changes in the policies of the state or local governments of these regions or the Government of India, could
disrupt our business operations, require us to incur significant expenditure and change our business strategies.
The occurrence of or our inability to effectively respond to any such event, could have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We have allotted Equity Shares to Bajaj Finance Limited, one of our Promoters, in Fiscal 2023 at a
price that will be lower than the Offer Price.

We have, in Fiscal 2023, allotted Equity Shares to Bajaj Finance Limited, one of our Promoters, at book
value of the Company which will be lower than the Offer Price. Set out below are the details of Equity Shares
allotted to Bajaj Finance Limited in Fiscal 2023:

Date of Number of Nature of Nature of Face Issue Percentage | Percentage

allotment/ | Equity Shares | transaction | consideration | value per price/ of the pre- | of the post-

transfer allotted/ Equity transfer Offer Offer Equity

transferred Share (%) | price per Equity Share
Equity Share capital (%)
Share () | capital (%)
April 7, 2022 | 1,828,822,235 | Allotment Cash 10 13.7 23.4 22.0

pursuant to
rights issue
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Our inability to comply with the financial and other covenants under our debt financing
arrangements could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

As at June 30, 2024, our total borrowings were ¥733,470.6 million, and in order to fund our business growth,
we will continue to incur additional indebtedness in the future. Total borrowings, which is a Non-GAAP
measure, is the aggregate of debt securities, subordinated liabilities and borrowings (other than debt
securities) and inter-corporate deposits/ deposits outstanding as at end of the relevant year. For details on
reconciliation of non-GAAP measures such as total borrowings, see “Selected Statistical Information —
Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Information” on page 302. Our ability to meet our debt
service obligations and repay our outstanding borrowings will depend primarily on the cash generated from
our business, which depends on the timely repayment by our customers.

Set forth below is a table of the aggregate borrowings of our Company, as on June 30, 2024:

(Z in millions, except for percentages)

Category of borrowing Sanctioned Amount* Outstanding Amount*
Amount Percentage of Amount Percentage of
total total
borrowings borrowings
Debt Securities
Secured redeemable non-convertible 255,020.0 28.7% 263,029.5 35.9%
securities**
Commercial papers 19,000.0 2.1% 18,385.0 2.5%
Partly paid unsecured redeemable non- 18,000.0 2.0% 12,931.6 1.8%
convertible securities**
Borrowings (other than debt securities)
Term loans from scheduled banks 479,500.0 53.9% 347,702.1 47.4%
Term loans from NHB 100,000.0 11.2% 87,985.3 12.0%
Inter-corporate deposits 1,859.3 0.2% 1,961.5 0.3%
Loans repayable on demand — cash credit / 15,750.0 1.8% 1,475.6 0.2%
working capital demand loan facilities
Total 889,129.3 100.0% 733,470.6 100.0%

*  As certified by the Statutory Auditors of our Company, pursuant to the certificate dated September 11, 2024.
**  Our non-convertible debentures are listed on the BSE.

Further, set out below are the details of our credit ratings for the last three Fiscals:

As at and for the
financial year ended
March 31, 2022

As at and for the
financial year ended
March 31, 2023

Sr.
No.

As at and for the
financial year ended
March 31, 2024

Particulars

Credit Rating
1 Non-Convertible  Debenture &
Subordinated debt (India Ratings)

IND AAA/Stable IND AAA/Stable IND AAA/Stable

Rating (CRISIL)

CRISIL A1+

CRISIL Al+

2 Long-Term Bank Rating/Short-|IND AAA(Stable) / IND |IND AAA(Stable) / IND |IND AAA(Stable) / IND
Term Bank Rating (India Ratings) |Al+ Al+ Al+

3 Commercial Paper (India Ratings) |IND Al+ IND Al+ IND A1+

4 Non-Convertible Debenture | CRISIL AAA/Stable CRISIL AAA/Stable CRISIL AAA/Stable
(CRISIL)

5 Subordinated debt (CRISIL) CRISIL AAA/Stable CRISIL AAA/Stable CRISIL AAA/Stable

6 Long-Term [/ Short-Term Bank|CRISIL AAA/(Stable) /| CRISIL AAA/(Stable) /|CRISIL AAA/(Stable) /

CRISIL A1+

7 Commercial Paper (CRISIL)

CRISIL A1+

CRISIL A1+

CRISIL A1+

There has been no change in our credit ratings as at and for the three months ended June 30, 2024. In the
event of any adverse changes in our credit rating, it may have an impact on our cost and quantum of
borrowings.

The table below sets out our average cost of borrowings as at June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023 and as at
March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

g in millions, except percentages

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 | June 30, 2023 March 31, March 31,
March 31, 2023 2022
2024
Average cost of borrowing?! 7.9% 7.6% 7.6% 6.7% 5.9%
Total outstanding borrowing 733,470.6 585,601.5 691,293.20 537,453.9 414,923.2

Notes
(1) Ratio of the finance cost to average borrowings for the relevant period/ fiscal year
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Some of the financing arrangements entered into by us include conditions / covenants that require us to
obtain lender consents prior to carrying out, inter alia, the following activities:

. to formulate or effect any scheme of amalgamation or merger or reconstruction;

. to undertake any activity other than the activities indicated in the objects clause of the memorandum
of association of our Company;

3 for any transfer of the controlling interest or the management set up of our Company;
. to undertake guarantee obligations on behalf of any other person;
. for declaring any dividend or distribution of profits, if any instalment towards principal or interest

remains unpaid on its due date; and
. to create encumbrance, lien or dispose of assets charged in favour of the lenders.

Under our financing agreements, we are required to maintain specific credit ratings and if we fail to do so,
it would result in an event of default. We are also required to maintain the value of our hypothecated assets,
financial ratios such as those pertaining to capital adequacy, NPA etc., and ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements such as maintenance of capital to risk assets ratios, qualifying asset norms and
ensuring positive net worth. Such covenants may restrict or delay certain actions or initiatives that we may
propose to undertake from time to time. Some of our financing agreements and instruments contain cross-
default and cross-acceleration clauses, which are triggered in the event of a default by us under our
respective financing agreements.

While no such instance has occurred in the past, a failure to observe the covenants under our financing
arrangements or to obtain necessary waivers may lead to the termination of our credit facilities, acceleration
of amounts due under such facilities and the enforcement of any security provided. If the obligations under
any of our financing documents are accelerated or any security created under such agreements enforced,
we may have to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flows towards payments under such financing
documents, thereby reducing the amounts available for business growth, working capital, capital
expenditure and general corporate purposes. In addition, we cannot assure you that our business will
generate sufficient cash to enable us to service our debt or to fund our other liquidity needs. We may also
need to refinance all or a portion of our debt on or before maturity. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to refinance any of our debt on commercially reasonable terms or at all. In the event any of these occur,
our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows may be adversely affected.

For further details on the aggregate borrowings of our Company along with principal terms and material
covenants of our outstanding borrowings, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 441. We do not expect a
breach of any such material terms or covenants under our loan documents as a result of the Offer. Further,
for the purpose of the Offer, our Company has made the required intimations to and obtained necessary
consents from our lenders under the relevant loan documents for undertaking activities relating to the Offer.

Our portfolio is significantly exposed to real estate and any significant downturn or any adverse
developments in the real estate sector may lead to an increase in impairment losses and adversely
affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. Further, we may not
be able to identify or correct defects or irregularities in title to the properties which are made
collateral to the loans offered by us to our customers or realize the loan amount from such
properties which may adversely affect our business.

The primary security for our mortgage business is the underlying property/ collateral. As a result, we depend
on the performance of the real estate sector in India and any decline in conditions of the real estate markets
could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
Economic developments within and outside India can adversely affect the real estate market in India. We
also provide retail home loans secured by properties under construction in residential real estate projects.
The execution of these projects may be subject to delays or disruptions due to regulatory actions,
unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of developers or failures in developers' execution. Such
interruptions could lead to incomplete construction of the properties, potentially impacting the ability of retail
home loan customers to service their loans effectively.

Deterioration in the residential and commercial real estate market may result in reversing the growth of our
loan accounts, which in turn could result in a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition. In addition, as the underlying security on these loans is primarily mortgages
or other form of security over the customers' other residential or commercial property, a significant portion of
our loans is exposed to events affecting the real estate sector. In the event of a significant decline in property
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prices or a defect in the title of the property, we may not be able to realize the value of the collateral or recover
the principal and interest in the event of a default. Furthermore, if any of the projects which form part of the
collateral are delayed for any reason, it may affect our ability to enforce the security, thereby effectively
diminishing the value of such security.

These factors can also adversely affect the demand for, and pricing of, our loan portfolio in the real estate
sector and may materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition. There can be no assurance that our real estate lending portfolio will grow, or will not decrease, in
the future. Any such reduction in demand could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows. In addition, for loans advanced in the real estate sector, our ability to receive
repayment and interest is dependent upon various factors, including the health of the overall economy, our
borrowers’ ability to repay and whether developers are able to complete their projects on time and on prevailing
real estate prices. These and other factors could lead to an increase in impairment losses and our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Property records in India are maintained at the state/district/local sub-registrar level and in local languages
and are updated manually through physical records and have not been fully digitized. Therefore, property
records may not be available online for inspection, may be illegible, untraceable, tampered and incomplete,
may not have been updated regularly, may be inaccurate in certain respects or may have been kept in poor
condition which may impede title investigations or our ability to rely on such property records. Title to land in
India is often fragmented, and in many cases, land may have multiple owners. Title may also suffer from
irregularities, such as non-execution or non-registration of conveyance/title deeds and inadequate stamping
and may be subjected to encumbrances that we are unaware of and that may not be apparent on the face of
the relevant documentation. Any defects in, or irregularities of, titte may result in a loss of development or
operating rights over the land, which may prejudice our ability to realize the loan amount extended to our
customers in case of a default in payment. This will compel us to write off such loans or litigate the cases with
a heavy cost and an indefinite time to resolution, which will adversely affect our revenues.

The following table sets forth the percentage of our portfolio secured by property as collateral for the period/
year indicated:

Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 Three months ended June 30, 2023
Percentage of portfolio secured by 97.9% 97.3%
property as collateral

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Percentage of portfolio secured by 97.8% 97.1% 96.6%

property as collateral

Furthermore, although we have procedures in place to identify defects or irregularities in title to the properties
which are made collateral to the loans offered by us to our customers, there is no mechanism to verify multiple
executions on the same day with different registrars or to verify the legitimacy of such executions. Whenever
a customer submits their original agreement to sell, the sale deed or any other title deed, we can only verify,
among other things, if the correct stamp duty has been paid, if the agreement to sell or the sale deed has been
signed by all parties, if there is a proper seal of registrar and if there is a registration receipt with the customer.
We also cannot immediately ascertain the legitimacy of the deed without obtaining a certified copy of the deed
from the relevant registrar office to verify its genuineness, and this involves cost and time since we are
compelled to rely on officials. Additionally, improperly executed, unregistered or insufficiently stamped
conveyance instruments in a property’s chain of title, unregistered encumbrances in favour of third parties,
rights of adverse possessors, ownership claims of family members of prior owners or third parties, or other
defects that a purchaser may not be aware of can affect title to a property. In each of Fiscal 2024 and Fiscal
2023, there was one instance of defect in the title of collateral provided to us. While these instances did not
have any material impact on our business and financial condition, there can be no assurance that such
instances may not arise in the future.

The Government of India established and operationalized the Central Registry of Securitization Asset
Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (“CERSAI’) on March 31, 2011, under the SARFAESI Act to
create a central database of all mortgages created by lending institutions. However, the management and
maintenance of this database is subject to the accuracy of descriptions of property submitted by borrowers
and set out in the relevant property deeds. Although data is required to be updated on the CERSAI portal,
potential disputes or claims over title to our mortgaged properties may arise. Moreover, an adverse decision
from a court or adjudicating agency may result in additional costs and delays in the realization of any
disbursement made by us. Any such disputes, whether resolved in our favour or not, may divert management's
attention, harm our reputation, and otherwise disrupt or adversely affect our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.
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We may be impacted by macroeconomic factors, including volatility in interest rates, which could
cause our Net Interest Income, Net Interest Margins and the value of our fixed income portfolio to
decline and adversely affect our profitability, business, results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition, including in the near-term.

As a mortgage business, our results of operations and profitability are impacted by macroeconomic factors.
In particular, our Net Interest Income is affected by changes in our spread and loan receivables which in
turn are impacted by changes in interest rates. The following tables sets forth our Net Interest Income and
Net Interest Margin for the period/ year indicated below:

Z in millions, except percentages

Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 | Three months ended June 30, 2023
Net Interest Income 6,647.8 6,048.0
Net Interest Margin 3.9% 4.4%
< in millions, except percentages
Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Net Interest Income 25,097.5 20,579.2 13,264.4
Net Interest Margin 4.1% 4.5% 4.0%

For reconciliation of these non-GAAP measures, see “Selected Statistical Information — Reconciliation of
GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Information” on page 302.

Interest rates are highly sensitive and volatility in interest rates could be a result of many factors, including
the monetary policies of the RBI, aggressive pricing by competitors, deregulation of the financial services
sector in India, domestic and international economic and political conditions, inflation and macro-economic
environment and economic policies in India.

We borrow on both fixed and floating interest rates and lend funds predominately on floating interest rates,

as set forth in the tables below:

Z in millions, except percentages

Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 | Three months ended June 30, 2023
Amount % of total loans Amount % of total loans
advanced advanced
Total loans advanced
° Fixed interest rate 1,826.1 0.2% 1,228.6 0.2%
. Floating interest rate 851,005.9 99.8% 662,116.3 99.8%
Total 852,832.0 100.0% 663,344.9 100.0%
< in millions, except percentages
Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Total loans advanced Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
loans loans loans
advanced advanced advanced
° Fixed interest rate 1,963.9 0.2% 3,278.8 0.5% 4,676.7 1.0%
° Floating interest rate 791,043.6 99.8% 617,860.1 99.5% 460,144.0 99.0%
Total 793,007.5 100.0% 621,138.9 100.0% 464,820.7 100.0%

Furthermore, the following table sets forth our borrowings exposure from fixed and floating interest rates for

the dates indicated:

g in millions, except percentages

Particulars As at June 30
2024 2023
Amount % of total Amount % of total
borrowings borrowings
Total borrowings
. Fixed interest rate 322,759.2 44.0% 248,667.7 42.5%
. Floating interest rate 410,711.4 56.0% 336,933.8 57.5%
Total 733,470.6 100.0% 585,601.5 100.0%
g in millions, except percentages
Particulars As at March 31
2024 2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
borrowings borrowings borrowings

Total borrowings
o Fixed interest rate 293,306.6 42.4% 216,684.0 40.3% 179,277.2 43.2%
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Particulars As at March 31
2024 2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
borrowings borrowings borrowings
o Floating interest rate 397,986.6 57.6% 320,769.9 59.7% 235,646.0 56.8%
Total 691,293.2| 100.0% 537,453.9| 100.0% 414,923.2| 100.0%

Majority of our loans are lent on floating interest rates, while a significant portion of borrowings are on fixed
interest rate basis, which exposes us to inherent interest rate risk. Consequently, we have executed hedging
strategies through tools like interest rate swaps for hedging fixed rate non-convertible debentures having
long term maturity (i.e., more than three years). If interest rate movement is not in an expected direction,
these hedging strategies may not yield desired results and may lead to adverse impact on our profitability
and financial condition. To the extent any of these instruments are not effective, we may not be able to
effectively mitigate our interest rate risk exposure. We diversify our borrowing mix across borrowing
instruments, tenors and a combination of fixed and floating borrowings in an attempt to match the mix of
our loan book with the tenors of such loans to try and ensure that there are no imbalances or excessive
concentrations on either side of the balance sheet. While we have not faced instances of imbalance or
excessive concentrations on either side of the balance sheet or breached regulatory permissible limits for
any extended period of time in the past, there can be no assurance that we will be able to adequately
manage our interest rate risk in the future, including in the near-term, which could have an adverse effect
on our Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin and could, in turn, have an adverse effect on our
profitability, business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. The following table sets forth
our gains/losses on account of using these hedging instruments for the periods indicated:

Z in millions
Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 Three months ended June 30, 2023
Gains/(Losses) (6.0) (1.6)
< in millions
Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Gains/(Losses) (44.6) (0.2) Nil®
Notes

(1) The Company did not enter any hedging instruments in Fiscal 2022.

Our ability to manage our interest rate risk and mismatches between our assets and liabilities adequately
is critical to our business and results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. We monitor our
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and the related liquidity risk primarily by categorizing our assets
and liabilities in different maturity profiles (based on the behavioral maturities pattern) and evaluating them
for mismatches across periods.

In a rising interest rate environment, if our interest-earning assets’ yield doesn't match the increase in our cost
of funds, and conversely, in a falling interest rate environment, if our cost of funds does not decrease as our
assets’ yield does, our Net Interest Income and Net Interest Margin could suffer. Competitive pressures may
force us to lower lending rates without similar reductions in borrowing rates. While we can pass on lower
borrowing rates to our customers, we may not be able to increase rates for customers with fixed-rate loans.
Additionally, customers may prepay loans to capitalize on lower rates, and if we raise rates, customers with
floating-rate loans may prepay their loans to seek cheaper options from other sources.

Our Company has availed borrowings from a number of related parties and there can be no
assurance that we could not have achieved more favourable terms if such transactions had not been
entered into with such related parties.

Our Company has availed borrowings, in the form of both secured and unsecured NCDs issued to a number
of related parties. Our NCDs have a maturity period that typically lasts two years to 15 years, and have
interest rates ranging from 5.7% to 8.1% per annum, as of June 30, 2024. The redemption period for our
NCDs ranges from two years to 15 years. For further information on our transactions with related parties
concerning these non-convertible debentures, see “Restated Financial Information — Note 43: Disclosure of
transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24” on page 361. For further details on our financial
indebtedness and covenants applicable to us, see “Financial Indebtedness” on page 441.

While all such transactions have been conducted in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length
basis, in accordance with our related party transactions policy, applicable provisions of the Companies Act
and contain commercially reasonable terms, we cannot assure you that we could not have achieved more
favourable terms had such transactions been entered into with unrelated parties.

The following table sets forth our borrowing yield for borrowings from related parties and percentage of total
borrowings as at the dates indicated:
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Particulars As at |
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Borrowing | % of total | Borrowing | % of total | Borrowing | % of total | Borrowing | % of total | Borrowing | % of total
Yield borrowings Yield borrowings Yield borrowings Yield borrowings Yield borrowings
Borrowings 7.9% 2.7% 7.3% 2.8% 7.5% 2.5% 7.3% 3.0% 7.1% 2.8%
from
related
parties

Further, any transactions with related parties in future may give rise to conflicts of interest with respect to
dealings between us and such related parties. Additionally, while no such instance has occurred in the past,
there can be no assurance that any dispute that may arise between us and related parties will be resolved
in our favour.

We are party to certain legal proceedings and any adverse outcome in these or other proceedings
may adversely affect our business.

We are involved, from time to time, in legal proceedings that are incidental to our operations and these
involve proceedings filed by and against us. These include among others, (i) criminal proceedings against
us including, inter alia, proceedings in relation to allegations of forgery, increase in fees and interest rates,
fabrication of documents as well as directions to our Company to produce certain information and
documents; (ii) criminal proceedings filed by us; (iii) civil proceedings, (iv) tax proceedings, (v) criminal
complaints filed by us under the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 and (vi) applications under the
Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act, 2002
(“SARFAESI Act”) challenging proceedings adopted by us towards enforcement of security interests. These
proceedings are pending at different levels of adjudication before various authorities. A significant degree
of judgment is required to assess our exposure in these proceedings and determine the appropriate level
of provisions, if any. There can be no assurance on the outcome of legal proceedings or that the provisions
we make will be adequate to cover all losses we may incur in such proceedings, or that our actual liability
will be as reflected in any provision that we have made in connection with any such legal proceedings. As
on the date of this Prospectus, we do not expect any litigations against us to have a material impact on our
profitability or capital adequacy.

The summary of outstanding matters set out below includes details of criminal proceedings, tax proceedings,
statutory and regulatory actions and other material pending litigation involving our Company, Directors and
Promoters. According to the materiality policy adopted by the Board pursuant to a resolution dated June 7,
2024, all outstanding litigation involving the Company and its Directors other than criminal proceedings, tax
proceedings (direct or indirect) and actions by statutory or regulatory actions, would be considered material if
the monetary amount of claim by or against such entity or person in any such pending matter is in excess of
%616.4 million. Further, all outstanding litigation involving the Promoters other than criminal proceedings, tax
proceedings (direct or indirect), actions by statutory or regulatory actions and disciplinary actions including any
penalty imposed by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters in the last five financial years including
any outstanding actions, would be considered material if the monetary amount of claim by or against the
Promoters in any such pending matter is in excess of ¥5,497.8 million or ¥6,019.7 million in case of Bajaj
Finance Limited and Bajaj Finserv Limited respectively. Further, pending litigations where the decision in one
litigation is likely to affect the decision in similar litigations, even though the amount involved in an individual
litigation may not exceed the respective materiality thresholds set out above, or if an adverse outcome of any
outstanding litigation which may not meet the respective monetary thresholds above for the Company and
Promoters, or wherein the monetary liability is not quantifiable, but where an adverse outcome could materially
and adversely affect our business, operations, financial position, reputation or prospects is also considered
material.

Category of Criminal Tax Statutory or Disciplinary Material Aggregate
individuals / proceedings | proceedings regulatory | actions by SEBI civil amount
entities proceedings or Stock litigation |involved (% in
Exchanges million)®
against our
Promoters in
the last five
financial years,
including
outstanding
action
Company
Against the 23 10 Nil N.A. Nil 211.2
Company
By the Company 1,647 N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil 6,432.22
Directors
Against the 180 Nil Nil N.A. Nil -
Directors
By the Directors Nil N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil -
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Category of Criminal Tax Statutory or Disciplinary Material Aggregate
individuals / proceedings | proceedings regulatory | actions by SEBI civil amount
entities proceedings or Stock litigation |involved (¥ in
Exchanges million)®
against our
Promoters in
the last five
financial years,
including
outstanding
action
Promoters
Against 49 69 Nil 1 2 41,705.5
Promoters
By Promoters 172,919 N.A. N.A. N.A. Nil 3,116.1®

(1) To the extent ascertainable and quantifiable.

(2) This includes the aggregate amount of ¥ 6,432.2 million involving 2,115 proceedings initiated by our Company under the
SARFAESI Act.

(3) This includes matters where the Directors have been impleaded along with our Company.

(4) This includes the aggregate amount of ¥ 1,424 .6 million involving 627 proceedings initiated by Bajaj Finance Limited under the
SARFAESI Act.

Thefe can be no assurance that any of the outstanding litigation matters will be adjudicated in favour of our
Company, Directors and Promoters or that no additional liability will arise out of these proceedings.

We may be required to devote management and financial resources in the defence or prosecution of such
legal proceedings. If a significant number of these disputes are determined against us and if we are required
to pay all or a portion of the disputed amounts or if we are unable to recover amounts for which we have
filed recovery proceedings, there could be a material and adverse impact on our reputation, business,
financial condition, cash flows and results of operations. For details in relation to the proceedings involving
our Company, Directors and Promoters, see "Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” beginning
on page 444.

Certain of our Promoter Group entities, Group Companies and Directors are engaged in businesses
similar to ours and this may result in conflict of interest with us.

Certain of our Promoter Group entities and Group Companies namely Bajaj Finance Limited is engaged in
the business of loans against property (“LAP”). Similarly, Bajaj Finance Limited, Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited,
as well as our Company have been provided registration certificates as corporate agents by the IRDAI,
respectively. Further, certain of our Directors, namely Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Anami Narayan Roy
and Dr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya are on the board of directors of Bajaj Finance Limited which is
engaged in similar lines of business as our Company. As these entities are in similar lines of business, there
can be no assurance that conflicts of interest will not occur between our business and the businesses of
such entities, which could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, cash flows and results
of operations.

We may face interest rate and maturity mismatches between our assets and liabilities in the future,
including in the near term, which may cause liquidity concerns. Further, if we are unable to secure
funding on acceptable terms and at competitive rates when needed, it could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We face potential liquidity risks due to mismatches in the maturity of our assets and liabilities. Such
mismatches, where the maturity of assets and liabilities do not match, are a key financial risk for us. Asset
liability management is typical for a company in the business of lending, as some portion of our funding
requirements is also met through short and medium-term funding sources such as commercial paper, cash
credit or overdraft facilities. However, a significant portion of our assets (such as loans to our customers)
have maturities with longer terms than our borrowings. Our inability to obtain additional credit facilities or
renew our existing credit facilities for matching the tenure of our liabilities in a timely and cost-effective
manner or at all, may lead to mismatches between our assets and liabilities, which in turn may adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition. The following table sets forth the maturity patterns
of certain items of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2024:

Z in million and except percentages

As at June 30, 2024
lto7 8to 14 15to |Over one| Over2 Over 3 Over 6 Over one | Over3to5 Over 5 Total
days days 30/31 [month to|months to |months to [ months to| year to 3 years years
days 2 3 months | 6 months | one year years
months

Cash, Cash| 3,072.7 0.2| 1,991.1| 1,484.6 - 1,055.7| 14,478.2 0.3 5,046.4 - 27,129.2
equivalents
and
investments
Advances 8,650.1| 10,579.3| 8,267.9] 16,385.1| 17,789.2| 45,851.4| 80,200.3| 233,725.9| 144,247.1 287,135.7 852,832.0
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As at June 30, 2024
1to7 8to 14 15to |Overone| Over2 Over 3 Over 6 Over one | Over 3to5 Over 5 Total
days days 30/31 |[month to|months to | months to|months to| year to 3 years years
days 2 3 months | 6 months | one year years
months
Other inflows | 4,750.0| 11,250.0| 8,342.4 663.6 8,396.9 9,109.2| 37,547.8 58,311.8 28,499.3 112,327.3 279,198.3
Total Inflows| 16,472.8| 21,829.5| 18,601.4| 18,533.3| 26,186.1| 56,016.3| 132,226.3 292,038.0 177,792.8 399,463.0| 1,159,159.5
(A)
Cumulative | 16,472.8| 38,302.3| 56,903.7| 75,437.0| 101,623.1| 157,639.4| 289,865.7 581,903.7 759,696.5| 1,159,159.5
Total Inflows
(B)
Borrowings 3,598.4| 11,076.2| 9,313.6] 6,493.8] 14,428.3| 22,374.5| 61,2153 311,230.3 178,140.2 115,600.0 733,470.6
Total Equity - - - - - - - - 147,199.1 147,199.1
Other 5,727.0| 9,423.3| 8,644.9| 8,723.9| 10,564.0( 27,829.8| 70,660.5 96,063.9 4,570.7 36,281.8 278,489.8
outflows
Total 9,325.4| 20,499.5| 17,958.5| 15,217.7| 24,992.3| 50,204.3| 131,875.8| 407,294.2| 182,710.9 299,080.9| 1,159,159.5
Outflows (C)
Cumulative 9,325.4| 29,824.9| 47,783.4| 63,001.1| 87,993.4| 138,197.7| 270,073.5| 677,367.7| 860,078.6| 1,159,159.5
Total
Outflows (D)
Gap (E=A-C) 7,147.4] 1,330.0 642.9| 3,315.6 1,193.8 5,812.0 350.5| (115,256.2) (4,918.1) 100,382.1
Cumulative 7,147.4| 8,477.4| 9,120.3| 12,435.9| 13,629.7| 19,441.7| 19,792.2| (95,464.0)| (100,382.1) -
Gap (F=B-D)
Cumulative 76.6% 28.4% 19.1% 19.7% 15.5% 14.1% 7.3% (14.1)% 11.7)% 0.0%
Gap as a %
(F/D)
Regulatory (10%) (10%) (20%) -
Permissible
Limits

We have not had any instances of breach of regulatory permissible limits in the past.

Furthermore, we face potential liquidity risks due to interest rate mismatches between our assets and
liabilities. The following table sets forth our borrowings exposure from fixed and floating interest rates as at
the dates indicated:

< in million and except percentages

Particulars As at June 30
2024 2023
Amount % of total Amount % of total
borrowings borrowings
Total borrowings
Fixed interest rate 322,759.2 44.0% 248,667.7 42.5%
Average yield 7.6% - 6.9% -
Floating interest rate 410,711.4 56.0% 336,933.8 57.5%
Average yield 8.0% - 8.1% -
Z in million and except percentages
Particulars As at March 31
2024 2023 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
borrowings borrowings borrowings

Total borrowings
Fixed interest rate 293,606.6 42.4% 216,684.0 40.3% 179,277.2 43.2%
Average yield 7.2% - 5.9% - 5.2% -
Floating interest rate 397,986.6 57.6% 320,769.9 59.7% 235,646.0 56.8%
Average vyield 7.9% - 7.3% - 6.4% -

We continue to cater to our liquidity needs and maintain adequate sources of funding for business growth
through short-term cash and current investments including short term bank deposits, liquid mutual fund,
government securities, T-bills, short-term overdraft facilities and cash credit facilities. For details on our
interest rate sensitivity analysis, see “Restated Financial Information — Note 50: Risk management
objectives and policies — Interest rate risk” on page 366.

Furthermore, our business is highly dependent upon our timely access to, and the costs associated with,
debt. We rely on a combination of sources to meet our funding requirements. These include term loans,
cash credit, overdraft from banks and certain financial institutions, issuance of secured and unsecured non-
convertible debentures and issue of commercial papers, as well as assignment of some of our loan portfolio.
We also received approval from the NHB under the NHB’s Refinance Scheme. Till June 30, 2024, our
Company has received a sanctioned amount aggregating to ¥100,000.0 million from the NHB under various
schemes including its ‘Affordable Housing Fund’, of which our Company has availed ¥93,973.8 million.
Facilities under ‘Affordable Housing Fund ’ have a door-to-door maturity of seven years and have fixed
interest rate and the rest of the funds have been availed at floating rate of interest with door-to-door tenor
of 10 years. Our total borrowings were %733,470.6 million as at June 30, 2024, with bank borrowings, NCD,
NHB refinance, commercial paper and inter-corporate deposit representing 47.6%, 37.6%, 12.0%, 2.5%
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and 0.3% of such amount, respectively. For further details on our borrowing portfolio, see “Our Business —
Strengths — Access to diversified and cost-effective borrowing sources facilitated by the highest possible
credit ratings from rating agencies” on page 228. Our business will continue to depend on our ability to
access diversified borrowings from within and outside India. Our ability to borrow on acceptable terms and
at competitive rates continues to depend on various factors, including, but not limited to, (i) our credit ratings;
(i) policy initiatives and the regulatory environment; (iii) liquidity in the markets; (iv) the attractiveness of
debt of our Company to investors and lenders; and (v) our current and future results of operations and
financial condition.There can be no assurance of our ability to secure funding at attractive rates or our ability
to adequately manage our interest rate risk in the future, including in the near-term. While we have not faced
such instances in the past, if we are unable to obtain new credit or extend our current credit lines on time
and at an affordable cost, our liquidity and financial results could suffer. Further, if we are unable to borrow
funds in the amounts we require on acceptable terms and at competitive rates, it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Also, since our loans typically have long duration, economic fluctuations could pose risks to us. An increase
in late payments from our borrowers, or difficulty in selling investments quickly at a fair price, could adversely
affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We depend on an external distribution network for referrals of a certain portion of our customers
and this external distribution network does not work exclusively for us.

We rely on an external distribution network of intermediaries like channel partners, aggregators, direct
selling agents (“DSAs”), third party agents and connectors, often individual proprietors and self-employed
professionals for various tasks. These include attracting potential customers, collecting loan applications,
marketing our financial products, and coordinating with our approved developers and builders to offer
suitable options to potential customers based on their financial needs. The following tables set forth the
home loans origination (along with percentage of total origination) sourced through intermediary channels
and the commission paid to them in the periods indicated:

< in millions, except percentages

Particulars Three months ended June 30, Three months ended June 30,
2024 2023
Home loan origination through 25,350.1 18,441.1
intermediary channels
Percentage of home loans origination 43.1% 39.1%
through intermediary channels
Commission paid to intermediaries 262.1 2111

g in millions, except percentages

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Home loan origination through 80,829.9 69,809.6 70,727.9
intermediary channels
Percentage of home loans origination 37.9% 41.9% 46.1%
through intermediary channels
Commission paid to intermediaries 848.0 713.2 322.1

The contracts with these intermediaries are typically non-exclusive. Further, the compensation we provide
to them are variable and based on the commercial terms and targets agreed upon with each intermediary.
There can be no assurance that this external distribution network will consistently bring us a significant
number of customers or meet the monthly or similar periodic targets set in their contracts. As at June 30,
2024, we had 1,780 active intermediaries through such external distribution network. The loss of this
network or inability to renew the contracts with these intermediaries or non-exclusive nature of their services
may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We rely on the accuracy and completeness of information about customers and counterparties. Any
misrepresentation, errors or incompleteness of such information could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter into other transactions with customers and counterparties, we
may rely on information furnished to us by or on behalf of customers and counterparties, including personal
information, financial statements and other financial information. We may also rely on certain
representations as to the accuracy and completeness of that information and, with respect to financial
statements, on reports of independent auditors of customers and counterparties. We also depend on credit
bureaus for checking the creditworthiness of our customers. Sometimes, we may receive inaccurate or
incomplete information as a result of negligence or fraudulent misrepresentation and our risk management
measures may not be adequate to detect or prevent such activities in all cases. Difficulties in assessing
credit risks associated with our day-to-day lending operations may lead to an increase in the level of our
non-performing and restructured assets, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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Our debt securities are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange, and we are subject to strict regulatory
requirements with respect to such listed debt securities. Our inability to comply with or any delay
in compliance with such laws and regulations may have an adverse effect on our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our debt securities are listed on the debt segment of BSE. We are required to comply with various applicable
rules and regulations including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 and SEBI Listing Regulations in terms of our listed debt securities. In the
event of non-compliance with such rules and regulations, we may be subject to certain penal actions, inter
alia, including restrictions on further issuance of securities and freezing of transfer of securities. Our inability
to comply with or any delay in compliance with such rules and regulations may have an adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. For instance, BSE observed that our
Company had not complied with Regulation 60(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations for the Fiscal 2024 and
imposed a penalty of ¥ 10,000 (excluding taxes), which was subsequently paid off by our Company. For
further details of our debt securities, see “Financial Statements — Restated Financial Information — Note 16:
Debt Securities” on page 344. Apart from this, there are no non-compliances with BSE in the three months
ended June 30, 2024, Fiscals 2024, 2023 and 2022.

A majority of our retail home loan portfolio may be adversely affected by various factors such as
business failure, insolvency, lack of liquidity, loss of employment or personal emergencies of our
customers. These factors could lead to increased customer defaults, leading to an increase in the
levels of our non-performing assets and possible fall in the rate of loan portfolio expansion.

Our portfolio of products primarily consists of retail loans, which include a range of individual housing loans
and loans against property. The following table sets forth the percentage split in our retail home loan portfolio
between (a) salaried; (b) self-employed professional customers; and (c) self-employed non-professional
customers as at the dates indicated:

Home loan As at
portfolio June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022

Salaried 86.7% 90.2% 87.5% 90.5% 90.0%
Self-employed 4.1% 5.0% 4.3% 5.2% 5.1%
professional
customers
Self-employed 9.2% 4.8% 8.2% 4.3% 4.9%
non-professional
customers

For further details on home loans AUM by salary status, see “Selected Statistical Information — Home Loans
AUM by Customer Segmentation” on page 299.

The following table sets forth our GNPA and NNPA ratios of the salaried customers segment within our
home loan portfolio as at the dates indicated:

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
GNPA® | NNPA® | GNPA®D | NNPA® | GNPA® | NNPA® | GNPA® | NNPA® | GNPAW | NNPA®
Salaried 0.23% 0.10% 0.18% 0.07% 0.23% 0.09% 0.16% 0.06% 0.22% 0.09%
Notes

(1) Gross non-performing assets (GNPA) carrying value of stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant period/ fiscal year. GNPA
% is the ratio of Gross NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset as at the last day of the relevant period/ fiscal year

(2) Net non-performing assets (NNPA) carrying value of stage 3 loan assets which is gross stage 3 loan assets reduced by
impairment allowances provided on stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant period/ fiscal year. NNPA % is the Ratio of
Net NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets as at the last
day of the relevant period/ fiscal year.

In particular, self-employed non-professional customers are often considered to be higher credit risk
customers due to their potential to be more exposed to fluctuations in cash flows from income, business
failure, insolvency and their increased exposure to adverse economic conditions generally, death or
permanent incapacitation. To the extent we are not able to successfully manage the risks associated with
lending to these customers, it may become difficult for us to make recoveries on these loans. Salaried
customers may also be adversely affected by various factors such as lack of liquidity, recession in the
industry, loss of employment or personal emergencies, death or permanent incapacitation. We also face
the risk associated with insufficient coverage of credit-linked insurance for life, property, or in cases of
permanent incapacity. The lower insurance coverage amount may adversely impact our ability to fully
recover loan exposures.

Furthermore, we may experience higher delinquency rates due to prolonged adverse economic conditions or
a sharp increase in interest rates, which could also lead to an increase in the levels of our non-performing
assets and possible decline in the rate of loan portfolio expansion. An increase in delinquency rates could result
in a reduction in our interest income and as a result, lower revenue from our operations, while increasing costs
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as a result of the increased expenses required to service and collect delinquent loans. This may have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

In relation to our retail loan portfolio, we may also engage in co-origination arrangements with other HFCs,
NBFCs and banks. Under such co-origination agreements, while the senior lender sources and services the
customers, the underwriting responsibilities are independently undertaken by both entities involved, thus
sharing risks and returns in proportion to their respective loan contributions. Further, both entities adhere to
relevant regulatory requirements and exercise due diligence in sanctioning and fulfilling obligations
associated with these loans. These arrangements expose us to increased credit risk and dependency on
the financial health and practices of third-party lenders. While there has been no such instance in the past,
failure by these partners to adhere to agreed-upon lending standards or regulatory requirements could lead
to higher loan defaults and potential disputes, adversely affecting our results of operation, financial condition
and reputation in the market. Additionally, any significant changes in regulatory frameworks governing co-
origination practices could impose new compliance challenges, further impacting our operational flexibility
and profitability.

We are subject to periodic inspections by the National Housing Bank. Non-compliance with
observations made during any such inspections could result in penalties and fines, and could
adversely affect our reputation, business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We are subject to periodic inspections by the National Housing Bank (“NHB”) of our books of accounts,
processes, policies and other records for the purpose of verifying the correctness or completeness of any
statement, information or particulars furnished to the NHB or for obtaining any information, which we may
have failed to furnish when called upon to do so.

The NHB, in its past inspection reports for the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021, has observed, inter alia, that: (a)
our Company did not meet the principal business criteria ratio as provided under the RBI Master Circular —
HFC in Fiscal 2021; (b) certain clauses in our standard loan agreements and the developers’ marketing
brochures were not in compliance with the provisions of RBI Master Circular — HFC; and (c) our classification
of certain loan accounts were not in compliance with the requirements prescribed under the RBI Master
Circular — HFC; (d) inadequate staffing of the internal audit team, (e) documentation gaps as evidenced in
loan samples; (f) loan tenure and its impact on the expected credit loss model of our Company; and (g)
constitution and operations of the Board committees. We have submitted our response to the aforesaid
observations on January 11, 2024, March 18, 2023, and July 7, 2022, respectively to the observations received
from NHB for Fiscals 2023, 2022, and 2021 and have complied with all observations during the inspections.
Further to our letter dated January 11, 2024, we have, on September 11, 2024, received a letter dated
September 9, 2024 from the NHB, pursuant to which the NHB has advised us to, inter alia, (a) obtain prior
written permission from the RBI for any change in our management resulting in more than 30% change in our
Board, excluding independent directors, (b) ensure that there are no floor space index violations in the cases
onboarded in the future, (c) prescribe a timeline for defining the maximum residual loan tenure and
subsequently review certain cases with a loan tenure of over 30 years and (d) ensure continuous compliance
with the directions/guidelines etc., as applicable. For details on our principal business criteria ratios for Fiscals
2023, 2022 and 2021, see “Restated Financial Information — 53.1 Principal Business Criteria” on page 378.

If we are unable to comply with the observations made by the NHB or comply with the NHB's policies and
directions, we could be subject to penalties and restrictions which may be imposed by the RBI. For instance, in
the Fiscals 2023 and 2022, NHB had observed that Atul Jain, was inducted into the Board of our Company as
an additional director with effect from May 1, 2022, without obtaining prior permission from the RBI, as required
under paragraphs 2, 45.3 and 46.1 of the RBI Master Directions — HFC. We subsequently submitted our
response to the NHB submitting that the appointment of Atul Jain to the Board of our Company did not result in
any change in management of the Company since he was our chief executive officer prior to the change in
designation as a managing director, and hence, there was no change in management of our Company, and
therefore, the requirement of obtaining prior permission from RBI under paragraph 45.3 of the RBI Master
Directions — HFC did not stand triggered. However, we received a show cause notice from RBI on August 2,
2023, under Sections 30A, 49(3)(aa), and 52A of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987, pertaining to the
appointment of Atul Jain as the Managing Director of our Company without prior permission of the RBI. We
responded to the aforesaid show cause notice of RBI on August 7, 2023, with similar submissions as our
response to the NHB on the subject. Thereafter, the RBI imposed a penalty of 0.5 million upon us pursuant
to its order dated February 2, 2024, for the appointment of Atul Jain as Managing Director of our Company
without prior permission from the RBI, which we remitted on February 3, 2024. Further, the NHB in the past
has also imposed penalties of 5,000 and 50,000 on November 6, 2019 and September 1, 2020,
respectively, for the contravention of provisions of the National Housing Finance Directions, 2010 by our
Company in relation to its issuances of non-convertible debentures on a private placement basis.

While we have responded to the letters and show cause notices issued against us by NHB in the past, we
cannot assure you that there will be no further action by the NHB or the RBI in the future. Our Company
was last subject to inspection by the NHB in October 2023 and we may receive further observations from
them in the future. Any further imposition of penalty or adverse findings by the NHB or the RBI during any
future inspections or otherwise may have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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Our funding requirements and deployment of the Net Proceeds of the Offer are based on
management estimates and have not been independently appraised. Any variation in the utilisation
of the Net Proceeds would be subject to certain compliance requirements, including prior
Shareholders’ approval.

We propose to utilise the Net Proceeds towards augmenting our capital base to meet future business
requirements of our Company towards onward lending. For further information of the proposed objects of
the Offer, see “Objects of the Offer’ on page 110. At this stage, we cannot determine with any certainty if
we would require the Net Proceeds to meet any other expenditure or fund any exigencies arising out of
competitive environment, business conditions, economic conditions or other factors beyond our control.
Further, while our Company will receive proceeds from the Fresh Issue, it will not receive any proceeds
from the Offer for Sale. In accordance with Sections 13(8) and 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, we cannot
undertake any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds without obtaining shareholders’ approval
through a special resolution. In the event of any such circumstances that require us to undertake variation
in the disclosed utilisation of the Net Proceeds, we may not be able to obtain shareholders’ approval in a
timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability to obtain such shareholders’ approval may adversely affect
our business or operations.

Further, our Promoters would be required to provide an exit opportunity to Shareholders who do not agree
with our proposal to change the objects of the Offer or vary the terms of such contracts, at a price and in
such manner as prescribed by SEBI. Additionally, the requirement on our Promoters to provide an exit
opportunity to such dissenting Shareholders may deter our Promoters from agreeing to the variation of the
proposed utilisation of the Net Proceeds, even if such variation is in the interests of our Company. Further,
our Promoters may not have adequate resources at their disposal at all times to enable them to provide an
exit opportunity at the price prescribed by SEBI.

In light of these factors, we may not be able to undertake variation of the objects of the Offer to use any
unutilised proceeds of the Offer, if any, or vary the terms of any contract referred to in this Prospectus, even
if such variation is in the interests of our Company. This may restrict our Company’s ability to respond to
any change in our business or financial condition by re-deploying the unutilised portion of Net Proceeds, if
any, or varying the terms of contract, which may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Subject to compliance with requirements under the Companies Act, the SEBI ICDR Regulations, and other
applicable laws, our planned use of the proceeds of the Offer may change. These are based on current
conditions and are subject to change in light of changes in external circumstances or costs or in other
financial conditions or our business strategy. Further, our funding requirements and deployment of the Net
Proceeds are based on internal management estimates based on current market conditions and have not
been appraised by any bank or financial institution or other independent agency. Furthermore, in the
absence of such independent appraisal, our funding requirements may be subject to change based on
various factors which are beyond our control such as interest or exchange rate fluctuations, among others.
The deployment of the Net Proceeds will be at the discretion of our Board, subject to applicable laws and
regulations. However, the deployment of the Net Proceeds will be monitored by the Monitoring Agency.
Accordingly, prospective investors in the Issue will need to rely upon our management’s judgment with
respect to the use of the Net Proceeds. For details, see “Objects of the Offer” on page 110.

We are exposed to risks related to concentration of loans to certain customers. As at June 30, 2024,
loans to our top 10 and 20 largest customers amounted to 6.2% and 8.8% of our total outstanding
loans.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain historic levels of business from our top 10 and top
20 customers, or that we will be able to significantly reduce customer concentration in our loan book in the
future. While no such instance has occurred in the past, a significant decrease in business from any such
customer, whether due to circumstances specific to such customer, or sharp increase in interest rates or
the real estate environment generally, may materially and adversely affect our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition. The following table sets forth the percentage of loans
outstanding to our top 10 and top 20 customers, as at the dates indicated:

< in millions, except percentages

Particulars As at

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

Loans to top 10

Loans to top 20

Loans to top 10

Loans to top 20

outstanding

customers customers customers customers
Percentage of 6.2% 8.8% 7.5% 10.1%
total loans
outstanding
Amount 53,207.7 75,309.6 49,961.2 67,366.8
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< in millions, except percentages

Particulars As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Loans to top | Loans to top | Loans to top | Loans to top | Loans to top | Loans to top
10 customers | 20 customers | 10 customers | 20 customers | 10 customers | 20 customers

Percentage of 6.1% 8.5% 6.5% 9.0% 6.1% 8.5%
total loans

outstanding

Amount 48,716.3 67,961.8 40,713.1 56,132.3 28,582.4 39,802.9

outstanding

Our top 20 customers for each of the periods as indicated above are either customers of lease rental
discounting and/ or developer financing loans. Further, our top five customers include lease rental
discounting and/or developer financing customers and are each rated A+ and above by rating agencies.

If the loans to any of these customers becomes non-performing, we cannot assure you to make full
recoveries on these loans and consequently it could result in deterioration of the credit quality of our loan
portfolio. In addition, an increase in delinquency rates could result in a reduction in our interest income and
as a result, lower revenue from our operations, while increasing costs as a result of the increased expenses
required to service and collect delinquent loans.

Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient or may not adequately protect us against losses, and
successful claims that exceed our insurance coverage could harm our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

As at June 30, 2024, our entire fixed assets are insured. We have, among others, building insurance,
employee fidelity insurance, stamp paper transit insurance, cash insurance, asset insurance and car
insurance. In addition, we also maintain a directors and officers liability insurance policy. We consider that
our insurance coverage is commensurate with, and appropriate to, our operations. Our insurance policies,
however, may not provide adequate coverage in certain circumstances and may be subject to certain
deductibles, exclusions and limits on coverage. Even if we have insurance for the incident giving rise to the
loss, we may be required to pay a significant deductible on any claim for recovery of such a loss, or the
amount of the loss may exceed our coverage for the loss. However, we cannot assure you that any claim
under the insurance policies maintained by us will be honoured fully, in part or on time.

In addition, our insurance coverage expires from time to time. We apply for the renewal of our insurance coverage
in the normal course of our business, but we cannot assure you that such renewals will be granted in a timely
manner, or at acceptable cost, or at all. In addition, there are various types of risks and losses for which we do
not maintain insurance because they are either uninsurable or because insurance is not available to us on
acceptable terms. While we have not faced any instances of claims not being covered by our existing insurance
coverage in the past we cannot assure you that that we will not face such situations in the future, which could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. A successful assertion of
one or more large claims against us that exceeds our available insurance coverage or results in changes in our
insurance policies, including premium increases or the imposition of a larger deductible or co-insurance
requirement, could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Further, our management information systems and internal control procedures may not be able to identify non-
compliance or suspicious transactions in a timely manner, or at all. Where internal control weaknesses are
identified, our actions may not be sufficient to fully correct such weaknesses. As a result, we may incur expenses
or suffer monetary losses, which may not be covered by our insurance policies and may result in a material
adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. The
table below sets forth our Company’s insurance coverage as at the dates indicated:

Particulars* Date Amount of Net Value of Percentage of

insurance Assets** insurance coverage to

coverage (in ¥ (in ¥ million)* Net Value of Assets (in

million)* %)*

Tangible Insured Assets® As at June 485.3 485.3 100.0
Tangible Uninsured Assets® |30, 2024 - - -
Total Assets 485.3 485.3 -
Tangible Insured Assets® As at June 447.7 447.7 100.0
Tangible Uninsured Assets® |30, 2023 - - _
Total Assets 4477 447.7 -
Tangible Insured Assets® As at March 496.9 496.9 100.0
Tangible Uninsured Assets® |31, 2024 - - -
Total Assets 496.9 496.9 -
Tangible Insured Assets® As at March 4475 4475 100.0
Tangible Uninsured Assets® |31, 2023 - - -
Total Assets 447.5 447.5 -
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Particulars* Date Amount of Net Value of Percentage of
insurance Assets** insurance coverage to
coverage (in ¥ (in ¥ million)* Net Value of Assets (in
million)* %)*
Tangible Insured Assets™ As at March 418.8 418.8 100.0
Tangible Uninsured Assets® |31, 2022 - - -
Total Assets 418.8 418.8 -

*  As certified by the Statutory Auditors of our Company, pursuant to the certificate dated September 11, 2024.

**  Net value of assets represents Property, Plant and Equipment excluding Right of Use — buildings i.e. premises on rent not owned
by the company accounted for as per IND AS 116 - Leases’.

o Tangible Insured Assets — Building, Computers, Furniture and fixtures, Lease hold improvements, Vehicles and Office equipment.

@  Tangible Uninsured Assets — NIL.

We conduct our operations under the “Bajaj Finserv” brand and have a license to use that brand
name and certain other trademarks. If we fail to successfully enforce our intellectual property rights
or are unable to renew our intellectual property licence agreements, our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition could be adversely affected.

The financial services businesses of the Bajaj group are primarily conducted through subsidiaries of Bajaj
Finserv Limited, and we conduct our operations under the “Bajaj Finserv” brand.

Our Company has entered into a trademarks license agreements dated April 13, 2018 (as amended on July
15, 2023) (the “License Agreement”) with Bajaj Finance Limited pursuant to which our Company has been
granted a licence to use certain trademarks, registered and pending registration in the names of Bajaj Finance
Limited and Bajaj Finserv Limited, for our business activities. Under the terms of the License Agreement,
our Company is required to pay Bajaj Finance Limited an annual license fee of ¥1,011.0 per trademark. The
License Agreement is valid until March 19, 2028.

As on the date of this Prospectus, we have received 23 registered trademarks, out of which four trademarks
have expired and have not yet been applied for renewal. Further, we have made three trademark
applications that are currently pending for registration before the registry. As at June 30, 2024, we had
applied for 153 registered domain names.

Unauthorised use of our intellectual property rights by third-parties could adversely affect our reputation.
We may be required to resort to legal action to protect our intellectual property rights. Any adverse outcome
in such legal proceedings or our failure to successfully enforce our intellectual property rights may impact
our ability to use intellectual property, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

In addition, Bajaj Finserv Limited is part of the Bajaj group of companies and the “Bajaj Finserv” brand name
is associated with the “Bajaj” brand. We have no control over Bajaj Finserv Limited or other
companies/entities within the Bajaj group, and in the event that other entities in the Bajaj group are involved
in any, activities, litigation, proceedings, or amongst other things, that adversely affects their reputation, it
could have an adverse impact on our reputation, which could, in turn, adversely affect the public’s perception
of our brand and thereby, adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition. Further, we depend on Bajaj Finserv Limited, Bajaj Finance Limited and the Bajaj group for brand
recognition and a failure to maintain and enhance awareness of our brand could adversely affect our ability
to retain and expand our customer base.

We outsource certain operational activities to third-party service providers. Any lapse by such third
party service providers may have adverse consequences on our business and reputation.

We have entered into outsourcing agreements with various third party service providers for certain services
including, among others, document storage, IT, IT maintenance, payment interface platforms, cloud and
data analytics platforms. Our technical teams work closely with external valuation agencies to assess the
market value of a property provided as collateral. Our legal teams regularly collaborate with independent
legal advisers in connection with title verification of property provided as collaterals by our customers.
Further, our business teams regularly collaborate with various sourcing intermediaries to source loans for
us. The following table sets forth the third party expenditures under our outsourcing agreements for the
periods indicated:

< in millions, except percentages

Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 Three months ended June 30, 2023
Amount % of total Amount % of total
expenses expenses
Third party expenditures under 255.1 1.6% 237.2 1.9%
our outsourcing agreements

Z in millions, except percentages
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Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022

Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
expenses expenses expenses
Third party expenditures under 1,088.8 2.0% 3395 0.9% 105.5 0.4%
our outsourcing agreements

The respective business and functions team reviews and assesses the financial and operational health of
our service providers to ensure they can fulfill their obligations. This review includes checking performance
standards, confidentiality and security, with the process being overseen by our internal audit department.
Our internal audit team also regularly audits all our businesses and functions. We sometimes have external
firms conduct on-site vendor audits for critical functions. However, there can be no assurance that such
measures would be adequate. Consequently, we face the risk of our service providers failing to meet their
contractual duties, committing fraud, making operational mistakes, or having inadequate business continuity
and data security systems. In the past, our internal and external auditors have pointed out issues such as
delay in renewal of agreements for outsourced services and training record for sourcing partners. The below
table outlines the number of issues identified in such audits for the periods indicated:

Particulars Three months ended Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
June 30, 2024
Issues identified 1 2 3 3
in internal audit

While these have not had any material impact on our business or operations, we cannot assure you that
such instances may not occur in the future.

Furthermore, while our contracts with service providers often include indemnification for statutory payments,
fines, and employee benefits, they do not cover losses or damages caused by their personnel's actions or
inactions. In the event of any such occurrence, we may incur losses, and to that extent, our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected. These contracts are subject to
unilateral termination by either party, provided they adhere to the minimum notice period required for
termination. Any such termination by the service providers and our inability to appoint suitable replacements
may adversely affect our business, results of operation and financial condition.

We, our Promoter, Group Companies and certain members of our Promoter Group may have to
comply with stricter regulations and guidelines issued by regulatory authorities in India, including
the Reserve Bank of India, National Housing Bank, Securities and Exchange Board of India and
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, which may increase our compliance
costs, and subject us to penalties or business restrictions.

We are regulated principally by the RBI have reporting obligations to the NHB, and NHB exercises a
supervisory role over our business. We are also subject to regulatory oversight from SEBI (presently, as a
debt-listed company, our Company is subject to the continuous disclosure obligations under the SEBI Listing
Regulations, and we will be subject to additional obligations and disclosure requirements once our Equity
Shares are listed on the Stock Exchanges) and IRDAI (as a corporate agent registered with the IRDAI for
sourcing of insurance products), the corporate, taxation and other laws in effect in India. Our business and
financial performance could be adversely affected by changes in the laws, rules, regulations or directions
applicable to us and the housing finance business, or the interpretations of such existing laws, rules and
regulations, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations, including foreign investment laws
governing our business, operations and investments in our Company by non-residents. These regulations,
apart from regulating the manner in which a company carries out its business and internal operations,
prescribe various periodical compliances and filings, including but not limited to filing of forms and
declarations with the relevant registrar of companies, the RBI and other relevant authorities. Further,
notification of new regulations and policies, which may require us to obtain approvals and licenses from the
government and other regulatory bodies, or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our operations,
in addition to those which we are undertaking currently, or change the manner in which we conduct KYC or
authenticate our customers. Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the
implementation of new regulations may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition.

Further, our Promoters and certain Group Companies / members of the Promoter Group have, in the five
years preceding the date of this Prospectus, faced regulatory actions by regulators and had certain fines
levied on them, the details of which are set out below:

Sr.No. | Name of the entity | Particulars of Regulatory Action or Penalty
Promoters
1. Bajaj Finance Limited Bajaj Finance Limited had a fine of ¥50,000 levied on it by BSE for a

delay in intimation of payment of principal and interest in respect of
four ISINs of its non-convertible debentures
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Sr. No. Name of the entity Particulars of Regulatory Action or Penalty

RBI had previously directed Bajaj Finance Limited to temporarily stop
the sanction and disbursal of loans under certain lending products and
has also levied a penalty of %0.85 million for delay in reporting of
frauds, a penalty of ¥25.0 million in relation to customer complaints
and a penalty of 10.0 million in relation to deficiencies in compliance
with the fair practices code

The Financial Intelligence Unit had imposed a penalty of 0.3 million
on Bajaj Finance Limited for certain violations under the Prevention of
Money Laundering Act, 2002

IRDAI levied a penalty of 220.0 million on Bajaj Finance Limited on
July 15, 2024 for non-adherence with the IRDAI (Registration of
Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015, for non-reporting to IRDAI on,
inter alia, mismatch in the amount of commission between Bajaj
Finance Limited and insurance companies and non-disclosure of
insurance products from all partners on its website

2. Bajaj Finserv Limited Bajaj Finserv Limited had fines of 0.2 million and %0.18 million levied
on it by BSE and NSE, respectively, for delay in making an application
for listing of their shares in a rights issue

RBI compounded a contravention of the Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 by Bajaj Finserv Limited and imposed
compounding fees of 63,083 on Bajaj Finserv Limited

Promoter Group
3. Bajaj Financial Securities | NSE and BSE imposed penalties amounting to 1.0 million and
Limited ¥5,100, respectively on Bajaj Financial Securities Limited for certain
trading-related procedural or technical issues, and SEBI along with
NSE and BSE imposed a penalty of 40,000 in relation to procedural
issues from their joint inspection
The Indian Clearing Corporation Limited imposed penalties
amounting to ¥1,027 on Bajaj Financial Securities Limited for delay in
certain reporting requirements

4. Bajaj Holdings and | SEBI imposed a penalty of 50,000 on Bajaj Holdings and Investment

Investment Limited Limited in relation to certain non-disclosures of shareholding or
changes in shareholding in other entities

5. Bajaj Allianz General | IRDAI imposed penalties amounting to ¥1.90 million on Bajaj Allianz

Insurance Company Limited | General Insurance Company Limited for certain non-compliances with
guidelines issued by IRDAI

6. Vidal Health Insurance TPA | Penalties amounting to 0.8 million for late payment of provident fund
Private Limited in FY 2022, 2023 and 2024 and penalties amounting to up to 7.7
million for late payment of tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, for FY
2023 were levied on Vidal Health Insurance TPA Private Limited

Group Companies

7. Poddar Housing and | NSE and BSE imposed SOP fines amounting to 11.6 million and
Development Limited %11.8 million, respectively on our Group Company, Poddar Housing
and Development Limited for, among other things, delay in
declaration of financial results and improper constitution of
committees

Compliance with many of the regulations applicable to our operations in India, including any restrictions on
investments and other activities currently being carried out by us, involves a number of risks. Moreover, new
regulations may be passed that restrict our ability to do business. Further, these regulations are subject to
frequent amendments and depend upon government policy. For example, any adverse regulatory action by
the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India may impact our fee income associated with the
insurance products we offer our customers. Similarly, our customer acquisition, servicing and debt
management operations could face significant disruptions if the Telecom Regulatory Authority of India or RBI
impose regulatory restrictions on tele-calling activities. Such limitations could adversely affect our ability to
effectively communicate with potential and existing customers, potentially impacting our financial performance
and growth prospects.

Thus, we cannot assure you that we will not be subject to any adverse regulatory action in the future. The
costs of compliance may be high, which may affect our profitability. If we are unable to comply with any such
regulatory requirements, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be
materially and adversely affected.

Some of the material laws, rules and regulations applicable to us, wherein any adverse changes may
materially affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition include:

. The National Housing Bank Act, 1987;
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. Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance Company (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2021;

. Master Directions - (Priority Sector Lending)— (Targets and Classifications) Directions, 2020;

. Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023;

. IRDAI (Registration of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2015;
. NHB Circular on Early Warning Signals Framework in HFCs dated April 26, 2023;
. Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest Act,

2002, as amended;
o Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, as amended;

. Central Goods and Service Tax Act, 2017, the Central Goods and Service Tax Rules, 2017 and
various state-wise legislations made thereunder; and

. Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017.

While we are currently in compliance with the above regulatory requirements as at the date of this Prospectus,
as applicable, there can be no guarantee that we will be able to comply with any increased or more stringent
regulatory requirements in a timely manner, in part or at all. For details on the laws and regulations in India as
applicable to us, see “Key Regulations and Policies” on page 243.

Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of the above regulations may impact the
viability of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. If the interpretation
of regulations by the regulators and authorities varies from our interpretation, we may be subject to penalties
and our business could be adversely affected. Any changes in the existing regulatory framework, including
any increase in the compliance requirements, may require us to divert additional resources, including
management time and costs such as legal consultations or staff training required for such increased
compliance. Such an increase in costs could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations. Additionally, our management may be required to divert substantial time
and effort towards meeting such enhanced compliance requirements and may be unable to devote
adequate time and efforts towards our business, which may have an adverse effect on our future business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are exposed to risks of increased commercial real estate vacancies in our lease rental
discounting portfolio and regulatory and other challenges faced by developers in relation to our
developer financing portfolio.

The performance of our loan portfolio is contingent upon several sector-specific risks, particularly within our
lease rental discounting and developer financing segments. The table below sets forth our AUM across
lease rental discounting and developer financing segments as at the periods indicated:

(% in million, except percentages and per share data)

Particulars At at |
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
AUM % of total AUM % of total AUM % of total AUM % of total AUM % of total
AUM AUM AUM AUM AUM
Lease 189,698.2 19.5% 134,530.3 18.1% 176,368.0 19.3% 112,594.8 16.3% 68,694.2 12.9%
Rental
Discounting
Developer |108,459.6 | 11.2% 61,918.0 8.4% 95,993.3 10.5% 56,693.2 8.2% 28,987.0 5.4%
Financing

While there has been no instance which had a material impact on the operations of our Company despite
rise in vacancy rates, a rise in vacancy rates within commercial real estate properties of our lease rental
discounting customers may lead to diminished rental incomes, directly impacting the loan servicing
capabilities of our borrowers. Such an increase in unoccupied commercial spaces could signal broader
market challenges, potentially affecting the overall demand and valuation of commercial properties.
Reduced cash flows from these properties may adversely influence both our asset quality and profitability
of our commercial loan portfolio. The tables below sets forth the vacancy rates recorded under lease rental
discounting loans and delays by developers under developer financing loans for the periods indicated:
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Metrics Three months ended June | Three months ended June
30, 2024 30, 2023

Lease Rental Discounting (proportionate loan 2.5% 2.0%
outstanding of vacant properties as % of LRD AUM)
Developer Financing (loan outstanding of delayed 0.1% 0.1%
projects as % of developer financing AUM)

Metrics Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Lease Rental Discounting (proportionate loan 1.9% 2.3% 3.3%
outstanding of vacant properties as % of LRD AUM)
Developer Financing (loan outstanding of delayed 0.4% 0.2% 0.2%
projects as % of developer financing AUM)

Furthermore, our developer financing portfolio is susceptible to risks associated with regulatory actions
against developers, construction delays or failures, and the developers' ability to manage cash flows
effectively. While there has been no such instance which had a material impact on the operations of our
Company, regulatory interventions can result in stalling of project or cancellations, while execution
challenges may cause cost overruns and extended development timelines. These factors can significantly
undermine a developer's financial position, thereby hindering their ability to meet payment obligations to us
and consequently affecting our ability to recover the extended credit. The convergence of these risks in
lease rental discounting and developer financing portfolio has the potential to create a compounded adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are exposed to risks that may arise if our customers opt for balance transfers to other banks or
financial institutions, or if customers face increased difficulties in refinancing their existing home
loans from other banks and financial institutions to our Company.

Maijority of our customers have a variable interest rate, which is linked to any one of our reference rate or
external benchmark rate, which as at June 30, 2024 is 99.8% of gross loan assets.

Customers with variable interest rates on their loans are exposed to increased loan tenures or increased
equated monthly instalments (“EMIs”) when the loans’ interest rate adjusts upward from an initial rate, as
applicable, to the rate computed in accordance with the applicable benchmark and margin. Such customers
typically seek to refinance their loans through balance transfer to other banks and financial institutions, to avoid
increased EMIs that may result from an upwards adjustment of the loans’ interest rate. While refinancing of loans
by other lenders could in certain circumstances be beneficial for our customers, it results in a loss of interest
income expected from such loans over the course of their tenure. In addition, all housing finance providers in
India are prohibited from charging pre-payment penalties on home loans with variable interest rates.
Consequently, since there is no exit barrier for variable rate home loans, it may lead to a high frequency of
balance transfer which results in a high turnover of loan assets between lenders, causing lenders to incur
increased origination costs. In addition, increased difficulties for customers in refinancing their existing home loan
from another bank or financial institution, may also adversely affect our balance transfer loan originations. The
following table sets forth the percentage of our home loans and LAP loans that were transferred from other banks
and financial institutions for the periods indicated:

Particulars Three months ended June Three months ended June
30, 2024 30, 2023

Percentage of home loans that were transferred from 21.2% 34.4%
other banks and financial institutions
Percentage of LAP loans that were transferred from 15.7% 24.6%
other banks and financial institutions

Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Percentage of home loans that were transferred from 29.6% 30.6% 54.3%
other banks and financial institutions
Percentage of LAP loans that were transferred from 19.9% 21.5% 31.7%
other banks and financial institutions

As competition in the housing finance sector intensifies, certain of our customers with variable interest rate loans
may not be able to find balance transfer options at comparably lower interest rates or other financing alternatives.
As a result, they may be exposed to the risks associated with increases in EMIs, which may lead to increased
delinquency or default rates. Increased delinquency rates may also result in deterioration in credit quality of our
loan portfolio, which could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.
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Our business is subject to various operational risks associated with the financial industry, including
fraud.

Our business is subject to various operational and other risks associated with the financial industry,
including:

. inadequate procedures and controls;

. failure to obtain proper internal authorizations;

. misreporting or non-reporting with respect to statutory, legal or regulatory reporting and disclosure
obligations;

. improperly documented transactions;

. customer or third-party fraud, such as impersonation or identity theft or approval of loans on false

pretences or inflated property values;

. failure of operational and information security procedures, computer systems, software or equipment;

. the risk of fraud or other misconduct by employees;

. failure to detect money-laundering and other illegal or improper activities;

. unauthorized transactions by employees; and

. inadequate training and operational errors, including record keeping errors or errors resulting from

faulty computer or communications systems.

In particular, where customers repay their loans in cash directly to us or through representative appointed
by us, we are exposed to the risk of fraud, misappropriation or unauthorized transactions by our
representatives and employees responsible for dealing with such cash collections. While we have procured
insurance for cash in safes and in transit, and we have put in place systems to detect and prevent any
unauthorized transaction, fraud or misappropriation by our authorized representatives and employees, this
may not be effective in all cases.

Furthermore, while we have dedicated risk containment unit for identifying and detecting frauds and illicit
practices with centralized as well as field presence, there can be no assurance that measures adopted by
us have been or will be effective in preventing frauds, or that any of these events will not occur again in the
future or that we will be able to recover funds misused or misappropriated if such events occur. Further,
where possible, there could be instances of fraud and misconduct by our employees which may go
unnoticed for a certain period of time before they are identified and corrective actions are taken. The
following table sets forth the fraud detected and reported as at the dates indicated:

Particulars As at |
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number of - - 1@ 1@ -

fraud cases
detected and
reported
Amount of fraud - - 6.5 35 -
cases detected
and reported (in
% million)

Notes:

(1) A borrower defrauded our Company by mortgaging his collateral (i.e. property) with multiple banks and/or financial institutions
and also forged the sale deed issued in his favour, resulting in a fraud amounting to 6.5 million.

(2) A borrower had forged certain title documents to procure a loan from our Company and accordingly, a fraud amounting to ¥3.5
million was detected and reported.

If a regulatory proceeding is initiated due to a report made by us about an unauthorized transaction, fraud,
or misappropriation involving our employees, it could harm our reputation and financial condition. For details
of certain outstanding litigations against us, see “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” on
page 444. Moreover, substantial fraud by customers or external parties could result in an adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
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We are subject to the risk of failure of, or a material weakness in, our internal control systems, which
could have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition.

We are exposed to risks arising from the inadequacy or failure of internal systems or processes, and any
actions we may take to mitigate these risks may not be sufficient to ensure an effective internal control
environment. Given our high volume of transactions, errors may be repeated or compounded before they
are discovered and rectified. We have, in the past, experienced certain non-material deficiencies in our
internal control systems, such as loan version control, delays in updating the software for switches and
routers and delay in renewal of agreements. The below table outlines the number of internal control
observations identified in each of the identified periods:

Particulars Three months Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
ended June 30,
2024
Instances of internal control 11 22 15 11
observations identified in
internal audit

All observations identified during the internal audit have been rectified and preventive measures have been
implemented accordingly for these non-material deficiencies. Further, while we have taken appropriate
measures to develop our internal control systems and policies to address those issues, we cannot assure
you that our systems and policies will be sufficient or willfully correct such weaknesses, or that similar
deficiencies will not arise in the future.

Further, our management information systems and internal control procedures may not be able to identify
non-compliance or suspicious transactions in a timely manner, or at all. Where internal control weaknesses
are identified, our actions may not be sufficient to fully correct such weaknesses. As a result, we may incur
expenses or suffer monetary losses, which may not be covered by our insurance policies and may result in
a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

We have established internal control systems and processes as well as internal audit team to scrutinise,
and periodically test and update, all facets of our operations, as necessary. We consider that our risk
management, compliance, audit and operational risk management functions are commensurate with the
size and complexity of our operations and equipped to make an independent and objective evaluation of
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls on an on-going basis to ensure that our employees
adhere to compliance requirements and internal guidelines.

Any downgrade in our credit ratings or significant increase in gross non-performing assets may
lead to an increase in our cost of funds for existing and future borrowings.

Any downgrade in our credit ratings or significant increase in GNPA may lead to an increase in our cost of
funds for existing and future borrowings. This would increase our financing costs, adversely affect our future
issuances of debt and our ability to borrow on a competitive basis, which could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition.

As a result of reduced spreads between the interest rates at which we borrow and lend, we may not be able
to maintain our current levels of profitability. Additionally, any downgrade of ratings below minimum
investment grade ratings could reduce demand for our debt, thus making the raising of additional debt,
including refinancing of outstanding debt, more difficult and increasing the probability that our lenders will
impose additional terms and conditions on any financing or refinancing arrangements with them. This could
also lead to higher collateral requirements and restrictive covenants, which may limit our financial and
operational flexibility.

Furthermore, increased GNPA could signal deteriorating asset quality, potentially eroding both investor and
lender confidence. Such a scenario could further elevate our borrowing costs and limit our ability to secure
funding on favorable terms.

Our Statutory Auditors have included a matter of emphasis in their audit report on financial
statements as at and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.

Our Statutory Auditors included the following matter of emphasis in their audit report on our financial
statements as at and for Fiscal 2022 and provided unmodified opinion in respect of such matter, which was
not continued in Fiscal 2023 and Fiscal 2024 audit reports:

“We draw attention to Note 3 to the financial statements in which the Company describes the uncertainty
arising from the continuing COVID-19 pandemic and the related probable events which could impact the
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Company’s estimates of impairment of loans to customers. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.”

Note 3 in the above matter of emphasis related to the estimates and associated assumptions used for
determining the impairment allowance on our Company’s financial assets. It states that such estimates and
assumptions are based on historical experience and other emerging factors emanating from the COVID-19
pandemic which may also influence the expected credit loss. We had used One Time Restructuring (OTR 1
and 2) and repayment moratorium on loans as early indicators suggesting higher flow rates and loss given
default and accordingly accounted for commensurate expected credit loss. In our opinion, the factors
considered were reasonable under the then-current circumstances and information available. However, the
uncertainty caused by resurgence of the COVID-19 pandemic and related events could further influence the
estimate of credit losses.

For further details of the above matter of emphasis, see “Restated Financial Information” on page 309.

There can be no assurance that similar remarks or matters of emphasis will not form part of our financial
statements for future financial periods, which could subject us to additional liabilities due to which our
financial condition may be adversely affected.

Our regulatory mandated ratios may differ from our peers and if we fail to comply with the regulatory
requirements, it could severely impact our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

We must adhere to regulations concerning the capital adequacy, liquidity coverage and principal business
criteria ratios of HFCs, as periodically outlined by RBI. For details, see “-If we are unable to comply with the
capital adequacy requirements stipulated by Reserve Bank of India, it could have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.” on page 39.

Although we have historically complied with these regulatory ratios, including CRAR, LCR, and PBC, there
is no assurance that we can continue to do so. Any failure in maintaining these ratios within regulatory
thresholds could negatively impact our business, results of operations, cash flows, and financial condition.
Additionally, the regulatory or supervisory assessment of our capital adequacy and liquidity coverage
requirements may differ from our internal assessments. Changes to the regulatory framework impacting
HFCs and other financial service companies, such as provisions for NPAs, capital adequacy, or liquidity
guidelines or differences in their interpretations could detrimentally impact our profitability and future
financial performance, as we may need to restructure our activities or bear increased costs to comply with
applicable regulations.

The table below shows our standing within the industry compared to our peers concerning regulatorily
mandated financial requirements as of March 31, 2024

Particulars Capital Adequacy Liquidity Coverage Principal Business
Ratio (“CRAR”)? Ratio (“LCR”)? Criteria Ratio
(“PBC”) 3
lc\)/lfl:/lli:rl;r:srle’gzuolszory requirement as 15.00% 85.00% 60.00%
Our Company 21.28% 192.31% 61.43%
Can Fin Homes Limited 24.48% 120.57% 74.88%
LIC Housing Finance Limited 20.78% 175.34% 84.25%
PNB Housing Finance Limited 29.26% 266.00% 66.33%
Aadhar Housing Finance Limited 38.46% Not available Not available
Aavas Financiers Limited 43.98% 106.14% 66.54%
Aptgs Value Housing Finance India 73.03% 143% 61.23%
Limited
Home First Finance Company India 39.48% 180.33% 65.56%

Notes

1. Source: CRISIL MI&A Report”. Further, Capital Adequacy Ratio — CRAR is computed by dividing our Tier | and Tier Il capital by
total risk weighted assets, each as computed in accordance with relevant RBI guidelines applicable as at the last day of relevant
fiscal year

2. Liquidity Coverage Ratio — ratio of stock of high quality liquid assets over total net cash outflows over the next 30 calendar days

3. Principal Business Criteria Ratio - ratio of financial assets, in the business of providing finance for housing over total assets
(netted off by intangible assets)

* Information concerning peers has been sourced from information available in the public domain including annual reports etc.

As we grow, we will need to obtain more Tier | and Tier Il capital and meet our liquidity requirements to stay
compliant with regulations. There is no guarantee that our Promoter or shareholders will support these
investments, or that we can secure the additional capital on favourable terms, or at all. Failing to meet these
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regulatory requirements could severely impact our business, results of operations, cash flow and financial
condition.

We are dependent on our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel, and the
loss of, or our inability to attract or retain such persons could adversely affect our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel have been instrumental in the growth
and development of our Company. Their inputs and experience of our Key Managerial Personnel, in
particular, and Senior Management Personnel are valuable for the development of our business and
operations and the strategic directions taken by us. For details in relation to the experience of our Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel, see “Our Management” on page 260.

Our Key Managerial Personnel have contributed significantly to our business and operations, and we
continue to depend significantly on their continued services and performance and our ability to attract and
retain such personnel. Our ability to identify, recruit and retain our Key Managerial Personnel and other key
employees is critical to the successful operation of our business. The following table provides the number
and attrition rates of Company’s Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel for the
periods indicated:

Particulars As at June 30, As at March 31**
2024 2024 2023 2022
Number of Key 20 13 9 18
Managerial Personnel
and Senior
Management Personnel
Attrition rate 6.1%" - 22.2%* 5.7%

Note: Attrition rate has been calculated by dividing the total number of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel
who ceased to be employees during the relevant year with average head count of Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel employees for the relevant fiscal year.

All the employees moved within the Bajaj Finserv group as per Bajaj Finserv group’s internal job posting policy.
**As per the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
#Non-annualized rate

We face a continuing challenge to recruit, adequately compensate and retain a sufficient number of suitably
skilled personnel, knowledgeable in sectors to which we lend. There is significant competition in India for
such personnel, which has increased in recent years as there are a significant number of commercial banks,
small finance banks, payment banks, NBFCs and HFCs in the country. We also need to train and motivate
existing employees to adhere to internal controls and risk management procedures. Failure to train and
motivate our employees properly may result in an increase in employee attrition rates, require additional
hiring, erode the quality of our customer service, divert management resources, increase our exposure to
high-risk credit and impose significant costs on us.

As we continue to expand our business and operations, recruiting and retaining qualified and skilled
personnel is critical to our future, especially since our business depends on our credit appraisal, asset
valuation and collection methodologies and direct customer relationships, which are largely personnel-
driven aspects of our business. Our inability to attract Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel due to these or other reasons could significantly impair our ability to continue to manage and
grow our business and may result in an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition.

We also cannot assure you that our Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel will not
terminate their employment with us or join a competitor, or that we will be able to retain such key personnel,
including senior management, or find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. We may require
a long period of time to hire and train replacement personnel when qualified personnel terminate their
employment with our Company. We may also be required to increase our levels of employee compensation
more rapidly than in the past to remain competitive in attracting employees that our business requires. The
loss of the services of such persons may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.

Negative publicity could damage our reputation and adversely impact our business and financial
results.

Reputational risk, or the risk to our business, earnings and capital from negative publicity, is inherent in our
business. The reputation of the financial services industry in general has been closely monitored as a result
of the financial crisis and other matters affecting the financial services industry. Negative public opinion
about the financial services industry generally or us specifically (including the “Bajaj Finserv” brand name
or the “Bajaj” brand) could adversely affect our ability to attract and retain customers, employees, vendors
and partners, raise equity capital and borrowings and may expose us to litigation and regulatory action.
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Negative publicity can result from our actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities, including lending
practices, mortgage servicing and foreclosure practices, corporate governance, regulatory compliance,
mergers and acquisitions and related disclosure, sharing or inadequate protection of customer information,
and actions taken by government regulators and community organisations in response to that conduct.

Any non-compliance with mandatory anti-money laundering, combating-terrorism financing and
know your customer laws could expose us to liability and harm our reputation.

In accordance with the requirements applicable to our Company, we are mandated to comply with anti-
money laundering (“AML”), combating-terrorism financing (“CTF”) and know your customer (“KYC”)
regulations in India. These laws and regulations require us, among other things, to adopt and enforce AML,
CTF and KYC policies and procedures. While we have adopted policies and procedures aimed at collecting
and maintaining all relevant AML, CTF and KYC related information from our customers in order to detect
and prevent the use of our networks for illegal money-laundering and terrorism financing activities, there
may be instances where we collected information that may be used by other parties in attempts to engage
in money-laundering, terrorism financing and other illegal or improper activities. In addition, a number of
jurisdictions (including India) have entered into, or have agreed in substance to, intergovernmental
agreements with the United States to implement certain provisions of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of
1986, commonly known as FATCA. Pursuant to these provisions, as part of our KYC processes, we are
required to collect and report certain information regarding U.S. persons having accounts with us.

While we have not had instances of breach of any applicable AML, CTF or KYC regulations and although we
consider that we have adequate internal policies, processes and controls in place to prevent and detect AML
activity and ensure KYC compliance (including FATCA compliance), and have taken necessary corrective
measures, there can be no assurance that we will be able to fully control instances of any potential or
attempted violation by other parties and may accordingly be subject to regulatory actions, including imposition
of fines and other penalties by the relevant government agencies to whom we report to, including the
Financial Intelligence Unit — India. Our business and reputation could suffer if any such parties use or attempt
to use us for money-laundering, terrorism financing or illegal or improper purposes and such attempts are
not detected or reported to the appropriate authorities in compliance with applicable regulatory requirements.

We are required to undertake customer due diligence procedures, including by means of Aadhar number,
verification of place of business/ employment or residence, as applicable, in accordance with the Master
Direction — Know Your Customer (KYC) Direction, 2016 issued by RBI, as updated from time to time, and verify
details with the NHB’s caution list, as circulated from time to time. Such information includes representations
with respect to the accuracy and completeness of valuation reports and title reports with respect to the property
secured, as applicable. We also undertake a valuation of their collateral. Any failure to comply with the
applicable laws relating to Aadhar or otherwise may expose us to penalties and regulatory scrutiny which may
damage our reputation and lead to loss of customer confidence which could have a material adverse impact
on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

There can be no assurance that our growth and financial performance will continue or will sustain
at a similar rate or that we will be able to manage our rapid growth and maintain operational
efficiencies.

There can be no assurance that our growth and financial performance will continue or will sustain at a similar
rate or that we will be able to manage our growth and maintain operational efficiencies. If we grow our
business assets too quickly or fail to make proper assessments of credit risks associated with new
borrowers, a higher percentage of our loans may become non-performing. This would have a negative
impact on the quality of our assets, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.
The following table sets forth our CAGR in AUM and profit after tax between the periods indicated:

g in millions, except percentages

As at/ for the financial year ended CAGR®
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
AUM 913,704.0 533,217.2 30.9%
Profit after Tax 17,312.2 7,096.2 56.2%
Notes:
1) Compound Annual Growth Rate — annualized average rate of growth between Fiscal 2022 and Fiscal 2024.

Our strategy is to focus on a profitable and sustainable growth of our AUM by growing our loan book and
expanding our customer base. For details on our strategies, please refer to “Our Business — Business
Strategies” on page 229.

Furthermore, the discontinuation of value-added services, including our partnerships with third-party service
providers and our role as a Corporate Agent registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India distributing multiple insurance products, poses a risk to our financial performance. These
services currently contribute to our fees and commission income and are primarily driven by the cross-
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selling of third-party value-added products and insurance policies. The following table sets forth income
generated through value added services for the periods indicated:

Zin millions, except percentages

Particulars Three months ended June 30, 2024 Three months ended June 30, 2023
Amount % of total Amount % of total
income income
Income from value added 428.2 1.9% 101.9 0.6%
service
Z in millions, except percentages
Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Amount % of total Amount % of total Amount % of total
income income income

Income from value added 784.9 1.0% 398.1 0.7% 408.6 1.1%
service

Any interruption or termination of these services could adversely affect our fees and commission income
and, consequently, our revenue from operations, impacting our financial stability and growth prospects.

Our investments are subject to market and credit risk. Any decline in value of these investments
may have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition.

Some of our investments, which primarily include government securities, T-bills, liquid/debt mutual funds
and certificates of deposits are subject to market risks. The following table sets forth our total investments,
as at the dates indicated:

< in millions
Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Total 26,560.5 25,892.2 19,385.7 20,009.1 12,482.7
investments

The value of these investments as well as future investments depend upon several factors beyond our
control, including the domestic and international economic and political scenario, volatility in interest rates
and securities market, inflationary expectations and the RBI's monetary policies. Further, investment in debt
mutual funds and fixed deposits also carry credit risk and any inability of the counterparty in repaying the
funds invested in timely manner may adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and
financial condition. Any decline in the value of these investments may have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Weaknesses, disruptions, failures or infiltrations of our information technology systems could
adversely impact our business and results of operations.

We substantially rely on our information technology (“IT”) systems in connection with financial and internal
controls, risk management and transaction processing, such as our internet and mobile based “digital self-
service models” and cloud platforms, which consolidate front, back and mid office processes across our
lending verticals. We also introduced e-Agreements, enabling customers to execute loan agreements
through Aadhar-based OTP authentication and e-sanction letter systems to offer OTP based authentication
for sanction letters to customers eliminating need for physical agreements. Any disruption in these
technologies may significantly impact our loan processing capabilities and which may consequently affect
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We utilize an integrated IT platform for our third-party dealer network to sell products and onboard customers.
For more details, refer to “Our Business — Information Technology and Analytics” on page 239. Additionally,
our extensive use of automated systems for record keeping increases the risk of control errors and data
inaccuracies, which may not be quickly detected or rectified. Pursuant to RBI's Master Direction — Information
Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector dated June 8, 2017, we have an IT Strategy Committee focused
on implementing security measures. Our implemented security systems are not failproof and cyber incidents
may go undetected, potentially causing customer loss and regulatory scrutiny.

We rely on external vendors for certain elements of our operations, such as our cloud and data analytics.
Failures or breaches in their systems could lead to significant information loss, legal liabilities, and damage to
our reputation and competitive position. Although we have established a geographically remote disaster
recovery site to support critical applications, it is possible that the disaster recovery site may also fail, or it may
take considerable time to make the system fully operational and achieve complete business resumption using
the alternate site. Therefore, in such a scenario, where the primary site is completely unavailable, there may be
significant disruption to our operations, which would materially adversely affect our reputation and financial
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condition in a significant manner. Additionally, vendors in foreign jurisdictions may expose us to compliance
risks with international data protection laws, potentially affecting our business operations and financial
stability.

While we have not faced incidents of any data breach in the past, there can be no assurance that we will
not face such instances in the future. Further, any failure by our vendors to protect any information, or to
perform their functions could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition.

Increasing regulatory focus on personal information protection could adversely affect our business
and expose us to increased liability.

Regulators in various jurisdictions are increasingly scrutinizing how companies collect, process, use, store,
share and transmit personal data. This increased scrutiny may result in new interpretations of existing laws,
thereby further impacting our business. In India, the Digital Personal Data Protection Act, 2023 (“Data
Protection Act”) has been enacted for implementing organisational and technical measures in processing
personal data laying down norms for cross-border transfer of personal data to ensure the accountability of
entities processing personal data. The Data Protection Act introduced stricter data protection norms for an
entity such as ours and may impact our processes. The Data Protection Act is introduced to maintain the
highest level of security and protection for all such information regarding our various customers. The RBI
has also issued a circular dated April 6, 2018, on the procedure of storage of payment systems data to
ensure that data relating to payment systems that we operate are stored only in India. Any failure, or
perceived failure, by us to comply with any applicable regulatory requirements, including but not limited to
privacy, data protection, information security, or consumer protection related privacy laws and regulations,
could result in proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or individuals who may subject
us to fines, penalties, and/ or judgments which may adversely affect our reputation, business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Furthermore, despite our efforts to comply with applicable laws, regulations, and other obligations relating
to privacy, data protection, and information security, it is possible that our interpretations of the law or
practices could be inconsistent with or fail or be alleged to fail to meet all requirements of, such laws,
regulations, or contractual obligations.

If we fail to identify, monitor and manage risks and effectively implement our risk management
policies, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and cash flows.

Our policies and procedures to identify, monitor and manage risks may not be fully effective. Some of our
risk management systems are not automated and are subject to human error. Some of our risk measuring
criteria are based on the use of observed historical market behaviour. As a result, these methods may not
accurately predict future risk exposures, which could be significantly greater than those indicated by the
historical measures.

To the extent any of the instruments and strategies we use to hedge or otherwise manage our exposure to
market or credit risk are not effective, we may not be able to effectively mitigate our risk exposures in
particular market environments or against particular types of risk. Further, some of our risk management
strategies may not be effective in a difficult or less liquid market environment, where other market
participants may be attempting to use the same or similar strategies to deal with the difficult market
conditions. In such circumstances, it may be difficult for us to reduce our risk positions due to the activity of
such other market participants. Other risk management methods depend upon an evaluation of information
regarding markets, clients or other matters. This information may not in all cases be accurate, complete,
up-to-date or properly evaluated.

Additionally, management of operational, legal or regulatory risk requires, among other things, policies and
procedures to ensure certain prohibited actions are not taken and to properly record and verify a number of
transactions and events. Although we have established such policies and procedures, they may not be fully
effective, and we cannot guarantee that our employees will follow these policies and procedures as
envisaged in all circumstances. Unexpected shortcomings in these policies and procedures or a failure of
our employees to follow them may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.

Our earnings are dependent upon the effectiveness of our management of changes in credit quality and risk
concentrations, the accuracy of our valuation models and our critical accounting estimates, and the adequacy
of our allowances for loan losses. To the extent our assessments, assumptions or estimates prove inaccurate
or not predictive of actual results, we could suffer higher than anticipated losses. See also “— If we are unable
to control the level of Gross Non-Performing Assets/Stage 3 Assets in our portfolio effectively or if we are
unable to maintain adequate provisioning coverage or if there is any change in regulatorily-mandated
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provisioning requirements, our financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.” on
page 38.

If we fail to effectively implement our risk management policies, it could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We may experience difficulties in expanding our business or pursuing business opportunities in
new regions and markets.

Our portfolio of products primarily consists of (i) home loans; (ii) loans against property; (iii) lease rental
discounting; (iv) developer financing; and (v) others. As part of our growth strategy, we continue to evaluate
attractive growth opportunities to expand low-risk retail portfolio across segments. Expanding our current
operations can be risky and expensive, and we cannot assure you that we may be successful in meeting
the desired cost-efficiencies and any consequent growth in our business.

Our present and future business may be exposed to various additional challenges, including obtaining
necessary governmental approvals, compliance with local regulations, identifying and collaborating with local
business and partners with whom we may have no previous working relationship; successfully marketing our
products in markets with which we have no previous familiarity; inadequate or insufficient market research;
attracting potential customers in a market in which we do not have significant experience or visibility; attracting
and retaining new employees; expanding our technological infrastructure; maintaining standardized systems
and procedures; and adapting our marketing strategy and operations to different regions of India in which
different languages are spoken, including engagement with local and national DSAs, and other channel
partners. To address these challenges, we may have to make significant investments that may not yield the
desired results or incur costs that we may not recover. As we enter new markets and regions, we are likely to
compete with not only other banks and financial institutions but also the local unorganized or semi-organized
private financiers, who may be more familiar with local regulations, business practices and customs, and may
have stronger relationships with target customers.

Our development of new products may not yield the intended results and may in turn have an adverse effect
on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. For further details, see “Our
Business — Business Strategies — Diversifying and strengthening market presence with strategic customer
focus and comprehensive risk management” on page 230.

We may not be able to obtain, renew or maintain statutory and regulatory permits and approvals
required to operate our business, which may materially and adversely affect our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our operations are subject to extensive government regulation and we are required to obtain and maintain
a number of statutory and regulatory permits and approvals under central, state and local government rules
in India for carrying out our business. This includes registration with the NHB for carrying out business as
an HFC, our legal entity identifier code from Legal Entity Identifier India Limited as well as maintaining
licenses under various applicable national and state labour laws in force in India for some of our offices and
employees. While we currently possess or have applied for renewals of certain licenses, including shops
and establishment licenses for some of our branches, there can be no assurance that the relevant
authorities will renew these in the anticipated timeframe, or at all. In addition, we may apply for more
approvals. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain the conditions required to retain all our
licenses.

Moreover, we cannot assure you that approvals and licenses currently held by us would not be suspended
or cancelled or withdrawn in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or
conditions thereof, or pursuant to any regulatory action. Additionally, failure by us to comply with the terms
and conditions to which such licenses, approvals, permits or registrations are subject, and/or to renew,
maintain or obtain the required licenses, approvals, permits or registrations may result in the interruption of
our operations and may have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition.

We have entered into a number of related party transactions and there can be no assurance that we
could not have achieved more favourable terms if such transactions had not been entered into with
related parties.

We have entered into transactions with a number of related parties, within the meaning of Indian Accounting
Standard 24 as notified by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016, as amended. While we consider that
all such transactions have been conducted on an arm's length basis, in accordance with our related party
transactions policy, applicable provisions of the Companies Act and other applicable laws and contain
commercially reasonable terms, we cannot assure you that we could not have achieved more favorable
terms had such transactions been entered into with unrelated parties.
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The table below sets forth the total amount of our related party transactions and its contribution towards the
Company’s total revenue from operations for the periods indicated:

< in millions, except percentages

Particulars Three months ended June | Three months ended June
30, 2024 30, 2023
Amount Amount
Total related party transactions 24,688.4 11,473.8
Total revenue from operations of the Company (A) 22,086.5 17,632.5
Total revenue from operations of the Company from 339.0 76.6
transactions with related parties (B)
% of total revenue from operations from transactions 1.5% 0.4%
with related parties against total revenue from
operations (B / A * 100)
g in millions, except percentages
Particulars Fiscal 2024 Fiscal 2023 Fiscal 2022
Amount Amount Amount

Total related party transactions 75,099.4 48,654.6 141,518.1
Total revenue from operations of the Company (A) 76,173.1 56,647.3 37,667.1
Total revenue from operations of the Company from 550.0 514.7 975.8
transactions with related parties (B)
% of total revenue from operations from transactions 0.7% 0.9% 2.6%
with related parties against total revenue from
operations (B / A * 100)

For further information on our transactions with related parties and any interests in relation to our Promoters,
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, see “Restated Financial Information — Note 43: Disclosure of
transactions with related parties as required by Ind AS 24” on page 361.

Any transactions with related parties in future may give rise to conflicts of interest with respect to dealings
between us and such related parties. Additionally, while no such instance has occurred in the past, there
can be no assurance that any dispute that may arise between us and related parties will be resolved in our
favour.

We have contingent liabilities and our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition may be adversely affected if these contingent liabilities materialize.

We have contingent liabilities and commitments, which could adversely affect our business and results of
operations. As at June 30, 2024, our contingent liabilities in respect of disputed claims against our Company
not acknowledged as debts was ¥35.3 million. If this contingent liability materializes, our business, results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected. Moreover, there can be no
assurance that we will not incur similar or increased levels of contingent liabilities in the current fiscal year,
or in the future. For further information, see “Financial Statements — Restated Financial Information — Note
41: Contingent Liabilities and Commitments” on page 360.

Industry information included in this Prospectus has been derived from an industry report
commissioned by us and paid for by us for such purpose.

We have used the report titled “Analysis of Housing Finance Market” dated August 2024 by CRISIL MI&A
appointed on May 6, 2024 for purposes of inclusion of such information in this Prospectus, and exclusively
commissioned by our Company for purposes of inclusion of such information in this Prospectus at an agreed
fee to be paid by our Company. The information highlights certain industry and market data relating to us
and our competitors which may not be based on any standard methodology. Our Company, our Promoters
and Directors are not related to CRISIL MI&A. There are no parts, data or information (which may be relevant
for the proposed issue), that has been materially left out or changed in any manner. Accordingly, investors
should read the industry related disclosures in this Prospectus in this context. Industry sources and
publications are also prepared based on information as of specific dates and may no longer be current or
reflect current trends. Investors should not place undue reliance on or base their investment decision solely
on this information. Also see, “Certain Conventions, Use of Financial Information and Market Data and
Currency of Presentation — Industry and Market Data” on page 19.
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We have in this document included certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other selected
statistical information related to our operations and financial condition. These non-GAAP measures
and statistical information may vary from any standard methodology that is applicable across the
financial services industry and therefore may not be comparable with financial or statistical
information of similar nomenclature computed and presented by other financial services
companies.

Certain non-GAAP financial measures and certain other statistical information, including Net Interest
Margin, Net Interest Income, Cost of Funds, Net Interest Income to Average Loans, Operating Expenses to
Net Total Income, Average Borrowings, as well as certain other metrics based on or derived from those non-
GAAP financial measures, relating to our operations and financial performance have been included in this
section and elsewhere in this Prospectus. For further details, see “Selected Statistical Information —
Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP Financial Information” on page 302. These non-GAAP financial
measures are not a measurement of our financial performance or liquidity under Ind AS, Indian GAAP, IFRS
or US GAAP and should not be considered in isolation or construed as an alternative to cash flows. We
compute and disclose such non-GAAP financial measures and such other statistical information relating to
our operations and financial performance as we consider such information to be useful measures of our
business and financial performance, and because such measures are frequently used by securities
analysts, investors and others to evaluate the operational performance of financial services businesses,
many of which provide such non-GAAP financial measures and other statistical and operational information
when reporting their financial results. However, these non-GAAP financial measures and other statistical
and other information relating to our operations and financial performance are not standardised terms, may
not be comparable to financial measures and statistical information of similar nomenclature that may be
computed and presented by other banks, NBFCs, HFCs, and financial institutions in India or elsewhere,
limiting their usefulness as a comparative measure.

The bankruptcy code in India may affect our rights to recover loans from our customers.

The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“IBC”) was notified on August 5, 2016. The IBC offers a uniform
and comprehensive insolvency legislation encompassing all companies, partnerships and individuals (other
than financial firms). It allows creditors to assess the viability of a debtor as a business decision and agree
upon a plan for its revival or a speedy liquidation. The IBC creates a new institutional framework, consisting
of a regulator, insolvency professionals, information utilities and adjudicatory mechanisms, which will
facilitate a formal and time-bound insolvency resolution and liquidation process.

In case insolvency proceedings are initiated against our debtor, we may not have complete control over the
recovery of amounts due to us. Under the IBC, upon invocation of an insolvency resolution process, a
committee of creditors is constituted by the interim resolution professional, wherein each financial creditor is
given a voting share proportionate to the debts owed to it. Certain decisions of the committee of creditors must
be taken by a vote of not less than 75% of the voting share of all financial creditors. Any resolution plan
approved by committee of creditors is binding upon all creditors, even if they vote against it.

In case a liquidation process is opted for, the IBC provides for a fixed order of priority in which proceeds from
the sale of the debtor's assets are to be distributed. Before sale proceeds are distributed to a secured creditor,
they are to be distributed for the costs of the insolvency resolution and liquidation processes and debts owed
to workmen and other employees. Further, under this process, dues owed to the Central and State
Governments rank below the claims of secured creditors, workmen and other employee dues and unsecured
financial creditors. Pursuant to an amendment to the IBC, allottees in a real estate project are considered on
par with financial creditors. Moreover, other secured creditors may decide to opt out of the process, in which
case they are permitted to realize their security interests in priority. Accordingly, if the provisions of the IBC
are invoked against any of our customers, it may affect our ability to recover our loans from the borrowers
and enforcement of our rights will be subject to the IBC.

We do not own all our branch offices. Any termination or failure by us to renew the lease agreements
in a favourable and timely manner, or at all, could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition. Moreover, many of the lease agreements entered
into by us may not be duly registered or adequately stamped.

To support our offerings, we had a network of 215 branches as at June 30, 2024, spread across 20 states
and three union territories. Most of these branch offices are located on leased premises. For further details,
see “Our Business — Properties” on page 241. The lease agreements can be terminated, and any such
termination could result in any of our offices being shifted or shut down.

While we have not faced any issues in renewing the leases of our offices in the past, if these lease
agreements are not renewed or not renewed on terms favorable to us, we may suffer a disruption in our
operations or increased costs, or both, which may affect our business and results of operations. Further,
some of our lease agreements may not be adequately stamped or duly registered. Unless such documents
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are adequately stamped or duly registered, such documents may be rendered inadmissible as evidence in
a court in India or may not be authenticated by any public officer and the same may attract penalty as
prescribed under applicable law or may impact our ability to enforce these agreements legally, which may
result in an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our earnings, financial condition, working
capital requirements, capital expenditures, restrictive covenants of our financing arrangements and
compliance with applicable laws.

Being an unlisted company and wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finance Limited, we have not declared
any dividends in the past and our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on profits earned during
the financial year, capital adequacy ratio, future capital requirements, working capital requirements, capital
expenditure, regulatory restrictions and restrictive covenants of our financing arrangements. Any future
determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends will be at the discretion of our Board and will
depend on factors that our Board deems relevant, including among others, profits earned during the financial
year, capital adequacy ratio, future capital requirements, and any other factors and material events which
the Board may consider. Additionally, our ability to pay dividends may also be restricted by regulatory
restriction and the terms of financing arrangements that we may enter. For further details, see “Dividend
Policy” on page 283.

Furthermore, no dividend distribution tax is required to be paid in respect of dividends declared, distributed or
paid by a domestic company after March 31, 2020 and, accordingly, such dividends would not be exempt in
the hands of the Shareholders both for residents as well as non-residents. Our Company may or may not
grant the benefit of a tax treaty (where applicable) to a non-resident Shareholder for the purposes of deducting
tax at source pursuant to any corporate action, including dividends.

Significant or adverse changes by the Government, Reserve Bank of India or National Housing Bank
in their policy initiatives facilitating the provision of housing and housing finance or any change in
the tax incentives that the Government currently provides to housing finance companies may have
an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The laws and regulations governing the housing finance industry in India have become increasingly complex
and cover a wide variety of issues. Compliance with many of the regulations applicable to our operations in
India, including any restrictions on investments and other activities currently being carried out by us, involves
a number of risks, particularly in markets where applicable regulations may be subject to varying
interpretations.

On February 17, 2021, RBI issued the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial Company — Housing Finance
Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021 (“RBI Master Directions”) in supersession of, inter alia, the Master
Circular - Housing Finance Companies (NHB) Directions, 2010 and the RBI notification on Review of regulatory
framework for Housing Finance Companies (HFCs) dated October 22, 2020. Accordingly, activities of HFCs, are
primarily regulated by the RBI Master Directions, including various aspects of our business such as what
constitutes housing finance and housing finance company, net owned fund requirement, capital adequacy,
sourcing of funds, on-boarding of customers, credit approval and risk management and asset classification and
provisioning. Certain other generally applicable legislations also regulate other aspects of our business such as
recovery of debt and taxation.

The Government of India provides certain incentives and implemented various policies/regulations to
encourage providing credit to the housing industry. In addition, the RBI provides certain incentives to the
housing finance industry by extending priority sector status to certain housing loans. However, we cannot
assure you that the Government, the RBI and the NHB will continue to provide such incentives in the future.
Further, pursuant to Section 36(1)(viii) of the (Indian) Income Tax Act, 1961 (the “Income Tax Act”), up to
20% of profits from housing finance activities may be carried to a special reserve and will not be subject to
income tax. The balance of our special reserve as at June 30, 2024 was %5,254.0 million.

Any significant change by the Government in its various policy initiatives, regulations facilitating provision
of housing and housing finance or any change in the tax incentives that it currently provides to HFCs may
have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

A portion of the proceeds from this Offer will not be available to us.

As this Offer includes an Offer for Sale of Equity Shares by the Promoter Selling Shareholder, the proceeds
from the Offer for Sale will be remitted to the Promoter Selling Shareholder and our Company will not benefit
from such proceeds. For details in relation to the Offer, see “The Offer’ and “Objects of the Offer’ on pages
81 and 110, respectively.
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The housing finance industry is highly competitive and if we are not able to compete effectively, it
could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and compete with banks, HFCs, small finance banks and NBFCs
in the geographies in which we operate. Our competitors may have more resources, a wider branch and
distribution network, access to cheaper funding, superior technology and may have a better understanding
of and relationships with customers in these markets. Our competitors may also have access to more leads
sourced from online channels and intermediaries. This may make it easier for our competitors to expand
and to achieve economies of scale to a greater extent. In addition, our competitors may be able to rely on
the reach of the retail presence of their affiliated group companies or banks. Competition in this market
segment has also increased as a result of other liberalization measures affecting the housing finance
industry in India and we expect competition to intensify in the future.

Our ability to compete effectively will depend, in part, on our ability to maintain or increase our margins. Our
margins are affected in part by our ability to continue to secure low-cost debt funding, and to charge optimum
interest rates when lending to our customers. Consequently, our ability to maintain or increase our margins
will be dependent on our ability to pass on increases in the interest rates on our interest-bearing liabilities to
our customers. Moreover, any increases in the interest rates on the loans we extend may also result in a
decrease in business as it can result in early foreclosure or prepayment by customers. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to react effectively to these or other market developments or compete effectively with
new and existing players in the increasingly competitive housing finance industry. If we are unable to compete
effectively, our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition may be adversely affected.

The growth rate of India's housing finance industry may not be sustainable.

According to the CRISIL MI&A Report (page 185 herein), the overall housing segment is expected to grow
at a CAGR of 13-15% from Fiscal 2024 to 2027 and the Government of India has been pursuing various
social welfare schemes and initiatives to enhance the flow of credit to the housing sector and increase home
ownership in India. However, it is not clear how certain trends and events, such as the development of
domestic capital markets and the ongoing reform will affect India's housing finance industry. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the housing finance industry in India is free from systemic risks.
Consequently, there can be no assurance that the growth and development of India's housing finance
industry will be sustainable. As our underlying collateral is residential and commercial property which
depends on the real estate market performance and any slowdown or reversal of the growth of India’s
housing finance industry may affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Any downturn in the macroeconomic environment in India could adversely affect our profitability,
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

We are incorporated in India and all of our business operations and assets are located in India. As a result,
our results of operations and financial condition are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian
economy, which would include any downturn in the global economy or financial instability in other countries.
Any slowdown in economic growth in India could adversely affect us, including our ability to grow our
business operations and financial asset portfolio, the quality of our assets and our ability to implement our
strategy. Factors that may adversely impact the Indian economy, and hence our results of operations, may
include:

. any increase in Indian interest rates or inflation;

. any exchange rate fluctuations, imposition of currency controls and restrictions on the right to
convert or repatriate currency or export assets;

. any scarcity of credit or other financing in India, resulting in an adverse impact on economic
conditions in India and scarcity of financing for our expansions;

. changes in India’s tax, trade, fiscal or monetary policies;
. political instability, terrorism or military conflict in the states that we operate or in India or in countries

in the region or globally, including in India’s various neighbouring countries, such as conflict
between Ukraine and Russia and the Israel-Hamas war;

. macroeconomic factors and central bank regulation, including in relation to interest rates
movements which may in turn adversely impact our access to capital and increase our borrowing
costs;

. communication challenges;
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. occurrence of natural or man-made disasters or outbreak of an infectious diseases, such as COVID-
19 or any other force majeure events;

. prevailing income conditions among Indian customers and Indian corporations;
. prevailing regional or global economic conditions, including in India’s principal export markets; and
. any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency.

Furthermore, an increase in India’s trade deficit, a downgrading in India’s sovereign debt rating or a decline
in India’s foreign exchange reserves could increase interest rates and adversely affect liquidity, which could
adversely affect the Indian economy and thereby, our profitability, business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition.

Financial instability in other countries may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other
countries, particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in each
country, investors' reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of
companies in other countries, including India. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other
emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian
economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian
economy. Financial disruptions may occur again and could harm our business, our future financial
performance and the price of the Equity Shares.

Any adverse change in India's credit rating by an international rating agency could materially
adversely affect our business and profitability.

India's sovereign rating is Baa3 with a “stable” outlook (Moody’s), BBB- with a “positive” outlook (S&P) and
BBB- with a stable outlook (Fitch).India's sovereign rating could be downgraded due to various factors,
including changes in tax or fiscal policy or a decline in India's foreign exchange reserves, which are outside
our control. Any adverse change in India's credit ratings by international rating agencies may adversely
impact the Indian economy and consequently our ability to raise additional financing in a timely manner or
at all, as well as the interest rates and other commercial terms at which such additional financing is available.
This could have an adverse effect on our business and financial performance, ability to obtain financing for
capital expenditures and the price of the Equity Shares.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax
laws and regulations, may materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash
flows and financial condition.

The regulatory environment in which we operate is evolving and is subject to change. Governmental and
regulatory bodies in India and other countries may enact new regulations or policies, which may require us
to obtain approvals and licenses from applicable governments and other regulatory bodies or impose
onerous requirements and conditions on our operations. Consequently, our business and financial
performance could be materially adversely affected by changes in the laws, rules, regulations or directions
applicable to us and the housing finance business, or the interpretations of such existing laws, rules and
regulations, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations.

The governmental and regulatory bodies may notify new regulations and/ or policies, which may require us
to obtain approvals and licenses from the government and other regulatory bodies, impose onerous
requirements and conditions on our operations, in addition to those which we are undertaking currently, or
change the manner in which we conduct KYC or authenticate our customers. Any such changes and the
related uncertainties with respect to the implementation of new regulations may have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

In addition, unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing rules and regulations including foreign
investment laws governing our business, operations and investments in our Company by non-residents,
could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and/ or may require us to apply for
additional approvals.

The Income Tax Act was amended vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 on September 20,
2019 to provide domestic companies an option to pay corporate income tax at the effective rate of
approximately 25.17% (inclusive of applicable surcharge and health and education cess), as compared to
effective rate of 34.94% (inclusive of applicable surcharge and health and education cess), provided such
companies do not claim certain specified deductions or exemptions. Further, where a company has opted to
pay the reduced corporate tax rate, the minimum alternate tax provisions would not be applicable. Any such
future amendments may affect our ability to claim exemptions that we have historically benefited from, and
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such exemptions may no longer be available to us. Any adverse order passed by the appellate authorities,
tribunals or courts would have an effect on our profitability.

Further, with the implementation of GST, we are obligated to pass on any benefits accruing to us as result
of the transition to GST to the consumer thereby limiting our benefits. In order for us to utilise input credit
under GST, the entire value chain has to be GST compliant, including us. Any such failure may result in
increased cost on account of non-compliance with the GST and may adversely affect our business and
results of operations.

Further, the Gol has notified the Finance Act, 2024 (“Finance Act’) which has introduced various
amendments to the Income Tax Act. In addition, unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or
the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations including foreign investment laws governing our
business, operations, and group structure could result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such
laws or may require us to apply for additional approvals. We may incur increased costs relating to
compliance with such new requirements, which may also require management time and other resources,
and any failure to comply may adversely affect our business, results of operations and prospects.
Uncertainty in the applicability, interpretation or implementation of any amendment to, or change in,
governing law, regulation or policy, including by reason of an absence, or a limited body, of administrative
or judicial precedent, may be time consuming as well as costly for us to resolve and may affect the viability
of our current business or restrict our ability to grow our business in the future. For instance, the Supreme
Court of India has in a decision clarified the components of basic wages which need to be considered by
companies while making provident fund payments, which resulted in an increase in the provident fund
payments to be made by companies. Any such decisions in future or any further changes in interpretation
of laws may have an impact on our results of operations.

We are subject to various labour laws and regulations governing our relationships with our employees and
contractors, including in relation to minimum wages, working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and
terminating the contracts of employees and contractors, contract labour and work permits. A change of law that
requires us to increase the benefits to the employees from the benefits now being provided may create potentially
liability for us. Such benefits could also include provisions which reduce the number of hours an employee may
work for or increase in number of mandatory casual leaves, which all can affect the productivity of the employees.
Moreover, a change of law that requires us to treat and extend benefits to our outsourced personnel, and
personnel retained on a contractual basis, similar to our full-time employees may create potential liability for us.
If we fail to comply with current and future health and safety and labour laws and regulations at all times, including
obtaining relevant statutory and regulatory approvals, this could materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

India's existing credit information infrastructure may cause increased risks of loan defaults.

India's existing credit information infrastructure may pose problems and difficulties in running a robust credit
check on our borrowers. We may also face difficulties in the due diligence process relating to our customers
or to any security or collateral we take in relation to our loans. We may not be able to run comprehensive
searches relating to the security and there are no assurances that any searches we undertake will be
accurate or reliable. Hence, our overall credit analysis could be less robust as compared to similar
transactions in more developed economies, which might result in an increase in our NPAs and we may have
to increase our provisions correspondingly. Any of the foregoing may have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Financial difficulty and other problems in certain financial institutions in India could adversely affect
our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

Our Company, as a HFC, are subject to the risks faced by the Indian financial system as a whole, which
may be affected by the financial difficulties faced by certain Indian financial institutions because the
commercial soundness of many financial institutions may be closely related as a result of credit, trading,
clearing or other relationships. This risk, which may be referred to as “systemic risk”, may adversely affect
financial intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, banks, securities firms and exchanges with whom we
have lasting relationships and who may default on their obligations due to bankruptcy, lack of liquidity,
operational failure or other reasons. Any such difficulties or instability of the Indian financial system in
general could create an adverse market perception about Indian financial institutions and banks and hence,
could adversely affect our business. Systemic risk could lead to volatility in the Indian debt and equity
markets and heighten investors’ concerns about the systemic risks that Indian financial institutions face,
which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. A
number of Indian financial institutions have faced financial difficulties.

Investors may have difficulty enforcing foreign judgments in India against us or our management.

Our Company is incorporated under the laws of India. Our Company’s assets are located in India and all of
our Company’s Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel are residents of
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India. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process upon our Company or
such persons in jurisdictions outside India, or to enforce against them judgments obtained in courts outside
India. Moreover, it is unlikely that a court in India would award damages on the same basis as a foreign
court if an action were brought in India or that an Indian court would enforce foreign judgments if it viewed
the amount of damages as excessive or inconsistent with Indian public policy. A party seeking to enforce a
foreign judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from the RBI under the FEMA to repatriate any
amount recovered, and such approval may not be forthcoming. The recognition and enforcement of foreign
judgments in India are governed by Sections 13 and 44A of Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 (“Civil Code”),
which provide that a suit must be brought in India within three years of the date of the judgment sought to
be enforced. Generally, there are considerable delays in the disposal of suits by Indian courts. Furthermore,
enforcement of foreign arbitral awards is governed under Sections 48, 49, 55 and 57 of the Arbitration and
Conciliation Act, 1996. However, the courts may refuse to enforce such awards if the courts find that the
subject matter of the dispute is not capable of being settled under the laws of India or if the enforcement
would be contrary to the public policy of India.

Significant differences exist between Ind AS and other accounting principles, such as US GAAP and
IFRS, which may be material to investors' assessments of our financial condition.

The financial statements included in this Prospectus have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS. We
have not attempted to quantify the impact of US GAAP or IFRS on the financial data included in this
Prospectus, nor do we provide a reconciliation of our financial statements to those of US GAAP or IFRS.
US GAAP and IFRS differ in significant respects from Ind AS. Accordingly, the degree to which the Ind AS
financial statements, which are restated as per the SEBI ICDR Regulations included in this Prospectus, will
provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the reader's level of familiarity with Indian
accounting practices. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian accounting practices on the financial
disclosures presented in this Prospectus should be limited accordingly.

Natural or man-made disasters, fires, epidemics, pandemics, acts of war, terrorist attacks, civil
unrest and other events could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations,
cash flows and financial condition.

Natural disasters (such as flooding and earthquakes), epidemics, pandemics such as COVID-19 and man-
made disasters, including acts of war, terrorist attacks and other events, many of which are beyond our
control, may lead to economic instability, including in India or globally, which may in turn materially and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our operations may be
adversely affected by fires, natural disasters and/or severe weather, which can result in damage to our
properties and may require us to suspend operations. Any terrorist attacks or civil unrest as well as other
adverse social, economic and political events in India or other countries could have a negative effect on us.
Such incidents could also create a greater perception that investment in Indian companies involves a higher
degree of risk and could have an adverse effect on our business and the price of the Equity Shares. A
number of countries in Asia, including India, as well as countries in other parts of the world, are susceptible
to contagious diseases and, for example, have had confirmed cases of diseases such as the highly
pathogenic H7N9, H5N1 and H1N1 strains of influenza in birds and swine and more recently, the COVID-
19 virus. Future outbreaks of the COVID-19 virus or a similar contagious disease could adversely affect the
global economy and economic activity in the region. As a result, any present or future outbreak of a
contagious disease could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

The short and long-term implications of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, the Israel-Hamas war and the Iran-
Israel conflict are difficult to predict at this time. To date, we have not experienced any material interruptions
in our business operations in connection with these conflicts. We continue to monitor any adverse impact
that the outbreak of war in Ukraine, the subsequent institution of sanctions against Russia by the United
States and several European and Asian countries, and the Israel-Hamas war or the Iran-Israel conflict may
have on the global economy in general, on our business and operations our customers and other third
parties with whom we conduct business. To the extent the wars in Ukraine or Israel or the conflict between
Iran and Israel may adversely affect our business as discussed above, it may also have the effect of
heightening many of the other risks described herein.

We may be affected by competition laws, the adverse application or interpretation of which could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition.

The Competition Act, 2002, of India, as amended (“Competition Act’), regulates practices having an
appreciable adverse effect on competition in the relevant market in India (“AAEC”). Under the Competition
Act, any formal or informal arrangement, understanding, or action in concert, which causes or is likely to
cause an AAEC is considered void and may result in the imposition of substantial penalties. Further, any
agreement among competitors which directly or indirectly involves the determination of purchase or sale
prices, limits or controls production, supply, markets, technical development, investment, or the provision of
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services or shares the market or source of production or provision of services in any manner, including by
way of allocation of geographical area or number of customers in the relevant market or directly or indirectly
results in bid-rigging or collusive bidding is presumed to have an AAEC and is considered void. The
Competition Act also prohibits abuse of a dominant position by any enterprise.

On April 11, 2023, the Competition (Amendment) Bill 2023 received the assent of the President of India to
become the Competition (Amendment) Act, 2023 (“Competition Amendment Act’) amending the
Competition Act and giving the CCI additional powers to prevent practices that harm competition and the
interests of consumers. It has been enacted to increase the ease of doing business in India and enhance
transparency. The Competition Amendment Act, inter alia, modifies the scope of certain factors used to
determine AAEC, reduces the overall time limit for the assessment of combinations by the CCIl and
empowers the CCI to impose penalties based on the global turnover of entities, for anti-competitive
agreements and abuse of dominant position.

The Competition Act aims to, among others, prohibit all agreements and transactions which may have an
AAEC in India. Consequently, all agreements entered by us could be within the purview of the Competition
Act. Further, the CCI has extraterritorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct, or
combination occurring outside India if such agreement, conduct, or combination has an AAEC in India.
However, the impact of the provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements entered by us cannot be
predicted with certainty at this stage. We may be affected, directly or indirectly, by the application or
interpretation of any provision of the Competition Act, or any enforcement proceedings initiated by the CCI, or
any adverse publicity that may be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition or
substantial penalties are levied under the Competition Act, it would adversely affect our business, results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition.

RISKS RELATING TO THE EQUITY SHARES AND THE ISSUE
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The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares for our Promoter Selling Shareholder may be lower
than the Offer Price.

The average cost of acquisition of the Promoter Selling Shareholder for 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares is %
12.2, which may be lower than the Offer Price. For details, see “Basis for Offer Price” and “Capital Structure”
on pages 116 and 98, respectively. The Offer Price is not indicative of the price at which our Company has
issued the Equity Shares in the past or that will prevail in the open market following listing of the Equity
Shares.

Our Company has issued Equity Shares during the preceding one year at a price that may be below
the Offer Price.

In the preceding one year from the date of this Prospectus, our Company has issued Equity Shares at a
price that may be lower than the Offer Price. For details of the issued Equity Shares in the preceding one
year from the date of this Prospectus, see “Capital Structure — Notes to Capital Structure — 1. Equity Share
capital history of our Company — Primary issuances of Equity Shares” on page 99. The price at which Equity
Shares have been issued by our Company in the preceding one year is not indicative of the price at which
they will be issued or traded after listing.

The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and the Offer
Price of the Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of the Equity Shares after the
Offer. Further, the current market price of some securities listed pursuant to certain previous issues
managed by the Book Running Lead Managers is below their respective issue prices.

The determination of the Price Band is based on various factors and assumptions and will be determined
by our Company in consultation with the BRLMs. Furthermore, the Offer Price of the Equity Shares will be
determined by our Company in consultation with the BRLMs through the Book Building Process. These will
be based on numerous factors, including factors as described under “Basis for Offer Price” on page 116
and may not be indicative of the market price for the Equity Shares after the Offer.

The market price of the Equity Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations after the Offer and may
decline below the Offer Price. We cannot assure you that the investor will be able to resell their Equity Shares
at or above the Offer Price resulting in a loss of all or part of the investment. The relevant financial parameters
based on which the Price Band would be determined shall be disclosed in the advertisement to be issued for
publication of the Price Band. For further details, see “Basis for Offer Price” on page 116.

Further, there can be no assurance that our key performance indicators (“KPIs”) shall become higher than
our listed comparable industry peers in the future. An inability to improve, maintain or compete, or any
reduction in such KPIs in comparison with the listed comparable industry peers may adversely affect the
market price of the Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that our methodologies are correct or will not
change and accordingly, our position in the market may differ from that presented in this Prospectus.
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The disposal of Equity Shares by our Promoters or any of our Company’s other principal shareholders or
the perception that such issuance or sales may occur, including to comply with the minimum public
shareholding norms applicable to listed companies in India may adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares. We cannot assure you that our Promoters and other major shareholders will not dispose of,
pledge or encumber their Equity Shares in the future. Further, we cannot assure you that the disposal of
the Equity Shares in the future, if any, by our Promoters or other major shareholders will not be at a price
higher than the Offer Price.

In addition to the above, the current market price of securities listed pursuant to certain previous initial public
offerings managed by the BRLMs is below their respective issue price. For further details, see “Other Regulatory
and Statutory Disclosures — Price information of past issues handled by the BRLMs” on page 476. The factors
that could affect the market price of the Equity Shares include, among others, broad market trends, financial
performance, results of our Company post-listing, and other factors beyond our control. We cannot assure you
that an active market will develop or sustained trading will take place in the Equity Shares or provide any
assurance regarding the price at which the Equity Shares will be traded after listing.

Subsequent to listing of the Equity Shares, we may be subject to pre-emptive surveillance measures
like Additional Surveillance Measure and Graded Surveillance Measures by the Stock Exchanges in
order to enhance market integrity and safeguard the interest of investors.

SEBI and the Stock Exchanges, in the past, have introduced various pre-emptive surveillance measures
with respect to the shares of listed companies in India (the “Listed Securities”) in order to enhance market
integrity, safeguard the interests of investors and potential market abuses. In addition to various surveillance
measures already implemented, and in order to further safeguard the interest of investors, the SEBI and
the Stock Exchanges have introduced additional surveillance measures (“ASM”) and graded surveillance
measures (“GSM”).

ASM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on Listed Securities with surveillance concerns based on certain
objective parameters such as price-to-earnings ratio, percentage of delivery, client concentration, variation in
volume of shares and volatility of shares, among other things. GSM is conducted by the Stock Exchanges on
Listed Securities where their price quoted on the Stock Exchanges is not commensurate with, among other
things, the financial performance and financial condition measures such as earnings, book value, fixed assets,
net-worth, other measures such as price-to-earnings multiple and market capitalisation.

Upon listing, the trading of our Equity Shares would be subject to differing market conditions as well as other
factors which may result in high volatility in price, and low trading volumes as a percentage of combined trading
volume of our Equity Shares. The occurrence of any of the abovementioned factors or other circumstances
may trigger any of the parameters prescribed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges for placing our securities
under the GSM and/or ASM framework or any other surveillance measures, which could result in significant
restrictions on trading of our Equity Shares being imposed by SEBI and the Stock Exchanges. These
restrictions may include requiring higher margin requirements, limiting trading frequency or freezing of price
on upper side of trading, as well as mentioning of our Equity Shares on the surveillance dashboards of the
Stock Exchanges. The imposition of these restrictions and curbs on trading may have an adverse effect on
market price, trading and liquidity of our Equity Shares and on the reputation and conditions of our Company.
Any such instance may result in a loss of our reputation and diversion of our management’s attention and
may also decrease the market price of our Equity Shares which could cause you to lose some or all of your
investment.

Rights of shareholders of companies under Indian law may be more limited than under the laws of
other jurisdictions.

Our Articles of Association, composition of our Board, Indian laws governing our corporate affairs, the
validity of corporate procedures, directors’ fiduciary duties, responsibilities and liabilities, and shareholders’
rights may differ from those that would apply to a company in another jurisdiction. Shareholders’ rights under
Indian law, including in relation to class actions, may not be as extensive and wide-spread as shareholders’
rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions. Investors may face challenges in asserting their
rights as shareholder in an Indian company than as a shareholder of an entity in another jurisdiction.

Investors may be subject to Indian taxes arising out of capital gains on the sale of the Equity Shares
and dividends paid on the Equity Shares.

Under current Indian tax laws, unless specifically exempted, capital gains arising from the sale of equity
shares held as investments in an Indian company are generally taxable in India. A securities transaction tax
(“STT”) is levied on equity shares sold on an Indian stock exchange. Any capital gain exceeding 100,000,
realized on the sale of listed equity shares on a recognised stock exchange, held for more than 12 months
may be subject to long-term capital gains tax in India at the rate of 10% (plus applicable surcharge and
cess). This beneficial provision is, inter alia, subject to payment of STT on both acquisition and sale of the
equity shares. Further any capital gain realised on the sale of listed equity shares of an Indian company,
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held for more than 12 months, which are sold using any platform other than a recognized stock exchange
and on which no STT has been paid, will be subject to long term capital gains tax in India at the rate of 10%
(plus applicable surcharge and cess), without indexation benefits.

Further, any gain realized on the sale of our Equity Shares held for a period of 12 months or less immediately
preceding the date of transfer, will be subject to short-term capital gains tax in India at the rate of 15% (plus
applicable surcharge and cess), subject to STT being paid at the time of sale of such shares. Otherwise,
such gains will be taxed at the applicable rates.

Capital gains arising from the sale of the Equity Shares will not be chargeable to tax in India in cases where
relief from such taxation in India is provided under a treaty between India and the country of which the seller
is resident read with the Multilateral Instrument, if and to the extent applicable, and the seller is entitled to
avail benefits thereunder. Generally, Indian tax treaties do not limit India’s ability to impose tax on capital
gains. As a result, residents of other countries may be liable for tax in India as well as in their own jurisdiction
on a gain realised upon the sale of the Equity Shares.

The stamp duty for transfer of certain securities, other than debentures, on a delivery basis is currently
specified at 0.015% and on a non-delivery basis is specified at 0.003% of the consideration amount.

Any dividends paid by an Indian company will be subject to tax in the hands of the shareholders at applicable
rates. Such taxes will be withheld by the Indian company paying dividends. The Company may or may not
grant the benefit of a tax treaty (where applicable) to a non-resident shareholder for the purposes of
deducting tax at source pursuant to any corporate action including dividends. Investors are advised to
consult their own tax advisors and to carefully consider the potential tax consequences of owning Equity
Shares. Unfavourable changes in or interpretations of existing, or the promulgation of new, laws, rules and
regulations including foreign investment and stamp duty laws governing our business and operations could
result in us being deemed to be in contravention of such laws and may require us to apply for additional
approvals.

Fluctuation in the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and foreign currencies may have an
adverse effect on the value of our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

On listing, our Equity Shares will be quoted in Indian Rupees on the Stock Exchanges. Any dividends in
respect of our Equity Shares will also be paid in Indian Rupees and subsequently converted into the relevant
foreign currency for repatriation, if required. Any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during the
time taken for such conversion and repatriation transaction charges incurred, if any, may reduce the net
dividend to foreign investors. In addition, any adverse movement in currency exchange rates during a delay
in repatriating the proceeds from a sale of Equity Shares outside India, for example, because of a delay in
regulatory approvals that may be required for the sale of Equity Shares may reduce the proceeds received
by Shareholders. For example, the exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and the U.S. dollar has
fluctuated substantially in recent years and may continue to fluctuate substantially in the future, which may
have an adverse effect on the returns on our Equity Shares, independent of our operating results.

Our Company’s Equity Shares have never been publicly traded and may experience price and
volume fluctuations following the completion of the Offer, an active trading market for the Equity
Shares may not develop, the price of our Equity Shares may be volatile may not be indicative of the
market price of the Equity Shares after the Offer and you may be unable to resell your Equity Shares
at or above the Offer Price or at all.

Prior to the Offer, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares, and an active trading market may
not develop or be sustained after the Offer. Listing and quotation does not guarantee that a market for our
Equity Shares will develop or, if developed, the liquidity of such market for the Equity Shares. The Offer
Price of the Equity Shares is proposed to be determined through a book building process and may not be
indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares at the time of commencement of trading of our Equity
Shares or at any time thereafter. Further, the price of the Equity Shares may be volatile, and the investors
may be unable to resell the Equity Shares at or above the Offer Price, or at all. The market price of the
Equity Shares may be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors, variations in
our operating results, market conditions specific to the industry we operate in, developments relating to
India and volatility in the Stock Exchanges and securities markets elsewhere in the world.

There has been significant volatility in the Indian stock markets in the recent past, and the trading price of
our Equity Shares after this Offer could fluctuate significantly as a result of market volatility or due to various
internal or external risks, including but not limited to those described in this Prospectus. The market price
of our Equity Shares may be influenced by many factors, some of which are beyond our control, including:

. failure of security analysts to cover the Equity Shares after this Offer, or changes in the estimates
of our performance by analysts;
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. activities of competitors and suppliers;

. future sales of the Equity Shares by us or our shareholders;

. investor perception of us and the industry in which we operate;

. our quarterly or annual earnings or those of our competitors;

. developments affecting fiscal, industrial or environmental regulations;

. the public's reaction to our press releases and adverse media reports; and
. general economic conditions.

Furthermore, a decrease in the market price of our Equity Shares could cause investors to lose some or all
of their investment. Significant events affecting listed companies within the Bajaj group could lead to volatility
in their share prices. Such fluctuations may also impact the valuation of our Company, reflecting in our share
price performance.

Investors will not be able to sell immediately on an Indian stock exchange any of the Equity Shares
they purchase in the Offer.

The Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchanges. Pursuant to applicable Indian laws, certain actions
must be completed before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading in the Equity Shares may commence.
Investors’ book entry, or ‘demat’ accounts with depository participants in India, are expected to be credited
within one working day of the date on which the Basis of Allotment is approved by the Stock Exchanges.
The Allotment of Equity Shares in the Offer and the credit of such Equity Shares to the applicant’s demat
account with depository participant could take approximately two Working Days from the Bid/Offer Closing
Date and trading in the Equity Shares upon receipt of final listing and trading approvals from the Stock
Exchanges is expected to commence within three Working Days of the Bid/Offer Closing Date. There could
be a failure or delay in listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Any failure or delay in obtaining
the approval or otherwise commence trading in the Equity Shares would restrict investors’ ability to dispose
of their Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that the Equity Shares will be credited to investors’ demat
accounts, or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence, within the time periods specified in this risk
factor. We could also be required to pay interest at the applicable rates if allotment is not made, refund
orders are not dispatched or demat credits are not made to investors within the prescribed time periods.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares or convertible securities or other equity linked instruments
by us may dilute your shareholding and sale of Equity Shares by the Promoters may adversely affect
the trading price of the Equity Shares.

We may be required to finance our growth, whether organic or inorganic, through future equity offerings.
Any future equity issuances by us, including a primary offering, convertible securities or securities linked to
Equity Shares including through exercise of employee stock options, may lead to the dilution of investors’
shareholdings in our Company. Any future equity issuances by us or disposal of our Equity Shares by the
Promoters or any of our other principal shareholders or any other change in our shareholding structure to
comply with minimum public shareholding norms applicable to listed companies in India or any public
perception regarding such issuance or sales may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares,
which may lead to other adverse consequences including difficulty in raising capital through offering of our
Equity Shares or incurring additional debt. There can be no assurance that we will not issue further Equity
Shares or that our existing shareholders including our Promoters will not dispose of further Equity Shares
after the completion of the Offer (subject to compliance with the lock-in provisions under the SEBI ICDR
Regulations) or pledge or encumber their Equity Shares. Any future issuances could also dilute the value
of shareholder’s investment in the Equity Shares and adversely affect the trading price of our Equity Shares.
Such securities may also be issued at prices below the Offer Price. We may also issue convertible debt
securities to finance our future growth or fund our business activities. In addition, any perception by investors
that such issuances or sales might occur may also affect the market price of our Equity Shares.

Under Indian law, foreign investors are subject to investment restrictions that limit our ability to
attract foreign investors, which may adversely affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Under foreign exchange regulations currently in force in India, transfer of shares between non-residents
and residents are freely permitted (subject to compliance with sectoral norms and certain other restrictions),
if they comply with the pricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the transfer of
shares, which are sought to be transferred, is not in compliance with such pricing guidelines or reporting
requirements or falls under any of the exceptions referred to above, then a prior regulatory approval will be
required. Further, unless specifically restricted, foreign investment is freely permitted in all sectors of the
Indian economy up to any extent and without any prior approvals, but the foreign investor is required to
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follow certain prescribed procedures for making such investment. The RBI and the concerned
ministries/departments are responsible for granting approval for foreign investment. Additionally,
shareholders who seek to convert Rupee proceeds from a sale of shares in India into foreign currency and
repatriate that foreign currency from India require a no-objection or a tax clearance certificate from the
Indian income tax authorities.

In addition, pursuant to the Press Note No. 3 (2020 Series), dated April 17, 2020, issued by the DPIIT, which
has been incorporated as the proviso to Rule 6(a) of the FEMA Rules, investments where the beneficial owner
of the Equity Shares is situated in or is a citizen of a country which shares land border with India, can only be
made through the Government approval route, as prescribed in the Consolidated FDI Policy dated October 15,
2020 and the FEMA Rules. We cannot assure you that any required approval from the RBI or any other
governmental agency can be obtained with or without any particular terms or conditions or at all.

For further information, see “Restrictions on Foreign Ownership of Indian Securities” on page 523.
Our ability to raise foreign capital may be constrained by Indian law.

As an Indian company, we are subject to exchange controls that regulate borrowing in foreign currencies.
Such regulatory restrictions limit our financing sources and could constrain our ability to obtain financings
on competitive terms and refinance existing indebtedness. In addition, we cannot assure you that any
required regulatory approvals for borrowing in foreign currencies will be granted to us without onerous
conditions, or at all. Limitations on foreign debt may have an adverse effect on our business growth, financial
condition and results of operations.

Qualified Institutional Buyers and Non-Institutional Investors are not permitted to withdraw or lower
their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a
Bid, and Retail Individual Investors are not permitted to withdraw their Bids after Bid/Offer Closing
Date.

Pursuant to the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Qualified Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”) and Non-Institutional
Investors are required to block the Bid amount on submission of the Bid and are not permitted to withdraw
or lower their Bids (in terms of quantity of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at any stage after submitting a
Bid. Retail Individual Investors can revise their Bids during the Bid/Offer Period and/or withdraw their Bids
until the Bid/Offer Closing date, but not thereafter. While we are required to complete all necessary
formalities for listing and commencement of trading of the Equity Shares on all Stock Exchanges where
such Equity Shares are proposed to be listed, including Allotment, within three Working Days from the
Bid/Offer Closing Date or such other period as may be prescribed by the SEBI, events affecting the
investors’ decision to invest in the Equity Shares, including adverse changes in international or national
monetary policy, financial, political or economic conditions, our business, results of operations, cash flows
or financial condition may arise between the date of submission of the Bid and Allotment. We may complete
the Allotment of the Equity Shares even if such events occur, and such events may limit the investors’ ability
to sell the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to the Offer or cause the trading price of the Equity Shares to
decline on listing. Therefore, QIBs and Non-Institutional Investors will not be able to withdraw or lower their
bids following adverse developments in international or national monetary policy, financial, political or
economic conditions, our business, results of operations, cash flows or otherwise between the dates of
submission of their Bids and Allotment.

Holders of Equity Shares may be restricted in their ability to exercise pre-emptive rights under
Indian law and thereby may suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, 2013 a company having share capital and incorporated in India must offer its
holders of equity shares pre-emptive rights to subscribe and pay for a proportionate number of equity shares
to maintain their existing ownership percentages before the issuance of any new equity shares, unless the
pre-emptive rights have been waived by adoption of a special resolution by holders of three-fourths of the
equity shares voting on such resolution. However, if the laws of the jurisdiction the investors are located in
does not permit them to exercise their pre-emptive rights without our filing an offering document or
registration statement with the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, the investors will be unable to
exercise their pre-emptive rights unless we make such a filing. If we elect not to file a registration statement,
the new securities may be issued to a custodian, who may sell the securities for the investor’s benefit. The
value the custodian receives on the sale of such securities and the related transaction costs cannot be
predicted. In addition, to the extent that the investors are unable to exercise pre-emption rights granted in
respect of the Equity Shares held by them, their proportional interest in us would be reduced.

A third-party could be prevented from acquiring control of us post this Offer, because of anti-
takeover provisions under Indian law.

As a listed Indian entity, there are provisions in Indian law that may delay, deter or prevent a future takeover
or change in control of our Company. Under the Takeover Regulations, an acquirer has been defined as
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any person who, directly or indirectly, acquires or agrees to acquire shares or voting rights or control over a
company, whether individually or acting in concert with others. Although these provisions have been
formulated to ensure that interests of investors/shareholders are protected, these provisions may also
discourage a third party from attempting to take control of our Company subsequent to completion of the
Offer. Consequently, even if a potential takeover of our Company would result in the purchase of the Equity
Shares at a premium to their market price or would otherwise be beneficial to our shareholders, such a
takeover may not be attempted or consummated because of SEBI Takeover Regulations.
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SECTION Ill: INTRODUCTION

THE OFFER

The following table summarises the Offer details:

Offer of Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each®®

937,142,856* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each aggregating
to %65,600.0 million*

of which:

(i) Fresh Issue®

508,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating
to ¥35,600.0 million*

(i) Offer for Sale®@

428,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating
to ¥30,000.0 million

Including

Employee Reservation Portion®)

28,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each aggregating to
¥ 2,000.0 million*

Shareholders Reservation Portion®

71,428,571* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each aggregating to
% 5,000.0 million

Accordingly

Net Offer

837,142,857* Equity Shares of face value of *10 each aggregating
to ¥58,600.0 million

The Net Offer consists of:

A) QIB Portion®®

418,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 310 each aggregating
to ¥29,300.0 million

of which:

Anchor Investor Portion(®

251,142,856* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each

Net QIB Portion (assuming Anchor Investor Portion is
fully subscribed)

167,428,572* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each

of which:

Available for allocation to Mutual Funds only (5% of the
Net QIB Portion)®)

8,371,429* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each

Balance of QIB Portion for all QIBs including Mutual
Funds

159,057,143* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each

B) Non-Institutional PortionX?)

Not less than 125,571,429* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each
aggregating to ¥8,790.0 million

Of which:

One-third of the Non-Institutional Portion available for
allocation to Bidders with an application size of more
than 200,000 and up to 1,000,000

41,857,143* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each

Two-thirds of the Non-Institutional Portion available for
allocation to Bidders with an application size of more
than %1,000,000

83,714,286* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each

C) Retail Portion®

Not less than 293,000,000* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each
aggregating to ¥20,510.0 million

Pre-Offer and post-Offer Equity Shares

Equity Shares outstanding prior to the Offer

7,819,575,273 Equity Shares of face value of 210 each

Equity Shares outstanding after the Offer

8,328,146,701* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each*

Use of proceeds of the Offer

See “Objects of the Offer” on page 110 for details regarding the use
of Net Proceeds. Our Company will not receive any proceeds from
the Offer for Sale.

*Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment

(1) The Offer has been authorised by our Board pursuant to the resolution passed at its meeting held on June 6, 2024 and our Shareholders
have authorised the Fresh Issue pursuant to a special resolution passed at their meeting held on June 6, 2024. Further, our Board has
taken on record the approval for the Offer for Sale by the Promoter Selling Shareholder pursuant to its resolution dated June 7, 2024.

@)

The Promoter Selling Shareholder has confirmed and authorized its participation in the Offer for Sale in relation to the Offered Shares. The

Promoter Selling Shareholder confirms that the Offered Shares were held by it for a period of at least one year prior to the filing of the Draft
Red Herring Prospectus with SEBI in accordance with Regulation 8 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations or are otherwise eligible for being offered
for sale in the Offer in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The details of such authorisation are provided below:

Name of the Selling Aggregate proceeds from

Maximum number of Date of board Date of consent

Shareholder Offer for Sale Offered Shares resolution/ letter
authorisation
Promoter Selling Shareholder
Bajaj Finance Limited <30,000.0 million 428,571,428 Equity Shares | June 7, 2024 June 7, 2024

of face value of ¥10 each

®

The Employee Reservation Portion did not exceed 5% of our post-Offer paid-up Equity Share capital. Any unsubscribed portion remaining

in the Employee Reservation Portion was added to the Net Offer. For further details, see “Offer Structure” on page 497. Unless the Employee
Reservation Portion was under-subscribed, the value of allocation to an Eligible Employee Bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion
was not to exceed £200,000. In the event of under-subscription in the Employee Reservation Portion (if any), the unsubscribed portion will
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4)

®)

Q)

™

®)

be available for allocation and Allotment, proportionately to all Eligible Employees who have Bid in excess of ¥200,000, subject to the
maximum value of Allotment made to such Eligible Employee not exceeding ¥500,000. The unsubscribed portion, if any, in the Employee
Reservation Portion (after such allocation up to ¥500,000), was added to the Net Offer. Further, an Eligible Employee Bidding in the
Employee Reservation Portion can also Bid in the Net Offer and such Bids will not be treated as multiple Bids subject to applicable limits.
Subiject to valid bids having been received at or above the Offer Price, under subscription, if any, in any category, except in the QIB Portion,
was allowed to be met with spill-over from any other category or combination of categories of Bidders at the discretion of our Company, in
consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers, and the Designated Stock Exchange, subject to applicable laws.

Our Company, in consultation with the BRLMs allocated up to 60% of the QIB Portion to Anchor Investors on a discretionary basis. One-
third of the Anchor Investor Portion could have been reserved for domestic Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids being received from domestic
Mutual Funds at or above the Anchor Investor Allocation Price. In the event of under-subscription or non-Allotment in the Anchor Investor
Portion, the remaining Equity Shares could have been added to the Net QIB Portion. Further, 5% of the Net QIB Portion could be available
for allocation on a proportionate basis to Mutual Funds only, and the remainder of the QIB Portion was made available for allocation on a
proportionate basis to all QIB Bidders (other than Anchor Investors), including Mutual Funds, subject to valid Bids having been received at
or above the Offer Price. However, if the aggregate demand from Mutual Funds is less than 8,371,429 Equity Shares, the balance Equity
Shares available for allotment in the Mutual Fund Portion would have been added to the QIB Portion and allocated proportionately to the
QIB Bidders (other than Anchor Investors) in proportion to their Bids. For details, see “Offer Procedure” on page 502. Allocation to all
categories was made available in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Allocation to Bidders in all categories except the Anchor Investor Portion, the Non-Institutional Portion and the Retail Portion, if any, was
made on a proportionate basis subject to valid Bids received at or above the Offer Price, as applicable. The allocation to each RIB was not
less than the minimum Bid Lot, subject to availability of Equity Shares in the Retail Portion, and the remaining available Equity Shares, if
any, was allocated on a proportionate basis. For further details, see “Offer Procedure” on page 502.

The Equity Shares available for allocation to Non-Institutional Bidders under the Non-Institutional Portion, was subject to the following: (i)
one-third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Bidders was reserved for applicants with an application size of more than 200,000
and up to 1,000,000, and (ii) two-third of the portion available to Non-Institutional Bidders were reserved for applicants with application
size of more than ¥1,000,000, provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the aforementioned sub-categories could have been
allocated to applicants in the other sub-category of Non-Institutional Bidders. The allotment to each Non-Institutional Bidder could not be
less than the minimum application size, subject to the availability of Equity Shares in the Non-Institutional Portion, and the remaining Equity
Shares, if any, were allotted on a proportionate basis in accordance with the conditions specified in this regard in Schedule XIII of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations

The Shareholders Reservation Portion did not exceed 0.9% of the post-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital, and in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations did not exceed 10% of the size of the Offer.

Allocation to Anchor Investors was made on a discretionary basis in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.
For further details, see “Offer Procedure” and “Offer Structure” on pages 502 and 497, respectively. For details of
the terms of the Offer, see “Terms of the Offer” on page 490.

82



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following tables set forth the summary financial information derived from the Restated Financial Information for
the Financial Years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and for the three month periods
ending June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023. The summary financial information presented below should be read in
conjunction with “Restated Financial Information” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 309 and 404, respectively.

(The remainder of this page has intentionally been left blank)
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SUMMARY OF RESTATED BALANCE SHEET

(Z in million)

Particulars As at
June 30, June 30, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 567.2 6,026.3 638.6 938.8 4,070.3
Bank balance other than cash and cash 15 15 15 149.9 1.4
equivalents
Derivative financial instruments 83.3 8.8 116.6 13.7 -
Receivables
Trade receivables 239.7 713 133.6 15.9 18.7
Other receivables - - - 3.6 0.1
Loans 852,832.0 663,344.9 793,007.5 621,138.9 464,820.7
Investments 26,560.5 25,892.2 19,385.7 20,009.1 12,482.7
Other financial assets 2,845.1 2,951.1 2,840.7 3,019.4 2,539.3
Total financial assets 8,83,129.3 6,98,296.1 816,124.2 645,289.3 483,933.2
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (net) 320.1 86.9 310.9 39.7 90.8
Deferred tax assets (net) 521.5 473.8 509.4 - 155.8
Property, plant and equipment 843.2 797.5 875.0 849.2 780.9
Intangible assets under development 6.6 14.4 8.7 3.1 14.6
Other intangible assets 334.7 264.6 353.6 280.7 191.1
Other non-financial assets 232.9 116.6 89.1 79.4 104.4
Total non-financial assets 2,259.0 1,753.8 2,146.7 1,252.1 1,337.6
Total assets 885,388.3 700,049.9 818,270.9 646,541.4 485,270.8
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 37.2 - 8.3 - -
Payables
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises - - - - 1.8
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 738.5 583.9 576.1 459.3 362.3
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other payables
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises - - - - -
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than 548.2 473.1 827.5 730.4 381.7
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Debt securities 294,346.1 226,027.9 266,453.3 199,149.2 164,891.5
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 437,163.0 357,776.8 422,997.3 336,547.0 244,931.7
Deposits 1,961.5 1,796.8 1,842.6 1,757.7 5,100.0
Other financial liabilities 2,2105 2,596.5 2,341.4 2,116.2 1,744.2
Total financial liabilities 737,005.0 589,255.0 695,046.5 540,759.8 417,413.2
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 521.7 723.4 259.3 161.7 200.6
Provisions 432.8 184.7 356.4 156.3 40.5
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - 282.7 -
Other non-financial liabilities 229.7 236.9 273.7 149.0 202.9
Total non-financial liabilities 1,184.2 1,145.0 889.4 749.7 444.0
EQUITY
Equity share capital 78,195.8 67,121.6 67,121.6 67,121.6 48,833.3
Other equity 69,003.3 42,528.3 55,2134 37,910.3 18,580.3
Total equity 147,199.1 109,649.9 122,335.0 105,031.9 67,413.6
Total liabilities and equity 885,388.3 700,049.9 818,270.9 646,541.4 485,270.8
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SUMMARY OF RESTATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(% in millions except otherwise stated)

Particulars For the For the For the For the For the
three three year ended | year ended | year ended
months months March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
period period 2024 2023 2022
ended June | ended June
30, 2024 30, 2023

Revenue from Operations
Interest income 20,635.4 16,669.5 72,023.6 52,692.4 34,817.5
Fees and commission income 567.9 330.8 1,382.3 862.2 818.5
Net gain on fair value changes 507.0 356.2 1,332.0 1,120.4 589.7
Sale of services 229.5 164.7 524.8 502.9 1,420.2
Income on derecognised (assigned) loans 27.1 74.4 530.8 1,348.0 -
Other operating income 119.6 36.9 379.6 121.4 21.2
Total revenue from operations 22,086.5 17,632.5 76,173.1 56,647.3 37,667.1
Other income 0.8 1.3 4.0 7.1 4.2
Total income 22,087.3 17,633.8 76,177.1 56,654.4 37,671.3
Expenses
Finance costs 13,987.6 10,621.5 46,926.1 32,113.2 21,553.1
Fees and commission expense 29.7 29.1 117.1 140.3 46.8
Impairment on financial instruments 100.4 67.4 608.8 1,235.0 1,810.7
Employee benefits expense 1,134.2 1,142.4 4,656.3 4.351.4 3,489.4
Depreciation and amortisation 99.1 96.9 396.0 334.0 257.6
Other expenses 437.5 414.1 1,859.6 1,479.9 915.1
Total expenses 15,788.5 12,371.4 54,563.9 39,653.8 28,072.7
Profit before tax 6,298.8 5,262.4 21,613.2 17,000.6 9,598.6
Tax expense
Current tax 1,486.9 1,400.9 5,090.0 3,998.0 2,504.0
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (14.2) (756.5) (789.0) 424.6 (1.6)
Total tax expense 1,472.7 644.4 4,301.0 4,422.6 2,502.4
Profit after tax 4,826.1 4,618.0 17,312.2 12,578.0 7,096.2
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
FI?lil-nnsweasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit - - (19.3) 55.4 (6.4)
Income tax impact on above - - 4.9 (13.9) 1.6
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on investment 8.4 - 71 ) )
measured at FVOCI )
Income tax impact on above (2.2) - (1.8) - -
Other comprehensive income for the period/year 6.3 - ©.1) 415 (4.8)
(net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the period/year 4,832.4 4,618.0 17,303.1 12,619.5 7,091.4
Earnings per equity share (face value of ¥ 10 each)
Basic () 0.6 0.7 2.6 1.9 15
Diluted (%) 0.6 0.7 2.6 1.9 1.5
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SUMMARY OF RESTATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Z in million)

Particulars For the For the For the For the For the
three three year ended | year ended | year ended
months months March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
period period 2024 2023 2022
ended June |ended June
30, 2024 30, 2023
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 6,298.8 5,262.4 21,613.2 17,000.6 9,598.6
Adjustments for:
Interest income (20,635.4)| (16,669.5)| (72,023.6)| (52,692.4)| (34,817.5)
Depreciation and amortisation 99.1 96.9 396.0 334.0 257.6
Impairment on financial instruments 100.4 67.4 608.8 1,235.0 1,810.7
Provision no longer required written back - - - - (0.5)
Share based payment expenses 32.7 - - - -
Finance costs 13,987.6 10,621.5 46,926.1 32,113.2 21,553.1
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 2.6 (0.5) 7.7 7.0 4.8
I%zrr\]/éce fees for management of assigned portfolio of (195.6) (121.9) (371.1) (224.9) (1,125.3)
Income on derecognised (assigned) loans (27.1) (74.4) (530.8) (1,348.0) -
Net gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (507.0) (356.2) (1,332.0) (1,120.4) (589.7)
(843.9) (1,174.3) (4,705.7) (4,695.9) (3,308.2)
Cash inflow from interest on loans 19,926.4 16,063.1 68,865.7 50,405.0 34,760.5
Cash inflow from receivables on assignment of loans 231.0 250.4 1,027.2 1,046.4 571.3
Cash outflow towards finance cost (11,835.5) (9,142.9)| (44,567.7)| (31,036.2)| (25,025.9)
Cash generated from operation before working
capital changes 7,478.0 5,996.3 20,619.5 15,719.3 6,997.7
Working capital changes:
(Increase) / dt_acrease in Bank balances other than cash ) 148 4 148.4 (148.5) 2.498.9
and cash equivalents
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (106.6) (55.6) (118.1) 2.7 37.2
(Increase) / decrease in other receivables - 3.6 3.6 (3.5) 0.1
(Increase) in loans (59,656.2) | (41,928.4)| (170,472.7)| (155,849.8)| (132,566.5)
Decrease in other financial assets (11.7) 10.5 40.1 39.6 155.1
(Increase) / decrease in other non-financial assets (143.8) (17.0) (10.0) 155 33.2
Increase in trade payables 162.4 124.6 116.8 95.2 155.6
Increase in other payables (279.3) (257.3) 97.1 348.7 168.9
Increase in other financial liabilities (111.0) 532.5 252.3 331.6 149.5
Increase in provisions 76.4 28.4 180.8 171.2 11.2
Increase / (decrease) in other non-financial liabilities (44.0) 87.9 124.7 (53.9) (22.7)
(52,635.8)| (35,326.1)| (149,017.5)| (139,331.9)| (122,381.8)
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (1,233.7) (886.4) (5,263.6) (3,985.8) (2,423.5)
Net cash (used in) operating activities (I) (53,869.5)| (36,212.5)| (154,281.1)| (143,317.7)| (124,805.3)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (42.5) (65.8) (256.2) (203.7) (184.1)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 13.9 5.0 33.0 38.7 16.3
Purchase of intangible assets and intangible assets (5.9) (16.9) (173.8) (134.3) (107.1)
under development
Purchase of investments measured under FVTPL (132,946.2)| (86,086.9)| (365,675.5)| (430,358.6)| (331,338.0)
Sale of investments measured under FVTPL 126,440.0 80,691.1 373,008.9 424,080.9 348,318.8
E(L)Jsrtchase of investments measured under amortised (20,994.8) -l (61,396.7) .| (49,000.0)
Sale of investments measured under amortised cost 20,994.8 - 61,396.7 - 54,000.0
Purchase of investments measured under FVOCI - - (5,149.6) - -
Interest received on investments 286.6 134.1 946.3 462.6 267.3
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing|  ¢.c,1)| (53394)| 27331| (6,114.4)| 21,9732
activities (II)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue_ of equity share capital (including securities 19,999.0 ) ) 24.998.8 )
premium)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 98,912.7 69,413.2 239,871.2 266,572.2 155,974.0
Repayments towards long term borrowings (43,032.8)| (21,617.8)| (118,178.7)| (107,374.2)| (69,233.9)
Short term borrowings (net) (15,878.1) (1,129.7) 29,613.3| (34,351.1) 10,549.9
Deposits (other than public deposits) (net) 85.7 8.2 80.5 (3,406.8) 5,100.0
Payment of lease liability (34.3) (34.5) (138.5) (138.3) (105.4)
Net cash generated from financing activities (lll) 60,052.2 46,639.4 151,247.8 146,300.6 102,284.6
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Particulars For the For the For the For the For the
three three year ended | year ended | year ended
months months March 31, | March 31, | March 31,
period period 2024 2023 2022
ended June |ended June
30, 2024 30, 2023
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1+11+111) (71.4) 5,087.5 (300.2) (3,131.5) (547.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 638.6 938.8 938.8 4,070.3 4,617.8
S:asrh and cash equivalents at the end of the period/ 567.2 6,026.3 638.6 938.8 4,070.3
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand - - - - -
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 567.2 6,026.3 638.6 938.8 1,563.5
Fixed Deposit (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 2,506.8
Total 567.2 6,026.3 638.6 938.8 4,070.3
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Corporate Identity Number: U65910PN2008PLC132228
Company Registration Number: 132228
Registered Office of our Company

Bajaj Auto Limited Complex
Mumbai - Pune Road, Akurdi
Pune 411 035

Maharashtra, India

Corporate Office of our Company

5t Floor, B2 Cerebrum IT Park
Kumar City, Kalyani Nagar
Pune 411 014

Maharashtra, India

Address of the RoC
Our Company is registered with the RoC, situated at the following address:
Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra at Pune

PCNTDA Green Building, Block A
1st & 2nd Floor

Near Akurdi Railway Station, Akurdi
Pune 411 044

Maharashtra, India

Filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus

A copy of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus has been filed electronically through SEBI’s online intermediary portal
at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Master Circular. It has also be filed with the SEBI
at:

Securities and Exchange Board of India
Corporation Finance Department

Division of Issues and Listing

SEBI Bhavan, Plot No. C4 A, ‘G’ Block
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E)
Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India

The Red Herring Prospectus was filed and this Prospectus will be filed with the RoC in accordance with Section 32,
read with Section 26 of the Companies Act, along with the material contracts and documents referred to in each of
the Red Herring Prospectus and this Prospectus, respectively, through the electronic portal of the MCA.

Board of Directors of our Company

Details regarding our Board as on the date of this Prospectus are set forth below:

Name Designation DIN Address
Sanjivhayan Bajaj Chairman and Non-|{ 00014615 |Plot No. 59, Lane No. 3, Koregaon Park, Pune City, Pune
Executive Director 411 001, Maharashtra, India
Rajeev Jain Vice Chairman and Non-| 01550158 |Flat No. D-2, lvy Glen, Marigold Premises, Kalyani Nagar,
Executive Director Pune 411 014, Maharashtra, India
Anami Narayan Roy Independent Director 01361110 |62, Sagar Tarang, Khan Abdul Gaffar Khan Road, Worli
Seaface, Worli, Mumbai 400 030, Maharashtra, India
Dr. Arindam Kumar | Independent Director 01570746 |L1/4, Third Floor, Hauz Khas Enclave, New Delhi 110 016,
Bhattacharya South West Delhi, Delhi, India
Jasmine Arish Chaney | Independent Director 07082359 |Flat No. 08, Waters Apartment, Tara Baug Lane, 65,
Ghorpadi Sopan Baug, Ghorpuri Bazar, Pune City, Pune
411 001, Maharashtra, India
Sriram Madakasira | Independent Director 10367727 |FF1, Siri Lotus Bloom — I, Near JSS Academy of Technical
Narasimha Swamy Education, Dr Vishnuvardhan Road, Bangalore 560 060,
Karnataka, India
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Name Designation DIN Address
Atul Jain Managing Director 09561712 |Flat No. 1402, 14" Floor, 212 River Walk, C Lane, Kalyani
Nagar, Yerwada Plot No. 59, Pune City, Pune 411 006,
Maharashtra, India

For further details of our Directors, see “Our Management” beginning on page 260.
Our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Atul Patni is our Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. His contact details are as set forth below:

5t Floor, B2 Cerebrum IT Park

Kumar City, Kalyani Nagar

Pune 411 014

Maharashtra, India

Tel: 020 71878060

E-mail: bhflinvestor.service@bajajfinserv.in

Joint Statutory Auditors to our Company

Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered Accountants Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants

2nd Floor, Kapur House, Paranjape B Scheme Road No-1, Vile B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor, Off Ganpatrao Kadam
Parle- East Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate Park, Lower Parel, Mumbai —
Mumbai — 400057 400013

Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 2663 3500 Tel: 491 22 6662 5537

Email: schitale@mmchitale.com Email: amithundia@singhico.com

Peer Review Number: 016643 Peer Review Number: 014484

Firm Registration Number: 106655W Firm Registration Number: 302049E

Changes in Auditors

Except as stated below, there has been no change in the statutory auditors of our Company during the three years
immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus:

Particulars Date of change Reasons for change

Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered July 22, 2024 Appointment as Statutory Auditors
Accountants

2nd Floor, Kapur House, Paranjape B Scheme
Road No-1, Vile Parle- East

Mumbai - 400057, Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 2663 3500

Email: info@mmchitale.com

Peer Review Number: 016643

Firm Registration Number: 106655W

Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants July 22, 2024 Appointment as Statutory Auditors

B2 402B, Marathon Innova, 4th Floor, Off
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula
Corporate Park, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013,
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6662 5537/38

Email: mumbai@singhico.com

Peer Review Number: 014484

Firm Registration Number: 302049E

G.D. Apte & Co. Chartered Accountants July 22, 2024 Completion of term of audit. The firm was ineligible
for reappointment in accordance with the RBI

GDA House, Plot No. 85, Right Bhusari Colony Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central

Paud Road, Pune 411 038, Maharashtra, India Auditors  (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of

Tel: +91 90110 28078 Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and

E-mail: umesh.abhyankar@gdaca.com NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021.

Peer Review Number: 015904

Firm Registration Number: 100515W November 16, 2021 | Appointment as Statutory Auditors

Khandelwal Jain & Co. Chartered Accountants July 22, 2024 Completion of term of audit. The firm was ineligible

for reappointment in accordance with the RBI
Guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Central
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Particulars Date of change Reasons for change

12-B, Baldota Bhavan, 5" Floor, 117, Maharshi
Karve Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020,
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 98200 00067

Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory Auditors (SAs) of
Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and
NBFCs (including HFCs) dated April 27, 2021.

E-mail: shailesh@kjco.net
Peer Review Number: 014497
Firm Registration Number: 105049W

November 16, 2021 | Appointment as Statutory Auditors

SRBC & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants November 13, 2021 | Resignation as statutory auditor of our Company
Ground Floor, Panchshil Tech Park, Near Don
Bosco School, Yerwada, Pune 411 006,
Maharashtra, India

Tel: 020 6603 6000

E-mail: srbcco@srb.in

Peer Review Number: 012054

Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Pursuant to RBI Guidelines for Appointment of
Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory
Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding
RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) dated
April 27, 2021, entities with asset size of 315,000
crores and above are required to have a statutory
audit conducted by joint audit of a minimum of two

audit firms.

Book Running Lead Managers

Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited
1st Floor, 27 BKC, Plot No. C — 27

“G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex

Bandra (East)

Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4336 0000

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@kotak.com

Website: https://investmentbank.kotak.com
Investor Grievance ID: kmccredressal@kotak.com
Contact Person: Ganesh Rane

SEBI Registration Number: INM000008704

Axis Capital Limited

1st Floor, Axis House, P.B. Marg,

Worli, Mumbai-400 025,

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4325 2183

E-mail: bfhl.ipo@axiscap.in

Investor Grievance E-mail: investor.grievance@axiscap.in
Website: www.axiscapital.co.in

Contact Person: Pavan Naik

SEBI Registration No.: INM000012029

SBI Capital Markets Limited

1501, 15™ Floor, A&B Wing

Parinee Crescenzo

“G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East) Mumbai- 400 051

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4196 8300

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@sbicaps.com

Investor Grievance E-mail: investor.relations@sbicaps.com
Website: www.sbicaps.com

Contact Person: Karan Savardekar / Sambit Rath
SEBI Registration No.: INM000003531

IIFL Securities Limited

24" Floor, One Lodha Place

Senapati Bapat Marg

Lower Parel (West)

Mumbai 400 013

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4646 4728

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@iiflcap.com

Investor Grievance E-mail: ig.ib@iiflcap.com
Website: www.iiflcap.com

BofA Securities India Limited

Ground Floor, A Wing, One BKC

“G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex

Bandra (East)

Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6632 8000

E-mail: dg.bajaj_housing_finance_ipo@bofa.com
Website: https://business.bofa.com/bofas-india
Investor Grievance E-mail:
dg.india_merchantbanking@bofa.com

Contact Person: Lohit Sharma

SEBI Registration Number: INM000011625

Goldman Sachs (India) Securities Private Limited
Rational House, A, 951

Appasaheb Marathe Marg

Prabhadevi

Mumbai 400 025

Maharashtra, India

Tel: + 91 22 6616 9000

E-mail: bhflipo@gs.com

Website: www.goldmansachs.com

Investor Grievance E-mail: india-client-support@gs.com
Contact Person: Mukarram Rajkotwala

SEBI Registration Number: INM000011054

JM Financial Limited

7" Floor, Cnergy

Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi
Mumbai 400 025

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6630 3030

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@jmfl.com

Investor Grievance E-mail: grievance.ibd@jmfl.com
Website: www.jmfl.com

Contact Person: Prachee Dhuri

SEBI Registration No.: INM000010361
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Contact Person: Mansi Sampat/ Pawan Jain
SEBI Registration No.: INM000010940

Legal Advisors to the Company
Cyril Amarchand Mangaldas

3 Floor, Prestige Falcon Towers
19, Brunton Road

Bengaluru 560 025

Karnataka, India

Tel: +91 80 6792 2000

Registrar to the Offer

KFin Technologies Limited

Selenium Tower B, Plot No. 31 and 32
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally

Hyderabad, 500 032

Telangana, India

Tel: +91 40 6716 2222/18003094001

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@kfintech.com

Investor Grievance E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: www.kfintech.com

Contact Person: M. Murali Krishna

SEBI Registration No.: INR0O00000221

URL of SEBI website: https://www.sebi.gov.in

Bankers to the Offer
Escrow Collection Bank / Refund Bank / Sponsor Bank

AXxis Bank Limited

Axis House, 6" Floor, C-2, Wadia International Centre
Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli

Mumbai 400 025

Maharashtra, India

Tel: 022 24253672

Contact Person: Vishal M. Lade

Website: www.axisbank.com

E-mail: vishal.lade@axisbank.com

SEBI Registration Number: INBIO0O000017

Public Offer Account Bank / Sponsor Bank

HDFC Bank Limited

FIG-OPS Department — Lodha, | Think Techno Campus

O-3 Level, next to Kanjurmarg Railway Station

Kanjurmarg (East), Mumbai 400 042

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 30752929 /28 / 14

Contact Person: Eric Bacha/ Sachin Gawade / Pravin Teli / Siddharth Jadhav / Tushar Gavankar
Website: www.hdfcbank.com

E-mail: siddharth.jadhav@hdfcbank.com, sachin.gawade @hdfcbank.com, eric.bacha@hdfcbank.com,
tushar.gavankar@hdfcbank.com, pravin.teli2@hdfcbank.com

SEBI Registration Number: INBIOO000063

Bankers to our Company

Axis Bank Limited Bank of Baroda

Indra Pushti, Opp Gate No 2 Ferguson College, FC Road, Corporate Financial Services Branch, C-8, Laxmi Tower, 2"
Pune 411 004 Floor, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai
Maharashtra, India 400 051

Tel: +91 8806900372 Maharashtra, India

Contact Person: Pune Operations Head Tel: 022-6884 3940/3911/3928

Website: www.axisbank.com Contact Person: Sanjay Ram

91



E-mail: pune.operationshead@axisbank.com Website: www.bankofbaroda.in
E-mail: midbdr@bankofbaroda.co.in

Bank of India Canara Bank, Large Corporate Branch, Pune
Pune Large Corporate Branch 1162/6, Shivajinagar, University 3 Floor Sukhwani business Hub, Nashik Phata, Bhosari,
Road, Pune 411 005 Pune 411 026

Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India

Tel: 020-25530316/14/17 Tel: +91 7875966946

Contact Person: Deepali Vijay Dandare Contact Person: Dhiraj Kumar

Website: www.bankofindia.co.in Website: www.canarabank.com

E-mail: LCB.Pune@bankofindia.co.in E-mail: cbh2551@canarabank.com

HDFC Bank Limited Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

HDFC Bank House, Marathon, 5" Floor, 21/6, Bund Garden  3rd Floor, 27BKC, Plot No. C-27

Road, Pune 411 001 G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex

Maharashtra, India Bandra (East) Mumbai 400 051

Tel: +91 (22) 66316000 Maharashtra, India

Contact Person: Rahul Mahajan — Relationship Manager, Tel: +91 (22) 62660397

Corporate Banking Group Contact Person: Sachin Kumar

Website: www.hdfcbank.com Website: www.kotak.com

E-mail: rahul. mahajan6@hdfcbank.com E-mail: sachin.kumar4l@kotak.com

State Bank of India Union Bank of India

Corporate Accounts Group - BKC Branch, The Capital, A Union Bhavan, 239, Vidhan Bhavan Marg, Nariman Point,
Wing, 16™ Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai Mumbai, 400 021

400 051 Maharashtra, India

Maharashtra, India Tel: 8380045107

Tel: 022-61709641 Contact Person: Punit Pathak

Contact Person: Deputy General Manager & RM-AMT-4 Website: www.unionbankofindia.co.in
Website: www.sbi.co.in E-mail: ubin0579271@unionbankofindia.bank

E-mail: dgmamt4cagbkc@sbi.co.in

Syndicate Members

Kotak Securities Limited JM Financial Services Limited

4% Floor, 12 BKC, G Block Ground Floor, 2,3 & 4, Kamanwala Chambers
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East) Sir P.M. Road, Fort

Mumbai 400 051 Mumbai 400 001

Maharashtra, India Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6218 5410 Tel: +91 22 6136 3400

E-mail: umesh.gupta@kotak.com E-mail: tn.kumar@jmfl.com; sona.verghese@jmfl.com
Website: www.kotak.com Website: www.jmfinancialservices.in

Contact Person: Umesh Gupta Contact Person: T N Kumar / Sona Varghese
SEBI Registration Number: INZ000200137 SEBI Registration Number: INZ000195834
Investec Capital Services (India) Private Limited SBICAP Securities Limited

1103-04, 11th Floor, B Wing Marathon Futurex, B Wing

Parinee Crescenzo, Bandra Kurla Complex Unit no 1201, 12th Floor

Mumbai 400 051 N M Joshi Marg

Maharashtra, India Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013

Tel: +91 22 6849 7400 Maharashtra, India

E-mail: kunal.naik@investec.co.in Tel: +91-22-69316204

Website: www.investec.com/india.html E-mail: archana.dedhia@sbicapsec.com
Contact Person: Kunal Naik Website: www.sbisecurities.in

SEBI Registration Number: INZ000007138 Contact Person: Archana Dedhia

SEBI Registration Number: INZ000200032

Designated Intermediaries
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of SCSBs notified by SEBI which offer the ASBA related services is available at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised=yes, or at such other website as may be prescribed
by SEBI from time to time. A list of the Designated SCSB Branches with which an ASBA Bidder (other than UPI
Bidders), not bidding through Syndicate/ Sub Syndicate or through a Registered Broker, RTA or CDP may submit
the Bid cum Application Forms, is available at
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34, or at such other websites as
may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

SCSBs and eligible mobile applications enabled for UPI Mechanism
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In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/45
dated April 5, 2022, UPI Bidders may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on
the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=40) and
(www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=43) respectively, as updated from
time to time. A list of SCSBs and mobile applications, which are live for applying in public issues using UPI
mechanism is provided as ‘Annexure A’ for the SEBI circular number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July
26, 2019.

Syndicate SCSB Branches

In relation to Bids (other than Bids by Anchor Investors and RIBs) submitted under the ASBA process to a member
of the Syndicate, the list of branches of the SCSBs at the Specified Locations named by the respective SCSBs to
receive deposits of Bid cum Application Forms from the members of the Syndicate is available on the website of the
SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=35) and updated from time to
time or any such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time. For more information on such
branches collecting Bid cum Application Forms from the Syndicate at Specified Locations, see the website of the
SEBI at www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmid=35 as updated from time to
time or any such other website as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

Registered Brokers

Bidders can submit ASBA Forms in the Offer using the stockbroker network of the Stock Exchanges, i.e. through
the Registered Brokers at the Broker Centres. The list of the Registered Brokers eligible to accept ASBA Forms,
including details such as postal address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites of the
respective Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com, as updated from time to time.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

The list of the RTAs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated RTA Locations, including details such as
address, telephone number and e-mail address, is provided on the websites of the respective Stock Exchanges at
www.bseindia.com/Static/Publiclssues/RtaDp.aspx and http://www.nseindia.com/products-services/initial-public-
offerings-asba-procedures, respectively, as updated from time to time.

Collecting Depository Participants

The list of the CDPs eligible to accept ASBA Forms at the Designated CDP Locations, including details such as
their name and contact details, is provided on the websites of the respective Stock Exchanges at
www.bseindia.com/Static/Publiclssues/RtaDp.aspx and http://www.nseindia.com/products-services/initial-public-
offerings-asba-procedures, respectively, as updated from time to time.

Experts to the Offer
Except as disclosed below, our Company has not obtained any expert opinions:

Our Company has received written consents each dated August 20, 2024 from Mukund M. Chitale & Co., Chartered
Accountants and Singhi & Co., Chartered Accountants respectively, who hold valid peer review certificates from
ICAI to include their names as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and Section 26(1) of the Companies Act
in this Prospectus, and as an “expert” as defined under Section 2(38) of the Companies Act to the extent and in
their capacity as our Joint Statutory Auditors and in respect of their examination report dated August 20, 2024
relating to the Restated Financial Information; and (ii) report dated August 20, 2024 on the statement of special tax
benefits included in this Prospectus, and such consents have not been withdrawn as on the date of this Prospectus.
However, the term “expert” shall not be construed to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

Our Company has received written consent dated August 20, 2024 from S K Patodia & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants (having Firm Registration Number: 112723W/W100962), holding a valid peer review certificate from
ICAI, to include their name as required under Section 26(5) of the Companies Act read with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, in this Prospectus, as an ‘expert’ as defined under Section 2(38) of Companies Act in respect of the
certificates issued by them in their capacity as an independent chartered accountant to our Company and such
consent has not been withdrawn as on the date of this Prospectus. However, the term “expert” shall not be construed
to mean an “expert” as defined under the U.S. Securities Act.

Inter-se Allocation of Responsibilities among the Book Running Lead Managers

The following table sets forth the inter-se allocation of responsibilities for various activities among the Book Running
Lead Managers:
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S. No.

Activity

Responsibility

Coordinator

Due diligence of the Company including its operations/management/business
plans/legal etc. Drafting and design of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, Red Herring
Prospectus, Prospectus, abridged prospectus and application form. The BRLMs shall
ensure compliance with stipulated requirements and completion of prescribed
formalities with the Stock Exchanges, RoC and SEBI including finalisation of Prospectus
and RoC filing.

BRLMs

Kotak

Capital structuring with the relative components and formalities such as type of
instruments, size of issue, allocation between primary and secondary, etc.

BRLMs

Goldman Sachs

Drafting and approval of all statutory advertisements

BRLMs

Kotak

Drafting and approval of all publicity material other than statutory advertisements,
including corporate advertising, brochures, media monitoring, etc. and filing of media
compliance report

BRLMs

SBICAPS

Appointment of intermediaries, banker(s) to the Offer, Sponsor Bank, Share Escrow
Agent, Syndicate Members etc., advertising agency, Registrar to the Offer, printer
(including co-ordinating all agreements to be entered with such parties)

BRLMs

Axis

Preparation of road show presentation and frequently asked questions

BRLMs

BofA

International institutional marketing of the Offer, which will cover, inter alia:
. Institutional marketing strategy and preparation of publicity budget;

. Finalizing the list and division of international investors for one-to-one
meetings; and

. Finalizing international road show and investor meeting schedules

BRLMs

BofA

Domestic institutional marketing of the Offer, which will cover, inter alia:
. Marketing strategy and preparation of publicity budget;
. Finalizing the list and division of investors for one-to-one meetings; and

. Finalizing domestic road show and investor meeting schedules

BRLMs

Kotak

Conduct non-institutional marketing of the Offer

BRLMs

IIFL

10.

Conduct retail marketing of the Offer, which will cover, inter alia:

. Finalizing media, marketing and public relations strategy including list of
frequently asked questions at retail road shows;

. Follow-up on distribution of publicity and offer material including forms, the
Prospectus and deciding on the quantum of Issue material;

. Finalizing centers for holding conferences for brokers etc. and

. Finalizing collection centres

BRLMs

Axis

11.

Coordination with Stock Exchanges for book building software, bidding terminals, mock
trading, intimation to Stock Exchanges for Anchor Portion

BRLMs

JM Financial

12.

Managing the book and finalisation of pricing in consultation with the Company

BRLMs

BofA

13.

Post bidding activities including management of escrow accounts, coordinate non-
institutional allocation, coordination with Registrar to the Offer, SCSBs and banks,
intimation of allocation and dispatch of refund to Bidders, etc. Post-Offer activities, which
shall involve essential follow-up steps including allocation to Anchor Investors, follow-
up with Bankers to the Offer and SCSBs to get quick estimates of collection and advising
the issuer about the closure of the Offer, based on correct figures, finalisation of the
basis of allotment or weeding out of multiple applications, coordination for unblock of
funds by SCSBs, finalisation of trading, dealing and listing of instruments, dispatch of
certificates or demat credit and refunds and coordination with various agencies
connected with the post-issue activity such as Registrar to the Offer, Bankers to the
Offer, SCSBs including responsibility for underwriting arrangements, as applicable.

Payment of the applicable securities transaction tax (“STT”) on sale of unlisted equity
shares by the Promoter Selling Shareholder under the Offer for Sale to the Government
and filing of the STT return by the prescribed due date as per Chapter VIl of Finance
(No. 2) Act, 2004.

Co-ordination with SEBI and Stock Exchanges for submission of all post-offer reports
including final post-offer report to SEBI.

BRLMs

Axis
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IPO Grading
No credit rating agency registered with SEBI has been appointed for grading the Offer.
Monitoring Agency

Our Company has appointed CARE Ratings Limited as the Monitoring Agency in accordance with Regulation 41 of
the SEBI ICDR Regulations and for monitoring the utilisation of the Gross Proceeds from the Fresh Issue. The
details of the Monitoring Agency are as follows:

CARE Ratings Limited

4t Floor, Godrej Coliseum, Somaiya Hospital Road
Off Eastern Express Highway

Sion (East), Mumbai 400 022

Maharashtra, India

Tel: 020 4000 9001 / 8106400001

Contact Person: Aakash Jain

Website: https://www.careratings.com/

E-mail: aakash.jain@careedge.in

SEBI Registration Number: IN/CRA/004/1999

Appraising Entity

None of the objects for which the Net Proceeds will be utilised have been appraised by any agency.
Credit Rating

As this is an Offer of Equity Shares, credit rating is not required.

Debenture Trustees

As this is an Offer of Equity Shares, the appointment of debenture trustees is not required.

Green Shoe Option

No green shoe option is contemplated under the Offer.

Book Building Process

Book building, in the context of the Offer, referred to the process of collection of Bids from Bidders on the basis of
the Red Herring Prospectus and the Bid Cum Application Forms and the Revision Forms within the Price Band,
which was decided by our Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers, in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations, and was advertised in all editions of The Financial Express (a widely circulated English
national daily newspaper), and all editions of Jansatta (a widely circulated Hindi national daily newspaper), the Pune
edition of Loksatta (a widely circulated Marathi daily newspaper, Marathi being the regional language of
Maharashtra, where our Registered Office is located), at least two Working Days prior to the Bid/Offer Opening Date
and was made available to the Stock Exchanges for the purpose of uploading on their respective websites. The
Offer Price was determined by our Company, in consultation with the Book Running Lead Managers after the
Bid/Offer Closing Date, in accordance with the SEBI ICDR Regulations. For details, see “Offer Procedure” beginning
on page 502.

All Bidders, other than Anchor Investors, were required to only participate in the Offer through the ASBA
process by providing the details of their respective ASBA Account in which the corresponding Bid Amount
was blocked by the SCSBs or in the case of UPI Bidders, by using the UPI Mechanism. Additionally, RIBs
could participate through the ASBA process by either (a) providing the details of their respective ASBA
Account in which the corresponding Bid Amount will be blocked by SCSBs; or (b) through the UPI
Mechanism. Anchor Investors were not permitted to participate in the Offer through the ASBA process.
Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/P/CIR/P/2022/45 dated April 5, 2022, all individual bidders
in initial public offerings whose application sizes are up to ¥500,000 shall use the UPI Mechanism.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, QIBs and Non-Institutional Bidders were not permitted to withdraw
their Bid(s) or lower the size of their Bid(s) (in terms of the number of Equity Shares or the Bid Amount) at
any stage. RIBs, Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion (subject to the Bid
Amount being up to ¥500,000) and Eligible Shareholders Bidding in the Shareholder Reservation Portion
(subject to the Bid Amount being up to ¥200,000) could revise their Bid(s) during the Bid/ Offer Period and
withdraw their Bid(s) until Bid/ Offer Closing Date. Anchor Investors were not allowed to withdraw their Bids
after the Anchor Investor Bidding Date. Except for Allocation to RIBs and the Anchor Investors, allocation
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in the Offer will be on a proportionate basis. Further, allocation to Anchor Investors will be on a
discretionary basis.

Each Bidder by submitting a Bid in the Offer, was deemed to have acknowledged the above restrictions and
the terms of the Offer.

For further details, see “Terms of the Offer
and 502, respectively.

Offer Structure” and “Offer Procedure” beginning on pages 490, 497

The process of Book Building under the SEBI ICDR Regulations and the Bidding Process was subject to
change from time to time and the investors were advised to make their own judgment about investment
through this process prior to submitting a Bid in the Offer.

Bidders were required to note that, the Offer is also subject to (i) filing of the Prospectus with the RoC; and (ii) final
listing and trading approvals of the Stock Exchanges, which our Company shall apply for after Allotment within three
Working Days of the Bid/Offer Closing date or such other time period as prescribed under applicable law.

Underwriting Agreement

After the determination of the Offer Price and allocation of Equity Shares, but prior to the filing of the Prospectus
with the RoC, our Company and the Promoter Selling Shareholder have entered into an Underwriting Agreement
with the Underwriters and the Registrar for the Equity Shares proposed to be offered through the Offer. The extent
of underwriting obligations and the Bids to be underwritten by each BRLM is as per the Underwriting Agreement.
The Underwriting Agreement is dated September 11, 2024. Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement,
the obligations of each of the Underwriters are several and are subject to certain conditions specified therein.

The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number of Equity Shares:

Name, address, telephone number and e- | Indicative number of Equity Shares to be Amount underwritten
mail address of the Underwriters underwritten (X in million)
Kotak Mahindra Capital Company Limited 133,877,451 9,371.4

1%t Floor, 27 BKC, Plot No. C — 27
“G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra (East)

Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4336 0000

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@kotak.com

BofA Securities India Limited 133,877,550 9,371.4
Ground Floor, A Wing, One BKC

“G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra (East)

Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6632 8000

E-mail:
dg.bajaj_housing_finance_ipo@bofa.com

Axis Capital Limited 133,877,551 9,371.4
1st Floor, Axis House, P.B. Marg,
Worli, Mumbai-400 025,
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4325 2183

E-mail: bfhl.ipo@axiscap.in

Goldman Sachs (India) Securities Private 133,877,551 9,371.4
Limited

Rational House, A, 951
Appasaheb Marathe Marg
Prabhadevi

Mumbai 400 025
Maharashtra, India

Tel: + 91 22 6616 9000
E-mail: bhflipo@gs.com

SBI Capital Markets Limited 133,877,351 9,371.4
1501, 15" Floor, A&B Wing
Parinee Crescenzo

“G” Block, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East) Mumbai- 400 051
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 4196 8300

E-mail: bhfl.ipo@sbicaps.com
JM Financial Limited 133,877,451 9,371.4
7" Floor, Cnergy

Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi
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Name, address, telephone number and e- | Indicative number of Equity Shares to be Amount underwritten
mail address of the Underwriters underwritten (X in million)

Mumbai 400 025
Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 6630 3030
E-mail: bhfl.ipo@jmfl.com
IIFL Securities Limited 133,877,551 9,371.4
24" Floor, One Lodha Place
Senapati Bapat Marg

Lower Parel (West)

Mumbai 400 013
Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 4646 4728
E-mail: bhfl.ipo@iiflcap.com
Kotak Securities Limited 100 0.01
4" Floor, 12 BKC, G Block

Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)
Mumbai 400 051

Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 6218 5410

E-mail: umesh.gupta@kotak.com
JM Financial Services Limited 100 0.01
Ground Floor, 2,3 & 4, Kamanwala Chambers
Sir P.M. Road, Fort
Mumbai 400 001
Mabharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 6136 3400
E-mail: tn.kumar@jmfl.com;
sona.verghese@jmfl.com

Investec Capital Services (India) Private 100 0.01
Limited
1103-04, 11th Floor, B Wing
Parinee Crescenzo, Bandra Kurla Complex
Mumbai 400 051
Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91 22 6849 7400
E-mail: kunal.naik@investec.co.in
SBICAP Securities Limited 100 0.01
Marathon Futurex, B Wing
Unit no 1201, 12th Floor
N M Joshi Marg
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 013
Maharashtra, India
Tel: +91-22-69316204
E-mail: archana.dedhia@sbicapsec.com

The aforementioned underwriting commitments are indicative and will be finalised after actual allocation in
accordance with provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

In the opinion of our Board of Directors (based on representations made to our Company by the Underwriters), the
resources of the aforementioned Underwriters were sufficient to enable them to discharge their respective
underwriting obligations in full. The aforementioned Underwriters are registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of
the SEBI Act or registered as brokers with the Stock Exchanges. Our IPO Committee, at its meeting held on
September 11, 2024, approved the acceptance and entering into the Underwriting Agreement mentioned above on
behalf of our Company.

Allocation among the Underwriters may not necessarily be in proportion to their underwriting commitment set forth
in the table above.

Notwithstanding the above table, the Underwriters are severally responsible for ensuring payment with respect to
the Equity Shares allocated to investors respectively procured by them in accordance with the Underwriting
Agreement. In the event of any default in payment, the respective Underwriter, in addition to other obligations
defined in the Underwriting Agreement, will also be required to procure purchasers for or purchase the Equity Shares
to the extent of the defaulted amount in accordance with the Underwriting Agreement. The extent of underwriting
obligations and the Bids to be underwritten in the Offer are as per the Underwriting Agreement.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The share capital of our Company, as on the date of this Prospectus, is set forth below:

(in ¥, except share data)

Sr. Particulars Aggregate value | Aggregate value
No. at face value at Offer Price*
A. AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL®
9,000,000,000 Equity Shares of face value of 10 each | 90,000,000,000 |
B. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL (BEFORE THE OFFER)
7,819,575,273 Equity Shares of face value of 310 each | 78,195,752,730 ]
C. PRESENT OFFER
Offer of 937,142,856* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each aggregating 9,371,428,560 65,599,999,920.0
to ¥65,600.0 million®@®
of which
Fresh Issue of 508,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of 10 each 5,085,714,280| 35,599,999,960.0
aggregating to ¥35,600.0 million®
Offer for Sale of 428,571,428* Equity Shares of face value of ¥10 each by 4,285,714,280 29,999,999,960.0
the Promoter Selling Shareholder aggregating to ¥30,000.0 milliont®
which includes
Employee Reservation Portion of 28,571,428* Equity Shares of face value 285,714,280 1,999,999,960.0
of 10 each®
Shareholders Reservation Portion of 71,428,571* Equity Shares of face 714,285,710 4,999,999,970.0
value of 10 each®
Net Offer of 837,142,857 Equity Shares of face value of 10 each 8,371,428,570| 58,599,999,990.0
D. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL AFTER THE OFFER"
8,328,146,701* Equity Shares of face value of 210 each |  83,281,467,010] -
E. SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT
Before the Offer (as on date of the Red Herring Prospectus and this 17,301,997,118
Prospectus)
After the Offer 47,816,282,798

(6]
@

(©)

4)

®)

Subiject to finalisation of the Basis of Allotment.

For details in relation to the changes in the authorised share capital of our Company in the last 10 years, see “History and Certain Corporate
Matters — Amendments to our Memorandum of Association” on page 255.

The Offer has been authorised by our Board pursuant to the resolution passed at its meeting held on June 6, 2024 and our Shareholders
have authorized the Fresh Issue pursuant to a special resolution passed at their meeting held on June 6, 2024. Further, our Board has
taken on record the approval for the Offer for Sale by the Promoter Selling Shareholder pursuant to its resolution dated June 7, 2024.

The Promoter Selling Shareholder has specifically confirmed that the Offered Shares have been held by it for a period of at least one year
prior to the filing of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus with SEBI in accordance with Regulation 8 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations or are
otherwise eligible for being offered for sale in the Offer in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. The Promoter
Selling Shareholder has confirmed and authorized its participation in the Offer for Sale pursuant to a consent letter dated June 7, 2024. For
details on the authorization and consent of the Promoter Selling Shareholder in relation to the Offered Shares, see “The Offer” and “Other
Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures- Authorisation for the Offer for Sale” on pages 81 and 469, respectively.

Eligible Employees bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion were required to ensure that the maximum Bid Amount did not exceed
Z500,000. However, the initial Allotment to an Eligible Employee in the Employee Reservation Portion did not exceed 200,000. Only in the
event of an under-subscription in the Employee Reservation Portion post the initial Allotment, such unsubscribed portion could have been
allotted on a proportionate basis to Eligible Employees Bidding in the Employee Reservation Portion, for a value in excess of ¥200,000,
subject to the total Allotment to an Eligible Employee not exceeding ¥500,000. For further details, see “The Offer” on page 81 and “Offer
Structure” on page 497.

The Shareholders Reservation Portion constituted 0.9% of our post-Issue paid-up Equity Share capital, and in accordance with the SEBI
ICDR Regulations did not exceed 10% of the size of the Offer. For further details, see “Offer Structure” on page 497.

Notes to the Capital Structure

1.

Equity Share capital history of our Company

Our Company is in compliance with the Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable, with respect to issuance of Equity Shares from the date of incorporation of our Company till the
date of filing of this Prospectus. The history of the Equity Share capital of our Company is set forth in the
table below:
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Primary issuances of Equity Shares

Date of Number of Details of allottees Face value | Issue price Nature of Nature of Cumulative Cumulative
allotment of | Equity Shares per Equity | per Equity | consideration allotment number of paid-up Equity
Equity Shares allotted Share Share Equity Shares | Share capital
(in%) (in%) (in%

June 13, 2008 2,000,000|1,999,400 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj Finserv 10 10|Cash Pursuant to initial 2,000,000 20,000,000
Limited, and 100 Equity Shares each were allotted to subscription to
Rahulkumar Bajaj, Rajivhayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, the
Sanjivnayan Bajaj, V. Sankara Raghavan, and Kevin Memorandum of
D’sa Association

March 27, 2010 19,000,000{19,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj Finserv 10 10|Cash Rights issue 21,000,000 210,000,000
Limited

April 19, 2011 9,000,000(9,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj Finserv 10 10|Cash Rights issue 30,000,000 300,000,000
Limited

March 7, 2012 9,000,000(9,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj Finserv 10 10|Cash Rights issue 39,000,000 390,000,000
Limited

December 12, 11,000,000{11,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj Finance 10 10|Cash Rights issue 50,000,000 500,000,000

2014 Limited

June 21, 2016 300,000,000{300,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 10|Cash Rights issue 350,000,000{ 3,500,000,000
Finance Limited

February 6, 1,200,000,000(1,200,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 10|Cash Rights Issue 1,550,000,000( 15,500,000,000

2018 Finance Limited

September 19, | 1,000,000,000|1,000,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 10|Cash Rights issue 2,550,000,000( 25,500,000,000

2018 Finance Limited

March 25, 2019 | 1,000,000,000{1,000,000,000 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 10|Cash Rights issue 3,550,000,000| 35,500,000,000
Finance Limited

February 5, 1,333,333,329|1,333,333,329 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 11.3|Cash Rights issue 4,883,333,329| 48,833,333,290

2020 Finance Limited

April 7, 2022 1,828,822,235|1,828,822,235 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 13.7|Cash Rights issue 6,712,155,564| 67,121,555,640
Finance Limited

April 3, 2024 1,107,419,709|1,107,419,709 Equity Shares were allotted to Bajaj 10 18.1|Cash Rights issue 7,819,575,273W| 78,195,752,730
Finance Limited

Notes:

1. Out of the 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Rajivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, V. Rajagopalan and Atul Jain, with
Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.
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Secondary transactions of Equity Shares

Date of Number of Details of Details of transferee(s) Nature of transfer Face Transfer Nature of Percentage of | Percentage of
transfer of Equity transferor(s) value per | price per | consideration | the pre-Offer | the post- Offer
Equity Shares Equity Equity Equity Share Equity Share
Shares transferred Share (%) | Share () capital (%) capital (%)
March 25, 100 | Rahulkumar Bajaj Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from Rahulkumar 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2009 Rahulkumar Bajaj Bajaj
March 25, 100 | Rajivnayan Bajaj Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from Rajivhayan 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2009 Rajivnayan Bajaj Bajaj
March 25, 100 | Madhur Bajaj Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from Madhur Bajaj 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2009 Madhur Bajaj
March 25, 100 | Sanjivhayan Bajaj Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from Sanjivnayan 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2009 Sanjivnhayan Bajaj Bajaj
March 25, 100| V. Sankara | Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from V. Sankara 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2009 Raghavan V. Sankara Raghavan Raghavan
March 25, 100 | Kevin D’sa Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from Kevin D’sa 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2009 Kevin D’sa
February 28, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finserv Limited and | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2012 and V. Sankara|J Sridhar Limited and V. Sankara
Raghavan® Raghavan
November 1, 38,999,400 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4 | Cash 0.5 0.5
2014 Limited
November 1, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4 | Cash Negligible Negligible
2014 and Rahulkumar | and Rahulkumar Bajaj Limited and Rahulkumar
Bajaj Bajaj
November 1, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4|Cash Negligible Negligible
2014 and Rajivnayan | and Rajivnayan Bajaj Limited and Rajivhayan Bajaj
Bajaj
November 1, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4 | Cash Negligible Negligible
2014 and Madhur Bajaj and Madhur Bajaj Limited and Madhur Bajaj
November 1, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4 | Cash Negligible Negligible
2014 and Sanjivhayan | and Sanjivhayan Bajaj Limited and Sanjivhayan
Bajaj Bajaj
November 1, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4|Cash Negligible Negligible
2014 and J Sridhar and Rajeev Jain Limited and J Sridhar
November 1, 100 | Bajaj Finserv Limited | Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finserv 10 4.4 | Cash Negligible Negligible
2014 and Kevin D’Sa and Anant Damle Limited and Kevin D’Sa
October 22, 100 | Bajaj Finance |Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finance 10 10| Cash Negligible Negligible
2018 Limited and Anant|and V. Rajagopalan Limited and Anant Damle
Damle
March 9, 100 | Bajaj Finance |Bajaj Finance Limited | Transfer from Bajaj Finance 10 Nil | Not applicable Negligible Negligible
2022 Limited* and Atul Jain Limited

A The 100 Equity Shares jointly held by Bajaj Finserv Limited and V. Sankara Raghavan, pursuant to the transfer from V. Sankara Raghavan on March 25, 2009, were transmitted to the sole ownership of Bajaj
Finserv Limited by operation of law, upon demise of V. Sankara Raghavan. Subsequently, the corresponding 100 Equity Shares were transferred by Bajaj Finserv Limited to the joint holding of Bajaj Finserv
Limited and J Sridhar vide a transfer of Equity Shares on February 28, 2012

* The 100 Equity Shares jointly held by Bajaj Finance Limited and Rahulkumar Bajaj, pursuant to the transfer from Bajaj Finserv Limited and Rahulkumar Bajaj on November 1, 2014, were transmitted to the sole
ownership of Bajaj Finance Limited by operation of law, upon the demise of Rahulkumar Bajaj. Subsequently, the corresponding 100 Equity Shares were transferred by Bajaj Finance Limited to the joint holding
of Bajaj Finance Limited and Atul Jain vide a transfer of Equity Shares on March 9, 2022.
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Preference share capital history of our Company
As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any outstanding preference shares.
Offer of specified securities at a price lower than the Offer Price in the last year

The Offer Price is % 70. Except as disclosed in “ — Notes to the Capital Structure — Equity Share capital
history of our Company — Primary issuances of Equity Shares” on page 99, our Company has not issued
any Equity Shares at a price that may be lower than the Offer Price during a period of one year preceding
the date of this Prospectus.

Offer of shares for consideration other than cash or out of revaluation reserves (excluding bonus
issuance)

1. As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation
reserves since its incorporation.

2. Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares for consideration other than cash as on the date
of this Prospectus.

Offer of shares pursuant to schemes of arrangement

Our Company has not allotted any Equity Shares pursuant to any scheme approved under Sections 391 to
394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or Sections 230 to 234 of the Companies Act, 2013.

History of the share capital held by our Promoters

As on the date of this Prospectus, one of our Promoters, Bajaj Finance Limited, holds 7,819,575,273 Equity
Shares, equivalent to 100% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up pre-Offer Equity Share capital of our
Company. Out of the 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity
Shares each with Rajivhayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V.
Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.

Build-up of the equity shareholding of our Promoters in our Company
Bajaj Finance Limited currently holds 100% of the Equity Shares of our Company. The details regarding the

build-up of the equity shareholding of Bajaj Finance Limited, one of our Promoters in our Company since
incorporation is set forth in the table below:

Date of Number of Nature of Nature of Face Issue | Percentage |Percentage
allotment/ | Equity Shares transaction consideration | value | price/ | of the pre- of the
transfer allotted/ per | transfer |Offer Equity| post- Offer
transferred Equity |price per Share Equity
Share | Equity | capital (%) Share
(X) |Share (%) capital (%)
Bajaj Finance Limited
November 1, 39,000,000" | Transfer from Bajaj|Cash 10 4.4 0.5 0.5
2014 Finserv Limited
December 11,000,000(Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 10 0.1 0.1
12, 2014 to rights issue
June 21, 300,000,000|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 10 3.8 3.6
2016 to rights issue
February 6, 1,200,000,000|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 10 15.5 14.4
2018 to rights issue
September 1,000,000,000|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 10 12.8 12.0
19, 2018 to rights issue
March 25, 1,000,000,000|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 10 12.8 12.0
2019 to rights issue
February 5, 1,333,333,329|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 11.3 17.1 16.0
2020 to rights issue
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Date of Number of Nature of Nature of Face Issue |Percentage [Percentage
allotment/ | Equity Shares transaction consideration | value price/ | of the pre- of the
transfer allotted/ per | transfer |Offer Equity| post- Offer
transferred Equity |price per Share Equity
Share | Equity | capital (%) Share
(X) |Share () capital (%)
April 7, 2022 1,828,822,235|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 13.7 23.4 22.0
to rights issue
April 3, 2024 1,107,419,709|Allotment  pursuant|Cash 10 18.1 14.2 13.3
to rights issue
Total 7,819,575,273» 100.0 93.9

A Out of the 39,000,000 Equity Shares transferred to Bajaj Finance Limited from Bajaj Finserv Limited on November 1, 2014, Bajaj
Finserv Limited had jointly held 100 Equity Shares each with Rahulkumar Bajaj, Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivnayan
Bajaj, J Sridhar, and Kevin D’sa, which are now jointly held by Bajaj Finance Limited along with Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj,
Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such
jointly held Equity Shares.

All the Equity Shares held by our Promoters were fully paid-up on the respective dates of allotment/
acquisition of such Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Prospectus, none of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are pledged or otherwise

encumbered.

Details of lock-in of Equity Shares

€)) Details of Promoters’ contribution and lock-in

(i)

In accordance with Regulation 14 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, an
aggregate of 20% of the fully diluted post-Offer Equity Share capital of our Company held
by our Promoters, shall be locked in for a period of 18 months from the date of Allotment
as minimum Promoters’ contribution or any other period as may be prescribed under
applicable law (“Minimum Promoters’ Contribution”) and the shareholding of our
Promoters in excess of 20% of the fully diluted post-Offer Equity Share capital shall be
locked in for a period of six months from the date of Allotment.

(ii) The details of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters which shall be locked-in for a period
of 18 months from the date of Allotment as Minimum Promoters’ Contribution are set forth
in the table below:

Name of Number of Date of |Nature of| Face Issue/ |Percenta|Percentag| Date up
Promoter |Equity Shares| allotment | transacti |value per| acquisiti | ge of the | e of the |to which
locked-in®®@ | /transfer on Equity | on price |pre- Offer| post- Equity
of Equity Share (%) per paid-up Offer Shares
Shares Equity | capital | paid-up are
and when Share (%) (%) |capital (%)| subject
made fully to lock-
paid-up in
Bajaj 1,121,428,572 |February 6,| Allotment 10 10 14.34% 13.47% March
Finance 2018 pursuant 13, 2026
Limited to rights
issue
544,200,769 |September | Allotment 10 10 6.96% 6.53% March
19, 2018 | pursuant 13, 2026
to rights
issue
Note:
(1) Fora period of 18 months from the date of Allotment.
(2) All Equity Shares were fully paid-up at the time of allotment/acquisition.
(iii) Our Promoters have given their consent for inclusion of such number of Equity Shares held

by them as part of the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, subject to lock-in requirements
as specified under Regulation 14 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations. Our Promoters have
agreed not to dispose, sell, transfer, create any pledge, lien or otherwise encumber in any
manner, the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution from the date of filing the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus, until the expiry of the lock-in specified above, or for such other time as required
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(b)

(©)

(d)

under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, except as may be permitted, in accordance with the
SEBI ICDR Regulations.

(iv) Our Company undertakes that the Equity Shares that are being locked-in are not ineligible
for computation of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution in terms of Regulation 15 of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

In this connection, we confirm the following:

(a) The Equity Shares offered as a part of the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution do
not include Equity Shares acquired in the three immediately preceding years (a)
for consideration other than cash and revaluation of assets or capitalisation of
intangible assets was involved in such transaction; or (b) resulting from bonus issue
by utilisation of revaluation reserves or unrealised profits of our Company or
resulted from bonus issue against Equity Shares which are otherwise ineligible for
computation of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution.

(b) Our Minimum Promoters’ Contribution does not include any Equity Shares
acquired during the immediately preceding one year at a price lower than the price
at which the Equity Shares are being offered to the public in the Offer.

(© Our Company has not been formed by the conversion of one or more partnership
firms or a limited liability partnership firm into a Company and hence, no Equity
Shares have been issued in the one year immediately preceding the date of this
Prospectus pursuant to conversion from a partnership firm or limited liability
partnership.

(d) As on the date of this Prospectus, Equity Shares held by Bajaj Finance Limited,
our Promoter, and offered for Minimum Promoters’ Contribution are not subject to
pledge with any creditor or any other encumbrance.

Details of Equity Shares locked-in for six months

In addition to the lock-in requirements prescribed in “- Details of Promoters’ Contribution and lock-
in” on page 102, in accordance with Regulation 17 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, except for the
Minimum Promoters’ Contribution which shall be locked-in as above, the entire pre-Offer Equity
Share capital of our Company will be locked-in for a period of six months from the date of Allotment,
except for (a) the Equity Shares Allotted pursuant to the Offer for Sale; and (b) any Equity Shares
allotted to eligible employees of our Company, whether currently employees or not (or such persons
as permitted under the SEBI SBEB Regulations or the ESOP Scheme) pursuant to the ESOP
Scheme. As on the date of this Prospectus, none of the Equity Shares of our Company are held by
any VCF or Category | AIF or Category Il AIF or FVCI.

As required under Regulation 20 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company shall ensure that the
details of the Equity Shares locked-in are recorded by the relevant Depository.

Lock-in of Equity Shares allotted to Anchor Investors

There shall be a lock-in of 90 days on 50% of the Equity Shares Allotted to the Anchor Investors
from the date of Allotment, and lock-in of 30 days on the remaining 50% of the Equity Shares
Allotted to the Anchor Investors from the date of Allotment.

Other lock-in requirements

1. The Equity Shares held by the Promoters which are locked-in for a period of 18 months
from the date of Allotment may be pledged only with scheduled commercial banks or public
financial institutions or NBFC-ND-SI or housing finance companies, as collateral security
for loans granted by such banks or public financial institutions or NBFC-ND-SI or housing
finance companies in terms of Regulation 21(a) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, provided
that such loans have been granted for the purpose of financing one or more of the objects
of the Offer and pledge of Equity Shares is a term of sanction of such loans. However, the
relevant lock-in period shall continue post the invocation of the pledge referenced above,
and the relevant transferee shall not be eligible to transfer the Equity Shares till the relevant
lock-in period has expired in terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

2. In terms of Regulation 21(b) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Equity Shares held by our
Promoters which are locked-in for a period of six months from the date of Allotment may
be pledged only with scheduled commercial banks, public financial institutions, NBFC-ND-
S| or housing finance companies as collateral security for loans granted by such banks,
public financial institutions, NBFC-ND-SI or housing finance companies, provided that such
pledge of the Equity Shares is one of the terms of the sanction of such loans.
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3. In terms of Regulation 22 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Equity Shares held by our
Promoters and locked-in as per Regulation 16 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, may be
transferred to and among our Promoters and/or any member of our Promoter Group or a
new promoter or persons in control of our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in in
the hands of the transferee for the remaining period and compliance with the Takeover
Regulations, as applicable, and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer them till the
lock-in period stipulated in the SEBI ICDR Regulations has expired.

4, The Equity Shares held by any person other than our Promoters and locked-in for a period
of six months from the date of Allotment in the Offer as per Regulation 17 of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations, may be transferred to any other person holding the Equity Shares which are
locked-in, subject to continuation of the lock-in in the hands of transferees for the remaining
period and compliance with the Takeover Regulations, as applicable.

Details of Equity Shares held by our Promoters, directors of our Promoters, members of our
Promoter Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel

(a) Shareholding of our Promoters and Promoter Group

The details of shareholding of our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group as on the date
of this Prospectus are set forth below:

Sr. Name Number of Equity Percentage of the Percentage of the
No. Shares pre-Offer Equity post-Offer Equity
Share capital (%) Share capital (%)
Promoters
1. | Bajaj Finance Limited 7,819,575,273» 100 88.75
Total 7,819,575,273 100 88.75
Promoter Group
1. | Sanjivnayan Bajaj 100* Negligible Nil
Total 100 Negligible Nil

AN Out of the 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with
Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance
Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.

*  Jointly held with Bajaj Finance Limited, with Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held
Equity Shares.

For further details, see “Our Promoters and Promoter Group” on page 277.

0] Set out below are details of the Equity Shares held by the directors of our Promoters and the

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of our Company:

S. No. Name Number of | Number of | Number of | Percentage | Percentage
Equity employee | employee | of the pre- | of the post-
Shares stock stock Offer Offer
options options not Equity Equity
vested vested Share Share
capital (%) | capital (%)
Directors
1. Sanjivnayan Bajaj** 100 Nil Nil Negligible Negligible
2. Rajeev Jain**" 1007 Nil Nil Negligible Negligible
3. Atul Jain***n 100" Nil 4,379,050 Negligible Negligible
Directors of our Promoters
4. | Rajivnayan Bajaj*® 100" Nil Nil Negligible Negligible
Total 500 Nil 4,379,050 Negligible| Negligible

* Sanjivnayan Bajaj is also a director on the board of directors of each of our Promoters, Bajaj Finance Limited and Bajaj
Finserv Limited.

**  Rajeev Jain is also a director on the board of directors of our Promoter, Bajaj Finance Limited.

***  Atul Jain is also a Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of our Company.

$ Rajivnayan Bajaj is a director on the board of directors of each of our Promoters, Bajaj Finance Limited and Bajaj
Finserv Limited.

A Jointly held with Bajaj Finance Limited, with Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held
Equity Shares.

As on the date of this Prospectus, except as stated above, none of the directors of our Promoters
or the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or Senior Management Personnel of our Company hold
any Equity Shares in our Company. For further details, see “Our Management” on page 260.

As of the date of the filing of this Prospectus, the total number of our Shareholders is 7 (which includes the
six joint Shareholders, holding 100 Equity Shares each jointly with Bajaj Finance Limited, with Bajaj Finance
Limited being the first holder of such jointly held Equity Shares).
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10.

Shareholding pattern of our Company

The table below presents the shareholding pattern of our Company as on the date of this Prospectus:

Categ| Category of [ Number | Number of | Number | Number | Total number |Sharehold| Number of voting rights held in each class of |Numbe |Shareholdin|Number of locked| Number of |[Number of Equity
ory |Shareholder of fully paid-up | of partly of of shares held|ing as a % securities r of g,as a% |in Equity Shares | Equity Shares | Shares held in
(0] n Shareho|Equity Shares| paid-up | shares (viny of total (IX) Equity | assuming (Xir) pledged or dematerialised
Iders (l1l) held Equity |[underlyi [=(IV)+(V)+ (VI)|number of Shares full otherwise form
(v) Shares ng shares underly| conversion encumbered (XIV)
held |deposito (calculate ing of (Xt
V) ry d as per outstan| convertible
receipts SCRR, Number of voting rights Totalas a % of | ding | securities [Number[ Asa % |Numb| As a %
(VD) (Vﬁ?)SAY) (A+B+ C) CQE‘I’ert (as ? (@ | oftotal | er(a) | of total
s a - ible | percentage Equit Equit
sof | Class: Clas) ot securiti| of diluted o ami
(A+B+C2) | o\ - res | Oth Em s held (b) held (b)
ors (includi| capital) ona
ng (Xn= fully
warrant| (VI)+(X) As diluted
s) a % of basis
(A+B+C2)
X)
(A) Promoters 7" 7,819,575,273 - -| 7,819,575,273 100.00 Equity| NA 7,819,575,273 7,819,575,273 - 100.00] - - - 7,819,575,273
and
Promoter
Group
(B) Public - E - E - E - - E - e E E E - E
©) Non - - E E E E E - E - . E E E - E
Promoter-
Non Public
(C1) [Shares - - E - E - E - - - - - - - - -
underlying
depository
receipts
(C2) |[Shares held - - E - E - E - - - - - - - - -
by employee
trusts
Total 7| 7,819,575,273 0| 0| 7,819,575,273 100.00| Equity| NA 7,819,575,273 7,819,575,273 e 100.00 E E - 7,819,575,273
(A+B+C)

A Inclusive of the six joint Shareholders, i.e., Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivnayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, holding 100 Equity Shares each jointly with Bajaj Finance
Limited, with Bajaj Finance Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares. However, while Sanjivnayan Bajaj is a member of our Promoter Group, Rajivhayan Bajaj, Madhur
Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan are neither Promoters nor members of the Promoter Group.
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11. Details of equity shareholding of the major Shareholders of our Company

a) The Shareholders holding 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company and the
number of Equity Shares held by them as on the date of this Prospectus are set forth in the table
below™:

Sr. No. | Name of the Shareholder Number of Equity Shares Percentage of the Equity Share
capital (%)
1. Bajaj Finance Limited 7,819,575,273* 100%
Total 7,819,575,273 100%
* Out of the 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with
Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance
Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.
Based on the statement of beneficiary position dated September 6, 2024.

b) The Shareholders who held 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company and
the number of Equity Shares held by them 10 days prior to the date of this Prospectus are set forth
in the table below™:

Sr. No. | Name of the Shareholder Number of Equity Shares Percentage of the Equity Share
capital (%)
1. Bajaj Finance Limited 7,819,575,273* 100%
Total 7,819,575,273 100%
*  Qut of the 7,819,575,273 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with
Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivnayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance
Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.
AN Based on the statement of beneficiary position dated August 27, 2024.

C) The Shareholders who held 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company and
the number of Equity Shares held by them one year prior to the date of this Prospectus are set forth
in the table below™

Sr. No. | Name of the Shareholder Number of Equity Shares Percentage of the Equity Share
capital (%)

1. Bajaj Finance Limited 6,712,155,564* 100%
Total 6,712,155,564 100%
*  Outof the 6,712,155,564 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with Rajivnayan

Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivhayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance Limited being
the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.
" Based on the statement of beneficiary position dated September 6, 2023

d) The Shareholders who held 1% or more of the paid-up Equity Share capital of our Company and
the number of Equity Shares held by them two years prior to the date of this Prospectus are set
forth in the table below":

Sr. No. | Name of the Shareholder Number of Equity Shares | Percentage of the Equity Share
capital (%)
1. Bajaj Finance Limited 6,712,155,564* 100%
Total 6,712,155,564 100%
*  Out of the 6,712,155,564 Equity Shares held, Bajaj Finance Limited jointly holds 100 Equity Shares each with
Rajivnayan Bajaj, Madhur Bajaj, Sanjivnayan Bajaj, Rajeev Jain, Atul Jain, and V. Rajagopalan, with Bajaj Finance
Limited being the first holder of each of such jointly held Equity Shares.
n Based on the statement of beneficiary position dated September 6, 2022.
12. Employee Stock Options Scheme of our Company
Q) ESOP 2024

Our Company, pursuant to the resolutions passed by our Board and our Shareholders each on April
24, 2024, adopted the ESOP 2024. The ESOP 2024 was further amended by Board and
Shareholders resolutions each dated June 6, 2024. The ESOP 2024 is in compliance with the SEBI
SBEB & SE Regulations.

As on the date of this Prospectus, under ESOP 2024, an aggregate of 16,751,673 options have
been granted (including an aggregate of nil lapsed options), an aggregate of nil options have been
vested and an aggregate of nil options have been exercised. These options have been granted in
compliance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and only to the employees of
our Company.

The details of the ESOP 2024, as certified by S K Patodia & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, through a certificate dated September 11, 2024 are as follows:
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Particulars Period
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2024 Three From July 1,
2022 2023 months | 2024 till the
period date of this
ended Prospectus
June 30,
2024
Options granted - - -1 16,751,673
No. of employees to whom options were - - - 73
granted -
Options vested (including options that - - - -
have been exercised) -
Vesting period (years) - - - 4
Options exercised - - - 0
Exercise price of options (in ) (as on the - - - 54.5
date of the grant of options) -
Options forfeited/ lapsed/ cancelled - - - -
Options outstanding (including vested and - - -| 16,751,673
unvested options) -
Total no. of Equity Shares that would arise - - -1 16,751,673
as a result of full exercise of options -
granted (net of forfeited/ lapsed/ cancelled
options)
Variation in terms of options - - - -
Money realised by exercise of options (in - - - Nil
) -
Total no. of options in force - - -1 16,751,673
Employee wise details of options granted
to
(i) Key Managerial Personnel -| 4,856,994 -
. Atul Jain -| 4,379,050 -
. Gaurav Kalani - 408,870 -
. Atul Patni - 69,074 -
(i) Senior Management Personnel -| 5,208,193 -
. Niraj Adiani - 416,656 -
. Naman Agarwal - 220,052 -
. Biswaranjan Bastia - 198,834 -
. Kumar Gaurav - 456,547 -
. Vijay Vikram Singh Solanki - 914,275 -
. Gagandeep Malhotra - 415,861 -
. Amit Kumar Yadav - 232,915 -
° Dushyant Poddar - 424,852 -
. Anurag Jain - 383,699 -
° Vipin Arora - 809,637 -
. Amit Sinha - 642,776 -
. Neel Ravindra Shah - 92,089 -
(iii) Any other employee who received a - Nil
grant in any one year of options amounting
to 5% or more of the options granted
during the year
(iv) Identified employees who are granted - Nil
options, during any one year equal to or
exceeding 1% of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and
conversions) of our Company at the time
of grant
Fully diluted earnings per share on a pre- 15 1.9 2.6 - -
Offer basis pursuant to the issue of equity
shares on exercise of options calculated in
accordance with the applicable
accounting standard on ‘earnings per
share’
Where our Company has calculated the - Nil

employee compensation cost using the
intrinsic value of the stock options, the
difference between employee
compensation cost so calculated and the
employee compensation cost that shall
have been recognised if our Company had
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13.

14.

15.

16.

Particulars Period
Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal 2024 Three From July 1,
2022 2023 months 2024 till the
period date of this
ended Prospectus
June 30,
2024

used fair value of options and impact of
this difference on profits and earnings per
share of our Company

Intention of the KMPs, SMPs and Whole- | N.A.
time Directors who are holders of Equity
Shares allotted on exercise of options
granted under an employee stock option
scheme or allotted under an employee
stock purchase scheme, to sell their
Equity Shares within three months after
the date of listing of the Equity Shares in
the initial public offer (aggregate number
of Equity Shares intended to be sold by
the holders of options), if any

Intention to sell Equity Shares arising out | N.A.
of an employee stock option scheme or
allotted under an employee stock
purchase scheme within three months
after the date of listing, by Directors,
KMPs, SMPs and employees having
Equity Shares issued under an employee
stock option scheme or employee stock
purchase scheme amounting to more than
1% of the issued -capital (excluding
outstanding warrants and conversions)
Description of the pricing formula and the
method and significant assumptions used
during the year to estimate the fair values
of options, including weighted-average
information, namely, risk-free interest rate,
expected life, expected volatility, expected
dividends and the price of the underlying
share in market at the time of grant of the
option

Method of option valuation

Black Scholes

- Expected life of options (years) - - - Five years -
- Expected Volatility (% p.a.) - - - 38.3% -
- Risk Free Rate of Return (%) - - - 7.1% -
- Dividend Yield (% p.a.) - - - - -
- Exercise price per share (%) - - - 54.5 -
- Weighted average share price - - - 245 -

on the date of grant of option (in

%)

Impact on profits and earnings per share | Nil
of the last three years if our Company had
followed the accounting policies specified
in the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Share Based Employee Benefits
and Sweat Equity Regulations), 2021 in
respect of options granted in the last three
years

As on the date of this Prospectus, all the Equity Shares held by our Promoter are held in dematerialised
form.

None of the BRLMs and their respective associates (as defined under the SEBI Merchant Bankers
Regulations) hold any Equity Shares in our Company as on the date of this Prospectus. The BRLMs and
their respective associates may engage in transactions with and perform services for our Company in the
ordinary course of business or may in the future engage in commercial banking and investment banking
transactions with our Company, for which they may in the future receive compensation.

There are no partly paid up Equity Shares as on the date of this Prospectus and all Equity Shares issued
pursuant to the Offer will be fully paid up at the time of Allotment.

Except for the allotment of 1,107,419,709 Equity Shares pursuant to a rights issue to Bajaj Finance Limited
on April 3, 2024, as detailed in “— Equity Share Capital History of our Company” above, none of our
Promoters, members of our Promoter Group, directors of our Promoters, our Directors and their respective
relatives have purchased, acquired or sold any securities of our Company during the period of six months
immediately preceding the date of filing of this Prospectus.
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17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

Our Company, our Directors and the BRLMs have not made any or entered into any buy-back arrangements
for purchase of Equity Shares.

Except for (i) an allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to exercise of options granted under the ESOP
Scheme, (i) Allotment of Equity Shares pursuant to the Offer, there will be no further issue of Equity Shares
whether by way of issue of bonus shares, rights issue, preferential issue or any other manner during the
period commencing from the date of filing of this Prospectus until the listing of the Equity Shares on the
Stock Exchanges, or all application monies have been refunded or unblocked, as the case may be.

Our Company presently does not intend or propose and is not under negotiations or considerations to alter
its capital structure for a period of six months from the Bid/ Offer Opening Date, by way of split or
consolidation of the denomination of Equity Shares or further issue of Equity Shares (including issue of
securities convertible into or exchangeable, directly or indirectly for Equity Shares) whether on a preferential
basis or by way of issue of bonus shares or on a rights basis or by way of further public issue of Equity
Shares or qualified institutions placements or otherwise. Provided, however, that the foregoing restrictions
do not apply to (a) the Fresh Issue; and (b) any issuance of Equity Shares pursuant to the exercise of
employee stock options granted or which may be granted under the ESOP Scheme.

At any given time, there shall be only one denomination for the Equity Shares.

Except for outstanding stock options granted pursuant to the ESOP Scheme, there are no outstanding
convertible securities or any warrant, option or right to convert a debenture, loan or other instrument which
would entitle any person any option to receive Equity Shares, as on the date of this Prospectus.

No person connected with the Offer, including, but not limited to the BRLMSs, the Syndicate Members, our
Company, the Promoters including the Promoter Selling Shareholder, our Directors, or the members of the
Promoter Group, shall offer or make payment of any incentive, direct or indirect, in the nature of discount,
commission and allowance, except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation to the Offer, in
any manner, whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise, to any Bidder for making a Bid.

There have been no financing arrangements whereby our Promoters, members of the Promoter Group, our
Directors, directors of our Promoters, and their respective relatives have financed the purchase by any other
person of securities of our Company other than in the normal course of the business of the financing entity,
during a period of six months immediately preceding the date of the Draft Red Herring Prospectus, the Red
Herring Prospectus, and this Prospectus.

Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by our Promoters and members of the
Promoter Group between the date of filing of this Prospectus and the date of closure of the Offer shall be
intimated to the Stock Exchanges within 24 hours of such transaction.

Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group shall not participate in the Offer, except by way of
participation as Promoter Selling Shareholder, in the Offer for Sale.
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OBJECTS OF THE OFFER
The Offer comprises the Fresh Issue and an Offer for Sale.
Offer for Sale

The Promoter Selling Shareholder shall be entitled to the proceeds of the Offer for Sale after deducting its proportion
of Offer expenses and relevant taxes thereon. Our Company will not receive any proceeds from the Offer for Sale
and the proceeds received from the Offer for Sale will not form part of the Net Proceeds. For further details in
reference to the Offer expenses, see “Offer related expenses” on page 112.

Objects of the Fresh Issue

Our Company proposes to utilise the Net Proceeds from the Fresh Issue towards augmenting our capital base to
meet future business requirements of our Company towards onward lending (“Objects”). The Board through its
resolution dated August 20, 2024 has approved the Objects.

In addition, our Company expects to receive the benefits of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges,
including enhancement of our Company’s brand name and creation of a public market for our Equity Shares in India.

Further, a portion of the proceeds from the Fresh Issue will be used towards meeting Offer Expenses. For further
details, see “— Offer related expenses” on page 112 below. The main objects clause and objects incidental and
ancillary to the main objects clause of our Memorandum of Association enable us to undertake the activities for
which the funds are being raised by us in the Fresh Issue.

Net Proceeds

The details of the proceeds from the Fresh Issue are summarised in the following table:

Particulars Estimated amount (¥ in million)
Gross Proceeds of the Fresh Issue 35,600.0
(Less) Estimated Offer related expenses to be borne by our Company in (604.5)M@)
relation to the Fresh Issue
Net Proceeds 34,995.5

(1) Subject to finalisation of Basis of Allotment.
(2) For details, see *“ Offer related expenses” below.

Requirement of Funds and Utilisation of Net Proceeds

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be utilised in accordance with the details provided hereunder:

Particulars Amount (in ¥ million) Percentage of Net
Proceeds (%)
Augmenting our capital base to meet future business requirements of 34,995.5 100%
our Company towards onward lending
Total 34,995.5 100%

The Net Proceeds are proposed to be deployed over the course of Financial Year 2025. The fund requirements, the
proposed deployment of funds and the intended use of the Net Proceeds as described herein are based on our
current business plan, management estimates, prevailing market conditions and other commercial and technical
factors. We may have to revise our funding requirements and deployment on account of a variety of factors such as
our financial and market condition, business and strategy, competition and other external factors including changes
in the business environment and interest or exchange rate fluctuations, or other factors which may not be within the
control of our management. This may entail rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding
requirements, including the expenditure for a particular purpose at the discretion of our management, subject to
compliance with applicable laws.

In the event that the estimated utilisation of the Net Proceeds in Financial Year 2025 is not completely met, due to
the reasons stated above, the same shall be utilised in Financial Year 2026, as may be determined by our Company,
in accordance with applicable laws. For details on risks involved, see “Risk Factors — 18. Our funding
requirements and deployment of the Net Proceeds of the Offer are based on management estimates and have not
been independently appraised. Any variation in the utilisation of the Net Proceeds would be subject to certain
compliance requirements, including prior Shareholders’ approval..” on page 53.

Details of the Objects of the Fresh Issue

Augmenting the capital base of our Company to meet future business requirements towards onward lending
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We are a non-deposit taking housing finance company in India and are registered with the NHB. We offer tailored
financial solutions to individuals and corporate entities for the purchase and renovation of homes and commercial
spaces, with a comprehensive mortgage product suite comprising: (i) home loans; (ii) loans against property; (iii)
lease rental discounting; and (iv) developer financing. Furthermore, our primary emphasis is on individual retalil
housing loans, complemented by a diversified collection of commercial and developer loans inter alia covering full
mortgage product suite and across all customer segments. For details, see “Our Business” on page 219.

As per the RBI Master Directions — HFC, we are required to maintain a minimum capital adequacy ratio, consisting
of Tier | capital and Tier Il capital of not less than 15% of our aggregate risk weighted assets and risk adjusted value
of off-balance sheet items with Tier-1 capital not below 10% at any point of time. Further, we are required to ensure
that total Tier-1l capital, at any point of time, shall not exceed 100% of the Tier-1 capital. For further details, see “Key
Regulations and Policies” on page 243.

As at June 30, 2024, our Company’s CRAR, in accordance with the Restated Financial Information, was 23.82%, of
which Tier—I capital was 23.26%. The table sets forth the details of composition of our Tier—I and Tier—Il capital as

at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2023, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022:

(in T million)
Particulars As at June 30, | As at June 30,| As at March As at March 31, As at March
2024 2023 31, 2024 2023 31, 2022

Equity share capital 78,195.8 67,121.6 67,121.6 67,121.6 48,833.3
Statutory reserve (Special reserve 9,637.6 6,175.1 9,637.6 6,175.1 3,659.5
as per Section 29C of National
Housing Bank Act, 1987 and
Special reserve as per Section
36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act,
1961) (refer note (i) below)
General reserve - - - - -
Securities premium 17,302.0 8,377.2 8,377.2 8,377.2 1,666.7
Debenture redemption reserve - - - - -
Retained earnings 42,019.4 27,976.0 37,193.3 23,358.0 13,254.1
Other Comprehensive Income 11.6 - 5.3 - -
Employee Stock Option 32.7 - - - -
QOutstanding
Deferred revenue expenditure, (3,882.2) (3,605.3) (3,762.6) (3,184.5) (2,723.5)
other intangible assets and other
ineligible items for Tier-I capital
Tier | Capital 143,316.9 106,044.6 118,572.4 101,847.4 64,690.1
General provisions for standard 3,466.2 3,570.2 3,484.5 3,596.6 2,599.5
assets
Subordinated debt - - - - -
Tier Il Capital 3,466.2 3,670.2 3,484.5 3,596.6 2,599.5
Total Capital Fund (Tier-l and 146,783.1 109,614.8 122,056.9 105,444.0 67,289.6
Tier-Il)

Capital Adequacy

Set forth below are the details of our CRAR as at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2023, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023
and March 31, 2022, and our Tier-l and Tier-1l capital as a percentage of risk weighted assets as at such dates:

(% in millions except otherwise stated)

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 | June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Tier | Capital (A) 143,316.9 1,06,044.6 118,572.4 101,847.4 64,690.1
Tier 1l Capital (B) 3,466.2 3,570.2 3,484.5 3,596.6 2,599.5
Total  Capital Fund 146,783.1 109,614.8 122,056.9 105,444.0 67,289.6
(C=A+B)
Total Risk weighted 616,256.3 486,805.1 573,518.3 459,017.5 341,261.5
assets (D)
Capital adequacy ratios
CRAR-Tier- | capital (%) 23.26 21.79 20.67 22.19 18.95
(E=A/D)
CRAR-Tier- Il capital (%) 0.56 0.73 0.61 0.78 0.76
(F=B/D)
CRAR (%) 23.82 22.52 21.28 22.97 19.71
Notes:

(1) Tier | Capital - Represents Tier | capital computed basis the method provided by the regulator as at the last day of relevant fiscal year.
(2) Tier Il Capital - Represents Tier Il capital computed basis the method provided by the regulator as at the last day of relevant fiscal year
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Set forth below are the details of our AUM as at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023

and March 31, 2022:

Particulars As at
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 21 2023 March 31, 2022
AUM (in ¥ million) 970,713.3 741,242.6 913,704.0 692,279.0 533,217.2
AUM growth (in %) 31.0 29.1 32.0 29.8 37.2

Set out below are details of our total Loan Assets, Gross NPAs and Net NPAs as at June 30, 2024 and March 31,
2024:

Particulars As at June 30, 2024 As at March 31, 2024
Loan Assets® 852,832.0 793,007.5
Gross NPA® 2,361.8 2,156.1
Gross NPA (%) @ 0.28 0.27
Net NPA® 959.5 781.7
Net NPA (%)® 0.11 0.10
Notes:

Loan assets, which is aggregate amount of loan receivable from customer which includes future principal outstanding and overdue principal
outstanding after considering the impairment allowances.

Gross carrying value of stage 3 loan assets as at the last day of relevant fiscal year.

Ratio of Gross NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year.

Net carrying value of stage 3 loan assets which is gross stage 3 loan assets reduced by impairment allowances provided on stage 3 loan
assets as at the last day of relevant fiscal year.

Ratio of Net NPA to gross carrying value of loan asset after reducing impairment loan allowances on stage 3 loan assets as at the last day
of the relevant fiscal year.

@
)
®3)
4)
(®)

Set forth below are the details of the disbursements made by us as at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2023, March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 and the year-on-year growth of the same:

Particulars As at June 30, As at March 31,
2024 2023 2024 2023 2022
Disbursements (in ¥ million) 120,035.1 103,825.2 446,562.4 343,336.3 261,752.4
Year-on-year growth (in %) 15.6 12.2 30.1 31.2 73.5

Since our Company continues to grow our loan portfolio and asset base, it will require additional capital in order to
continue to meet applicable capital adequacy ratios with respect to its business. Our Company proposes to utilise
the Net Proceeds towards augmenting its capital base to meet future business requirements of our Company
towards onward lending, which are expected to arise out of growth of our business and assets. For further details,
see “Our Business” on page 219.

While our Company’s CRAR as at June 30, 2024, June 30, 2024, March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and March 31,
2022 exceeds the regulatory thresholds prescribed by the RBI, we believe that in order to maintain our Company’s
growth rate, we will require further capital in the future in order to remain complaint with such regulatory thresholds.
Further, in November 2023, the RBI issued a circular providing for an increased risk weight on consumer credit
exposure (excluding home loans) from 100% to 125%. As a result, loans against property (excluding housing loans)
without end use as business may attract the requirement of higher risk weights, which may reduce our CRAR in the
future.

Our Company’s business is dependent on its ability to raise funds at competitive rates, which in turn, depends on
various factors including our credit ratings. Considering that the higher CRAR would positively impact the credit
ratings of our Company, which would lower the borrowing costs thereby positively impacting our interest margins
and financial condition, we accordingly, propose to utilize an amount aggregating to ¥34,995.5 million out of the Net
Proceeds towards maintaining higher Tier-I Capital in light of our onward lending requirements. We believe that
maintaining higher Tier-1 Capital will help us remain competitive with our industry peers. We anticipate that the
portion of the Net Proceeds allocated towards this object will be sufficient to satisfy our Company’s future capital
requirements, which are expected to arise out of growth of our business and assets.

Means of finance

The fund requirements set out in the aforesaid Objects are proposed to be met entirely from the Net Proceeds.
Accordingly, our Company confirms that there is no requirement to make firm arrangements of finance through
verifiable means towards at least 75% of the stated means of finance, excluding the amount to be raised from the
Fresh Issue and existing identifiable accruals as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations. In case of a shortfall
in the Net Proceeds or any increase in the actual utilisation of funds earmarked for the Objects, our Company may
explore a range of options including utilizing our internal accruals and/ or seeking additional debt from existing and/
or other lenders.

Offer related expenses
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The total Offer related expenses are estimated to be approximately ¥1,102.3 million. The Offer related expenses
primarily include listing fees, underwriting fees, selling commission and brokerage, fees payable to the BRLMs, legal
counsels, Registrar to the Offer, Escrow Collection Bank, Public Offer Account Bank, Refund Bank and Sponsor
Banks, including processing fee to the SCSBs for processing ASBA Forms submitted by ASBA Bidders procured
by the Syndicate and submitted to SCSBs, brokerage and selling commission payable to Registered Brokers, RTAs
and CDPs, printing and stationery expenses, advertising and marketing expenses and all other incidental and
miscellaneous expenses for listing the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges.

Other than (a) listing fees, audit fees of the Joint Statutory Auditors (to the extent not attributable to the Offer), and
expenses in relation to product or corporate advertisements, i.e., any corporate advertisements consistent with past
practices of the Company (other than the expenses relating to marketing and advertisements undertaken in
connection with the Offer), each of which shall be solely borne by the Company, and (b) fees for counsel to the
Promoter Selling Shareholder, if any, which shall be solely borne by the Promoter Selling Shareholder, all costs,
fees, charges and expenses with respect to the offer, to the extent due and accrued, shall be shared by our
Company and the Promoter Selling Shareholder, on a pro rata basis, in proportion to the number of Equity Shares
issued and Allotted by our Company through the Fresh Issue and sold by the Promoter Selling Shareholder in the
Offer for Sale.

All such Offer related expenses to be proportionately borne by the Promoter Selling Shareholder shall be deducted
from the proceeds from the Offer for Sale, and subsequently, the balance amount from the Offer for Sale will be
paid to the Promoter Selling Shareholder.

Further, in the event the Offer is withdrawn or abandoned or not completed for any reason whatsoever, the Offer
related expenses shall be borne by our Company and the Promoter Selling Shareholder, on a pro rata basis, in
proportion to the number of Equity Shares issued and Allotted by our Company through the Fresh Issue and sold
by the Promoter Selling Shareholder in the Offer for Sale.

The break-up of the estimated Offer expenses is as follows:

Activity Estimated As a % of the total | As a % of the total
expenses® estimated Offer Offer size®
(Z in million) expenses®
BRLMs fees and commissions (including underwriting 359.9 32.7% 0.6%
commission, brokerage and selling commission)
Commission/processing fee for SCSBs, Sponsor Banks 131.7 11.9% 0.2%

and Bankers to the Offer. Brokerage, underwriting
commission and selling commission and bidding charges
for Members of the Syndicate, Registered Brokers, RTAs
and CDPs @®@®©)

Fees payable to the Registrar to the Offer 2.6 0.2% 0.0%
Fees payable to the other advisors to the Offer 26.7 2.4% 0.1%
Other expenses:

- Listing fees, SEBI filing fees, upload fees, BSE and 225.9 20.5% 0.3%

NSE processing fees, book building software fees and
other regulatory expenses

- Printing and stationery 21.9 2.0% 0.0%
- Advertising and marketing expenses 107.4 9.7% 0.2%
- Fee payable to legal counsels 64.5 5.9% 0.1%
- Miscellaneous 161.7 14.7% 0.2%
Total estimated Offer expenses 1,102.3 100.00% 1.7%

(1) Offer expenses include applicable taxes, where applicable.. Offer expenses are estimates and are subject to change.
(2 Selling commission payable to the SCSBs on the portion for RIBs, Non-Institutional Bidders, Eligible Employee Bidders and Eligible
Shareholders which are directly procured and uploaded by the SCSBs, would be as follows:

Portion for RIBs* 0.30% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* 0.15% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Eligible Employees* 0.15% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Eligible Shareholders* 0.20% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)

Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Offer Price.
Selling Commission payable to the SCSBs will be determined on the basis of the bidding terminal id as captured in the Bid book of
BSE or NSE.
No processing fees shall be payable by the Company and the Selling Shareholders to the SCSBs on the applications directly procured
by them.
Processing fees payable to the SCSBs for capturing Syndicate Member/Sub-syndicate (Broker)/Sub-broker code on the ASBA Form
for Non-Institutional Bidders and Qualified Institutional Bidders with bids above ¥ 0.5 million would be ¥ 10 plus applicable taxes, per
valid application
(3) Brokerage, selling commission and processing/uploading charges on the portion for RIBs (using the UPI mechanism), Eligible Employee
Bidders, Eligible Shareholders and Non-Institutional Bidders which are procured by members of the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate
Members), RTAs and CDPs or for using 3-in-1 type accounts- linked online trading, demat & bank account provided by some of the brokers
which are members of Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members) would be as follows:

Portion for RIBs* 0.30% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* 0.15% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Eligible Employees* 0.15% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Eligible Shareholders* 0.20% of the Amount Allotted (plus applicable taxes)
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*  Amount Allotted is the product of the number of Equity Shares Allotted and the Offer Price.

The Selling commission payable to the Syndicate / sub-Syndicate Members (RIl up to ¥ 0.2 million), and Non-Institutional Bidders
(from % 0.2 - % 0.5 million) will be determined on the basis of the application form number / series, provided that the application is also
bid by the respective Syndicate / sub-Syndicate Members. For clarification, if a Syndicate ASBA application on the application form
number / series of a Syndicate / sub-Syndicate Members, is bid by an SCSB, the Selling Commission will be payable to the SCSB and
not the Syndicate / sub-Syndicate Members.
For Non-Institutional Bidders (above ¥ 0.5 million), Syndicate ASBA Form bearing SM Code & Sub-Syndicate Code of the application
form submitted to SCSBs for Blocking of the Fund and uploading on the Exchanges platform by SCSBs. For clarification, if a Syndicate
ASBA application on the application form number / series of a Syndicate / Sub-Syndicate Member, is bid by an SCSB, the Selling
Commission will be payable to the Syndicate / Sub Syndicate members and not the SCSB.
Uploading Charges payable to members of the Syndicate (including their sub-Syndicate Members), RTAs and CDPs on the
applications made by RIBs, Eligible Employee Bidders and Eligible Shareholders using 3-in-1 accounts/Syndicate ASBA mechanism
and Non-Institutional Bidders which are procured by them and submitted to SCSB for blocking or using 3-in-1 accounts/Syndicate
ASBA mechanism, would be as follows: ¥ 10 plus applicable taxes, per valid application bid by the Syndicate (including their sub-
Syndicate Members), RTAs and CDPs.
Bidding charges payable on the application made using 3-in-71 accounts will be subject to a maximum cap of ¥3.5 million (plus
applicable taxes), in case if the total processing fees exceeds ¥ 3.5 million (plus applicable taxes) then processing fees will be paid on
pro-rata basis for portion of (i) RIB’s (ii) NIB’s (iii) Eligible Employee and (iv) Eligible Shareholders, as applicable.
The selling commission and bidding charges payable to Registered Brokers, the RTAs and CDPs will be determined on the basis of
the bidding terminal id as captured in the Bid Book of BSE or NSE.

(4) Selling commission/ uploading charges payable to the Registered Brokers on the portion for RIBs, Eligible Employee Bidders, Eligible

Shareholders and Non-Institutional Bidders which are directly procured by the Registered Broker and submitted to SCSB for processing,
would be as follows:

Portion for RIBs* Z 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Non-Institutional Bidders* Z 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Eligible Employees* % 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes)
Portion for Eligible Shareholders* Z 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes)

(5) Uploading charges/ Processing fees for applications made by RIBs using the UPI Mechanism (up to ¥ 0.2 million) and Non-Institutional
Bidders (from % 0.2 - 0.5 million) would be as under:

Members of the Syndicate / RTAs / CDPs | ¥ 10 per valid application (plus applicable taxes) subject to a maximum cap of ¥ 20.00 million
/Registered Brokers (plus applicable taxes)

Axis Bank Limited Z NIL per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicable taxes). The Sponsor Bank(s) shall
be responsible for making payments to the third parties such as remitter bank, NPCI and such
other parties as required in connection with the performance of its duties under applicable
SEBI circulars, the Syndicate Agreement and other applicable laws.

HDFC Bank Limited Z NIL per valid Bid cum Application Form (plus applicable taxes).. The Sponsor Bank(s) shall
be responsible for making payments to the third parties such as remitter bank, NPCl and such
other parties as required in connection with the performance of its duties under the SEBI
circulars, the Syndicate Agreement and other applicable laws.

Based on valid applications

All such commissions and processing fees set out above shall be paid as per the timelines in terms of the Syndicate Agreement and
Cash Escrow and Sponsor Bank Agreement.

The total uploading charges / processing fees payable to Members of the Syndicate, RTAs, CDPs, Registered Brokers will be subject
to a maximum cap of ¥20.00 million (plus applicable taxes). In case the total uploading charges/processing fees payable exceeds
Z20.00 million, then the amount payable to Members of the Syndicate, RTAs, CDPs, Registered Brokers would be proportionately
distributed based on the number of valid applications such that the total uploading charges / processing fees payable does not exceed
%20.00 million.”

The processing fees for applications made by UPI Bidders using the UPI Mechanism may be released to the remitter banks (SCSBs)
only after such banks provide a written confirmation on compliance with SEBI RTA Master Circular, in a format as prescribed by SEBI,
from time to time and in accordance with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2022/51 dated April 20, 2022.

Interim use of Net Proceeds

The Net Proceeds shall be retained in the Public Offer Account until receipt of the listing and trading approvals from
the Stock Exchanges by our Company. Pending utilisation for the purposes described above, our Company will
deposit the Net Proceeds only with one or more scheduled commercial banks included in Second Schedule of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as may be approved by our Board. In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies
Act, our Company confirms that it shall not use the Net Proceeds for buying, trading or otherwise dealing in the
shares of any other listed company or any investment in equity markets.

Bridge financing facilities

Our Company has not raised any bridge loans from any bank or financial institution as on the date of Prospectus,
which are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds.

Appraising entity

None of the Objects of the Offer for which the Net Proceeds will be utilised have been appraised by any bank /
financial institution or agency.

Monitoring of utilisation of funds

In terms of Regulation 41 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, our Company has appointed a monitoring agency to
monitor the utilisation of the Gross Proceeds, prior to filing of the Red Herring Prospectus with the RoC. Our Audit
Committee and the Monitoring Agency will monitor the utilisation of the Gross Proceeds and the Monitoring Agency
shall submit the report required under Regulation 41(2) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, on a quarterly basis, until
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such time as the Net Proceeds have been utilised in full. Our Company undertakes to place the report(s) of the
Monitoring Agency on receipt before the Audit Committee without any delay. Our Company will disclose the
utilisation of the Net Proceeds, including interim use under a separate head in its balance sheet for such Fiscal
periods as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the SEBI Listing Regulations and any other applicable laws
or regulations, clearly specifying the purposes for which the Net Proceeds have been utilised, till the time any part
of the Fresh Issue proceeds remains unutilised. Our Company will also, in its balance sheet for the applicable Fiscal
periods, provide details, if any, in relation to all such Net Proceeds that have not been utilised, if any, of such
currently unutilised Net Proceeds.

Pursuant to Regulation 18(3) and Regulation 32(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our Company shall on a
quarterly basis disclose to the Audit Committee the uses and application of the Gross Proceeds. The Audit
Committee shall make recommendations to our Board for further action, if appropriate. Our Company shall, on an
annual basis, prepare a statement of funds utilised for purposes other than those stated in this Prospectus and
place it before our Audit Committee. Such disclosure shall be made only until such time that all the Net Proceeds
have been utilised in full. The statement shall be certified by the statutory auditor(s) and such certification shall be
provided to the Monitoring Agency. Further, in accordance with Regulation 32 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, our
Company shall furnish to the Stock Exchanges on a quarterly basis, a statement indicating (i) deviations, if any, in
the utilisation of the Net Proceeds from the Objects of the Offer as stated above; and (ii) details of variations in the
utilisation of the Net Proceeds from the Objects of the Offer as stated above. This information will also be published
in newspapers simultaneously with the interim or annual financial results and explanation for such variation (if any)
will be included in our Directors’ report, after placing the same before the Audit Committee. Further, our Company
shall, on a quarterly basis, include the deployment of Net Proceeds under various heads, as applicable, in the notes
to our quarterly results. Our Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilised Net Proceeds in the balance
sheet of our Company for the relevant fiscals subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock
Exchanges.

Variation in the objects

In accordance with Sections 13(8) and 27 of the Companies Act and applicable rules, our Company shall not vary
the objects of the Offer without our Company being authorised to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special
resolution. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special resolution
(“Notice”) shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Notice
shall simultaneously be published in an English national daily newspaper, a Hindi national daily newspaper and a
Marathi daily newspaper (Marathi being the regional language of Maharashtra, where our Registered Office is
located), each with wide circulation, in accordance with the Companies Act and applicable rules. The Shareholders
who do not agree to the proposal to vary the objects shall be given an exit opportunity, at such price, and in such
manner, in accordance with our Articles of Association, the Companies Act, and the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Other confirmations

Except to the extent of the proceeds received by the Promoter Selling Shareholder pursuant to the Offer for Sale,
none of our Promoters, the members of the Promoter Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior
Management Personnel or Group Companies will receive any portion of the Offer Proceeds. Further, except in the
ordinary course of business, there is no existing or anticipated interest of such individuals and entities in the objects
of the Fresh Issue, except as set out above.

Our Company has not entered into and is not planning to enter into any arrangement/ agreements with our

Promoters, Promoter Group, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel in relation
to the utilisation of the Net Proceeds.
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BASIS FOR OFFER PRICE

The Price Band and the Offer Price has been determined by our Company in consultation with the Book Running
Lead Managers, on the basis of assessment of market demand for the Equity Shares offered through the Book
Building Process and on the basis of quantitative and qualitative factors as described below. The face value of the
Equity Shares is ¥10 each and the Floor Price is 6.6 times the face value and the Cap Price is 7.0 times the face
value. Investors should also see “Our Business”, “Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, “Selected Statistical Information” and “Restated Financial
Information” on pages 219, 36, 404, 285 and 309, respectively, to have an informed view before making an
investment decision.

Qualitative Factors
We believe some of the qualitative factors which form the basis for computing the Offer Price are:

. We have a distinguished heritage of the “Bajaj” brand, which enjoys widespread recognition as a reliable
retail brand with strong brand equity.

. We are the second largest HFC in India (in terms of AUM) with a track record of strong growth driven by a
diversified portfolio.

. We have a strategic presence with omni-channel sourcing strategy, driven by customer-focused digitization
initiatives and technology.

. We have well defined credit evaluation and risk management practices resulting in lowest GNPA and NNPA
among our Peers in Fiscal 2024.

. We have access to diversified and cost-effective borrowing sources facilitated by the highest possible credit
ratings from rating agencies.

. We have an experienced management team supported by a team of dedicated professionals and ability to
attract and retain talented employees.

For details, see “Our Business —Strengths” on page 223.
Quantitative Factors
Some of the quantitative factors which form the basis for computing the Offer Price are as follows:

A. Basic and Diluted Earnings per share for continuing operations (“EPS”) (face value of each Equity
Share is ¥10):

Fiscal Year / period ended Basic EPS (in %) Diluted EPS (in ¥) Weight

March 31, 2024 2.6 2.6 3
March 31, 2023 1.9 1.9 2
March 31, 2022 15 15 1
Weighted Average 2.2 2.2 -
Three months period ended June 30, 2024* 0.6 0.6 -
Three months period ended June 30, 2023* 0.7 0.7 -
* Not annualized.

Notes:

1. Basic EPS = Net profit after tax (loss after tax) as restated / Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year / period.

2. Diluted EPS = Net profit after tax (loss after tax) as restated / Weighted average number of potential equity shares outstanding
during the year / period.

3.  Weighted average = Aggregate of year-wise weighted EPS divided by the aggregate of weights i.e. (EPS x Weight) for each year
/Total of weights

4. EPS has been calculated in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 33 — “Earnings per share” notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules of 2015 (as amended).

B. Price/Earning (“P/E”) ratio in relation to the Price Band of ¥66 to ¥70 per Equity Share:
Particulars P/E at the Floor Price (no. of P/E at the Cap Price (no. of
times) times)
Based on basic EPS for Fiscal 2024 25.4 26.9
Based on diluted EPS for Fiscal 2024 25.4 26.9
. Notes:

1. Basic EPS = Net profit after tax (loss after tax) as restated for Fiscal 2024 / Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the Fiscal 2024.

2. Diluted EPS = Net profit after tax (loss after tax) as restated for Fiscal 2024 / Weighted average number of potential equity shares
outstanding during the Fiscal 2024.
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Industry Peer Group P/E ratio

Based on the peer group information (excluding our Company) given below are the highest, lowest and
industry average P/E ratio:

Particulars P/E Ratio
Highest 30.3
Lowest 7.7
Average 20.0

Notes:

1. The industry high and low has been considered from the industry peer set provided later in this chapter. The industry average
has been calculated as the arithmetic average P/E of the industry peer set disclosed in this section. For further details, see
“Comparison with Listed Industry Peers” on page 117.

2. P/ E Ratio has been computed based on the closing market price of equity shares on NSE on August 19, 2024 divided by the
Diluted EPS.

3. All the financial information for listed industry peers mentioned above is on a consolidated basis and is sourced from the audited
financial statements of the relevant companies for Fiscal 2024, as available on the websites of the stock exchanges.

Industry Peer Group price/book (“P/B”) ratio

Based on the peer group information (excluding our Company) given below in this section, details of the
highest, lowest and industry average P/B ratio are set forth below:

Particulars P/B ratio
Highest 4.3
Lowest 1.2
Average 3.0

Notes:

1. The industry composite has been calculated as the arithmetic average P/B of the industry peer set disclosed.

2. P /B Ratio has been computed based on the closing market price of equity shares on NSE on August 19, 2024 divided by the
NAV per Equity Share as of March 31, 2024.

3. All the financial information for listed industry peers mentioned above is taken as is sourced from the audited financial statements
of the relevant companies for Fiscal 2024, as available on the websites of the stock exchanges.

Return on Net Worth (“RoNW”)

Fiscal Year / period ended RoNW (%) Weight

March 31, 2024 15.2% 3
March 31, 2023 14.6% 2
March 31, 2022 11.1% 1
Weighted Average 14.3% -
Three months period ended June 30, 2024* 3.6% -
Three months period ended June 30, 2023* 4.3% -
* Not annualized.

Notes:

1. Net worth has been computed as a sum of paid up share capital and other equity.

2. The Weighted Average Return on Net Worth is a product of Return on Net Worth and respective assigned weight, dividing the
resultant by total aggregate weight.

3. Return on Net Worth = Net profit/(loss) after tax for the years attributable to the owners of the Company divided by Average Net
Worth of the Company for the respective year / period.

Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per Equity Share of face value of ¥10 each:

Particulars NAV per Equity Share (%)
As on June 30, 2024 18.8
As on March 31, 2024 18.2
After the completion of the Offer
Offer Price | 21.9

Notes:

1. Net Asset Value per Equity Share = Net worth as per the restated consolidated financial information (after considering the Offer)
/ Number of Equity Shares outstanding as at the end of year/period.

2. Net worth has been computed as a sum of paid up share capital and other equity.

Comparison with listed industry peers

Following is the comparison with our peer group companies listed in India and in the same line of business
as our Company as of March 31, 2024:

Name of the company Total Face P/E | P/IB | Basic | Diluted | RONW NAV NAV per
income (¥ | Value EPS | EPS ()| (%) X in Equity
in million) | (¥ per ) million) Share

share) )
Bajaj Housing Finance| 76,177.1 10| 26.9*| 3.8* 2.6 2.6| 15.2%| 122,335.0 18.2
Limited# N
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Name of the company Total Face P/E | P/B | Basic | Diluted | RONW NAV NAYV per
income (X | Value EPS | EPS R) | (%) R in Equity
in million) | (¥ per ) million) Share

share) %)
Listed Peers
LIC  Housing Finance| 272,778.0 2 77| 1.2 86.5 86.5| 16.2%| 314,800.6 572.3
Limited
PNB Housing Finance| 70,570.9 10| 14.1| 14 58.4 58.2| 11.6%| 149,744.4 576.6
Limited
Can Fin Homes Limited 35,246.9 2| 15.0] 2.6 56.4 56.4| 18.8%| 43,438.5 326.2
Aadhar Housing Finance 25,869.8 10| 21.4| 3.8 19.0 18.4| 18.4%| 44,497.5 104.3
Aavas Financiers 20,206.9 10| 26.8| 3.5 62.0 61.9| 13.9%| 37,733.2 476.8
Aptus  Value Housing| 14,168.4 2| 25.0| 4.0 12.3 12.2| 17.2%| 37,679.2 75.5
Finance
Home First Finance 11,565.5 2| 30.3] 43 34.7 33.7] 155%| 21,214.9 239.7
Notes:

#  Financial information of the Company has been derived from the Restated Financial Information.

* Considering the Offer Price.

A Computed on EPS (Basic).

Sources for listed peers information included above:

1. All the financial information for listed industry peers is on a consolidated basis and is sourced from the financial information of
such listed industry peer as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 available on the website of the stock exchanges or the
Company.

2. PIE ratio for the listed industry peers has been computed based on the closing market price of equity shares on NSE Limited
("NSE”) as on August 19, 2024 divided by the diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2024.

3. P/Bratio for the listed industry peers has been computed based on the closing market price of equity shares on NSE as on August
19, 2024 divided by the net asset value per equity share as at the last day of the year ended March 31, 2024.

4. Return on net worth (%) is calculated as the profit after tax for the relevant fiscal year as a percentage of average net worth in
such year.

5. Net asset value per equity share (book value per equity share) is computed as net worth as of the last day of the relevant year
divided by the outstanding number of issued and subscribed equity shares as of the last day of such year. Net worth is calculated
as a sum of equity share capital and other equity.

Key Performance Indicators

The table below sets forth the details of our KPIs that our Company considers have a bearing for arriving at
the basis for Offer Price. All the KPIs disclosed below have been approved by a resolution of our Audit
Committee dated August 20, 2024 and the Audit Committee has confirmed that the KPIs and other
operational and financial metrics pertaining to the Company that have been identified by the Company’s
management, and shared with our Promoter, Bajaj Finance Limited, at any point in the last three years,
have been disclosed in this section. Further, the KPIs herein have been verified and certified by S K Patodia
& Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, pursuant to their certificate dated September 11, 2024,

The KPIs disclosed below have been historically used by the Company to understand and analyze its
business performance and will also help in analyzing its growth in comparison to its peers.

The presentation of these KPIs is not intended to be considered in isolation or as a substitute for the
Restated Financial Information. We use these KPIs to evaluate our financial and operating performance.
Some of these KPIs are not defined under Ind AS and are not presented in accordance with Ind AS and
may have limitations as analytical tools.

Further, these KPIs may differ from the similar information used by other companies and hence their
comparability may be limited. Therefore, these KPIs should not be considered in isolation or construed as
an alternative to Ind AS measures of performance, liquidity, profitability or results of operation.

Our Company confirms that it shall continue to disclose all the KPIs included in this section on a periodic
basis, at least once a year (or any lesser period as may be determined by the Board), for a duration of one
year after the date of listing of the Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges or till the utilisation of the Offer
Proceeds as per the disclosure made in the section “Objects of the Offer” on page 110 of this Prospectus,
whichever is later, or for such other duration as required under the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

(Z in million, unless specified)

Sr. Particulars As at and for | As atand for | As atand for | As at and for | As at and for
No. the three the three the financial the financial the financial
months period | months period | year ended year ended year ended
ended June ended June March 31, March 31, March 31,
30, 2024 30, 2023 2024 2023 2022
Footprint / Presence
1 No. of States/UTs * 23 21 23 20 17
2 No. of Branches ¢ 215 207 215 208 201
3 No. of Locations @) 174 168 174 162 157
4 No. of Employees *) 2,239 2,773 2,372 2,788 3,705
Portfolio Cuts
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Sr. Particulars As atand for | Asatand for | As atand for | As atand for | As at and for
No. the three the three the financial the financial the financial
months period | months period | year ended year ended year ended
ended June ended June March 31, March 31, March 31,
30, 2024 30, 2023 2024 2023 2022

5 Assets under 9,70,713.3 7,41,242.6 9,13,704.0 6,92,279.0 5,33,217.2
Management (AUM)

6 AUM y-0-y Growth 31.0% 29.1% 32.0% 29.8% 37.2%

7 Disbursement 1,20,035.1 1,03,825.2 4,46,562.4 3,43,336.3 2,61,752.4

8 Disbursement y-0-y 15.6% 12.2% 30.1% 31.2% 73.5%
Growth

9 Product-wise AUM

a. Home Loan (HL) 57.5% 60.3% 57.8% 61.7% 64.8%

b. Loan Against Property 10.0% 10.8% 10.5% 11.3% 13.9%
(LAP)

C. Lease Rental 19.5% 18.1% 19.3% 16.3% 12.9%
Discounting (LRD)

d. Developer Finance 11.2% 8.4% 10.5% 8.2% 5.4%
(BF)

e. Others 1.8% 2.4% 1.9% 2.5% 3.0%

10  |AUM Mix

a. On-book 87.9% 89.5% 86.8% 89.7% 87.2%

b. Off-book 12.1% 10.5% 13.2% 10.3% 12.8%

11 Home Loan AUM Mix
(by Customer Type)

a. Salaried 86.7% 90.2% 87.5% 90.5% 90.0%

b. Self-employed 4.1% 5.0% 4.3% 5.2% 5.1%
professional

C. Self-employed non 9.2% 4.8% 8.2% 4.3% 4.9%
professional

12 Home Loan AUM Mix
(by Sourcing Channel)

a. Direct 56.3% 51.5% 55.7% 50.2% 45.4%

b. Indirect 43.7% 48.5% 44.3% 49.8% 54.6%

13 Home Loan

a. Average Ticket Size (at 4.6 4.7 4.6 4.6 4.2
Origination)

b. Loan To Value (at 69.3% 71.0% 70.5% 71.3% 71.1%
Origination)

C. % of AUM with CIBIL 75.5% 76.3% 75.8% 76.7% 77.6%
Score >750 (at
Origination)

14 Loan Against Property

a. Average Ticket Size (at 5.9 5.2 5.8 4.9 4.3
Origination)

b. Loan To Value (at 53.0% 53.1% 55.1% 52.8% 56.6%
Origination)

C. Self occupied 71.4% 70.7% 71.2% 71.2% 72.5%
Residential  Property
(SORP) %

15 Developer Finance

a. Average Ticket Size (at 459.9 3594 446.3 338.5 261.0
Origination)

b. Active developer 432 366 419 327 267
relationships  (funded
by DF) ¥

C. Active Projects (funded 669 543 616 487 373
by DF) ¥

d. Approved project 6,349 4,833 6,039 4,549 2,951
financiers (APF) ®¥)

16 Lease Rental
Discounting

a. Average Ticket Size (at 1,018.9 819.3 998.6 786.6 549.8
Origination)

b. Active Customers ) 249 209 237 187 164

Productivity Metrics

17 AUM/Branch 4,514.9 3,580.9 4,249.8 3,328.3 2,652.8

18 AUM/Employee 433.5 267.3 385.2 248.3 143.9

Financial Metrics

19 Net Worth 1,47,199.1 1,09,649.9 1,22,335.0 1,05,031.9 67,413.6

20 Total Income 22,087.3 17,633.8 76,177.1 56,654.4 37,671.3

21 Net Total Income 8,099.7 7,012.3 29,251.0 24,541.2 16,118.2
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Sr. Particulars As atand for | Asatand for | As atand for | As atand for | As at and for
No. the three the three the financial the financial the financial
months period | months period | year ended year ended year ended
ended June ended June March 31, March 31, March 31,
30, 2024 30, 2023 2024 2023 2022
22 Profit After Tax (PAT) 4,826.1 4,618.0 17,312.2 12,578.0 7,096.2
23 PAT y-o0-y Growth 4.5% 46.1% 37.6% 77.2% 56.6%
24 Yield on Advances (%) 10.0% 10.4% 10.2% 9.7% 8.7%
25 Cost of Borrowings (%) 7.9% 7.6% 7.6% 6.7% 5.9%
26 Spread (%) 2.1% 2.8% 2.6% 3.0% 2.8%
27 NIM  (Net Interest 3.9% 4.4% 4.1% 4.5% 4.0%
Margin) / NTI (Net Total
Income) (%)
28 Operating Expenses to 0.8% 1.0% 1.0% 1.2% 1.2%
Average Assets (%)
29 Operating Expenses to 21.0% 24.0% 24.0% 25.7% 29.2%
Net Total Income (%)
30 Credit Cost (%) 0.0% 0.0% 0.1% 0.2% 0.5%
31 Return on Average 2.3% 2.9% 2.4% 2.3% 1.8%
Assets (RoAA) (%)
32 Return on Average 14.3% 17.2% 15.2% 14.6% 11.1%
Equity (RoOAE) (%)
33 Capital Adequacy 23.82% 22.52% 21.28% 22.97% 19.71%
(CRAR) (%)
34 CRAR (%) - Tier 1 23.26% 21.79% 20.67% 22.19% 18.95%
35 Leverage (Total Assets 6.0 6.4 6.7 6.2 7.2
[Total Equity)
36 Debt to Equity the ratio 5.0 5.3 5.7 5.1 6.2
37 Borrowing Mix
a. Bank Borrowings 47.6% 53.3% 51.3% 58.9% 59.0%
b. Non-Convertible 37.6% 38.6% 34.7% 36.3% 30.1%
Debentures (NCDs)
C. National Housing Bank 12.0% 7.8% 9.9% 3.7% 0.0%
(NHB)
d. Commercial Paper 2.5% 0.0% 3.8% 0.8% 9.6%
e. Inter-Corporate 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 0.3% 1.2%
Deposits /Deposits
f. Others - - - - -
38 Earnings per Share
a. Basic 0.6 0.7 2.6 1.9 15
b. Diluted 0.6 0.7 2.6 1.9 15
Asset Quality Metrics
39 Gross Non-Performing
Assets (%)
a. Home Loan 0.28% 0.23% 0.27% 0.21% 0.29%
b. Loan Against Property 0.71% 0.73% 0.68% 0.77% 0.80%
C. Lease Rental 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Discounting
d. Developer Finance 0.13% 0.00% 0.15% 0.00% 0.04%
e. Others 0.94% 0.58% 0.91% 0.50% 0.41%
40 Net  Non-Performing
Assets (%)
a. Home Loan 0.12% 0.08% 0.10% 0.07% 0.13%
b. Loan Against Property 0.31% 0.24% 0.26% 0.31% 0.41%
C. Lease Rental 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Discounting
d. Developer Finance 0.03% 0.00% 0.04% 0.00% 0.00%
e. Others 0.19% 0.17% 0.21% 0.15% 0.13%
41 Provision Coverage
ratio (%)
a. Home Loan 56.6% 64.7% 61.7% 64.9% 55.6%
b. Loan Against Property 57.0% 67.5% 62.2% 60.0% 49.3%
C. Lease Rental 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Discounting
d. Developer Finance 73.2% 0.0% 73.8% 66.0% 100.0%
e. Others 79.9% 70.2% 76.7% 70.3% 67.9%
42 Product-wise Stage 1
a. Home Loan 5,21,062.7 4,13,492.5 4,89,994.4 3,91,801.3 2,98,871.4
b. Loan Against Property 78,757.9 61,436.2 77,930.4 57,924.0 61,516.0
C. Lease Rental 1,26,011.9 1,08,617.3 1,11,220.2 96,843.4 56,553.6
Discounting
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Sr. Particulars As atand for | As atand for | As atand for | As atand for | As at and for
No. the three the three the financial the financial the financial
months period | months period | year ended year ended year ended
ended June ended June March 31, March 31, March 31,
30, 2024 30, 2023 2024 2023 2022

d. Developer Finance 1,09,131.6 62,358.4 96,620.4 57,067.9 29,074.2

e. Others 17,574.2 17,747.4 17,427.7 17,783.6 15,980.9

43 Product-wise Stage 2

a. Home Loan 2,050.7 2,008.9 1,614.6 2,028.2 3,735.9

b. Loan Against Property 1,045.0 1,336.1 1,174.1 1,374.6 2,054.8

C. Lease Rental - - - - 17.3
Discounting

d. Developer Finance 2.8 - 4.5 72.5 5.9

e. Others 124.8 115.1 106.8 123.8 223.0

Credit Rating

44 Credit Rating

a. Non-Convertible IND IND IND IND IND
Debenture & AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable
Subordinated debt
(India Ratings)

b. Long-Term Bank IND IND IND IND IND
Rating/Short-Term AAA(Stable) /| AAA(Stable)/| AAA(Stable)/| AAA(Stable)/| AAA(Stable)/
Bank Rating (India IND A1+ IND A1+ IND A1+ IND Al+ IND Al+
Ratings)

C. Commercial Paper IND Al+ IND A1+ IND A1+ IND Al+ IND Al+
(India Ratings)

d. Non-Convertible CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL
Debenture (CRISIL) AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable

e. Subordinated debt CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL
(CRISIL) AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable AAA/Stable

f. Long-Term / Short- CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL CRISIL
Term Bank Rating| AAA/(Stable)/| AAA/(Stable)/| AAA/(Stable)/| AAA/(Stable)/| AAA/(Stable)/
(CRISIL) CRISIL A1+ CRISIL A1+ CRISIL A1+ CRISIL Al+ CRISIL A1+

g. Commercial Paper CRISIL A1+ CRISIL A1+ CRISIL A1+ CRISIL A1+ CRISIL Al+
(CRISIL)

Notes:

(#) denotes count

(1) Average represents the simple average of balance as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period and last day of the preceding fiscal

year / period.

@

Note: Please refer to table | for full forms, definitions and calculations of all metrics mentioned above

Description on the historic use of the KPIs by our Company to analyze, track or monitor the
operational and/or financial performance of our Company

A list of our KPIs along with a brief explanation of the relevance of the KPIs to our business operations are

set forth below:

Sr.
No.

Metrics

Description

Relevance

Footprint / Presence

1 No of States/UTs

Number

of

States and Union
represents the total number of states and
Union territory where Company has presence
as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year /

territory

physical

/ period

period

2 No of Branches Number of branches represents total number
of branches as at the last day of relevant fiscal
year / period

3 No of Locations Number of locations represents total number

of cities as at the last day of relevant fiscal year

4 No of Employees

Number of employees represents total number
of employees as at the last day of relevant
fiscal year / period

These metrics are used by the
management to assess the
presence,
and geographical expansion of
the business of our Company.

footprint

Portfolio Cuts
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Sr.
No.

Metrics

Description

Relevance

Assets under
(AUM)

Management

AUM-  Represents the asset under
management (AUM) which is aggregate of (i)
Loan Assets (Loans), which is aggregate
amount of loan receivable from customer and
includes future principal outstanding and
overdue principal outstanding after
considering the impairment allowances, and
(i) Assigned Assets (Off Book), which
represents aggregate amount of future
principal outstanding and overdue principal
outstanding for off book loan assets (which
have been transferred by our Company by way
of assignment) as at the last day of the
relevant fiscal year / period

AUM y-0-y Growth

AUM vy-o0-y Growth (%) - Represents
percentage growth in AUM as at the last day
of the relevant fiscal year / period over the
AUM of the last day of the preceding fiscal year
/ period

Disbursement

Disbursements - Represents the total
sanction amount of the new loans disbursed
during the relevant fiscal year / period

Disbursement y-0-y Growth

Disbursement y-o-y Growth (%) -
Represents percentage growth in
disbursement for the relevant fiscal year /
period over disbursement of the preceding
fiscal year / period

These metrics are used by the
management to assess the
growth in terms of scale of
business of our Company.

Product-wise AUM

Home Loan (HL)

Loan Against Property (LAP)

Lease Rental

(LRD)

Discounting

Developer Finance (DF)

Others

Product-wise AUM —
(a) HL - Represents ratio of the AUM for
our home loan product to total AUM
as at the last date of the relevant
fiscal year / period.

(b) LAP - Represents ratio of the AUM
for our loan against property product
to the total AUM as at the last date of
the relevant fiscal year / period.

(c) LRD - Represents ratio of the AUM

for our lease rental discounting

product to the total AUM as at the last
date of the relevant fiscal year/
period.

(d) DF - Represents ratio of the AUM for

our developer financing product to

the total AUM as at the last date of
the relevant fiscal year / period.

(e) Others - Represents ratio of the the

AUM for our non-collateralised loans

to the total AUM as at the last date of

the relevant fiscal year / period.

10

AUM Mix

On-book

Off-book

AUM Mix (%) -
(@) On-book AUM (%) - Represents the
ratio of loan assets to total AUM of
the relevant fiscal year / period.

(b) Off-book AUM (%) - Represents the
ratio of assigned assets to total AUM
of the relevant fiscal year / period.

These metrics are used by the
management to assess the
growth in terms of composition
of business of our Company.
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Sr. Metrics Description Relevance
No.
11 Home Loan AUM Mix (by|Represents mix of Housing Loan AUM by type
Customer Type) of Customers i.e. Salaried, Professionals or
Self-employed as at the last day of the relevant
a. Salaried fiscal year / period.
b. Self-employed professional
C. Self-employed non
professional
12 Home Loan AUM Mix (by|Represents mix of Housing Loan AUM basis
Sourcing Channel) the channel from which AUM has been
originated i.e. Direct or Indirect. In case of
a. Direct Indirect channels Loans are originated via
Intermediaries as at the last day of the relevant
b. Indirect fiscal year / period.
13 Home Loan These metrics are used by the
management to assess type of
a. Average Ticket Size (at|HL ATS (atorigination) - Representstheratio|the business and the
Origination) of total amount of home loans sanctioned to | concentration of business
the customer, whose home loan is active as at | across sub-segments of our
the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period | Company.
to numbers of active home loans at the last day
of the relevant fiscal year / period.
b. Loan To Value (at Origination) |[HL LTV (at origination) - Represents the
average of HL LTV for active Home loans
customer whose home loan is active as at the
last day of the relevant fiscal year / period,
weighted basis Home Loan AUM. LTV
represents the ratio of total secured loans
sanctioned to the customer against value of
collateral(s) mortgaged.
C. % of AUM with CIBIL Score|HL % of AUM with CIBIL Score >750 (at
>750 (at Origination) Origination) - Represents the ratio of AUM of
home loans sanctioned to the customers with
cibil > 750 as at the date of sanction, whose
loan was active as at the last date of relevant
fiscal year to AUM of active home loans at the
last day of the relevant fiscal year / period.
14 Loan Against Property
a. Average Ticket Size (at|LAP ATS (at origination) - Represents the
Origination) ratio of amount of total loan against property
loans sanctioned to the customer, whose loan
against property loan is active as at the last
day of the relevant fiscal year / period to
numbers of active loan against property loans
at the last day of the relevant fiscal year /
period.
b. Loan To Value (at Origination) | LAP LTV (at origination) — Represents the
average of LAP LTV for active Loan Against
property customers whose LAP loan is active
as at the last day of the relevant fiscal year /
period, weighted basis LAP AUM. LTV
represents the ratio of total secured loans
sanctioned to the customer against value of
collateral(s) mortgaged.
C. Self occupied Residential | LAP SORP (%) - Represents the self occupied

Property (SORP) %

residential mix which is composition of active
loans of loan against property, where the
collateral is used for self-occupation purposes
as a proportion to total active LAP loans as at
the last day of the relevant fiscal year / period.
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Sr. Metrics Description Relevance
No.
15 Developer Finance (DF)
a. Average Ticket Size (at|DF ATS (at Origination) - Represents the
Origination) ratio of total amount of developer financing
loans sanctioned against a project funded,
whose loan are active as at the last day of the
relevant fiscal year / period to numbers of
projects funded which has active developer
financing loans at the last day of the relevant
fiscal year / period.
b. Active developer relationships | Active developer relationships represent the
(funded by DF) # unique count of developers whose
construction finance loans are active as at the
last day of the relevant fiscal year / period.
C. Active Projects (funded by DF) | Active Projects (funded by DF) - Represents
&) number of active project against which loan is
active as at the last day of the relevant fiscal
year / period.
d. Approved project financiers | Approved project financiers (APF) -
(APF) ® Represents number of projects, which are
assessed and approved for future
disbursement for new customers.
16 Lease Rental Discounting
(LRD)
a. Average Ticket Size (at|LRD ATS (at Origination) - Represents the
Origination) ratio of total amount of lease rental discounting
loans sanctioned to the customers / customer
group, whose loan are active as at the last day
of the relevant fiscal year / period to numbers
of active lease rental discounting loans
customers /customer group at the last day of
the relevant fiscal year / period.
b. Active Customers *) LRD # of Active Customers — Represents

number of customers / customer group whose
lease rental discounting loan is active as at the
last day of the relevant fiscal year / period.

Productivity Metrics

17

AUM/Branch

AUM per bra